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HEARING OFFICER: All right. Today is
October 29, 2014 and we're here in the matter of Proposed
Rule 108, "Patient-Centered Medical Home Standards."

My name is Lenita Blasingame. I'm the
Chief Deputy Commissioner for the Insurance Department and
Commissioner Bradford has appointed me to be the Hearing
Officer today.

Present at the counsel table is Ms. Zane
Chrisman, Mr. Booth Rand and Dr. Joe Thompson.

Mr. Rand, you may proceed.

MR. RAND: Thank you, Ms. Hearing Officer.

Today we have set for an administrative
hearing Proposed Rule 108, which is Patient-Centered
Medical Home Standards. I'm going to a call it P-C-M-H so
I don't have to keep saying that phrase.

I want to go ahead and admit into the
administrative record a number of items that we have to
submit to the legislature to qualify the rule to be
promulgated first, and then what I propose to do,

Ms. Hearing Officer, is then come back and explain what
the proposed rule does and a little bit of a history with
this rule because we've had to file it before and we had
re-notice it, and then if you have any questions related
to what the program is doing, how it's supposed to

function, Dr. Thompson is here to address program
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parameters and purposes of PCMH.

The first exhibit, Ms. Hearing Officer, is
the Designation of the hearing Officer, which appoints you
to hear this matter today at 10 a.m. by Commissioner Jay
Bradford. That is Exhibit No. 1.

Exhibit No. 2 is the Arkansas Insurance
Department's Notice of Public Hearing. Under statutory
law under the APA Rule we're required to provide notice of
public hearings related to rules. This was our notice
setting today's hearing for 10:00 October 29th, 2014 for
both Rules 108 and 106. We're taking up 108 here first
because it went through the system over at the legislature
faster and it had some more urgency.

Exhibit No. 3 is the proposed rule itself.
Obviously we submit the actual proposed rule that we
drafted as part of the record.

Exhibit 4 and items 4A through E are our
communications to the Arkansas Democrat Gazette, which
provides the Notice, which runs in the newspaper for three
days to explain to the public when we're going to have a
hearing on Rule 108.

Exhibit 4A is the confirmation from the
Arkansas Democrat Gazette that the public notice for --
advising the public of the date of the hearing ran for

three dates beginning on, I believe, September the 17th
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for three days. 1I'll go through each of those if you
want.

HEARING OFFICER: No, that's fine.

MR. RAND: Exhibit 4 shows the billing and
notices and the nature and description of the notice that
ran in the newspaper for those who were curious and want
to see the notice that ran in the paper. It's in 4C.

Exhibit 5, Ms. Hearing Officer, as you know
we send out e-mails of our rules that we're proposing to
the members of the industry who have sent us notice that
they want to be sent copies of rules that we proposed.

Exhibit 5 is evidence that we have
generated from our records at the Legal Division by
Ms. LoRraine Rowland of our staff showing that she
distributed, by e-mail Blast System to the industry a copy
of Rule 108.

Exhibit 6, Ms. Hearing Officer, as you know
you're aware that when we file a rule the Arkansas
Legislative Council requires us to file a number of items,
including a cover letter, questionnaire, financial impact,
a summary of the rule, economic impact. That's in
Exhibit 6.

I mean, if you have questions over items or
answers to questionnaires and questions in any of those

I'll be glad to answer those, but those were submitted on
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September the 15th, 2014 to the Legislative Council, to
Ms. Davis and her staff.

Exhibit 7 is a copy of a letter which
evidenced the enclosure of the proposed rule we sent to
the Governor's office. As you know we advise other
departments and agencies in the Governor's staff when
we're doing rules. This is evidence that we have sent
Mr. Miller, who is our contact at the Governor's Office, a
copy of the rule.

Exhibit 8 is a copy of the letter that we
sent the AG's Offices, which enclosed a copy of the rule
advising the AG's Office of what we were doing with Rule
108.

Exhibit 9 is a copy of the rule and cover
letter that we sent to the Arkansas Secretary State's
Office showing -- giving them a copy of the actual
proposed rule.

Exhibit 10, we are required by statute,
also, to provide a copy of the proposed rule to the
Arkansas Economic Development Commission, so that AEDC can
review the impact, if any, on small businesses of the
proposal rules.

Exhibit 11, Ms. Hearing Officer, are public
comments that we have received about Proposed Rule 108.

They are voluminous. There's probably 30 to 35 different
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e-mails and letters that we received, comments from the
public that we received from nurses and physicians and
medical provider organizations about their opinions about
the rule. That is in Exhibit 11.

I want to make sure, also, that we included
back into this transcript of this administrative record,
comments that we received from the medical organizations
before 9/15. We did have a hearing on this issue on this
on August the 5th. I wanted to make sure when this
transcript of this hearing goes over to the legislature
and the Legislative Council, that they can see all the
comments that were made about the rule before we filed
this second filing, so that they'll have a good idea of
what -- of every one's opinion about it, because not
everybody responded again after we refiled the second
ruling.

I also included the transcript of the
August 5th, 2014 hearing, which included the testimony and
statements made on the record by a variety of persons in
support of or in opposition of the rule as it was then, to
give, again, a full and complete description of public
comments made before we had to refile and after.

So at this time I move to admit those items
into the administrative record.

HEARING OFFICER: Mr. Rand, are you
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prepared to summarize the comments that we got?

MR. RAND: I will. I will say that we have
reviewed each and every one of those e-mails. I can read
all of those verbatim.

HEARING OFFICER: I think a summary will be
adequate.

MR. RAND: And I apologize if I
inadequately or inarticulately describe the comments from
organizations that have submitted them, but the way I
understand the general dynamics of the comments --

HEARING OFFICER: Let's admit these
Exhibits 1 through 13 into the record.

(Exhibits 1-13 were admitted into
the record and attached hereto.)

MR. RAND: There are three or four lines of
comments made by a variety of medical providers and by the
health insurers. Let me take the medical providers.

Nurse practitioners, advanced nurse practitioners want a
neutral definition of who the provider can be in the PCMH
team model. The originally-filed rule that we had was a
neutrally-defined, provider-led definition.

The physicians -- family physicians, the
Arkansas Medical Society, and the Arkansas Family
Practitioners Organization -- I'm sorry, I cannot recall.

A-A-F-P, and other medical organizations, however, want
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the PCMH team provider model leader to be a primary care
physician or a physician. The arguments by the Medical
Society and by physicians is their level of training and
their ability to admit persons into hospitals and a
variety of other scope parameters which are broader than
advanced nurse practitioners, gives them a much more
principal and significant role in the leadership of the
PCMH team model, more so than the APN.

I'm not picking sides. This is just what
the comments have been. The physicians certainly want
nurse practitioners to be involved in the team, but in
terms of leadership, they feel it's much better for the
physician to actually be the team leader.

In addition to that, the current State
Medicare Manual or PCMH, which is what Medicaid and the
issuers are participating in currently require a primary
care physician leadership role does not permit neutral or
advanced nurse practitioners to operate as the lead team
leader in PCMH.

So AMS and other medical organizations want
us to be consistent with what is currently underway right
now with the PCMH model, which is a primary care physician
role or leadership role. The advanced nurse practitioners
and nurses point out, quite accurately, that the

progressive nature of these models and parameters is to
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look towards an APN possibility with leadership in PCMH
team models.

The NCQA model permits advanced nurse
practitioners to be the leader in PCMH teams. There are
some other accrediting organizations that recognize that
as well. So the progressive interpretation is to permit a
neutral definition. So there are -- I would say out of
the 35, 40 comments that we've received after 9/15, most
of them are this issue about whether a primary care
physician should be the leader of the team, PCMH, or
whether it should be neutral and it should allow carriers
to designate advanced nurse practitioners.

So the doctors -- and, again, I don't
mean -- there's much more articulated, better wording than
what I'm saying, but the typical letter from the
physician, is that they have a higher level of training
and they have an ability to do things in terms of
brescriptions and admission that gives them a much more
pivotal role that needs to be a leadership role as opposed
to a neutral definition.

The other line of comments that came back
from the first hearing that we had on this, I think there
was several objections or concerns that have been raised
to the Department. One, is do we want PCMH to apply to

only HCIP enrollees under the HCIP Act. Dr. Thompson and
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I have taken the interpretation that if the issue is
participating in the marketplace, they have agreed to
apply PCMH to both in-market place enrollees -- I mean,
all marketplace enrollees, not just HCIP enrollees.

Blue Cross Blue Shield, QCA point out that
if you read the HCIP Act strictly, it says that PCMH must
be supported for HCIP enrollees. We don't interpret it
that way. Some of the other concerns -- I believe this is
raised by the Bureau of Legislative Research. There is in
this, Ms. Hearing Officer, a $5 support fee that the
issuers have to provide providers who are agreeing to
participate in PCMH for each enrollee per month and the
question was raised with the Department -- of course,
you're aware under the Arkansas Procedure Act that we've
changed the Act, at least several sessions ago, that when
agencies impose fees, they have to have a specific law
that specifically and expressly authorizes that fee.

And if you look at HCIP or the Healthcare
Independence Act, it does provide the Arkansas Insurance
Department, and I believe ADHS with rule-making authority
in general. It does not reference the support fee. And I
think my response back to the bureau and legislature is
that although the statute does not expressly permit this
fee, this is not a typical fee that the Department is

going out collecting from insurance agents or producers or
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from insurance companies that go into general revenue.
This is a fee that's optional that the carriers are having
to pay providers, so it's not like we're going out
collecting -- the Insurance Department increased agent
fees or certificate of authority annual fees and we're
absorbing that or collecting that out from the general
revenue.

So I don't interpret the APA to apply for
this particular fee. It is a voluntary fee for providers.
Providers aren't required to do PCMH. This proposed rule
makes it voluntary. For those who do, the support payment
fee has to be made to providers based upon attributing
enrollees. But the providers' participation is strictly
voluntary. It's not just a fee that we typically go out
and impose on the industry. We don't collect it and it's
not sent to us.

So those have been some of the general
comments that we have in the record, both before and after
today's hearing. Again, I can read all of those, but I
think the Commissioner and you have gone through some of
these as well.

HEARING OFFICER: I've read them all.

Dr. Thompson, do you have any comments at
this point?

DR. THOMPSON: I think Mr. Rand has
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represented it well.

MR. RAND: Let me, Ms. Hearing Officer,
explain some of the rule that we've done, if that's okay.

HEARING OFFICER: Surely.

MR. RAND: The 9/15/2014 proposed Rule 108
no longer is a neutral provider defined PCMH rule. It now
requires the healthcare insurance company that's adopting
PCMH to follow the state Medicaid PCMH Manual, therefore,
because the state Medicaid PCMH Manual requires a primary
care physician to be the leader of the PCMH, this rule
will follow the state Medicaid Manual to make -- to
require that the PCMH team leader is a primary care
physician.

Now, that is the change that we have made
to the previously followed rule. Other changes that we've
had are not significantly that different from what we had
before. The only significant change that we've made is
the issue of a provider. We do believe, though, that --
and Dr. Thompson can speak to this -- we have some
proposed edits to the recently followed rule to make it
more clearer that we are relegating it to primary care
physician leadership.

There are references throughout the rule,
Ms. Hearing Officer, to "provider." And even though we

tied the rule leadership to the state Medicaid Manual,
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which is primary care physician, several physicians said
it's still not clear. You've got the word medical
provider throughout some of these sections and it doesn't
say primary care physician.

No. 2, you've got a definition of primary
care physician, but you don't ever use it in the rule. So
I think our position on it was that if we regquire the
insurance companies to follow the state Medicaid Manual on
PCMH, we really didn't need to state the obvious, that
it's primary care physician restriction, but we do propose
to go back through where there is a reference to provider,
to put in primary care physician. And we certainly do
not, and are not intending in any way to suggest that
nurses are not going to be involved in the team of care in
this program.

That is one edit that we would like to
make, is to go through, even from this proposed rule, and
make it clear that when we use provider, we're talking
about primary care physician. And Dr. Thompson can speak
to -- we're also making a proposed amendment to Section 5B
related to attribution.

Joe, if you'll talk about what we want to
add there.

DR. THOMPSON: Sure. Two comments. First,

before the additiomal attribution, it is not intended that
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advanced practice nurses or physician assistants cannot be
providers or the lead provider in primary care as a
primary care relationship. It's that the team is led by a
primary care physician. That's the Medicaid model, that's
the Payment Improvement Model, and I think those are the
changes that Mr. Rand is alluding to.

Separately, because it is a voluntary
physician-led effort, we need a mechanism to actually
attribute patients -- sorry, attribute enrollees to their
primary care setting. We have been working with the three
carriers and have agreement among the participating
carriers for an attribution method that would standardize
the approach across the carriers to make sure that the
application of the rule is equally applied across the
carriers and it would require -- it's under Subsection B,
under Section 5, that states that health carriers will
prospectively attribute qualified health plan enrollees to
primary care practices either based on the enrollee's
choice, which currently is not in place, or according to
the plurality of wvisits.

Then there's an agreement among the
carriers that that would happen on a quarterly basis to
enable movement of enrollees between primary care
providers to be appropriately allocated to their selected

source of primary care.
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So that's a new addition to the rule. I
think it is -- it's been agreed to by the three carriers.
It has the support of the clinical associations, and I
think it standardizes the application in an area that
there was some lack of specificity that this strengthens
the applicability to the carriers through the process.

MR. RAND: And, Ms. Hearing Officer, we
have the suggested edit to that section that Dr. Thompson
raises in Exhibit 14 to Section 5B. It is underlined and
we do anticipate deliberating with both you and the
Commissioner to go through all these comments and edits so
that you both can review it to see if those are needed
amendments.

Dr. Thompson is right. We do not feel the
amendment to Section 5B related to attribution is
controversial or is significant or would require
re-notification. It is an agreed to, non-controversial
issue related to how enrollees are attributed.

So, again, just to go back through the
basics of this rule, and we have not yet given a general
description of it, but, Ms. Hearing Officer, as you know
the legislature wants to advance the initiative of PCMH to
save and reduce healthcare plan costs and to re -- to
reignite or ignite provider payments to be based on

medical outcomes that are achieved by providers, instead
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of fee for service. BAnd what this rule is essentially
doing, is requiring carriers to offer the option of PCMH
to providers. 1It's not mandating every provider and every
network of the carriers have to do PCMH. Providers can
voluntarily do PCMH if they want to. If they do, the
carrier is agreeing to provide the support fees to help
providers have the resources to do PCMH.

One of the reasons for this support fee is

that -- and Dr. Thompson is much more articulate than me.
There are resource requirements that are -- that could
be -- require some expenses, medical records requirements,

being open 24/7. There's a list of PCMH requirements that
providers have to abide by to meet PCMH, and I think the
fee is to help providers to develop the capacity to
achieve these goals.

And the whole point of this isn't to --
just to do a fee for a fee. It's to help us reduce health
plan costs, it's to help health insurance companies have
better outcomes, and it's to improve patient care. And so
this is a good thing we want to promote and I think it's
kind of gotten lost in this issue over nurses versus
physicians.

I mean, we certainly did not want to just
get into that. The whole point of this is to try to

improve healthcare for patients and to track outcome and
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metrics, so that we know what we're doing is right and
working in the exchange and marketplace.

HEARING OFFICER: Anything else,

Dr. Thompson?

DR. THOMPSON: I would -- for the purpose
of background, so the Arkansas Payment Improvement
Initiative is a multi-payer effort to transform the
Arkansas healthcare system. Participants include not only
the carriers that would be affected by this rule, but also
other carriers not participating in the marketplace, as
well as public and private self-insured employers.

So this is a four-year process of which the
Payment Improvement Initiative is showing positive impacts
on improving the quality of care, the efficiency of care
and containing the cost of care.

HEARING OFFICER: Okay. Anything further,
Mr. Rand, before we hear from interested parties?

MR. RAND: No, Ms. Hearing Officer.

HEARING OFFICER: When I call your name,
would you mind moving to the end of this table down here
where this mic is and introduce yourself, 'any group that
you're affiliated with, and if your name is like
Blasingame, would you spell it, please?

All right. Jim Couch?

MR. COUCH: I'm only going to comment on
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106.

HEARING OFFICER: All right. Victor, did
you have comments?

MR. RAY: I'm with Mr. Couch.

HEARING OFFICER: Rule 10s6.

All right. Mr. Sewall?

MR. SEWALL: I think, Ms. Hearing Officer,
you have the wrong list, or we all signed up for the wrong
list.

HEARING OFFICER: This is 106. I do have
the wrong sheet.

Mary Garnica, would you like to comment on
1087

MS. GARNICA: Yes, ma'am.

HEARING OFFICER: Okay. Would you please
come forward?

MS. GARNICA: Sure.

HEARING OFFICER: Introduce yourself, spell
your last name.

MS. GARNICA: I'm Dr. Mary Garnica. I am
representing the Arkansas Nurses Association as their
Health Policy Chair. My last name is spelled
G-A-R-N-I-C-A.

HEARING OFFICER: Thank you. You may

pProceed.
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MS. GARNICA: Okay. I am reading from the
Arkansas Nurses Association's letter dated today, October
29th, 2014 to the Honorable Jay Bradford of the Arkansas
Insurance Department regarding Rule 108 on
Patient-Centered Medical Home Standards.

"Dear Commissioner Bradford: The Arkansas
Nurses Association (ARNA) wishes to comment on the
proposed Rule 108, "Patient-Centered Medical Home (PCMH)
Standards." Specifically we're commenting in opposition
to the changes made to the proposed rules issued on
September 15, 2014. We believe that the original proposed
rule issued May 13, 2014 more closely follows the General
Assembly's intent to maximize the available healthcare
service options and to promote healthcare efficiencies
that will deliver value to the tax payers, A.C.A.
20-77-2402.

In effect the new rule eliminates the
ability of advanced practice registered nurses (APRNs) to
lead PCMHs and deliver much needed healthcare in an
efficient and cost-sensitive manner.

This language is inconsistent with the
provider neutral language in the Arkansas Healthcare
Independent Act, A.C.A. 20-17-2106(d) (1), and the
Department of Health and Human Services Section 1115,

Demonstration Waiver. As you know, the PCMH is a national
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concept of coordinated primary care and is already being
carried out in Arkansas via the Comprehensive Primary Care
Initiative (CPCI) funded by the Centers for Medicare &
Medicare Services. In Arkansas, having the opportunity
for APRNs to be recognized as a primary care provider and
a team leader in PCMH would expand the workforce, helping
to alleviate access issues across the state.

Recognizing APRNs as team leaders in the
PCMH follows model federal guidelines, national trends,
recommendations from CMS, the National Centers for Quality
Assurance, and the Institute of Medicine.

We believe the Arkansas Insurance
Department should follow the intent of the General
Assembly and directions of DHS and CMS by allowing APRNs
to serve as PCMH team leaders for the Patient-Centered
Medical Home.

Respectfully, Mary Garnica, DNP, FNP-BC,
Chair, Health Policy Committee, Arkansas Nurses
Association; Rhonda Finnie, DNP, APRN, AGACNP-BC, FNFA,
President, Arkansas Nurses Association.™®

HEARING OFFICER: Thank you.

MS. GARNICA: You are welcome.

HEARING OFFICER: Mr. Laffoon?

MR. LAFFOON: I'm speaking on Rule 106.

HEARING OFFICER: Is there anyone else who
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would like to comment on 1087

MS. BYRD: I've combined all my comments on
106 and 108 into one letter.

HEARING OFFICER: Okay. And your name is?

MS. BYRD: Darlene Byrd.

HEARING OFFICER: Okay. Did you sign in on
a speaker sheet somewhere?

MS. BYRD: Yes.

HEARING OFFICER: Well, the other one
appears to be blank, so we'll just ~-- when we get through
with 108, anyone that wants to speak on 106, we'll give
you an opportunity.

MS. BYRD: Okay.

HEARING OFFICER: Mr. Rand, do you have any
closing remarks?

MR. RAND: I do not. 2And I have had the
request, Ms. Hearing Officer, that we keep the record open
for comments for another day.

HEARING OFFICER: Like 24 hours?

MR. RAND: Like until 5:00 tomorrow. How
about that?

HEARING OFFICER: All right.

MR. RAND: If that's okay?

HEARING OFFICER: I have no objection to

that.
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MR. RAND: And I have no further comments.
HEARING OFFICER: Does anyone else have
something?
If not, this hearing is adjourned. We'll
take about a ten-minute recess and start with 106.
(WHEREUPON, at 10:34 a.m., the

above hearing concluded.)




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

25

CERTIPFICATE

STATE OF ARKANSAS
COUNTY OF FAULKNER

RE: PROPOSED RULE 108-"PATIENT-CENTERED MEDICAL HOME
STANDARDS

I, Michelle R. Satterfield, CCR, a Notary Public in and
for Faulkner County, Arkansas, do hereby certify that the
transcript of the foregoing public hearing accurately
reflects the testimony given; and that the foregoing was
transcribed by me, or under my supervision, on my Eclipse
computerized transcription system from my machine
shorthand notes taken at the time and place set out on the
caption hereto.

I FURTHER CERTIFY that I am neither counsel for, related
to, nor employed by any of the parties to the action in
which this proceeding was taken; and, further that I am
not a relative or employee of any attorney or counsel
employed by the parties hereto, nor financially
interested, or otherwise, in the outcome of this action.
GIVEN UNDER MY HAND AND SEAL OF OFFICE on this the 5th day
of November 2014.

Michelle R. Satterfield, CCR
LS Certificate No. 570
Notary Public in and for
Faulkner County, Arkansas
Notary License #12369856

My commission expires: February 9, 2019.
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DATE:

SUBJECT:

EXHIBIT LIST
October 29, 2014

PROPOSED RULE 108: “PATIENT-CENTERED MEDICAL
HOME STANDARDS”

HEARING OFFICER: LENITA BLASINGAME, CHIEF DEPUTY

COMMISSIONER & HEARING OFFICER

EXHIBIT # DESCRIPTION

1

2

Designation of Hearing Officer

Arkansas Insurance Department 9-15-2014 Notice of Public Hearing
concerning Proposed Rule 108 “Patient-Centered Medical Home Standards”

Proposed Rule 108 “Patient-Centered Medical Home Standards™ Filed 9-15-2014.

Proof of Publication of Hearing on Proposed Rule 108 in the Arkansas Democrat-
Gazette as required by Arkansas Administrative Procedures Act,
Ark. Code Ann. §§ 25-15-201, ef seq.

a) Email to Arkansas Democrat Gazette 9-15-2014
b) 9-15-2014 Cover Letter to ADG

c) Copy of ADG Notice

d) Copy of ADG Billing and Notice

€) Copy of ADG receipt

September 15, 2014 Evidence of Blast Mail concerning Proposed Rule 108
“Patient-Centered Medical Home Standards”

9-15-2014 ALC Cover Letter, Questionnaire and Financial Impact Statement for
Proposed Rule 108 “Patient-Centered Medical Home Standards,” Summary, and
Economic Impact Statement.

a) Questionnaire
b) Financial Impact
c) Summary

d) Economic Impact

Copy of September 15, 2014 correspondence to James Miller, Regulatory Liaison
Office of the Governor, providing Notice of Public Hearing and Proposed Rule
108

3



10

11

12

13

Copy of September 15, 2014 correspondence to Brandon Robinson, Assistant
Attorney General, Office of the Attorney General, providing Notice of Public
Hearing and Proposed Rule 108

Copy of September 15, 2014 correspondence to Arkansas Secretary of State,
providing copies of the Notice of Hearing and Proposed Rule 108

Copy of September 15, 2014 correspondence to Pat Brown, Arkansas Economic
Development Commission, providing Notice of Hearing and a copy of Proposed
Rule 108

Public Comments after 9-15-2014

Public Comments before 9-15-14

Transcript August 5, 2014 Hearing






Mike Beebe ¢ \Jay-Bradford
Governor Commissioner”
CED & .
SeP 1 i
BURL . =
DATE: SEPTEMBER 15, 2014 LEGISLATIv, | L ZARCH
TO: ALL ACCIDENT AND HEALTH INSURERS, HEALTH MAINTENANCE ORGANIZATIONS
AND HOSPITAL AND MEDICAL SERVICE CORPORATIONS & OTHER INTERESTED
PARTIES
FROM: ARKANSAS INSURANCE DEPARTMENT
SUBJECT: RULE 108: “PATIENT-CENTERED MEDICAL HOME STANDARDS”

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING

Please find attached or available by electronic publication by the Arkansas Insurance Department (“Department”)
Proposed Rule 108, “PATIENT-CENTERED MEDICAL HOME STANDARDS.” The Arkansas Insurance
Commissioner (“Commissioner”) is re-filing for public comment and public hearing, a proposed regulation
governing patient-centered medical home programs for health care insurers issuing policies in the health insurance

marketplace under Act 1498 of 2013 of the Arkansas Eighty-Ninth General Assembly, known as the “Health Care
Independence Act of 2013.”

Pursuant to Ark. Code Ann. §§20-77-2105(g)(1), 20-77-2106(€), 23-61-108(a)(1), 23-61-108(b)(1), and other
applicable laws or rules, NOTICE is hereby given that a PUBLIC HEARING will be held on October 29, 2014, at
10:00 A.M., in the First Floor Hearing Room, Arkansas Insurance Department (“Department”), 1200 West Third
Street, Little Rock, Arkansas.

The purpose of the Public Hearing will be to determine whether the Commissioner should adopt Proposed Rule 108,
"PATIENT-CENTERED MEDICAL HOME STANDARDS."

All interested persons are encouraged to make comments, statements or opinions to the address below or attend the
Public Hearing and present, orally or in writing, statements, arguments or opinions on the proposed Rule. All
licensees and other interested persons are responsible for notifying all their personnel, agents, and employees about
this Public Hearing.

Persons wishing to testify should notify the Legal Division as soon as possible, and are requested to submit intended
staternents in writing in advance.

Direct your inquiries to the Legal Division at (501) 371-2820 or insurance.legal@arkansas.gov.

A copy of Proposed Rule 108 can be obtained or viewed on the Legal Division’s Internet Web Site at
http://insurance.arkansas.gov/prop-rules.htm ~

Sincerely,

Bboth and é

Managing Attorney
Arkansas Insurance Department
(501) 371-2820

1200 West Third Street, Little Rock, AR 72201-1904 - (501) 371-2600 - (501) 371-2618 fax - www.insurance.arkansas.gov
Information (800) 282-9134 - Consumer Services (800) 852-5494 - Seniors (800) 224-6330 - Criminal Inv. (866) 660-0888
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Section 1. Authority

This Rule is issued pursuant to Section One of Act 1498 of 2013 of the Arkansas Eighty-
Ninth General Assembly, also known as the “Health Care Independence Act of 2013 (hereafter,
the “Health Care Independence Program,” or “HCIP”), now codified in Ark. Code Ann. §§ 20-
77-2401 et seq. Pursuant to Ark. Code Ann. § 20-77-2405(g)(1) and Ark. Code Ann. § 20-77-
2406(e), the Arkansas Insurance Department (“AID”) and Arkansas Department of Human
Services (“ADHS”) are authorized to issue Rules to implement provisions under HCIP. In
addition, this Rule is issued pursuant to Ark. Code Ann. § 23-61-108(b)(1) which states that the
Arkansas Insurance Commissioner (“Commissioner”) has authority to promulgate rules and
regulations necessary for the effective regulation of the business of insurance.

Section 2. Purpose

The purpose of this Rule is to provide standards for patient-centered medical home
(“PCMH”) programs for Health Carriers in the Health Insurance Marketplace which issue
Qualified Health Plans (“QHPs”) on or after January 1, 2015.

Section 3. Applicability & Scope

This Rule applies to all Health Carriers issuing QHPs in the Health Insurance
Marketplace on or after January 1, 2015. Under Ark. Code Ann. § 20-77-2406(d), Health
Carriers participating in the Health Insurance Marketplace are required to participate in in
Arkansas Payment Improvement Initiatives (“APII”) including: (1) Assignment of primary care
clinician; (2) Support for patient-centered medical home; and (3) Access of clinical performance




data for providers. The HCIP requires Health Carriers to participate in the APII as multi-payer
participants. This Rule requires Health Carriers to participate in PCMH standards as one active
or available option in Qualified Health Plan networks on or after January 1, 2015. Additionally,
these standards set a floor for participation and do not preclude Health Carriers from developing
and implementing standards that exceed the requirements set forth in this Rule.

Section 4. Definitions
The following definitions shall apply in this Rule, unless otherwise defined by HCIP:

(1) “ADHS” means the Arkansas Department of Human Services;

(2) “AID” means the Arkansas Insurance Department;

(3) “APII” means the Arkansas Payment Improvement Initiatives, as referenced in Ark.
Code Ann. § 20-77-2406(d), which is a multi-payer program that connects medical payment to
medical providers to achieve high quality care at an appropriate cost;

(4) “Arkansas PCMH Model” means the PCMH provisions in Section 200 of the
Arkansas Medicaid Provider Manual;

(5) “DMS” means the Arkansas Department of Medicaid Services under ADHS;

(6) "HCIP" means the Program established under Act 1498 of 2013 by the Arkansas State
Legislature known as the “Health Care Independence Act of 2013”;

(7) "Health Carrier" means a private entity certified by AID and offering plans through
the Health Insurance Marketplace;

(8) “Healthcare coverage" shall mean healthcare benefits as defined under Ark. Code
Ann. § 20-77-2404(4);

(9) “Health Insurance Marketplace" means the marketplace as defined by Ark. Code Ann.
§ 20-77-2404(5);

(10) "Qualified Health Plan" means an AID certified individual health insurance plan
offered by a Health Carrier through the Health Insurance Marketplace;

(11) “QHP Enrollee” means a person insured under a Qualified Health Plan;

(12) “Patient Centered Medical Home” (“PCMH”) means a “Patient Centered Medical
Home” as defined under Section 200 of the Arkansas PCMH Model.

(13) “Primary Care Physician” means a “Primary Care Physician” as defined under
Section 171 of the Arkansas PCMH Model.
Section S. Requirements

For QHPs issued on or after January 1, 2015, Health Carriers shall adopt the
following requirements and provide the opportunity for providers eligible to participate in the
Arkansas PCMH model to participate in a PCMH program according to these standards:



(a)

(®)

(©)

@

(e)

®

(@

A Health Carrier shall follow the requirements of the Arkansas PCMH Model or
may develop its own PCMH standards based upon an accepted national PCMH
model, as approved by the Commissioner, to the extent that such provisions are
consistent with and not in conflict with this Rule or the Arkansas PCMH Model.

Health Carriers will prospectively attribute QHP enrollees to primary care
practices either based on enrollee choice or according to the plurality of
professional visits for primary care evaluation and management paid by the
Health Carrier over the prior year. Health Carriers may develop their own method
for attributing enrollees for whom coverage was discontinuous during the prior
year;

Notwithstanding the PCMH Model chosen by the Health Carrier in Section Five
(5) (2) of this Rule, Health Carriers will offer practice support to primary care
provider practices that have been identified by Medicaid as participating in the
Arkansas PCMH model through the APIIL. Health Carriers may identify additional
PCMH participants with at Jeast three hundred (300) enrollees for inclusion in the
Arkansas PCMH Model. Practice support will be provided in the form of care
coordination payments equivalent to or greater than an average of five dollars
($5.00) per enrollee per month. Health Carriers may use a risk adjustment method
of their choosing for determining the actual payment, SO long as the average
payment per enrollee is no less than five dollars ($5.00) per month;

Health Carriers may terminate payment of practice support for provider failure to
meet milestones or deadlines for practice transformation activities and
benchmarks or targets for clinical quality. In order to minimize provider
administrative burden and encourage meaningful data reporting, quality metrics
collected and reported by Health Carriers must incorporate Arkansas PCMH
model requirements;

Health Carriers shall provide performance reports for PCMH practice
transformation and quality on a quarterly basis. A standardized report form shall
be made available to Health Carriers from the Arkansas Health Care Payment
Improvement Initiative Web Site (WwWw _paymentinitiative.org) and reporting
should include total cost of patient care and care categories (not shown in
referenced report);

Health Carriers shall share statistics with AID or its designee(s) (output of
analyzed claims data used to create above reports) for streamlined provider use at
an aggregate multi-payer level;

On or after January 1, 2016, Health Carriers should expect to participate in
development of mechanisms to share savings with PCMH practices for achieving
a per issuer enrollee cost of care that is below its benchmark cost.




(h) Health Carriers shall educate QHP enrollees about the Health Carrier’s PCMH
program and indicate which practices are participating in the program.
Section 6. Enforcement

AID shall review a Health Carrier’s compliance with the provisions of this Rule

in its role of recommending approval or non-approval for certification of qualified health plans
sold in the Health Insurance Marketplace.

Section 7. Effective Date

The effective date of this Rule shall be January 1, 2015.

JAY BRADFORD
INSURANCE COMMISSIONER

DATE



LoRraine Rowland
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From: Legal Ads <legalads@arkansasonline.com>
... Sent: Monday, September 15, 2014 10:35 AM
. To: LoRraine Rowland
‘Subject: Re: Proposed Rule 108 “Patient-Centered Medical Home Standards

Received and processed to begin on the 17th for 3 days.
Thanks

Pam

From: LoRraine Rowland
Sent: Monday, September 15, 2014 10:06 AM

To: 'Legal Ads (legalads@arkansasanline.com )

Cc: LoRraine Rowland ; Booth Rand
Subject: Proposed Rule 108 "Patient-Centered Medical Home Standards

Please find attached the Department’s Legal Ad for Proposed Rule 108. Please provide me with the dates this Rule will
run.

Thank you,

LoRraine Rowland
Administrative Analyst/Legal Division
Arkansas Insuvance Department

1200 West 37 Street

.- Little Rock, AR 72201
501-371-2831 (office)

501-371-2639 (fax)
[orraine‘row&nﬁ[@arﬁamas,gov ~

T have seeds in the ground and I am in a great place”




Arkansas Insurance Department

Mike Beebe Jay Bradford
Governor Commissioner
September 15, 2014
Arkansas Democrat-Gazette
P O Box 2221
Little Rock, AR 72203

Attn: Ms. Pam Dicus, Legal Ad Department
Facsimile: 501-378-3591

RE:  Legal Notices: Public Hearing on Proposed Rule # 108

Dear Ms. Dicus:

The Insurance Commissioner is proposing to adopt Rule 108, “Patient-Centered Medical Home
Standards.” In order to publish it per the Arkansas Administrative Procedure Act, as amended,
and per the Arkansas Insurance Code, we need to publish a FULL RUN legal ad or notice on the
Commissioner's Public Hearing for the Rule set on October 29, 2014 at 10:00 a.m.

In compliance with Ark. Code Ann. § 25-15-204 and § 16-3-102, please find enclosed a legal ad
for Notice of Public Hearing which should be published for three (3) consecutive days beginning
on June 30, 2014.

Please send the billing invoices to Mrs. Pam Looney, Assistant Commissioner, Accounting
Division, Arkansas Insurance Department, 1200 West Third, Little Rock, Arkansas 72201-1904,

accompanied by a printed copy of the Legal Ad and proof of publication. Thank you in advance
for your cooperation.

Sincerely,

Y

Booth Rand
Managing Attorney/Legal Division
booth.rand@arkansas.gov

LRR

~ Attachment — Legal Ad for Proposed Rule 108 Adoption

cc: LoRraine Rowland, Administrative Analyst

1200 West Third Street, Little Rock, AR 72201-1804 - (501) 371-2600 - (501) 371-2618 fax - www.insi;

fnfmmmnntiome 1ONNA NON NADA e vt tanes Ama -



NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING

The Arkansas Insurance Department will host a Public Hearing on October 29, 2014 beginning at
10:00 a.m. in the First Floor Hearing Room, Arkansas Insurance Department, 1200 West Third
Street (Third and Cross Streets), Little Rock, Arkansas, to consider adoption of proposed Rule 108,
“Patient-Centered Medical Home Standards.” The Insurance Commissioner is re-filing for public
hearing and comments a previously filed proposed Rule on Patient-Centered Medical Home
Standards, due to proposed changes following a public hearing on August 4, 2014. Copies of
proposed Rule 108 may be obtained by writing or calling the Arkansas Insurance Department, or
may be accessed at http://insurance.arkansas.gov/prop-rules.htm or
www.accessarkansas.org/insurance for links there. All interested persons are encouraged to make
comments, statements or opinions to at the address above or attend the Public Hearing and present,
orally or in writing, statements, arguments or opinions on the proposed Rule. For more
information, please contact Ms. LoRraine Rowland, Legal Division, Arkansas Insurance
Department at 501-371-2820.
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STATEMENT OF LEGAL ADVERTISING

e

ARK INSURANCE DEPARTMENT
1200 W THIRD

LITTLE ROCK AR 72201

REMIT TO:

ARKANSAS DEMOCRAT-GAZETTE, INC.

P.O. BOX 2221

Bazette

LITTLE ROCK, AR 72203

ATTN: Pam Looney . .
DATE 09/19/14 INVOICE #: 2938261 BILLING QUESTIONS-CALL 378-3812
ACCT #: L801001 P.O. #:
_NOTICE OF PUBLIG HEARING
The-Arkansas-Ingurance De-
partment will host:d Publlc Hear.
STATE OF ARKANSAS, ) ing ot Qctobar 29,2014 begla:
COUNTY OF PULASKI, } ss.

I, Annette Holcombe do solemnly swear that I am
the Legal Billing Clerk of the Arkansas Democrat -
Gazette, a daily newspaper printed and published
in said County, State of Arkansas; that I was so
related to this publication at and during the

publication of the annexed legal advertisement in
the matter of:

HEARING

pending in the Court, in said County, and

at the dates of the several publications of said
advertisement stated below, and that during said
""eriods and at said dates, said newspaper was
srinted and had a bona fide circulation in said
" County; that said newspaper had been regularly
printed and published in said County, and had a
bona fide circulation therein for the period of
one month before the date of the first publication
of said advertisement; and that said advertisement

was published in the regular daily issues of said
newspaper as stated below.

DATE DAY LINAGE RATE DATE DAY LINAGE RATE

09/17 Wed 50 1.25

09/18 Thu S50 1.25

09/19 Fri 50 1.25

TOTAL COST ===~ = o 187.50
Billing Ad #: 72807442

Ao A,

"OFEICIAL SEAL - # 12381354

BENNIE J. FULLER
NOTARY PUBLIC - ARKANSAS
PULASKI COUNTY
MY COMMISSION EXPIRES: 3-24.2021

nlag at10:00a th
Floar Hearing Roomy Ardinsas In- _
surance Departy 00 Wast.

. conslddradoptign-af proposed
‘Rules108;~Patlent-Centered
Medical Home Standards:™ The
Insurance Commissionef is re-fil-
ing:for.public hearlng and com-
‘ments a praviously filed proposed
Rule on Patient-Cefitered Medical
‘Home Standards, dus to-pro-
‘fiosed changes foflowing a public
heafing on August'4,:2014, Cop-
les'of pfoposed Rule:108 may.be
obtalned by wrlting or caliing the
Arkansas Insurance: Department,
ar may be accessed-at ittp:/fin-
sm‘anc?mms; v/prop-rules.
Ch o teme

Wi, accessarkansas. org/ing
-ance forlinks there. 7 All Interest-
ed persons are encouraged 1o
make comments; statements or
opintons {0 at the address above
+'gr-attend tha Public Hearing and
: present, orally or.in.writing,
! gtatements; arguments of opln-
fons on the proposed Rule. For
- more Infofmation, please coftact
- Ms, LoRralns Rowland, Legal DI
vislon, Arkansas Insurdnce De-
partment et 501-371-2820.
TR

RECEIVED

SEP 29 2014

NG
Ak SERANCE OEPARTENT




Arkansas Democrat 7% (bazette
STATEMENT OF LEGAL ADVERTISING

REMIT TO:

RK INSURAN

11\250 IWSngI\RSE PEPARTMENT ARKANSAS DEMOCRAT-GAZETTE, INC.
LITTLE ROCK AR 72201 P.0. BOX 2221

LITTLE ROCK, AR 72203
ATTN: Pam Looney

DATE : 09/19/14 INVOICE #: 2938261

ACCT #: L801001 P.O. #: BILLING QUESTIONS CALL 378-3812
STATE OF ARKANSAS, } AD COPY
COUNTY OF PULASKI, }  ss.

I, Annette Holcombe do solemnly swear that I am
the Legal Billing Clerk of the Arkansas Democrat -
Gazette, a daily newspaper printed and published
in said County, State of Arkansas; that I was so

related to this publication at and during the PLEASE
publication of the annexed legal advertisement in
the matter of: REMIT
HEARING THIS

pending in the Court, in said County, and
at the dates of the several publications of said COPY
advertisement stated below, and that during said

s meriods and at said dates, said newspaper was WITH

t, rinted and had a bona fide circulation in said PAYMENT

“"County; that said newspaper had been regularly
pPrinted and published in said County, and had a
bona fide circulation therein for the period of

one month before the date of the first publication IN ACCORDANCE WITH

of said advertisement; and that said advertisement

was published in the regular daily issues of said FEDERAL RESERVE

newspaper as stated below. GUIDELINES, CHECKS
YOU SEND US FOR
PAYMENT MAY BE
PROCESSED

DATE DAY LINAGE RATE DATE DAY LINAGE RATE ELECTRONICALLY.

09/17 Wed 50 1.25

09/18 Thu 50 1.25 THIS MEANS CHECKS

09/19 Fri 50 1.25 CLEAR FASTER AND
BANK STATEMENTS
ARE VALID PROOF OF
PAYMENT.

TOTAL COST = 187.50

Billing Ad #: 72807442

““.subscribed and sworn to me this
day of ,» 20

Notary Public




LoRraine Rowland
m

L

(" From: LoRraine Rowland

S Sent: Monday, September 15, 2014 1:47 PM
To: LoRraine Rowland
Subject: E-Mail Scheduled

The following e-mail was successfully scheduled.
Subject: Proposed Rule 108 "Patient-Centered Medical Home Standards"

Message: Please click on the link below to view the Department's Proposed Rule 108 "Patient-Centered Medical
Home Standards"

http://insurance.arkansas.gov/prop-rules.htm

Should you have questions regarding this Rule please contact the Legal Division at 501-371-2820 or via email
@ insurance.Legal@arkansas.gov Sincerely,

Attachment: None




Arkansas Insurance Department

Mike Beebe

Jay Bradford
Governor

Commissioner

September 15, 2014

HAND DELIVERY SEp 15 -

Ms. Donna Davis BlUn~ ‘
Arkansas Legislative Council LEgy SLA TI/Q\/I\A Uog
Arkansas Bureau of Legislative Research E RE SE AR o
State Capitol, Suite 315 H

Little Rock, Arkansas 72201

RE:  Proposed Rule 108: “Patient-Centered Medical Home Standards”

Dear Ms. Davis:

Enclosed for your review and for filing with the Subcommittee of the Arkansas Legislative Council, is
proposed Rule 108, “Patient-Centered Medical Home Standards.”

The Arkansas Insurance Department (“Department”) is re-filing for public hearing and comments a
previously filed proposed Rule on Patient-Centered Medical Home Standards, due to proposed changes
following a public hearing on August 4, 2014. We believe the changes the Commissioner wanted to make

to the originally filed proposed Rule, following the administrative hearing, necessitate a new public
hearing and comment period.

The proposed Rule establishes requirements related to patient-centered medical home programs for health

care insurers issuing policies in the health insurance marketplace under the “Health Care Independence
Act 0of2013.”

The Department has scheduled another public hearing for October 29, 2014, at 10:00 AM., at the
Arkansas Insurance Department, to consider adopting this proposed Rule.

I have enclosed a triplicate set of the proposed Rule, our Notice of Public Hearing, the standard
Questionnaire, Financial Impact Statement as well as a summary of the proposed Rule.

Sincerely,

Managing Attorney/Legal Division

booth.rand@arkansas.gov

cc: LoRraine Rowland, Administrative Analyst
cc: Jessica Sutton and Issac Linam, Bureau of Legislative Services

1200 West Third Street, Little Rock, AR 72201-1904 - (501) 371-2600 - (501) 371-2618 fax - www.insurance. nsas.gov
Information (800) 282-9134 - Consumer Services (800) 852-5494 - Seniors (800) 224-6330 - Criminal Inv. (866) 660-0888



QUESTIONNAIRE FOR FILING PROPOSED RULES AND REGULATIONS
WITH THE ARKANSAS LEGISLATIVE COUNCIL AND JOINT INTERIM COMMITTEE

DEPARTMENT/AGENCY___ Arkansas Insurance Department

DIVISION Legal Division
DIVISION DIRECTOR Bill Lacy
CONTACT PERSON Booth Rand

ADDRESS 1200 West Third Street, Little Rock, Arkansas 72201

PHONE NO._501-371-2820__FAX NO._501-371-2639__E-MAIL_booth.rand@arkansas.gov
NAME OF PRESENTER AT COMMITTEE MEETING __ (Booth Rand & Dr. Joe Thompson)
PRESENTER E-MAIL _ booth.rand@arkansas.gov

INSTRUCTIONS
A. Please make copies of this form for future use.
B. Please answer each question completely using layman terms. You may use additional sheets,
if necessary.
C. If you have a method of indexing your rules, please give the proposed citation after “Short
Title of this Rule” below.
D. Submit two (2) copies of this questionnaire and financial impact statement attached to the
front of two (2) copies of the proposed rule and required documents. Mail or deliver to:
Donna K. Davis
Administrative Rules Review Section 7 [=
Arkansas Legislative Council B i
Bureau of Legislative Research orD 1k 904
Room 315, State Capitol SEP 15 201
Little Rock, AR 72201
**********************;e****************************@QQEAHQE*****************
LEGISLATIVE RESEAR
1. What is the short title of this rule? |

Rule 108, “Patient-Centered Medical Home Standards”

2. What is the subject of the proposed rule?

The Arkansas Insurance Department (“Department”) is re-filing for public hearing and comments a
previously filed proposed Rule on Patient-Centered Medical Home Standards, due to proposed changes
following a public hearing on August 4, 2014. We believe the changes the Commissioner wanted to make
to the originally filed proposed Rule, following the administrative hearing, necessitate a new public
hearing and comment period.

The proposed Rule establishes requirements for health insurers implementing patient-centered medical
home programs (PCMH) under Act 1498 of 2013 of the Arkansas Eighty-Ninth General Assembly, also
known as the “Health Care Independence Act of 2013” (hereafter, the “Health Care Independence
Program,” or “HCIP”), now codified in Ark. Code Ann. §§ 20-77-2101 et seq. HCIP requires all health
insurers participating in the marketplace or exchange to “support” PCMH and to participate in the
Arkansas Payment Improvement Initiatives (APII). The proposed Rule provides standards for insurers to
use to offer PCMH to their medical providers (in primary care practices) desiring to participate in PCMH
for qualified health plans (QHPs) issued on or after January 1, 2015.

A similarly proposed and numbered Rule was originally filed this summer with an August 4, 2011 hearing
date. The Department held a public hearing on August 4, 2011 and decided to make changes in response
to comments and concerns to the originally filed Rule. The currently proposed Rule has been changed to



defer the requirements of PCMH to the requirements in the Arkansas State Medicaid PCMH manual, and
states that, although the health insurer may develop its own PCMH requirements following an approved
national model, the health insurer must not adopt requirements in conflict with the State Medicaid PCMH
Manual. The purpose of these recent changes is to avoid conflicts with the State Medicaid PCMH
requirements. Under the proposed Rule, health insurers will provide the opportunity for providers to
participate in a PCMH program conforming to the State Medicaid PCMH manual requirements, or to

participate in an approved PCMH model approved by the Insurance Commissioner not in conflict with the
Medicaid parameters.

3.
4.

Is this rule required to comply with a federal statute, rule, or regulation? Yes No X

Was this rule filed under the emergency provisions of the Administrative Procedure Act?
Yes No_ X

If yes, what is the effective date of the emergency rule? N/A

When does the emergency rule expire? N/A

Will this emergency rule be promulgated under the permanent provisions of the Administrative
Procedure Act? N/A Yes No

[sthisanewrule? Yes X No If yes, please provide a brief summary explaining
the regulation.

Please find an attached Summary including a power point from ACHI (Arkansas Center for

Health Improvement) explaining the background and objectives for this proposed Rule.

Does this repeal an existing rule? Yes No__X Ifyes, acopy of the repealed rule is to be
included with your completed guestionnaire. If it is being replaced with a new rule, please
provide a summary of the rule giving an explanation of what the rule does.

Is this an amendment to an existing rule? Yes  No_X Ifyes, please attach a mark-up
showing the changes in the existing rule and a summary of the substantive changes.

Cite the state law that grants the authority for this proposed rule? If codified, please give
Arkansas Code citation.

Ark. Code Ann. § 20-77-2405(g)(1) and Ark. Code Ann. § 20-77-2406(¢)
What is the purpose of this proposed rule? Why is it necessary?

The purpose of the proposed Rule is to provide standards for health insurers to use to offer PCMH
and payment enhancements to their medical providers (in primary care practices) desiring to
participate in PCMH for qualified health plans (QHPs) issued on or after January 1, 2015. Under
the proposed Rule, health insurers will provide the opportunity for providers to participate in a
PCMH program conforming to the State Medicaid PCMH manual requirements, or to participate

in an approved PCMH model approved by the Insurance Commissioner not in conflict with the
Medicaid parameters. See attached Summary explaining the proposed PCMH Rule.

Please provide the address where this rule is publicly accessible in electronic form via the Internet
as required by Arkansas Code § 25-19-108(b). http://insurance.arkansas.gov/prop-rules. htm



9. Will a public hearing be held on this proposed rule? Yes X No
If yes, please complete the following:
Date: October 29, 2014
Time: 10:00 a.m.
Place: Arkansas Insurance Department, First Floor Hearing Room

10.  When does the public comment period expire for permanent promulgation? (Must provide a date.)

October 29, 2014 unless the Commissioner desires to keep the record open for more comments
following the hearing. If we have significant medical provider or insurer disputes or concerns, we will
keep the record open for as long as possible to consider everyone’s comments or concerns.

11. What is the proposed effective date of this proposed rule? (Must provide a date.)
As currently drafted on January 1, 2015.

12. Do you expect this rule to be controversial? Yes X No ___ If'yes, please explain.

Yes, see summary for more detail. The nursing community wants to be allowed to be designated as a lead
provider in PCMH programs and wants a neutral definition of primary care provider in the Rule, to allow
for nurse practitioners. The physician and especially family physicians in this State, including their
organizations, e.g., Arkansas Medical Society, want the lead primary care provider to be a physician so as
we have consistency with the Medicaid PCMH requirements. The originally filed Rule had a neutral
provider definition, however after receipt of comments and concerns that a neutral definition conflicts
with the State PCMH Model in Medicaid, we have agreed in this latest proposed Rule to change the Rule
to comply with Arkansas Medicaid PCMH requirements. The State Medicaid PCMH model definition of
PCMH restricts the lead provider in PCMH to be a “primary care physician.”

13. Please give the names of persons, groups, or organizations that you expect to comment on these
rules? Please provide their position (for or against) if known.

We expect the nurses and physicians to once again make public comments. We however do not know
right now which specific groups or organizations will again comment for or against the Rule. We will be
glad to update this information including providing Legislative Research with a transcript and copy of all
comments made to the proposed Rule when we receive those comments.



FINANCIAL IMPACT STATEMENT
PLEASE ANSWER ALL QUESTIONS COMPLETELY

DEPARTMENT Arkansas Insurance Department
DIVISION Legal Division
PERSON COMPLETING THIS STATEMENT Booth Rand

TELEPHONE NO.__371-2820__FAX NO.__371-2820 _EMAIL: booth.rand@arkansas.gov

To comply with Act 1104 of 1995, please complete the following Financial Impact Statement and file two
copies with the questionnaire and proposed rules.

SHORT TITLE OF THIS RULE Rule 108, “Patient-Centered Medical Home Standards”

1. Does this proposed, amended, or repealed rule have a financial impact?
Yes No Unknown. We have not calculated financial impact to health
benefit plans subject to the proposed Rule in terms of premium rate or cost impact.

2. Does this proposed, amended, or repealed rule affect small businesses?
Yes No X

If yes, please attach a copy of the economic impact statement required to be filed with the
Arkansas Economic Development Commission under Arkansas Code § 25-15-301 et seq.

The Economic Impact Statement is included in our filings.

3. If you believe that the development of a financial impact statement is so speculative as to be cost
prohibited, please explain.

We have not calculated any premium or plan rate impact this proposed Rule would or would not
have, at this time. One of the goals of PCMH is reduction and control of medical costs which drive up the
cost of health insurance.

4. If the purpose of this rule is to implement a federal rule or regulation, please give the incremental cost
for implementing the rule. Please indicate if the cost provided is the cost of the program.

We do not anticipate any costs to the Department or State in our implementation of this Rule.

Current Fiscal Year Next Fiscal Year

General Revenue General Revenue
Federal Funds Federal Funds




Cash Funds Cash Funds

Special Revenue Special Revenue
Other (Identify) Other (Identify)
Total Total

What is the total estimated cost by fiscal year to any party subject to the proposed, amended, or
repealed rule? Identify the party subject to the proposed rule and explain how they are affected.

N/A

Current Fiscal Year Next Fiscal Year
$ N/A $ N?A

What is the total estimated cost by fiscal year to the agency to implement this rule? Is this the cost of
the program or grant? Please explain.

N/A
Current Fiscal Year Next Fiscal Year

$ $
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The proposed Rule establishes patient-centered medical home standards (“PCMH?) for
health insurers issuing policies in the marketplace or Exchange on or after J anuary 1,
2015. Under Act 1498 of 2013, known as the Health Care Independence Act of 2013
(“HCIP”), health insurers participating in the marketplace are required to participate in
the Arkansas Payment Improvement Initiative and are required to “support” PCMH.

PCMH is essentially a team-based treatment approach for patients who are insured in the
marketplace and who typically may have chronic medical issues. The program is
established at the primary care practice level, with a patient being assigned a team of
medical providers who have the goal of tracking and reporting treatment for the purpose
of achieving the most qualitatively and cost effective outcome. The program is designed
to reduce medical costs and to improve medical care. Importantly, it also is designed to
improve primary care provider reimbursement by providing payment incentives for
providers following its requirements. It is also designed to improve and streamline
primary care provider practices and enhance the patient’s experience with medical
providers due to the focused team approach placed on the patient.

We previously filed a similarly named and numbered Rule this summer and held a public
hearing on August 4, 2014. The originally drafted and filed Rule used a neutral definition
of primary care provider which did not require the “lead” medical provider to be a
physician, this therefore permitted medical providers other than physicians to lead PCMH
teams, e.g., nurses or nurse practitioners. This broader or neutral definition however
conflicted with the State Medicaid PCMH manual which only permitted primary care
physicians to lead PCMH.

In Section 200 of the PCMH Medicaid manual: Patient-Centered Medical Home (PCMH)
is expressly defined to be “a team-based care delivery model led by Primary Care
Physicians (PCPs) who comprehensively manage beneficiaries’ health needs with an
emphasis on health care value.”

In this current, latest amendment, to avoid conflicts with Medicaid and the only State
mode] we have on PCMH which are already being followed by the insurers in pilot
programs, the Department is simply taking the position that the PCMH programs of
health insurers need to follow the State Medicaid PCMH requirements, and this may
include the provider type which is required to lead the PCMH. Health insurers are
however able to develop their own PCMH programs based on an approved other national
model, as long as its requirements do not conflict with the State Medicaid PCMH manual.




.

As provided in the proposed Rule, PCMH is only required to be offered to providers by
the health insurers on or after January 1, 2015, for plans issued in the marketplace on or
after that date, as one active or available option, for providers desiring to participate in
the program including payment incentives or shared savings.



ECONOMIC IMPACT STATEMENT

OF PROPOSED RULES OR REGULATIONS”
EO 05-04: Regulatory Flexibility

Department: Arkansas Insurance Department Division: Legal
Contact Person:Booth Rand Date: 9152014
Contact Phone: s01-371-2620 Contact Email: bootﬁﬁqd@:}'{@ngaého[ RES EARCH

Title or Subject:

Proposed Rule 108 “Patient-Centered Medical Home Standards”

Benefits of the Proposed Rule or Regulation

1. Explain the need for the proposed change(s). Did any complaints motivate you to
pursue regulatory action? If so, please explain the nature of such complaints.

The proposed rule is a re-filing of an earlier proposed rule pertaining to the same
subject matter, following a public hearing held on August 5, 2014. The newly
amended Rule now defers and follows the State Medicaid PCMH Manual.

Given that the needed changes to the originally proposed Rule, after the public
hearing, were more than stylistic or cosmetic, we are re-noticing for public hearing
an amended proposed Rule dealing with patient-centered medical home standards.
Neither the new changes nor was the originally proposed rule derived from
consumer complaints. The proposed Rule is needed to provide standards to health
care insurers issuing policies in the “health insurance marketplace” which are
participating in patient-centered medical home programs under Act 1498 of 2013
known as the Health Care Independence Program.”

2. What are the top three benefits of the proposed rule or regulation?

A patient-centered medical home program (“PCMH") is essentially a team-based
approach to coordination of a patient’s care, formed, established and accountable at

the primary care practice level of the patient. The three best benefits of this program
are:

1. The program is designed to lower medical costs, improve health outcomes and track
medical costs and utilization to lower overall insurance costs. The newly amended Rule now
defers or follows the State Medicaid PCMH manual. '

2. The program is designed to also improve the patient's overall experience of medical care
and improve his or her overalf health due to the team-based focus for the patient. The
program is designed to chart and track metrics to achieve a cost effective, qualitative
positive health outcome.

3. As part of the payment care improvement initiative, PCMH is designed to provide primary
care practices with enhanced payments and to thereby reinvigorate PCP's revenue and
take-home pay, and improve practice processes and workflows.

3. What, in your estimation, would be the consequence of taking no action, thereby
maintaining the status quo?




10.

11.

Possible uncertainty as to the official regulatory standards health care issuers in the
marketplace have to abide by for its providers to participate in PCMH. There is a need for
clarification in the market for health insurers offering PCMH programs to its providers that

they should follow and not conflict with the State Medicaid PCMH model requirements as a
basis for developing their PCMH programs.

Describe market-based alternatives or voluntary standards that were considered in
place of the proposed regulation and state the reason(s) for not selecting those
alternatives.

Although we are aware that health care insurers may have already internally developed or
implemented similar medical home or medical team coordination concepts to improve
patient care and lower costs in the market, the proposed regulation is needed to set out our
state-specific requirements if issuers and their providers want the State's payment
improvement initiatives and shared savings. The Department believes the proposed Rule
provides flexibility to issuers to use or develop their own PCHM or medical home standards

or requirements, assuming the standards do not conflict with the State Medicaid PCMH
model.

Impact of Proposed Rule or Regulation

Estimate the cost to state government of collecting information, completing
paperwork, filing, recordkeeping, auditing and inspecting associated with this new
rule or regulation.

None.

What types of small businesses will be required to comply with the proposed rule or
regulation? Please estimate the number of small businesses affected.

None. The proposed Rule is applied to health care insurers in the health insurance
marketplace and not applied to “small business owners.”

Does the proposed regulation create barriers to entry? If so, please describe those
barriers and why those barriers are necessary.
None.

Explain the additional requirements with which small business owners will have to

comply and estimate the costs associated with compliance.
None.

State whether the proposed regulation contains different requirements for different

sized entities, and explain why this is, or is not, necessary.
None.

Describe your understanding of the ability of small business owners to implement
changes required by the proposed regulation.

The propose Rule does not require “small business owners” to implement provisions in the
proposed Rule.

How does this rule or regulation compare to similar rules and regulations in other
states or the federal government?

The proposed Rule is not derived from any organization model rule or law or other state
law, however, we are aware that other States have implemented or are currently in the
process of implementing similar PCMH or “medical home” programs.
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12.

Provide a summary of the input your agency has received from small business or
small business advocates about the proposed rule or regulation.

The Department has not received input from small business per se about this
proposed Regulation although has received substantial input from a variety of
medical providers and insurers for and against the originally proposed Rule. Please
see the Legislative Questionnaire about these comments.



Arkansas Insurance Department

Mike Beebe

Jay Bradford
Governor

Commissioner

September 15, 2014

VIA STATE MESSENGER
Mr. James Miller
Regulatory Liaison
Office of the Governor
State Capitol Building

Little Rock, AR 72201

RE:  Arkansas Insurance Department Rule 108: “Patient-Centered Medical Home Standards”

Dear Mr. Miller:

Enclosed for your review is the Arkansas Insurance Department’s proposed Rule 108, “Patient-Centered
Medical Home Standards.”

The Insurance Commissioner is re-filing for public hearing and comments a previously filed proposed Rule on
Patient-Centered Medical Home Standards, due to proposed changes following a public hearing on August 4,
2014. The Arkansas Insurance Department (“Department™) is proposing a Rule to establish requirements
related to patient-centered medical home programs for health care insurers issuing policies in the health
insurance marketplace under Act 1498 of 2013 of the Arkansas Eighty-Ninth General Assembly, known as the
“Health Care Independence Act of 2013.”

The Department has scheduled a public hearing for October 29, 2014, at 10:00 AM.,, at the Arkansas
Insurance Department, to consider adopting this proposed Rule.

Please do not hesitate to contact me at 371-2820 if you have any questions.

Sincerely

B Rand 4%

Managing Attorney/Legal Division

booth.rand@arkansas.gov

cc: LoRraine Rowland, Administrative Analyst

1200 West Third Street, Little Rock, AR 72201-1904 - (501) 371-2600 - (501) 371-2618 fax - www.insurance.arkansas.gov
Information (800) 282-9134 - Consumer Services (800) 852-5494 - Senjors {800) 224-6330 - Criminal Inv. (866) 660-0888



Mike Beebe

Jay Bradford
Governor

Commissioner

September 15, 2014

Mr. Brandon Robinson, ESQ.
Office of the Attorney General
323 Center Street, Suite 200
Little Rock, AR 72201

RE:  Arkansas Insurance Department Rule 108: “Patient-Centered Medical Home Standards”

Dear Mr. Robinson;:

Enclosed for your review is the Arkansas Insurance Department’s proposed Rule 108, “Patient-Centered
Medical Home Standards.”

The Insurance Commissjoner is re-filing for public hearing and comments a previously filed proposed Rule on
Patient-Centered Medical Home Standards, due to proposed changes following a public hearing on August 4,
2014. The Arkansas Insurance Department (“Department™) is proposing a Rule to establish requirements
related to patient-centered medical home programs for health care insurers issuing policies in the health

insurance marketplace under Act 1498 of 2013 of the Arkansas Eighty-Ninth General Assembly, known as the
“Health Care Independence Act of 2013.”

Please do not hesitate to contact me at 371-2820 if you have any questions.

Sincergly,

ooth Rand
Managing Attorney/Legal Division

booth.rand@arkansas.gov

cc: LoRraine Rowland, Administrative Analyst

1200 West Third Street, Little Rock, AR 72201-1904 - (501) 371-2600 - (501) 371-2618 fax - www.insurance.arkansas.gov
Information (800) 282-9134 - Consumer Services {800) 852-5494 - Seniors (800) 224-6330 - Criminal inv. (866) 660-0888



Mike Beebe

Jay Bradford
Governor

Commissioner

September 15, 2014

Arkansas Secretary of State @ o
State Capitol Building e
Little Rock, AR 72201 |

Attn. Arkansas Register

Re: Rule 108, “Patient-Centered Medical Home Standards”

‘ - s 2
Dear Secretary: 2 (::D) "
i N Z
Arkansas Act 1478 of 2003 adds to requirements for adoption and re-adoption of public agency Tilles ‘and o
regulations. In that regard, the new Act: 2 W

(a) Requires notice of proposed Rule 108, as well as the Public Rule Hearing at the
Arkansas Insurance Department, to be published by the Arkansas Secretary Of State on the

Internet for thirty (30) days pursuant to Ark. Code Ann. § 25-15-218 of the Arkansas
Administrative Procedure Act, as amended; and

(b) Requires DOI filing of its adopted and proposed rules and notices with the Arkansas
Secretary Of State in an electronic format acceptable to the Secretary.

In that regard, the Department has scheduled a public hearing as to proposed adoption of Rule 108.
Enclosed are the DOI Notices of Public Hearing and a copy of the proposed rule.

Please arrange to publish the information in a format acceptable to the Secretary for at least 30 days in
advance. Can you send us confirmation that we can use in the transcript as a public hearing exhibit?

An electronic filing will be made within the statutorily required 7 days. Thanks for your help.

Sincerely,

Oﬁﬁ?@m d/éd(
LoRrairfe Rowland
Administrative Analyst/Legal Division

Lorraine.rowland@arkansas.gov
371-2820

Enclosures

1200 West Third Street, Little Rock, AR 72201-1804 - (501) 371-2600 - (501) 371-2618 fax - www.insurance.arkansas.gov
Information (800) 282-9134 - Consumer Services (800) 852-5494 - Seniors (800) 224-6330 - Criminal inv. (866) 660-0888
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Jay Bradford
Governor

Commissioner

September 15, 2014

Ms. Pat Brown

Economic Development Commission
One Capitol Mall

Little Rock, AR 72202

RE: Rule 108, “Patient-Centered Medical Home Standards”

Dear Ms. Brown:

Enclosed for your review is the Arkansas Insurance Department’s proposed Rule 108, “Patient-
Centered Medical Home Standards.”

The Insurance Commissioner is re-filing for public hearing and comments a previously filed
proposed Rule on Patient-Centered Medical Home Standards, due to proposed changes following
a public hearing on August 4, 2014. The Arkansas Insurance Department (“Department”) is
proposing a Rule to establish requirements related to patient-centered medical home programs
for health care insurers issuing policies in the health insurance marketplace under Act 1498 of

2013 of the Arkansas Eighty-Ninth General Assembly, known as the “Health Care Independence
Act 0£2013.”

The Department has scheduled a public hearing for October 29, 2014, at 10:00 A.M., at the
Arkansas Insurance Department, to consider adopting this proposed Rule.

Please do not hesitate to contact me at 371-2820 if you have any questions.

Sincerely yours,

LoRraine Rowland

Administrative Analyst/Legal Division
Lorraine.rowland@arkansas.gov
501-371-2831

Enclosures

ACR/

1200 West Third Street, Little Rock, AR 72201-1304 - (501) 371-2600 - (501) 371-2618 fax - www.insurance.arkansas.gov
Information (800) 282-9134 - Consumer Services (800) 852-5494 - Seniors (800) 224-6330 - Criminal Inv. (866) 660-0888



5’ UnitedHealthcare

EMPLOYER & INDIVIDUAL

10 Cadiliac Drive Suite 200
Brentwood, TN 37027
615 372 3614 fax 615 372 3640

October 28, 2014

Booth Rand, Senior Counsel
Arkansas Insurance Department
1200 West Third Street

Little Rock, Arkansas 72201-1804

RE: Proposed Rule 108

Dear Mr. Rand,

Please consider this letter a record of written comments to Proposed Rule 108, Patient-
Centered Medical Home Standards, on behalf of UnitedHealthcare (“UHC"). Thank you
for the opportunity provided to carriers to submit comments prior to the hearing.

As you have set out in the proposed rules, Ark. Code Ann. § 20-77-2406(d), requires
carriers who offer coverage to the expanded Medicaid population through the individual
exchange Marketplace (‘the Marketplace”) to participate in certain Health Care Payment
Improvement Initiatives including supporting patient-centered medical homes. The
statute does not codify specific examples of what should be considered the required
carrier support. The Department seeks to accomplish this statutory requirement by
requiring Qualified Health Plans (“*QHP"s) to meet the standards established in this
proposed rule.

As a general comment, given that the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services’
("CMS") Comprehensive Primary Care Initiative (“CPC1") has not yet yielded meaningful
results for 2013 and 2014, it seems premature to require carriers to adopt those
practices at a state level. UHC recommends that the DO give time for the lessons of
the CPCI to become known before incorporating those models into the Marketplace.
Delaying the implementation of these models until more is understood could prevent
carriers from having to make costly and administratively burdensome changes in the
future.

More specifically, UHC would like to make the following recommendations of changes to
the Departments proposal:

= That the Department consider a provision that wouild allow the $5 PMPM care
management fee be lessened over time as savings begin to be seen by the
providers, as provider shared savings payments, and carriers alike.

» That it be specified that high risk case management be defined as a milestone for
clinical quality, and that failure to meet that milestone be a reason a carrier may
terminate practice support for that provider.

¢ That multi-payer aggregation be excluded as a provision of the program until
more is learned about its value propaosition.



Comments on Proposed Rule 108
10/28/2014
Page 2 of 2

If you have any questions about the comments above, or would like more detail on any
of the recommendations, please feel free to contact me directly. Again, we appreciate

the opportunity to comment. We hope this process can be collaborative in order to
achieve the most beneficial outcome for Arkansas.

Sincerely,

oAk pf

LaCosta Wix
Director of Regulatory
Affairs, MidSouth
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To: Booth Rand

Fax Number: 501-371-2639

From: pr. Byrd, APN

Number of pages (including cover

sheet) 3

Comments: If you have any questions
regarding my public comment feel free
to contact me at 501-337-6652 (cell) or at
dbyrd@apn-healthcare.com
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APN HealthCare
B, Darlene Byrd, DNP, APRN, FAANP
14 Tahoe P.0. 1523
Cabot, Arkansas 72023
501-605-8110
dbyrd@apn-healthcare.com

QOutober 29, 2014

Jay Bradford , Commissioner
Arkansas Insurance Department
12 West Third Street

Little Rock, AR 72201

Dear Mr. Bradford,

I'm Dr, Darlene Byrd, APRN., 1 appreciatc the OPpOrtunity to SXpress my Concens regarding
Arkansas Insurance Department (A1) proposcd rule 106 and 108. [ understand that proposed
rule 106 will sct the definition and evaluation for insurance cartiers 1o show they have an
adequate provider network. A network, as stated in section 5 of rule 106 , *...that is sufficicnt in
numbers and types of providers to assure that all health carc services to covered persons will be
accessible without unrcasonable delay”. Currently the state’s major insurance cariers recognize
APRNs as primary care providers. That being the case, we should be included, as we are, in the
definition of adequate nctwork and be counted as the primary care providers that we are. 1 would
also point out that Arkansas Medicaid regulations recognize that APRNs provide primary care
services.

Proposed rule 106 is in direct conflict with rule 108, F irst, there are con Ycting definitions (or
patient centered medical homes (PCMI1) between the rules. Second, in rule 106 the defination of°
"health care provider", "provider" and "primary carc professional” are all neutual in their
language whilc rulc 108 the defination laguage is specific to physicians. Third, in Rulc 106
APRNS are counted as primary care providers for the carrier to ensure an adequale provider
network. However rule 108 tics the hands of APRNs and does not recognize APRNS as primary
care providers or leaders of PCMITL. Therefore on paper a carricr may have an adequate network
bul in reality they do not sincc rulc 108 will limit access to APRNs and prohibit APRNs from
[ully practicing their profession as licensed by the state of Arkansas. It has the polential to injure
and restrict the professional practice of APRNSs. It further violates ACA 23-99-202 by violating
the patient’s right to choosc their healtheare providers, It will disenfranchise paticnts from the
benefits a paticnt centered medical home may provide when they choose to see an APRN
exclusively or when the APRN is the only pravider in their community. Therefore a carrier will
not have an adequate nctwork because access will be limited creating the potential {or
unrcasonable delays to health carc.

I have not been able to identify any specific federal/CMS rule that would prohibit APRNs from
being leaders of a medical home. In fact all of (he major PCMH certifying agencics recognize
APRNs as leaders of the medical home. T do not belicve the legislature intended to require the
[tce market of insurance carriers to look and operale like Arkansas Medicaid as rule 108
preseribes,
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Therefore T would encourage the commissioner to clear this contlict by returning to the original
proposed rule 108, issued May 13, 2014, which [ollows the General Assembly’s intent (o
maximizc the available health care service and to promote healthcare efficiencies that will deliver
value to the Arkansas taxpaycrs. The Insurance Department should produce rules that are
consistent with the legislation and the legislator's declared intent. This would let the insurance
carriers continue to use APRNs in their primary care provider counts to establish network

adequacy and 10 determine who will be leaders of the patient centered medical home for their
beneficiaries.

Thank you for this opportunity to share my concerns.

Sincerely,

A Ln LS5l e

Dr. Darlene Byrd, APRN
Family Nurse Practitioner



~—~From: Darlene Byrd [mailto:dbyrd@apn-heaithcare.com]

Email: Cynthia.Crone@Arkansas.Gov

sent: Wednesday, September 17, 2014 9:30 AM

" To: Cynthia Crone

Subject: Re: Public Comment Dates for 106 and 108
Thanks

Dr. Darlene Byrd, APN
APN HealthCare

Sent from my iPhones&

On Sep 17, 2014, at 8:19 AM, Cynthia Crone <Cynthia.Crone@arkansas.gov> wrote:

Fyi.
Thanks, Cindy

Cynthia C. Crone, APRN

Deputy Commissioner

Arkansas Insurance Department
Arkansas Health Connector Division
1200 West Third Street

Little Rock, AR 72201

Phone: 501-683-3634
Fax: 501-371-2629
Email: Cynthia.Crone@Arkansas.Gov

From: Zane Chrisman

Sent: Wednesday, September 17, 2014 7:21 AM

To: Cynthia Crone

Subject: RE: Public Comment Dates for 106 and 108

It will be from now until the hearing. She can also come to the hearing to make comments then
as well.

From: Cynthia Crone

Sent: Tuesday, September 16, 2014 10:26 PM

To: Zane Chrisman .
Subject: Fwd: Public Comment Dates for 106 and 108

Do you know the answer to this? Cindy
Sent from my iPhone

Begin forwarded message:

From: Darlene Byrd <dbyrd@apn-healthcare.com>
Date: September 16, 2014 at 2:25:20 PM CDT

To: Cynthia Crone <Cynthia.Crone@arkansas.gov>
Subject: Public Comment Dates for 106 and 108

Cindy




Just saw the rule change. The notice for public hearing does not indicated to dates
for the public comment period. Can you send me thse dates?

Thanks

Darlene Byrd, DNP, APN, FAANP
APN HealthCare

14 Tahoe

Cabot, AR 72023

501-605-8110
dbyrd@apn-healthcare.com




Booth Rand

< from: David Wroten <dwroten@arkmed.org>
Sent: Tuesday, September 23, 2014 10:01 AM
To: Booth Rand; Scott Smith; David Ivers
Cc: Sara Farris; Robert Wright; Mike Mitchell
Subject: RE: Proposed Ruie 108

Dear Booth,
Please see the email below from Scott Smith. We are assuming the defined term should have been “primary care
provider” which is defined as a primary care physician.

David Wroten
Executive Vice President
Arkansas Medical Society
501-224-8967 (office)
501-224-6489 (fax)

501-425-7735 (cell)

From: Scott Smith
Sent: Tuesday, September 23, 2014 8:49 AM
To: David lvers; David Wroten

~..Cc: Sara Farris; Robert Wright; Mike Mitchell
Subject: RE: Proposed Rule 106

AT

I have a question about the new proposed rule 108. In the definition section, there’s a definition of “primary care
physician” which is defined as a...”primary care physician.” What? Think they meant to say “primary care provider”
would be defined as a “primary care physician?”

’m confused. Could someone call or e-mail Booth on that as well? 'm about to head to the Capitol.

Thanks.

Scott



Booth Rand

From: Cynthia Crone

Sent: Friday, September 26, 2014 12:11 PM

To: Booth Rand

Subject: FW: Public Cormment Dates for 106 and 108

Cynthia C. Crone, APRN

Deputy Commissioner

Arkansas insurance Department
Arkansas Health Connector Divisian
1200 West Third Street

Little Rock, AR 72201

Phone: 501-683-3634
Fax: 501-371-2629
Email: Cynthia.Crone@Arkansas.Gov

From: Cynthia Crone
Sent: Tuesday, September 23, 2014 10:25 AM

To: ‘Darlene Byrd'

Subject: RE: Public Comment Dates for 106 and 108

/" Hello Darlene,

~You requested CMS reference to Primary Care Physician . See below.
Thanks, Cindy

--- CMS Medical Home

according to the below ... definition refers to a physician

http://www.acponline.org/running practice/delivery and payment models/pcmh/demonstrations/fact she
et.pdf

3-year demonstration providing reimbursement in the form of a care management fee to physician practices
for the services of a “personal physician.” The legislation directs CMS to use the relative values scale update
committee (RUC) process to establish the care management fee codes for care management fees.
http://www.acponline.org/running practice/delivery and payment models/pcmh/demonstrations/demo ga

-bdf
The enabling legislation requires that Medical Home Providers must be MDs and DOs who are board certified.

This does not preclude midlevel practitioners from participating under the auspices of a Medical Home
Provider.

Cynthia C. Crone, APRN

Deputy Commissioner

Arkansas Insurance Department
Arkansas Health Connector Divisian
:1200 West Third Street

...’ Little Rock, AR 72201

Phone: 501-683-3634
Fax: 501-371-2629



Booth Rand

o ‘rom: Cynthia Crone
 Sent: Tuesday, September 30, 2014 1:41 PM
To: Booth Rand
Subject: RE: Proposed Rule 108

At your place? Cindy

Cynthia C. Crone, APRN

Deputy Commissioner

Arkansas Insurance Department
Arkansas Health Connector Division
1200 West Third Street

Little Rock, AR 72201

Phone: 501-683-3634
Fax: 501-371-2628
Email: Cynthia.Crone@®Arkansas.Gov

From: Booth Rand

Sent: Friday, September 26, 2014 1:37 PM

To: 'S. Graham Catlett'

Cc: Cynthia Crone; Zane Chrisman
Subject: RE: Proposed Rule 108

see if Cindy is here, and or Zane. That's okay with me. | can meet with you without them, but I'd like Cindy involved in

this.

From: 5. Graham Catlett [mailto:qcatlett@catlaw.com]
Sent: Friday, September 26, 2014 12:57 PM

To: Booth Rand

Cc: Cynthia Crone

Subject: RE: Proposed Rule 108

Thank you.
How about Tuesday at 9am or 2pm?

Graham

~~~~~ Original Message -----

From: Booth Rand <booth.rand@arkansas.qov>
To: "S. Graham Catlett” <gcatlett@catlaw.com>
Sent; 9/26/2014 11:59AM

Subject: RE: Proposed Rule 108

lust come visit with me next week, but we might need Cindy and or Zane in this, I?m here all week, just set out a time,

“““and schedule a time so we can get everyone together on this and talk about this.



From: S. Graham Catlett [mailto:gcatlett@catlaw.com]
Sent: Friday, September 26, 2014 11:33 AM

To: Booth Rand

Subject: RE: Proposed Rule 108

Booth

I'am still having trouble understanding why the Insurance Dept is subordinate to the Medicaid Manual on determining who can be a
Lead Provider.

Can we meet for a few minutes so I can understand your legal reasoning or do you have notes you can send me?

If you want to meet, I am available anytime in the next 2 weeks except Wed-Fri of next week.

Thanks,

Graham

From: Booth Rand <booth.rand@arkansas.qov>

To: "S. Graham Catlett™ <gcatlett@catiaw.com>

Sent: 9/08/2014 2:10PM

Subject: RE: Proposed Rule 108

3e glad to visit with you but would prefer to do so after we notice these changes back out.



Booth Rand

k,‘?rom: Lonnie Robinson <ionrob83%@suddenlink.net>

" Sent: Wednesday, October 08, 2014 9:45 PM
To: Booth Rand
Cc: dwroten@arkmed.org; ‘Scott Smith’; ‘arafp’; 'Knight, Daniel A";

Jjdrewdawson@yahoo.com; tommywwagner@yahoo.com; ‘Julea Garner’; ‘Dennis
Yelvington'; rhayes1951@aol.com
Subject: Proposed Rule 108

Importance: High

REGIONAL FAMILY MEDICINE
630 BURNETT DRIVE MOUNTAIN HOME, AR 72653
PH: 870-425-6971 Fx: 870-508-8900

J. Gregory Elders, M.D. George S. Lawrence, M.D. Ronald F. Bruton, M.D. Lonnie S. Robinson, M.D.

Michael S. Hagaman, M.D.  Lori M. Cheney, M.D. Ross E. Halsted, M.D. Andrea N. Bounds, M.D.
Christiana Marie Thompson CN.P.  Mary Burr C.N.P.  Corinne Hiser C.N.P.

August 28, 2014

/" ~The Honorable Jay Bradford, Commissioner
‘. Arkansas Insurance Department

1200 West Third Street
Little Rock, Arkansas 72201

RE: Proposed Rule 108, Patient Centered Medical Home Standards

Dear Commissioner Bradford,

I am again writing to voice my support of physician-led Patient Centered Medical Home. I am in full
agreement with the recent change in language of the rule, which specifically mandates physician leadership.

“Team-based” care is the cornerstone of a PCMH, but the primary role of leadership should remain the
responsibility of a primary care physician. Physicians have the most extensive, broadest education with the
highest level of training. Although crucial to these teams, limited-scope practitioners are not fully equipped to
lead a team which must be able to provide care in a complex environment that requires consideration of
numerous factors and circumstances.

Having a primary care physician leading a PCMH provides the highest quality of care possible, and is already a
successful model being used in Arkansas. Medicaid standards for PCMHs recognize that physicians should be
leading the team. The Arkansas Health Care Payment Improvement Initiative has set a clear statewide standard
with physicians as the lead and is already working well. This standard should be followed to provide
consistency, improve coordination and increase efficiency.

Sincerely,



o )
o /’,. S

R -

Lonnie Robinson, MD, FAAFP

Past President, Arkansas Chapter AAFP

Alternate Delegate to the AAFP Congress of Delegates, Arkansas Chapter
Commissioner, AAFP Commission on Continuing Professional Development
Director of PCMH Transformation, Regional Family Medicine

Mountain Home, Arkansas



Booth Rand

L from: FRANKLIN, SARAH <SFRANKLIN@uams.edu>
Sent: Thursday, October 09, 2014 2:30 PM
To: Booth Rand
Subject: Proposed Rule 108
Attachments: Medical Student Form Letter Proposed Rule 108.docx

I wanted to voice my support for the Proposed Rule 108,

Thank you,
Sarah

Sarah Franklin

College of Medicine

University of Arkansas Medical Science
MD Candidate, Class of 2016

Confidentiality Notice: This e-mail message, including any attachments, is for the sole use of the intended
recipient(s) and may contain confidential and privileged information. Any unauthorized review, use, disclosure
or distribution is prohibited. If you are not the intended recipient, please contact the sender by reply e-mail and
destroy all copies of the original message.



Booth Rand

L From: Teri Jeffers <terijeffers@gmail.com>

Sent: Tuesday, October 14, 2014 11:16 AM
To: Booth Rand
Subject: Proposed Rule 108

To The Honorable Jay Bradford, Commissioner
Arkansas Insurance Department

1200 West Third Street

Little Rock, AR 72201-1904

RE: Arkansas Insurance Department Proposed Rule 108

Dear Mr. Commissioner,

I write to support Proposed Rule 108. Specifically, I support language that a primary care physician be the
leader of the Patient Centered Medical Home. Physicians have the highest level training, and although other
health care providers are integral to the team approach, their scope of practice is limited. Recognizing
physicians as team leaders will provide the highest quality care for Arkansans.

1 appreciate your time and consideration.
Sincerely,

Teri Jeffers, MD

Four Seasons Allergy and Asthma Clinic, PA
11614A Huron Lane

Little Rock, AR 72211

(501) 221-1956

fax (501) 219-2327



=] o ° e o 353 Cash Road, 71701
a Ouachita Valley Family Clinic PO Box 757, 71711
A BAPTIST HEALTH AFFILIATE Camden, AR

870 836-8101
870 837-2329 (Fix)

Family Practice

Lawrence F. Braden, M.D.
Mark R. Crump, M.D.
Williatn D. Dedman, M.D.
Amy S. DeLuca, M.D.
Erin Braden Goss, M.D.
Judson N. Hout, M.D.
Mimo Rose Lemdja, M.D.
Johnathan W. Lewis, M.D.
David H. Mosley, M.D.

October 14, 2014 Internal Medicine

William A. Daniel, M.D.
Joseph A. DeLuca, M.D.

Hospitalist
The Honorable Jay Bradford, Commissioner Eric Henriksen, M.D.
Arkansas Insurance Department Rollin A. Wycoff, M.D.
{5 1200 West Third Street
- Little Rock, AR 72201-1904 General Surgery

Frederick H. Perkins, D.O.
Sam H. Arnold, D.O.

Re: Proposed Rule 108 - Patient Centered Medical Home

Pam Jeonings, A.P.N.
Dear Commissioner Bradford: Kim L. McCord, P.A.-C.

I'support Rule 108 as proposed. Team based care should be lead by a physician Members, Arkansas Health Group
because physicians have the most extensive education with the highest level of training

The Arkansas Health Care Payment Improvement Initiative has set a clear statewide standard with
physician leadership and it is working well. While mid leve] providers are important to the success of
the team based approach, a physician should lead the team.

Sincerely,

David Mosley, M.D. %A@




g o ° o o 353 Cash Road, 71701
@ Ouachita Valley Family Clinic PO Box 757, 71711
A BAPTIST HEAITH AFFILIATE Camden, AR

8§70 836-8101
870 837-2329 (Fax)

Family Practice

Lawrence F. Braden, M.D.
Mark R. Crump, M.D.
William D. Dedman, M.D.
Amy S. Dcluca, M.D.
Erin Braden Goss, M.D.
Judson N. Hout, M.D.
Mimo Rose Lemdja, M.D.
Johnathan W. Lewis, M.D.
David H. Mosley, M.D.

October 14, 2014 Internal Medicine

William A. Daniel, M.D.
Joseph A. DeLuca, M.D.

Hospitalist

The Honarable Jay Bradford, Commissioner Eric Henriksen, M.D.

Arkansas Insurance Department Rollin A. Wycoff, M.D.
1200 West Third Street i
S Little Rock, AR 72201-1904 General Surgery

Frederick H. Perkins, D.O.
Sam H. Arnold, D.O.

Re: Proposed Rule 108 ~ Patient Centered Medical Home

Pam Jennings, A.P.N.
Kim L. McCord, P.A.-C.

Dear Commissioner Bradford: Members, Arkansas Health Group
I support proposed Rule 108. Having a primary care physician lead the PCMH team provides the highest
quality care and is already a model being successfully used in Arkansas. While mid level providers are

important to the success of the care team, the team should be lead by a physician who is qualified to
manage the requirements and challenges of this undertaking.

Sincerely,

Bill Dedman, M.D.




@ Ouachita Valley Family Clinic

A BAPTIST HEALTH AFFILIATE

October 14, 2014

The Honorable Jay Bradford, Commissioner
Arkansas Insurance Department

1200 West Third Street

Little Rock, AR 72201-1904

Re: Proposed Rule 108
Dear Commissioner Bradford:

I support proposed Rule 108 addressing Patient Centered Medical Home Standards.
While mid level providers are crucial to the team based care provided by a PCMH,
the team should be lead by a physician who is qualified to manage the requirements
and challenges of a PCMH.

Sincerely,

Erin Goss, M.D.

353 Cash Road, 71701
PO Box 757, 71711
Camden, AR

8§70 836-8101

870 837-2329 (Fax)

Family Practice

Lawrence F. Braden, M.D.
Mark R. Crump, M.D.
William D. Dedman, M.D.
Amy S. Deluca, M.D.
Erin Braden Goss, M.D.
Judson N. Hout, M.D.
Mimo Rose Lemdja, M.D.
Johnathan W. Lewis, M.D.
David H. Mosley, M.D.

Internal Medicine
William A. Daniel, M.D.
Joseph A. DeLuca, M.D.

Hospitalist
Eric Henriksen, M.D.
Rollin A. Wycoff, M.D.

General Surgery
Frederick H. Perkins, D.O.
Sam H. Arnold, D.O.

Pam Jennings, A.P.N.
Kim L. McCord, P.A.-C.

Members, Arkansas Health Group
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w Quachita Valley Family Clinic O Box 757, 71711
A BAPTIST HEALTH AFFILIATE Camden, AR

870 836-8101
870 837-2329 (Fax)

Family Practice

Lawrence F. Braden, M.D,
Mark R. Crump, M.D,
William: D. Dedman, M.D.
Amy S. DeLuca, M.D.
Erin Braden Goss, M.D.
Judson N. Hout, M.D.
Mimo Rose Lemdja, M.D.
Johnathan W. Lewis, M.D,
David H. Mosley, M.D.

October 14, 2014 Internal Mcdicine

William A. Daniel, M.D.
Joseph A. DeLuca, M.D.

Hospitalist

The Honorable Jay Bradford, Commissioner Eric Henriksen, M.D.

Arkansas Insurance Department Rollin A. Wycoff, M.D.
1200 West Third Street
Little Rock, AR 72201-1904 General Surgery

Frederick H. Perkins, D.O.
Sam H. Arnold, D.O.

Re: Proposed Rule 108 ~ Patient Centered Medical Home

Pam Jennings, A.P.N.
Dear Commissioner Bradford: Kim L. McCord, P.A.-C.

I support this rule and the language stating that a primary care physician should lead ~ Members, Arkansas Health Group
the PCMH team. While other providers are excellent at what they do and are an integral part

of the care team, only physicians are qualified to manage the full range of challenges and
requirements of the PCMH.

Sincerely,

/\ { s

Johnathan Lewis, M.D.




October 14, 2014

The Honorable Jay Bradford, Commissioner
Arkansas Insurance Department

1200 West Third Street
Little Rock, AR 72201-1904

Re: Proposed Rule 108 — Patient Centered Medical Home

Dear Commissioner Bradford:

i@ Ouachita Valley Family Clinic

A BAPTIST HEALTH AFFILIATE

353 Cash Road, 71701
PO Box 757, 71711
Camdlen, AR

870 836-8101

870 837-2329 (Fax)

Family Practice

Lawrcence F. Braden, M.D.
Mark R. Crump, M.D.
William D. Dedman, M.D.
Amy S. DeLuca, M.D.
Erin Braden Goss, M.D.
Judson N. Hout, M.D.
Mimo Rosc Lemdja, M.D.
Johnathan W. Lewis, M.D.
David H. Mosley, M.D.

Internal Medicine
William A. Daniel, M.D.
Joseph A. DeLuca, M.D.

Hospitalist
Eric Henriksen, M.D.
Rollin A. Wycoff, M.D.

General Surgery
Frederick H, Perkins, D.O.
Sam H. Arnold, D.O.

Pam Jennings, A.P.N.
Kim L. McCord, P.A.-C.

I'support proposed Rule 108 and specifically support the language regarding primary Members, Arkansas Health Group
care physician leadership. Although crucial to the success of the PCMH team, limited scope
practitioners are not equipped to lead the team which must be able to provide care in various

circumstances.

Sincerely,

Amy Deluca, M.D.




g ° o e o 353 Cash Road, 71701
aia Quachita Valley Family Clinic PO Box 757, 71711
A BAPTIST HEAITH AFFILIATE Camdcn, AR

870 836-8101
870 837-2329 (Fax)

Family Practice

Lawrence F. Braden, M.D.
Mark R. Crump, M.D.
William D. Dedman, M.D.
Amy S. Deluca, M.D.
Erin Braden Goss, M.D.
Judson N. Hout, M.D.
Mimo Rose Lemdja, M.D.

Johnathan W. Lewis, M.D.
October 14, 2014 David H. Mosley, M.D.

Internal Medicine
William A. Daniel, M.D.

The Honorable Jay Bradford, Commissioner Joseph A. DeLuca, M.D.
Arkansas Insurance Department Hospitalist
1200 West Third Street Eric Henriksen, M.D.

P Little Rock, AR 72201-1904 Rollin A. Wycoff, M.D.

General Surgery
Frederick H. Perkins, D.O.

Re: Proposed Rule 108 ~ Patient Centered Medical Home Sam H. Arnold, D.O.

Dear Commissioner Bradford:

Pam Jennings, A.P.N.
I support proposed Rule 108. Having a primary care physician leading the PCMH Kim L. McCord, P.A.-C.
provides the highest quality possible and is a model successfully being used in Arkansas.
While other providers are important to the team concept employed in a PCMH, they do™e/tbers, Arkansas Health Group

have limited scope of practice and the team is better served with physician leadership.

arry Braden, M.D.




October 18, 2014

The Honorable Jay Bradford
Commissioner

Arkansas Insurance Department
1200 West Third Street

Little Rock, AR 72201-1904

t

Dear Commissioner Bradford,

We, the members of the Independence County Medical Society are writing in
support of the current, unambiguous language of Proposed Rule 108. As a soci-
ety of specialists and primary care physicians, we recognize the linchpin of a pa-
tient centered medical home is “Team-Based” care. Primary care physician have
the most extensive as well as the highest level of training, in relation to the goals
of the patient centered medical home. Those of us who are specialists recognize
our role in “Team-Based” care. Those of us who are primary care physicians,
recognize our role as the leaders of these teams. Our goals are aligned, to protect
and serve the citizens of the great state of Arkansas. Thank you for your lifetime
of service to the same. '

Sincerely yours,

17 /,-,

Ron McCann MD

Independence County Medical Society

200 AGNUS DEILANE DESHA, ARKANSAS 72527



Independence County Medical Society Physicians Supporting the language stating

that a primary care physician should lead a Patient Centered Medical Home
(PCMH)
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The Arkansas Nurses Association (ARNA) wishes to comment on
proposed Rule 108: “Patient Centered Medical Home (“PCMH”)
Standards.”

Specifically we are commenting in opposition to the changes made to
the proposed rule issued on September 15, 2014. We believe that the
original proposed rule, issued May 13, 2014, more closely follows the
General Assembly’s intent to maximize the available healthcare service
options and to promote healthcare efficiencies that will deliver value to
the tax payers. A.C.A. § 20-77-2402. In effect, the new rule eliminates
the ability ot advanced practice registered nurses (“APRNSs”) to lead
PCMHs and deliver much needed healthcare in an efficient and cost
sensitive manner.

This language is inconsistent with the provider neutral language in the
Arkansas Health Care Independence Act A.C.A. § 20-17-2106 (d) (1))
and the Department of Health and Human Services Section 1115
Demonstration Waiver. As you know the, PCMH is a national concept
of coordinated primary care and is already being carried out in Arkansas
via the Comprehensive Primary Care Initiative (“CPCI”), funded by
Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services (“CMS”). In Arkansas,
having the opportunity for APRNs to be recognized as a primary care
provider and team leader in PCMHs, would expand the workforce,
helping to alleviate access issues across the state.

Recognizing APRNs as team leaders in the PCMH follows model
federal guidelines, national trends, recommendations from CMS, the
National Centers for Quality Assurance and the Institute of Medicine.
We believe the Arkansas Insurance Department should follow the intent
of the General Assembly and directions of DHS and CMS by allowing
APRNS to serve-as PCMEH team leaders.



&
a0 %/ﬁﬁ'\
I 'am an advanced practice registered nurse (“APRNs”) licensed ;;r;) &9 2, ~
pre actice in Arkansas and I am writing to oppose the current Insur an@%&,‘fr ¢
Department proposed Rule 108: “Patient Ccmeled Medlcal Home '”"@"f;z.~0€p/\

(“PCMH”) Standards.”

As a healthcare provider, my foremost concern is for the wellbéing of
my patients. My continued access to the largest possible pool of patients
is in everyone’s best interests. [ know our legislators agree that we
should strive to maximize the available healthcare service options and to
promote healthcare efficiencies that will deliver value to the tax payers.
The only way to achieve those goals is to allow advance practice nurses
full access to patients so they can care for them to the extent of the
nurses’ scope of practice.

The changes made to the proposed rule issued on September 15, 2014
eliminates the ability of APRNs to lead PCMHSs and deliver much
needed healthcare in an efficient and cost sensitive manner. The original
proposed rule, issued May 13, 2014, more closely follows the General
Assembly’s intent to maximize the available healthcare service options
and to promote healthcare efficiencies that will deliver value to the tax
payers. The Insurance Department should produce a rule that is
consistent with the legislator’s declared intent and allow APRNSs to lead
PCMHs.

Shcerely

v A D
Viisk Jones ko WS, 1



October 14, 2014

)

D ED M e p e
RECEvE
Arkansas Insurance Department 0cT 22 201
Attention: Booth Rand LEGAL
1200 W. Third Street ARKANSAS INSURANCE pepT

Little Rock, AR 72201-2618

Dear Mr. Rand:

I am an advanced practice registered nurse (“APRN™) licensed to practice in Arkansas and I am
writing to oppose the current Insurance Department proposed Rule 108: “Patient Centered
Medical Home (“PCMH”) Standards.”

As a healthcare provider, my foremost concern is for the wellbeing of my patients. My
continued access to the largest possible pool of patients is in everyone’s best interests. I know
our legislators agree that we should strive to maximize the available healthcare service options
and to promote healthcare efficiencies that will deliver value to the tax payers. The only way to
achieve those goals is to allow advance practice nurses full access to patients so they can care for
them to the extent of the nurses’ scope of practice.

The changes made to the proposed rule issued on September 15, 2014 eliminates the ability of
APRNs to lead PCMHs and deliver much needed healthcare in an efficient and cost sensitive
manner. The original proposed rule, issued May 13, 2014, more closely follows the General
Assembly’s intent to maximize the available healthcare service options and to promote
healthcare efficiencies that will deliver value to the tax payers. The Insurance Department

should produce a rule that is consistent with the legislator’s declared intent and allow APRNs to
lead PCMHs.

Sincerely,

Mary GarnicaDNP, APRN, FNP-BC
Maumelle, Arkansas



The Arkansas Nurses Association (ARNA) wishes to comment on
proposed Rule 108: “Patient Centered Medical Home (“PCMH”)
Standards.”

Specifically we are commenting in opposition to the changes made to
the proposed rule issued on September 15, 2014. We believe that the
original proposed rule, issued May 13, 2014, more closely follows the
General Assembly’s intent to maximize the available healthcare service
options and to promote healthcare efficiencies that will deliver value to
the tax payers. A.C.A. § 20-77-2402. In effect, the new rule eliminates
the ability of advanced practice registered nurses (“APRNs”) to lead
PCMHs and deliver much needed healthcare in an efficient and cost
sensitive manner.

This language is inconsistent with the provider neutral language in the
Arkansas Health Care Independence Act A.C.A. § 20-17-2106 (d) (1))
and the Department of Health and Human Services Section 1115
Demonstration Waiver. As you know the, PCMH is a national concept
of coordinated primary care and is already being carried out in Arkansas
via the Comprehensive Primary Care Initiative (“CPCI”), funded by
Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services (“CMS”). In Arkansas,
having the opportunity for APRNs to be recognized as a primary care
provider and team leader in PCMHs, would expand the workforce,
helping to alleviate access issues across the state.

Recognizing APRNSs as team leaders in the PCMH follows model
federal guidelines, national trends, recommendations from CMS, the
National Centers for Quality Assurance and the Institute of Medicine.
We believe the Arkansas Insurance Department should follow the intent
of the General Assembly and directions of DHS and CMS by allowing
APRNS 10 serve as PCMH team leaders.
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I am an advanced practice registered nurse (“APRNs”) licensed e .
practice in Arkansas and 1 am writing to oppose the current Insurancdé#%ﬁ%’” 3
Departiment proposed Rule 108: “Patient Centered Medical Home & oep,

(“PCMIT”) Standards.”

As a healthcare provider, my foremost concern is for the wellbeing of
my patients. My continued access to the largest possible pool of patients
is in everyone’s best interests. 1 know our legislators agree that we
should strive to maximize the available healthcare service options and to
promote healthcare efficiencies that will deliver value to the tax payers.
The only way to achieve those goals is to allow advance practice nurses
full access to patients so they can care for them to the extent of the
nurses’ scope of practice.

The changes made to the proposed rule issued on September 15, 2014
eliminates the ability of APRNs to lead PCMHs and deliver much
needed healtheare in an efficient and cost sensitive manner. The original
proposed rule, issued May 13, 2014, more closely follows the General
Assembly’s intent to maximize the available healthcare service options
and to promote healthcare efficiencies that will deliver value to the tax
payers. ‘The Insurance Department should produce a rule that is
consistent with the legislator’s declared intent and allow APRNs to lead
PCMHs.
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An Opinlon ggalnst the Changes to Rule 108 which would sliminate
APRNs as "“Team Leaders” of Patient Contered Madical Homes,

The Insurance Department proposed, in May, 2074, “provider nsutral’ language for Rule 108, the
"Patisnt Centerad Medical Home (PCMH) Standard, This original language would permit APRNS lo lead
PCMHs and would assure more optlons for essential healthcars deflvery. This proposat from the Arkansas
Insuranes Depariment aligns with the General Assembly's Intent to maximize limited rasaurces and assure
access to patient centered healthcare defivery. Additionally, the proposal for “provider hautral languagse® would
pramote the opportunity for Arkansaa taxpayers to get mare “bang for their buck”,

The changes o the original proposal on Saptember 15, 2014 would sliminate the abllity for APRNS to
lead PCMs, While physiclan led PCMH appaars to make gense, the rasiity Is that the purposs for the PCMH
is o coordinate and assure comprohensive care, Itis a ‘model” for mora efficlent and cost effective healtheare
dalivary, where the “lsader” and the “team” assure access to the avallable resources in the provislon of
comprehensive care, This madel involves patlents and their familiss In healthears dacision making, treatmant,
and will assure system Intagration and the measurement of ctifical oulcomies. Thase are high level
meanagement and integrative services, not the actual delivery of care by the “laader” of ths PGMM. The actual
"rarg” dellverad requires the expertize of varisd haalthoare professlonale, The POMH Involves high lavel ‘caas
management” of Individuals and "populations’ of paople within the context of the family and community, The
buttem line for sustess of the PCMH Is 1o pravetit disease, promote heslth, and manags shronic conditions In
& timely and cost affective manner, thereby tedusing the nead for Inpatient and other costly sarvices, When
these healthoars outcomes are achieved, the burden of rising healihcare costs will be reduced. APRNS are
experts i the coordination of cars, promotion of health, and providing patient centered care. The APRNs

background In praviding this leve! of service on a smalier scale, thelr education, and thelr sxpearlence (s
sultaidle for “leading the team”.

The following quote fram the Agency for Healthears Research and Guality (AHRQ) defines the medical or
healthcare home as;

Defining the POMH

The medical home model holds promise as a way to improve health care in Ameriea by fransforming
how primary care is organized and defivarad, Bulilding on the work of a largs and growing comimunity,
the Agency for Healtheare Research and Quality (AHRQ) detihes & medical homs not sirmply as a placa

hut as a mode! of the organizatian of primary care that delivers the core functions of pritnary healn
Gdre,

The medical home encompasses five functions and attributes

Comprahansive cara
Coordinated care
Actassible services
Patlent Centerad Care
Ciuailty and safety
Accessible services

DO R L3

Retrleved 10/20/14 fram: hitgs:/fpemb. ahrg.govipage/defining-pemh
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Specifically we are commenting in opposition to the changes made to
the proposed rule issued on September 15, 2014. We believe that the
original proposed rule, issued May 13, 2014, more closely follows the
General Assembly’s intent to maximize the available healthcare service
options and to promote healthcare efficiencies that will deliver value to
the tax payers. A.C.A. § 20-77-2402. In effect, the new rule eliminates
the ability of'advanced practice registered nurses (“APRNs”) to lead
PCMHs and deliver much needed healthcare in an efﬁc1ent and cost
sensitive manner.

This language is inconsistent with the provider neutral language in the
Arkansas Health Care Independence Act A.C.A. § 20-17-2106 (d) (1))
and the Departiment of Health and Human Services Section 1115
Demonstration Waiver. As you know the, PCMH is a national concept
of coordinated primary care and is already being carried out in Arkansas
via the Comprehensive Primary Care Initiative (“CPCI”), funded by
Centers lor Medicare & Medicaid Services (“CMS”). In Arkansas,
having the opportunity for APRNSs to be recognized as a primary care
provider and team leader in PCMHs, would expand the workforce,
helping to alleviate access issues across the state.

Recognizing APRNs as team leaders in the PCMH follows model
federal guidelines, national trends, recommendations from CMS, the
National Centers for Quality Assurance and the Institute of Medicine.
We believe the Arkansas Insurance Department should follow the intent
of the General Assembly and directions of DHS and CMS by allowing
APRNSs to serve as PCMH team leaders.



I am an advanced practice registered nurse (“APRNs™) licensed to
practice in Arkansas and I am writing to oppose the current Insurance

Department proposed Rule 108: “Patient Centered Medical Home
(“PCMH”) Standards.”

As a healthcare provider, my foremost concern is for the wellbeing of
my patients. My continued access to the largest possible pool of patients
Is in everyone’s best interests. 1 know our legislators agree that we
should strive to maximize the available healthcare service options and to
promote healthcare efficiencies that will deliver value to the tax payers.
The only way to achieve those goals is to allow advance practice nurses
full access to patients so they can care for them to the extent of the
nurses’ scope of practice.

The changes made to the proposed rule issued on September 15, 2014
climinates the ability of APRNs to lead PCMHs and deliver much
needed healthcare in an efficient and cost sensitive manner. The original
proposed rule, issued May 13, 2014, more closely follows the General
Assembly’s intent to maximize the available healthcare service options
and to promote healthcare efficiencies that will deliver value to the tax
payers. The Insurance Department should produce a rule that is
consistent with the legislator’s declared intent and allow APRN to lead

PCMHs.
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October 14, 2014 RELEIVED
0CT 15 2014
The Honorable Jay Bradford, Commissioner
Arkansas Insurance Department ARKANSAS [SUIANCE DEpT

1200 West:Third Street
Litile Rock, AR 72201-1904

RE: Arkansas Insurance Department Proposed Rule 108
Patient-Centered Medical Home Standards

Dear Commissioner Bradford:

I support Rule 108 as proposed with the language confirming
that a Patient Centered Medical Home would be lead by a

primary care physician.

Team-based care is the most effective way to serve patients but
only physicians — D.O.s and M.D.s — have the highest level of
training to effectively and efficiently manage the vast range of
requirements (and challenges) that are brought forth by a
Patient-Centered Medical Home. With each team member
contributing their specific and specialized care, the physician-
leader can insure that the PCMH can give to Arkansans a much
needed global service,

Sincerely, . %//1 b@
;&m: / ,

James E. Zini, D.O., F.A.C.O.F.P,
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I'am an advanced practice registered nurce (“APRNs™) licensed to
practice in Arkansas and I am Wwriting to oppose the current Insurance
Department proposed Rule 108: “Patient Centered Medical Home
(“PCMIH™) Standards.”

As a healthcare provider, my foremost concem is for the wellbeing of
my patients. My continued access to the largest possible pool of patients
is in everyone’s best interests. I know our legislators agree that we
should strive to maximize the available healthcare service options and to
promote healthcare efficiencies that will deliver value to the tax payers.
The only way to achieve those goals is to allow advance practice nurses
full aceess to patients so they can care for them to the extent of the
nurses® scope of practice.
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Yam an advanced practice registered nurse (“APRNs™ licensed to
practice in Arkansas and I am Writing to oppose the current Insuragnce
Department proposed Rule 108: “Patient Centered Medical Home
(“PCMH™) Standards.”

As a healthcare provider, my foremost concem is for the wellbeing of
my patients. My continued access 1o the largest possible pool of patients
is in everyone’s best interests. I know our legislators agree that we
should strive to maximize the available healthcare service options and to
promote healthcare efficiencies that will deliver value to the tax payers.
The only way to achieve those goals is to allow advance practice nurses
full access to patients so they can care for them to the extent of the
nurses® scope of practice.

The changes made to the proposed rule issued on September 15,2014
¢liminates the ability of APRNSs to lead PCMHs and deliver much
needed healthcare in an efficient and cost sensitive manner. The original
proposed rule, issued May 13,2014, more closely follows the General !
Assembly’s intent to maximize the available healthcare service options
and to promote healthcare efficiencies that will deliver value to the tax
payers. The Insurance Department should produce a rule that is
consistent with the legislator’s declared intent and allow APRNSs to lead
PCMHs.
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October 15, 2014

Dear Commissioner Bradford,

I'am an advanced practice registered nurse (“APRNs") licensed to practice in Arkansas and

I am writing to oppose the current Insurance Department proposed Rule 108: “ Patient
Centered Medical-Home (“PCMH") Standards.”

As a healthcare provider, my foremost concern is for the wellbeing of my patients. My
continued access to the largest possible pool of patients is in everyone’s best interests. I
know our legislators agree that we should strive to maximize the available healthcare
service options and to promote healthcare efficiencies that will deliver value to the tax
payers. The only way to achieve those goals is to allow advance practice nurses full access
to patients so they can care for them to the extent of the nurses’ scope of practice.

The changes made to the proposed rule issued on September 15, 2014 eliminates the
ability of APRNs to lead PCMHs and deliver much needed healthcare in an efficient and cost
sensitive manner. The original proposed rule, issued May 13, 2014, more closely follows
the General Assembly’s intent to maximize the available healthcare service options and to
promote healthcare efficiencies that will deliver value to the tax payers. The Insurance

Department should produce a rule that is consistent with the legislator’s declared intent
and allow APRNs to lead PCMHs. .

Sincerely,

[ pistg s #0]

Courtney Manatt, APRN
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October 15, 2014

Arkansas Insurance Department
Attn: Booth Rand

1200 West Third Street

Little Rock, AR 72201-1904
OFF: 501-371-2820

FAX: 501-371-2618

Dear Mr., Rand:

I'am an advanced practice registered nurse (APRN) licensed to practice in Arkansas and [ am
writing to oppose the current Insurance Department proposed Rule 108: “Patient Centered Medical
Home (PCMH) Standards.” I practice in rural Arkansas as a family nurse practitioner.

As a healthcare provider, my foremost concern is for the well being of my patients. My continued
access to the largest possible pool of patients is in everyone's best interests. I know our legislators
agree that we should strive to maximize the available healthcare service options and to promote
healthcare efficiencies that will deliver value to the tax payers. The only way to achieve those goals
is to allow advance practice nurses full access to patients so they can care for them to the extent of
the nurses’ scope of practice.

The changes made to the proposed rule issued on September 15, 2014 eliminates the ability of
APRNSs to lead PCMHs and deliver much needed healthcare in an efficient and cost sensitive
manner. The original proposed rule, issued May 13, 2014, more closely follows the General
Assembly’s intent to maximize the available healthcare service options and to promote healthcare
efficiencies that will deliver value to the tax payers. The Insurance Department should produce a
rule that is consistent with the legislator’s declared intent and allow APRNS to lead PCMHs.

Please keep the provider neutral language that will allow the APRNs trained and licensed in
primary care to continue to care for their patients. If you have any questions or concerns; please
call me or email me. 870-256-5265 cell or mcintoshsl@centurylink.net.

Sincerely,
/ |
AT el AW
Linda McIntosh, APRN
644 Cain Road
Griffithville, AR 72060
870-256-5265 cell
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Garry Stewart, M.D.

P.O. Box 11349 « 1545 Hogan Lane * Conway, AR 72034 s Phone; 501-513-1225 « Fax: 501-513-1228

The Honorable Jay Bradford, Commissioner
Arkansas Insurance Department

1200 West Third Street

Little Rock, Arkansas 72201-1904

October 15, 2014
Dear Cotnmissioner Bradford;
Thank you for your service to the citizens of Arkansas as Chairman of the Insurance Commission,

I'am writing to encourage you to Support Rule 108. As a primary care physician | fead my healthcare
team through the kaleidoscope of regulatory and evidence based changes in the medical arena an 3
daily basis. This maze is of such great complexity that | fear limited scope practitioners fall short as
desirable leaders for a Patient Centered Medical Home (PCMH). I have followed the concept of the
patient Centered Medical Home from its inception. This concept is a natural extension of what a primary
care physician does on a daily basis regardless. From the heginning, the primary care physician has been
recognized by Organized Medicine and CMS as the obvious choice to lead the PCVIH.

As it currently stands, there are too many hurdles to overcome to allow for limited scope of practice
practitioners to accept this responsibility. Please take a moment and check the Novitis website
(Arkansas’s Medicare Administrative Contractor ) for the number of agvanced practice nurses that have
taken the responsibility to enroll with Novitis as providers 5o that their services may be billed
appropriately, You will find that number to be less than 16%. If these healthcare providers are not
responsible enough to accomplish the most basic task necessary to provide care, enroltment, how will
they rise to the magnanimous challenge of managing a 5000 patient medical panel.

Respectfully,

Garry Stewart
Diplomate Americah\Board of Family Medicine




(%

October 12, 14 OCT 17 2012

Arkansas Insurance Department ARKANSAS ILNES%ARLANCE DEPT
ATTN: Booth Rand

1200 West Third Street

Little Rock, AR 72201-1904

To Whom It May Concern:

I am an advanced practice registered nurse (“APRNSs”) licensed to practice in
Arkansas and I am writing to oppose the current Insurance Department proposed
Rule 108: “Patient Centered Medical Home (“PCMH”) Standards.”

As a healthcare provider, my foremost concern is for the wellbeing of my patients.
My continued access to the largest possible pool of patients is in everyone’s best
interests. I know our legislators agree that we should strive to maximize the
available healthcare service options and to promote healthcare efficiencies that will
deliver value to the tax payers. The only way to achieve those goals is to allow
advance practice nurses full access to patients so they can care for them to the
extent of the nurses” scope of practice.

The changes made to the proposed rule issued on September 15, 2014 eliminates
the ability of APRNSs to lead PCMHs and deliver much needed healthcare in an
efficient and cost sensitive manner. The original proposed rule, issued May 13,
2014, more closely follows the General Assembly’s intent to maximize the
available healthcare service options and to promote healthcare efficiencies that will
deliver value to the tax payers. The Insurance Department should produce a rule

that is consistent with the legislator’s declared intent and allow APRNSs to lead
PCMHs.

Sincerely,

Q/«mhb’\ﬂ*(‘wf. M) lO/Ia( /;‘.}

Dr. Kimberly Carney, DNP, APRN, FNP-BC, CDE
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The Honorable Jay Bradford, Commissioner
Arkansas Insurance Department

1200 West Third Street

Little Rock, AR 72201-1904

LEGAL
ARKANSAS INSURANCE DEPT

Re: Arkansas Insurance Department Proposed Rule 108 (Patient-Centered
Medical Home Standards)

I' Support proposed Rule 108. Having a primary care physician leading a PCMH
provides the highest quality of care possible and is already a successful model
being used in Arkansas. Medicaid standards for PCMHS recognize that
physicians should be leading the team. The Arkansas Health Care Payment
Improvement Initiative has set a clear statewide standard with physicians as the
lead and is already working well. This standard should be followed to provide
consistency, improve coordination and increase efficiency.

b0 0

G. Edward Bryant, Jr. M.D.
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REGIONAL FAMILY MEDICINE

630 BURNETT DRIVE MOUNTAIN HOME, AR 72653
PH: 870-425-6971 Fx: 870-508-8500

J. Gregory Elders, M.D. George S. Lawrence, M.D. Ronald F. Bruton, M.D. Lonnie S. Robinson, M.D.
Michael S. Hagaman, M.D. Lori M. Cheney, M.D. Ross E. Halsted, M.D. Andrea N. Bounds, M.D.
Christiana Marie Thompson C.N.P. Mary Burr C.N.P. Corinne Hiser C.N.P.

The Honorable Jay Bradford, Commissioner
Arkansas Insurance Department

1200 West Third Street

Little Rock, Arkansas 72201

RE: Proposed Rule 108, Patient Centered Medical Home Standards
August 28, 2014
Dear Commissioner Bradford,

I am writing to add my voice to support of physician-led Patient Centered Medical Home. I am in full agreement
with the recent change in language of the rule, which specifically mandates physician leadership.

As an active employer and trainer of Advanced Nurse Practitioners, 1 fully understand the strengths and weaknesses
of these important team members. Only physicians have the depth and breadth of education to fulfill the role of
teamn leaders in the Medical Home model.

Having a primary care physician leading a PCMH provides the highest quality of care possible, and is already a
successful model being used in Arkansas. Medicaid standards for PCMHs recognize that physicians should be
leading the team. The Arkansas Health Care Payment Improvement Initiative has set a clear statewide standard with
physicians as the lead and is already working well. This standard should be followed to provide consistency,
improve coordination and increase efficiency.

Sincerely,

John Gregory Elder§ M
President/CEQ, Regional Family Medicine
Mountain Home AR
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FROM THE DESK OF

ALISHA ASHLEY, APRN

Qctober 17,2014

Alisha Ashley, MSN, APRN, CNP
Compass Healthcare, LLC

2606 Pine St

Arkadelphia, AR 71923

To whom it may concern,

I am an advanced practice registered nurse ("APRNs") licensed to practice in Arkansas
and | am writing to oppose the current Insurance Department proposed Rule 108:
"Patient Centered Medical Home ("PCMH") Standards.”

As a healthcare provider, my foremost concern is for the wellbeing of my patients. My
cantinued access to the largest possible pool of patients is in everyone's best
interests. | know our legislators agree that we should strive to maximize the available
healthcare service options and ta promote healthcare efficiencies that will deliver
value to the tax payers. The only way to achieve those goals is to allow advance
practice nurses full access to patients so they can care for them to the extent of the
nurses’ scope of practice. This is especially important in rural Arkansas.

The changes made to the proposed rule issued on September 15, 2014 eliminates the
ability of APRNSs to lead PCMHs and deliver much needed healthcare in an efficient
and cost sensitive manner. The original proposed rule, issued May 13, 2014, more
closely follows the General Assembly’s intent to maximize the available healthcare
service options and to promote healthcare efficiencies that will deliver value to the tax
payers. The Insurance Department should produce a rule that is consistent with the
legislator's declared intent and allow APRNs to lead PCMHs.

Sincerely yours,

2606 PINE ST ARKADELPHIA, AR 71923 870-210-5243
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10/16/2014

Arkansas Insurance Department
Attn: Booth Rand
1200 West Third Street

© . Litfe Rock, AR 72201-1904 A
. " 501-371-2820 ‘ >

Deér Mr. Rand:

I am an advanced practice registered nurse (APRN) licensed to practice in Arkansas and I am
writing in strong opposition to the current Insurance Department proposed Rule 108: “Patient
Centered Medical Home (PCMH) Standards.” . o '

As a healthcare provider, my foremost concern is for the well-being of my patients who in my
practice are children, the fiture of our country. My continued access to the largest possible pool
of patients is in everyone’s best interests. I know our legislators agree that we should strive to
maximize the available healthcare service options and to promote healthcare efficiencies that will
deliver value to the taxpayers. The only way to achieve those goals is to allow APRNS full
access to patients so they can care for them to the extent of the nurses’ scope of practice.

The changes made to the proposed rule issued on September 15, 2014 eliminates the ability of
APRNs to lead PCMLs and deliver much needed healtheare in an efticient and cost sensitive
manner. The original proposed rule, issued May 13, 2014, more closely follows the General
Assembly’s intent to maximize the available healthcare service options and to promote
healthcare efficiencies that will deliver value to the taxpayers. The Insurance Department should

produce a rule that is consistent with the legislator’s declared intent and allow APRNS to lead
PCMHs.

Thank you for considering this very important matter.
Sincerely,
SHaron Stevenson, DNP, APRN, PPCNP-BC

cc: Senator Jane English
Representative Jim Nickels
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ARKANSAS MEDICAL SOCIETY

P.0. Box 55088 - Little Rock, AR » 72215-5088
Telephone (501) 224-8967 + WATS 1-800-542-1058 + FAX (501) 224-6489 + E-MAIL ams@norkmed.org » WEB PAGE www.arkmed.org

October 27, 2014

The Honorable Jay Bradford, Commissioner
Arkansas Insurance Department

1200 West Third Street

Little Rock, AR 72201

Re: Proposed Rule 108

Commissioner Bradford:

On behalf of the 4,500 physician-members of the Arkansas Medical Society, we would like to
thank you for the consideration given to the request in our earlier letter regarding Proposed Rule
108. We now support the rule, and more specifically, support the language stating that a primary
care physician should lead a Patient Centered Medical Home (PCMH).

All other provider types, while excellent at what they do, have limited scopes of practice. Only
physicians are qualified to manage the full range of requirements and challenges posed by a

PCMH.

Having a primary care physician leading a PCMH provides the highest quality of care possible
and 1s already a successful model being used in Arkansas. Medicaid standards for PCMHs
recognize that physicians should be leading the team.

Additionally, the Arkansas Health Care Payment Improvement Initiative has set a clear statewide
standard with physicians as the lead and is already working well. This standard should be
followed to provide consistency, improve coordination and increase efficiency.

Thank you for your time and consideration.

Sincerely,

a4

S

H. Scott Smith, JD
Director of Governmental Affairs
Arkansas Medical Society



We?ve spent tons and tons of time deeply studying this issue and conflicts and the laws, manual and rule you cite down
there.

The specific problem is with the PCMH section (Section 171 and Section 200} in the State Medicaid PCMH manual which
clearly restricts the ?lead provider? in PCMH to ?primary care PHYSICIAN,? and not with HCIP or with Federal Medicaid
Rules or to the modern trend nationally by accrediting organizations to have a neutral provider-led definition. We are

talking about who can be the LEAD provider in a PCMH model, and not whether nurses can be involved in the primary
care team,

From: S. Graham Catlett [mailto:gcatiett@catlaw.com]
Sent: Monday, September 08, 2014 1:38 PM

To: Booth Rand

Subject: Proposed Rule 108

Booth

Jur Firm represents the Arkansas Nurses Association and fully supported Rule 108 as proposed.

I understand that you may think it violates some rule of Medicaid; we do not. In fact the Arkansas statute is
provider neutral and the federal medicaid rules are also provider neutral.

If we can visit with you before the Rule is rewritten, we would be glad to show you why we do not believe there
is any legal issue with it.

Best,

Graham




S. Graham Catlett
Attorney at Law
__+1.501.801.8088 ext 319 (direct)

¢ 71.501.421.0045 (fax)
... Zcatlett@catlaw.com

CATLETT

LAW FIRM, PLC

323 Center St., Suite 1800
The Tower Building
Little Rock, AR 72201
www.catlaw.com




Chance Armour _

_ . rom: Katherine Darling <katherinedarlinglic@gmail.com>
' Sent: Friday, July 11, 2014 4:37 PM

To: Booth Rand

Subject: Provider neutral language

Attachments: Booth Rand letter.docx

Dear Mr. Rand,

Please find my letter expressing my thoughts in favor of provider neutral language. I appreciate your support
and forward thinking. As we all work together to build a healthier Arkansas, we will accomplish great things!

Thank you for your support. IfI can be of any assistance to you, please don't hesitate to contact me.

Kind Regards,

Katherine Darling

Dr. Katherine Darling, DNP, PMHNP/FNP-BC, APRN
Katherine Darling, PLLC

637 Cougar Lane

/~ Mountain Home, AR 72653

...-870 421-5875 (C)

870 425-4849 (H)

katherinedarlinglic@gmail.com

Practice Kindness - You won't regret it!



Katherine Darling, DNP, PMHNP-C, FNP-C, APRN
637 Cougar Lane
Mountain Home, AR 72653
870421-5875

July 10, 2014

Mr. Booth Rand

Arkansas Insurance Department
1220 West Third Street

Little Rock, AR 72201-1904
Booth.rand@arkansas.gov

RE: Proposed rule 108: “Patient Centered Medical Home (PCMH) Standards.”

I am pleased to see the continuation of provider neutral language (i.e. primary care provider) in
the PCMH proposed Rule 108. This language is consistent with the provider neutral language
in the Arkansas Health Care Independence Act (ACA 20-17-2106 (d) (1)) and the Department of
Health and Human Services Section 1115 Demonstration Waiver. In Arkansas, having the
opportunity for APRNs to be recognized as a primary care provider and team leader in patient
centered medical homes would create the potential for new access points for primary care
across the state. According to the Healthy Workforce in Arkansas Study (2013), the state is
facing a shortage of 1,000 primary care physicians within the next five years, seriously
jeopardizing access to care in all communities. This is another important reason to have

provider neutral language in this rule.
Thank you for the opportunity to comment on proposed rule 108.

Sincerely,

Katherine Darling; DNP, APRN



Janis Bishop DNP, FNP-BC, CRNP

This electronic mail and any attached documents are intended solely for the named
addressee(s) and contain confidential information. If you are not an addressee, or
responsible for delivering this email to an addressee, you have received this email in
error and are notified that reading, copying, or disclosing this email is prohibited. If

you received this email in error, immediately reply to the sender and delete the message
completely from your computer system.




Chance Armour

“From: NIX, SAMUEL <SNIX@uams.edu>

Sent: Sunday, August 24, 2014 9:59 AM

To: Booth Rand

Subject: RE: Proposed rule 108: “Patient Centered Medical Home (PCMH) Standards.”

August 24,2014

Jay Bradford, Insurance Commissioner
Arkansas Insurance Department

1220 West Third Street

Little Rock, AR 72201-1904

RE: Proposed rule 108: “Patient Centered Medical Home (PCMH) Standards.”

I am pleased to see the continuation of provider neutral language (i.e. primary care provider) in the PCMH proposed Rule 108.
This language is consistent with the provider neutral language in the Arkansas Health Care Independence Act (ACA 20-17-2106 (d)
(1)) and the Department of Health and Human Services Section 1115 Demonstration Waiver. In Arkansas, having the opportunity for
APRN:s to be recognized as a primary care provider and team leader in patient centered medical homes would create the potential for
new access points for primary care across the state. According to the Healthy Workforce in Arkansas Study (2013), the state is facing
a shortage of 1,000 primary care physicians within the next five years which will seriously jeopardize access to care in all
communities. The growing insured population in Arkansas as a result of the Healthcare Independence Act provides another
important reason to have provider neutral language in this rule. It is also important to note:

) . Most NPs (89%) are prepared in a primary care focus; e.g. adult, family, older adults, pediatric, or women's heaith

(AANP, 2013). Regardless of population focus, primary care NPs are educationally prepared, nationally certified and
licensed to provide primary care across many settings including but not limited to:

Care at first contact

o Ongoing management of acute and chronic conditions

o Health promotion

o Care coordination

o]

o  Four decades of research on NP practice consistently support the high quality and cost-effectiveness of APN care.
There is extensive and consistent evidence that NPs provide care of equal or better quality at a lower cost than
comparable services provided by others.

I practice in Southwest Arkansas in the primary care setting. Removing provider neutral language will leave a large section of the
population in Arkansas without a provider. There is already a shortage of primary care providers in Arkansas and the removal of
provider neutral language would increase this shortage thus decreasing access to care. This is not a professional baitle, but a battle for
access to care for a large portion of Arkansans.

Thank you for the opportunity to comment on proposed rule 108.
Sincerely,

Samuel Nix




Confidentiality Notice: This e-mail message, including any attachments, is for the sole use of the intended

recipient(s) and may contain confidential and privileged information. Any unauthorized review, use, disclosure
_ or distribution is prohibited. If you are not the intended recipient, please contact the sender by reply e-mail and
""""" ‘destroy all copies of the original message.



Chance Armour

“rom: Janis Bartlett

Sent: Thursday, July 31, 2014 1:30 PM

To: Booth Rand

Cc: Wilson, Craig (JCWilson@uams.edu); Ray Scott
Subject: Proposed Rule 108

Importance: High

I have reviewed the AID Proposed Rule 108 and visited with Craig Wilson from ACHI about the PCMH
requirements. Because the Arkansas PCMH Model is not defined, do you think there could be any confusion
around what that model is or what those requirements are? Do you think the model needs to be defined? If you

have an opportunity to discuss this by phone in the next day or so, I would appreciate having the opportunity to
do so. Thank you.

Jan Bartlett, J.D.
Policy Director

SHARE

Stzis Heaith Alkancs = Rezoords Exzhange

WOHIT

" Office: 501.410.1990  Fax: 501.978.3940

Web: SHAREarkansas.com / QHIT.arkansas.gov  Twitter: @SHAREarkansas / @AR OHIT

Arkansas Office of Health Information Technology, 1501 North University Avenue, Suite 420, Little Rock, AR 72207

SHARE is Arkansas’ statewide Health information Exchange (HIE), which is operated by the Arkansas Office of Heaith Information Technology (OHIT}. The information
transmitted in this email is for the sole use of the intended recipient{s) and may contain confidential material. Any unauthorized review, use, disclosure, or distribution of the

transmitted information is prohibited. If you are not the intended recipient, please contact the sender by reply email and delete the message and any attachments from your
computer and network. Thank you.



Chance Armour

(o From: Mary Garnica <marynp9@gmail.com>
" Sent: Friday, July 11, 2014 3:26 PM

To: Booth Rand

Subject: Proposed rule 108

RE: Proposed rule 108: “Patient Centered Medical Home (PCMH) Standards.”

I am pleased to see the continuation of provider neutral language (i.e. primary care provider) in the PCMH
proposed Rule 108. This language is consistent with the provider neutral language in the Arkansas Health Care
Independence Act (ACA 20-17-2106 (d) (1)) and the Department of Health and Human Services Section 1115
Demonstration Waiver. In Arkansas, having the opportunity for APRNSs to be recognized as a primary care
provider and team leader in patient centered medical homes would create the potential for new access points for
primary care across the state. According to the Healthy Workforce in Arkansas Study (2013), the state is facing
a shortage of 1,000 primary care physicians within the next five years which will seriously jeopardize access to

care in all communities. This is another important reason to have provider neutral language in this rule.

Thank you for the opportunity to comment on proposed rule 108.

Sincerely,

Mary Garnica, DNP, APRN, FNP-BC

Maumelle, AR



Chance Armour,

%‘:‘From: Kimberly Joy L. Carney <kjbcnp@yahoo.com>
Sent: Thursday, July 10, 2014 9:11 PM
To: Booth Rand
Subject: Proposed rule 108
July 10, 2014

Mr. Booth Rand

Arkansas Insurance Department
1220 West Third Street

Little Rock, AR 72201-1904

Booth.rand@arkansas.gov

RE: Proposed rule 108: “Patient Centered Medical Home (PCMH) Standards.”

~lam pleased to see the continuation of provider neutral language (i.e. primary care provider) in the

e PCMH proposed Rule 108. This language is consistent with the provider neutral language in the

Arkansas Health Care Independence Act (ACA 20-17-2106 (d) (1)) and the Department of Health and
Human Services Section 1115 Demonstration Waiver. In Arkansas, having the opportunity for
APRNSs to be recognized as a primary care provider and team leader in patient centered medical
homes would create the potential for new access points for primary care across the state. According
to the Healthy Workforce in Arkansas Study (2013), the state is facing a shortage of 1,000 primary
care physicians within the next five years which will seriously jeopardize access to care in all

communities. This is another important reason to have provider neutral language in this rule.
Thank you for the opportunity to comment on proposed rule 108.

Sincerely,

,‘fDr. Kimberly Carney

" DNP, APRN, FNP-BC, CDE

kibcnp@yahoo.com
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Chance Armour

; “‘From: Rebekah Mize <rmizeapn@gmail.com>

Sent: Sunday, August 24, 2014 10:46 PM

To: Sandy Myrick; Booth Rand

Subject: ACA 20-17-2016(d)(1) ARKANSAS HEALTH CARE INDEPENDENCE ACT
August 23, 2014

Jay Bradford

Arkansas Insurance Commissioner

1220 West Third Street

Little Rock, AR 72201-1904
RE: ARKANSAS HEALTH CARE INDEPENDENCE ACT/ACA 20-17-2016(d)(1)

1 am writing asking your support in favor of Rule 108 (provider neutral language). The language is consistent
withe the provider neutral language in the Arkansas Health Care Independence Act (ACA 20-17-2016(d)(1))
and the Department o f Health and Human Services Section 1115 Demonstration Waiver. In Arkansas having
the opportunity for APRNs to be recognized as a primary care providesr and team leaders in patient centered
medical homes would create the potential for new access points for primary care across the state. According the
the Healthy Workforce in Arkansas Study (201 3), the state is facing a shortage of 1,00 primary care physicians
. withing the next five years which will seriously jeopardize access to care in all communities. The growing
‘insured population in Arkansas as a result of the Healthcare Independence Act provides another important

" reason to have provider neutral language in this rule. Please note: Most NPs are prepared in a primary care

focus, such as adult, family, geriatrics, pediatric or women's health (AANP, 2013). Regardless of their
population focus, primary care NPs are educationally prepared, nationally certified and licensed to provide
primary care across the life span and in many settings including, but not limited to: Care at first contact;
ongoing management of acute and chronic conditions; health promotion; and care coordination and case
management.

As a Family Practice Nurse Practitioner, I can assure you we are not trying to take the place of MDs or DOs in
the community. NPs work in collaboration with other members of the healthcare team to try and provide the
best possible outcomes for the patients we care for. NPs are very sure of their capabilities and limitations in
patient care. Besides being beneficial to the healthcare shortage we face now and in the future and for helping
with issues our State faces for current health disparities, gaining primary care status would also improve current
patient continuum of care. As the Insurance Commissioner I am sure you are familiar with the benefits of this
and the potential benefits of APRNs gaining primary care can bring to the people of our state.

Thank you for supporting Rule 108. I know you will do what is best for the residents of The Natural State.
Most Sincerely,

Rebekah Mize, APRN, FNP-C

47-774-9992

k cc: Booth Rand



from:

Chance Armour

Megan Wylie <ispfree@gmail.com>
Sent: Monday, August 25, 2014 7:56 AM
To: Sandy Myrick
Cc: Booth Rand
Subject: ACA 20-17-2016(d)(1) ARKANSAS HEALTH CARE INDEPENDENCE ACT
August 25, 2014
Jay Bradford
Arkansas Insurance Commissioner
1220 West Third Street

Little Rock, AR 72201-1904
RE: ARKANSAS HEALTH CARE INDEPENDENCE ACT/ACA 20-17-2016(d)(1)

I am writing to ask your support in favor of Rule 108 (provider neutral language). The language
is consistent with the provider neutral language in the Arkansas Health Care Independence Act
(ACA 20-17-2016(d)(1)) and the Department of Health and Human Services Section 1115
Demonstration Waiver. In Arkansas, having the opportunity for APRNs to be recognized as
primary care providers and team leaders in patient centered medical homes would create the
potential for new access points for primary care across the state. According to the Healthy
Workforce in Arkansas Study (2013), the state is facing a shortage of 1,000 primary care
physicians within the next five years which will seriously jeopardize access to care in all
communities. The growing insured population in Arkansas as a result of the Healthcare
Independence Act provides another important reason to have provider neutral language in this
rule. Please note: Most NPs are prepared in a primary care focus, such as adult, family,
geriatrics, pediatric or women's health (AANP, 2013). Regardless of their population focus,
primary care NPs are educationally prepared, nationally certified and licensed to provide primary
care across the life span and in many settings including, but not limited to: Care at first contact;

ongoing management of acute and chronic conditions; health promotion; and care coordination
and case management.

NPs work in collaboration with other mermbers of the healthcare team to try to provide the best possible

outcomes for the patients they care for. NPs are very sure of their capabilities and aware of their limitations in
patient care. Besides being beneficial to the healthcare shortage we face now and in the future and for helping
with issues our State faces for current health disparities, gaining primary care status would also improve current
patient continuum of care. As the Insurance Commissioner I am sure you are familiar with the benefits of this

and the potential benefits of APRNs gaining primary care can bring to the people of our state.

. Thank you for your time and for sﬁpporting Rule 108. Iknow you will do what is best for the residents of The
. Natura] State.

Sincerely,



— Megan Wylie

#2 St. Jude Circle
Clarksville, AR 72830
479-754-0619

cc: Booth Rand
Booth.rand@arkansas.gov




ST,

hanc Aror _,

“rom: Scott Smith <ssmith@arkmed.org>
7 Sent: Wednesday, July 30, 2014 4:29 PM
To: Booth Rand
Cc: David Wroten; David Ivers; Mike Mitchell
Subject: Arkansas Medical Society Letter on Proposed Rule 108
Attachments: 2014 Rule 108 Comment Letter to Arkansas Insurance Department (scan) July 30.pdf
Booth,

It was good to visit with you. We sincerely appreciate your work on this issue. Here’s our scanned letter.

Take care,
Scott
H. Scott Smith, ID

Director of Governmental Affairs
Arkansas Medical Society



Chance Armour
B e R T e,

" From: Pei Purdom <pei.purdom@gmail.com>
~ Sent: Monday, August 25, 2014 9:21 AM
To: Booth Rand
Subject: Support Neutral Language in Rule 108
Attachments: PCMH AID comment letter PPurdom.docx
Dear Mr. Rand,

It is to our attention that AR Insurance Dept. has used neutral language "primary care provider" in the proposal
of rule 108. This is a huge progress in the landscape of healthcare in AR.

In response to the opposition from the medical society, I as a member of nursing community, a to-be doctorate-
prepared Family Nurse Practitioner would like to express my support for this change in legislative language.

Please see the attached letter,

I appreciate your time and attention to this matter, and I sincerely request the Insurance Dept would do what is
the best for AR residents!

RN, BSN, UTHSC DNP/FNP 2015 candidate
ARNA Health Policy Committee Member
ARNAJ/ANA & AANP Member

Maumelle, AR 72113



Date 08/25/2014

Jay Bradford, Insurance Commissioner
Arkansas Insurance Department

1220 West Third Street

Littie Rock, AR 72201-1904

RE: Proposed rule 108: “Patient Centered Medical Home (PCMH) Standards.”

I'am pleased to see the continuation of provider neutral language (i.e. primary care provider) in the PCIMH
proposed Rule 108. This language is consistent with the provider neutral language in the Arkansas Health Care
independence Act (ACA 20-17-2106 (d) (1)) and the Department of Health and Human Services Section 1115
Demonstration Waiver. In Arkansas, having the opportunity for APRNs to be recognized as a primary care
provider and team leader in patient centered medical homes would create the potential for new access points for
primary care across the state. According to the Healthy Workforce in Arkansas Study (2013), the state is facing a
shortage of 1,000 primary care physicians within the next five years which will seriously jeopardize access to care
in all communities. The growing insured population in Arkansas as a result of the Healthcare Independence Act
provides another important reason to have provider neutral language in this rule. It is also important to note:

®  Most NPs (89%) are prepared in a primary care focus; e.g. aduit, family, older adults, pediatric, or women'’s
health (AANP, 2013). Regardless of population focus, primary care NPs are educationally prepared, nationally
certified and licensed to provide primary care across many settings including but not limited to:
o Care at first contact
o Ongoing management of acute and chronic conditions
o Health promotion
o (Care coordination

e  Four decades of research on NP practice consistently support the high quality and cost-effectiveness of APN
care. There is extensive and consistent evidence that NPs provide care of equal or better quality at a lower
cost than comparable services provided by others.

Thank you for the opportunity to comment on proposed rule 108.

Sincerely,

Pei Purdom, RN, BSN, FNP/DNP Student at UTHSC

Cc: Booth Rand Booth.rand@arkansas.gov
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Lofton Family Clinic

203 W. De Queen Ave

De Queen

AR 71832
Phone Phone (870) 642-4000
Fax Number | +15013712639 Fax Number|(870) 277-4293

Lofton Family Clinic

Send and receive faxes with RingCentral, www.ringcentral.com RﬁngCentmr
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LOFTON FAMILY
$760:647-4000.

 The Wellness Center

August 11, 2014

Jay Bradford, Commissioner
Arkansps Tnstrance Department
1200. Wesl Third Street

Little Rock, Avkansas 72201

RE: Proposed Rule 108
Dear Commissioner Bradford,

Representing over 1106 Family Practice Physiciansn the State of Arkansas, the Arkansas Chapter,
American Académy of Family Physiciing oflers the {ollowing commentary:

Regarding Section 3, Hem (1) Assignment of Primary Care Clinician
Regarding Scition 4, fiem {(12) Primary Care * Provider™

{0 The Patient Centered Medical Home (PCMIH) concept was created by 4 team of Physicians, to better
care {or the more chromcaﬂv ilt, tomplex patients, The Physicinn is educated in all. scopes-of patienl
care. The PCMH concept nmdeis hayve been developed by the American Academy of Fami iy
Physicians. Physicians.créated the conce eptof program and thus’ should be the Leaders. Advance
Practice Nurses.are truly limited in their scope-of practice dealing with the more complex, chronically-
il paticnts. The PCMH pmgam is a “Team” approach of care, hut should be lead by a beard certiied
physician-due o the policy of® our national organization, the AATP,

Today, 9 owt of 10 Americans choost a Physician (0 lead their medical team. Americans clearly prefer
that their health care be:plysician led when asked:to choose between physicians and surse
practitioners. This was a survey that was condugterd by the IPOS on health care and healihvcare
pl'o\':dus Weas Physicians of the PEMI program believe that the vse-of the genericterms.of

‘clinicians™ and “Providers™will open the door for non- physician led PCMH programs, and in vur-
opinioy, such entities would create an cnvironment that is sub- opumai for patient cars. Thus. high
quality, lost cost; patient-centered-cave should be Iead by Physicians.

Thaik you for your consideration of ourconcerns

Sincerely,
e

Jason Lofiod, MD
Delegate 1o the AAFR Congress:

TO9'N. 20d Stiest

De Queen, AR 71832



Chance Armour

From:

Sent:

To:

Subject:
Attachments:

Please see attached letter.

Betty Diehl
2710 Archer Lane
Conway, AR 72034

Betty Diehl <nanabdiehl@yahoo.com>

Sunday, August 31, 2014 5:16 PM

Booth Rand

Comment letter regarding Patient Care Medical Home
2014 Aug PCMH AID comment letter.doc



Chance Armour_

‘rom: Leonie DeClerk <leoniedeclerk@yahoo.com>
Sent: Saturday, August 23, 2014 5:22 PM

To: Booth Rand

Subject:

Comment on Proposed Rule 108 regarding patient centered medical home

Attachments: PCMH AID comment letter Leonie DeClerk.docx

Mr. Rand,

My letter is attached. Please forward to Mr. Bradford.

Leonie DeClerk, DNP, APRN, FNP-BC



5121 Madison Ave,
Jacksonville, AR 72076

August 23, 2014

Jay Bradford, insurance Commissioner
Arkansas Insurance Department
1220 West Third Street

Little Rock, AR 72201-1904

RE: Proposed rule 108: “Patient Centered Medical Home {PCMH) Standards.”

I'am pleased to see the continuation of provider neutral language (i.e. primary care provider) in the PCMH
proposed Rule 108. This language is consistent with the provider neutral language in the Arkansas Health Care
Independence Act (ACA 20-17-2106 (d) (1)) and the Department of Health and Human Services Section 1115
Demonstration Waiver. In Arkansas, having the opportunity for APRNs to be recognized as a primary care
provider and team leader in patient centered medical homes would create the potential for new access points for
primary care across the state. According to the Healthy Workforce in Arkansas Study (2013), the state is facing a
shortage of 1,000 primary care physicians within the next five years which will seriously jeopardize access to care
in all communities. The growing insured population in Arkansas as a result of the Healthcare Independence Act
provides another important reason to have provider neutral language in this rule. It is also important to note:

e  Most NPs (89%) are prepared in a primary care focus; e.g. adult, family, older aduits, pediatric, or women’s
health (AANP, 2013). Regardless of population focus, primary care NPs are educationally prepared, nationatly
certified and licensed to provide primary care across many settings including but not limited to: care at first
contact, ongoing management ot acute and chronic conditions, health promotion, and care coordination.

e  Four decades of research on NP practice consistently support the high quality and cost-effectiveness of APN
care. There is extensive and consistent evidence that NPs provide care of equal or better quality at a lower
cost than comparable services provided by others.

I worked as a primary care provider in a clinic in Little Rock with patients who were primarily uninsured for 10
years; for a significant part of that time | was the sole provider in the clinic. Currently | teach in the family nurse
practitioner specialty track at UAMS. In my current role, | have the opportunity to visit my students in clinical sites
throughout the state. In most sites, whether there is an on-site physician or not, the APRNs serve as primary care
providers for their patients. in many sites, especially those in rural Arkansas, the APRN is the only providerin the
clinic. APRNs have been providing primary care, managing acute and chronic conditions, providing preventive
health care and health education, and coordinating care with appropriate referrals and contact with specialists for
the residents of Arkansas since 1995. Please maintain the provider neutral language in proposed Rule 108 so that
we can continue to provide the excellent primary care that we are educated, certified and licensed to give,and he
recognized for doing so.

Thank you for the opportunity to comment on proposed rule 108.
Sincerely,

Leonie DeClerk, DNP, APRN, FNP-BC

Cc: Booth Rand Booth.rand@arkansas.gov




Chance Armour

f’From: Terry Scott

" Sent: Tuesday, August 12, 2014 8:31 AM
To: Booth Rand
Subject: FW: Fax from fax@loftonclinic.com re: proposed rule 108

Electronically Received

August 12 2014

Legal Division

Arkansas Insurance Department

Gerry Poots

Corporate Affairs, Legal Division
ARKANSAS INSURANCE DEPARTMENT
1200 West Third Street

Little Rock, AR 72201-1904

(501) 371-2820

From:
- Sent: Monday, August 11, 2014 5:52 PM

\__Te: LoRraine Rowland; Terry Scott

Subject: Fax from fax@Iloftonclinic.com




Chance Armour

M

‘rom; LoRraine Rowland

“ Sent: Friday, August 01, 2014 2:55 PM
To: Booth Rand
Cc: LoRraine Rowland
Subject: FW: PCMH - request to clarify language regarding medical home
Attachments: pcmh primary care provider letter to bradford.doc

Here is another comment.

LoRraine Rowland

Administrative Analyst/Legal Division
Arkansas Insurance Department
1200 West 3rd Street

Little Rock, AR 72201

501-371-2831 (office)

501-371-2639 (fax)

lorraine.rowland @arkansas.gov

“I have seeds in the ground and | am in a great place”

o From: Aimee Berry [mailto:berryaimee@sbcglobal.net]
Sent: Friday, August 01, 2014 2:32 PM

To: LoRraine Rowland
Subject: PCMH - request to clarify language regarding medical home

Aimee Olinghouse (formerly Berry)
Executive Director

Arkansas Chapter

American Academy of Pediatrics
#1 Children's Way, Slot 900

Little Rock, Arkansas 72202
aimee.olinghouse @yahoo.com
501.831.3057

www.arkansasaap.org
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American Academy of Pediatrics
DEDICATED TO THE HEALTH OF ALL CHILDREN"™

August1,2014

The Honorable Jay Bradford
Insurance Commissioner
Arkansas Insurance Department
1200 West Third Street

Little Rock, AR 72201

Dear Commissioner Bradford:

The Arkansas Chapter, American Academy of Pediatrics is asking you to amend the pro-
posed Rule 108 which provides standards for Patient-Centered Medical Homes (PCMH)
because of vague language in regard to whether non-physician clinicians would be eligi-
ble to lead comprehensive healthcare teams providing care under the PCMH model. We
strongly agree with the “Joint Principles of the Patient-Centered Medical Home" (Joint
Principles) published by the Patient Centered Primary Care Collaborative and developed
by the several national medical organizations with a focus on providing primary care,
including the AAP. While the Joint Principles recognize the value of interprofessional
healthcare teams, it is clear states that the physician should be the leader of that team.
Allowing non-physicians to lead teams of healthcare providers providing comprehen-
sive care through the PCMH model has significant risks that could negatively impact the
quality of care provided to patients. The physician-led medical model ensures that pro-
fessionals with complete medical education and training are adequately involved in pa-
tient care,

While we support the intent of this proposal to establish rules for the operation of PCMH
in the state, and appropriate payment for care provided under this model, the current
definition of “Primary Care Provider” in Proposed Rule 108 section (4)(12) needs to be
clear. This ambiguity leaves it up to the carrier to decide the definition of primary care
provider for the purposes of the PCMH which could lead to non-physician clinicians in-
appropriately leading comprehensive patient care, which is beyond their education and
training. This could also create incongruity in state regulation of medical practice
whereby the scope of practice for nurse practitioners and other healthcare professionals
may greatly expand without appropriate oversight and supervision. The definition of
“Primary care provider” under the proposed rule should instead be amended to specifi-
cally define this healthcare professional as a physician.

Making this change would be inline with The Joint Principles which clearly state that the
physician should lead the care provided under the PCMH model. In fact, the first two
principles are: “Personal Physician,” recognizing the need for each patientto have an
ongoing relationship with a personal physician trained to provide first contact, continu-
ous and comprehensive care, and “Physician Directed Medical Practice,” supporting the
concept of a physician led team of healthcare professionals at the practice level who col-
lectively take responsibility for the ongoing care of patients.

Additionally, section (5)(a) of Proposed Rule 108 specifies that the Health Carrier must
reasonably follow the standards or guidelines for a national or state standardized PCMH
model as approved by the Commissioner. The national standard, as established by the
Joint Principles, clearly maintains that physicians must be in the role of “Primary Care
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Provider” and leader of the comprehensive care team. This mirrors the PCMH
standards



American Academy of Pediatrics
DEDICATED TO THE HEALTH OF ALL CHILDREN™

in Arkansas as defined in the Arkansas Medicaid Provider Manual which states that PCMH is: “A team-
based care delivery model led by Primary Care Physicians (PCPs) who comprehensively manage benefi-
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ciaries’ health needs with an emphasis on health care value.” In fact, in section 171.630
of the manual it states that “Licensed nurse practitioners or licensed physician assis-

tants employed by a Medicaid-enrolled RHC provider may not function as PCP substi-
tutes.”

We are specifically requesting that Section 4, Paragraph 12 be amended (in approximate
wording) to the following:A“Primary Care Provider” means a participating health care
provider practicing within their licensed scope of practice physician licensed by the Ar-
kansas State Medical Board and designated by the Health Carrier to supervise, coordi-
nate or provide initial care or continuing care to a covered person, who may be required
by the Health Carrier to initiate a referral for a specialty care and maintain supervision
of health care services rendered to the covered person.

Potentially allowing non-physician clinicians to serve as a “Primary Care Provider” with-
in the PCMH model would run counter to existing state policy and national PCMH prin-
ciples, and may deteriorate the quality of care provided to Arkansas patients through
this model. We urge you to protect the safety of Arkansas’ patients and the integrity of
the PCMH model by defining “Primary Care Provider” as a physician. Should you need
any additional information, please feel free to contact me at your convenience. Thank
you in advance for your attention to this matter.

Sincerely,

A ~
b O b v
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Aimee Olinghouse

Executive Director

Arkansas Chapter, American Academy of Pediatrics
1 Children's Way, Slot 900

Little Rock, Arkansas 72202

501.831.3057

berryaimee@sbcglobhal.net



~ Phone: (501) 223-2279

‘__ Fax: (501-223-9280

Email:

aralp@shcglobal.net

B2 ARKANSAS ACADEMY OF
FAMILY PHYSICIANS

300 Pleasant Valley Drive
Building I, Suite 102
Little Rock, Avkansas 72227

July 31, 2014

Jay Bradford, Commissioner
Arkansas Insurance Depariment
1200 West Third Street

Little Rock, Arkansas 72201

RE: Proposed Rufe 108
Dear Commissioner Bradford,

Representing over 1100 Family Practice Physicians in the State of Arkansas, the Arkansas
Chapler, American Academy of Family Physicians offers the following commentary:

Regarding Section 3, Item (1) Assignment of Primary Care Clinician
Regarding Section 4, item (12) Primary Care “Provider”

The Patient Centered Medical Home (PCMH) concept was created by our colleagues in Pediatrics

for application to complex, chronically-iif patients. The AAFP has a long,proud history of developing
amore comprehensive model of the PCMH concept , appropriale for broader application in primary

care. ltis the policy of our national organization, the American Academy of Family Physicians, one

which we wholly endorse as a stale chapler, that the Patient Centered Medical Home {(PCMH) should

be a team consisting of many different and valued members of the heallhcare sytem, but that it should
remain Physician Led. Please see the AAFP position paper on use of generic term, *provider” or “clinician”.
http://www.aafp.org/about/policies/all/ Provider-term-position.html.

We believe that the use of the generic terms “clinician” and “Provider” will open the door for non-physician
led PCMH, and in our opinion, such entities would create an environment that is sub-optimal for patient
care. Each member of the PCMH team brings their own value to the team based approach, but

the intensity and breadth of {raining for physicians uniquely qualifies them to lead the effort to provide

high quality, low cost, patient centered care. It is our opinion that patients deserve the competency and
comprehensive care that is provided by a physician-led team operating within the context of a PCMH.
More defailed information about the AAFP's policy on physician leadership of the PCMH can be found

at the following links

(http://www.aafp.org/dam/AAFP/documents/about us/initiatives/AAFP-PCMHWhitePaper.pdf
And http://blogs.aafn.org/cfr/leadervoices/entry/nps no_substitute for physician).

Thank you for your consideration of our concems.

Sincerely,

Lonnie Robinson, M.D.
Delegate to the AAFP Congress



August 2, 2014

The Honorable Jay Bradford, Commissioner
Arkansas Insurance Department

1200 West Third Street

Little Rock, AR 72201

Re: Proposed Rule 108

Commissioner Bradford:

On behalf of the over 500 physician members of the Arkansas Chapter of the American College of
Physicians (the nation's largest specialty physician organization) | wish to comment on proposed Rule
108.

The American College of Physicians is a strong proponent of PCMH's and of team-based care and has
done much to promote their use. The proposed Rule is; however, open to interpretation such thata
non-physician could be classified as a PCP.

We have great respect for limited scope practitioners, including APN's, NP's and PA's. But it is our feeling
that the best person to lead the teams is a physician PCP. The physician has the best training to function
in this role and, we believe, is the most qualified to do so. Every team needs a captain and that person
needs to be the one with the most training and experience so that patients ultimately receive the most
benefit from these new avenues with which to deliver quality care.

I have read the letter from Scott Smith at the Arkansas Medical Society and agree with it in every
particular. I have also consulted my governing council and have received strong support from them to
express this opinion regarding physician leadership in the PCMH.

We agree with the Medical Society that PCP's should be physicians who are licensed in the specialties of
family practice, general practice, internal medicine, pediatrics and adolescent medicine or obstetrics and
gynecology.

We look forward to working with all team members to develop a better system for delivery of care and
appreciate your consideration of these comments.

Sincerely,

A

Clark Fincher"MD: FACP

Governor, Arkansas Chapter, American College of Physicians
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DEFINITIONS

ENROLLMENT AND CASELOAD MANAGEMENT

Enroliment Eligibility
Practice Enroliment
Enroliment Schedule
Caseload Management

PRACTICE SUPPORT
Practice Support Scope

Practice Support Eligibility
Care Coordination Payment Amount

SHARED SAVINGS INCENTIVE PAYMENTS

Shared Savings Incentive Payments Scope
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Requirements for Joining and Leaving Pools
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METRICS AND ACCOUNTABILITY FOR PAYMENT INCENTIVES

Activities Tracked for Practice Support
Metrics Tracked for Practice Support
Accountability for Practice Support

Quality Metrics Tracked for Shared Savings Incentive Payments

Provider Reports

COMPREHENSIVE PRIMARY CARE (CPC) INITIATIVE PRACTICE PARTICIPATION

IN THE PCMH PROGRAM

CPC Initiative Practice Participation

Attributed beneficiaries

The Medicaid beneficiaries for whom primary care
physicians and participating practices have accountability
under the PCMH program. A primary care physician's
attributed beneficiaries are determined by the
ConnectCare Primary Care Case Management (PCCM)
program. Attributed beneficiaries do not include dual
eligible beneficiaries.

Attribution

The methodology by which Medicaid determines
beneficiaries for whom a participating practice may
receive practice support and shared savings incentive

payments.

Benchmark cost

The projected cost of care for a specific shared savings
entity against which savings are measured. Benchmark
costs are expressed as an average amount per

beneficiary.

Benchmark trend

The fixed percentage growth applied to PCMH practices’
historical baseline fixed costs of care to project




benchmark cost.

Care coordination

The ongoing work of engaging beneficiaries and
organizing their care needs across providers and care
settings.

Care coordination payment

Quarterly payments made to participating practices to
support care coordination services. Payment amount is
calculated per attributed beneficiary, per month.

Cost thresholds

Cost thresholds are the per beneficiary cost of care
values (high and medium) against which a shared
savings entity’s per beneficiary cost is measured.

Default pool

A pool of beneficiaries who are attributed to participating
practices that do not meet the requirements in Section
233.000, part A or part B.

Historical baseline cost of care

A multi-year weighted average of a shared savings
entity’s per beneficiary cost of care.

Medical neighborhood barriers

Obstacles to the delivery of coordinated care that exist in
areas of the health system external to PCMH.

Minimum savings rate

A fixed percentage set by DMS. In order to receive
shared savings incentive payments for performance
improvement described in Section 237.000, part A, a
shared savings entity must achieve a per beneficiary cost
of care that is below its benchmark cost by at least the
minimum savings rate.

Participating practice

A physician practice that is enrolled in the PCMH
program, which must be one of the following:

A. An individual primary care physician (Provider Type
01 or 03);

B. A physician group of primary care providers who are
affiliated, with a common group identification number
(Provider Type 02, 04, or 81);

C. A Rural Health Clinic (Provider Type 29) as defined in
the Rural Health Clinic Provider Manual Section
201.000; or

D. An Area Health Education Center (Provider type 69).

Patient-Centered Medical Home
(PCMH)

A team-based care delivery model led by Primary Care
Physicians (PCPs) who comprehensively manage
beneficiaries’ health needs with an emphasis on health
care value.

Per beneficiary cost of care

The risk- and time-adjusted average of attributed
beneficiaries’ total Medicaid fee-for-service claims (based
on the published reimbursement methodology) during the
performance period, net of exclusions.

Per beneficiary cost of care floor

The lowest per beneficiary cost of care for which
practices within a shared savings entity can receive
shared savings incentive payments.

Per beneficiary savings

The difference between a shared savings entity’s
benchmark cost and its per beneficiary cost of care in a
given performance period.




Performance period

The period of time over which performance is aggregated
and assessed.

Pool

A. The beneficiaries who are attributed to one or more
participating practice(s) for the purpose of forming a
shared savings entity; or

B. The action of aggregating beneficiaries for the
purposes of shared savings incentive payment
calculations (i.e., the action of forming a shared
savings entity).

Practice support

Support provided by Medicaid in the form of care
coordination payments to a participating practice and
practice transformation support provided by a DMS
contracted vendor.

Practice transformation

The adoption, implementation and maintenance of
approaches, activities, capabilities and tools that enable a
participating practice to serve as a PCMH.

Primary Care Physician (PCP)

See Section 171.000 of this manual.

Provider portal

The website that participating practices use for purposes
of enroliment, reporting to the Division of Medical
Services (DMS) and receiving information from DMS.

Recover

To deduct an amount from a participating practice’s
future Medicaid receivables, including without limitation,
PCMH payments, or fee-for-service reimbursements, to
recoup such amount through legal process, or both.

Remediation time

The period during which participating practices that fail to
meet deadlines, targets or both on relevant activities and
metrics tracked for practice support may continue to
receive care coordination payments while improving
performance.

Risk adjustment

An adjustment to the cost of beneficiary care to account
for patient risk.

Same-day appointment request

A beneficiary request to be seen by a clinician within 24
hours.

Shared savings entity

A participating practice or participating practices that,
contingent on performance, may receive shared savings
incentive payments.

Shared savings incentive payment
cap

The maximum shared savings incentive payment that
DMS will pay to practices in a shared savings entity,
expressed as a percentage of that entity’s benchmark
cost for the performance period.

Shared savings incentive payments

Annual payments made to reward cost-efficient and
quality care.

Shared savings percentage

The percentage of a shared savings entity's total savings
that is paid to practice(s) in a shared savings entity as a
shared savings incentive payment for performance
improvement.

State Health Alliance for Records
Exchange (SHARE)

The Arkansas Health Information Exchange. For more

information, go to http://ohit.arkansas.gov.




211.000 Enrollment Eligibility 1-1-14

To be eligible to enroll in the PCMH Program initially:
A. The entity must be a participating practice as defined in Section 200.000.

B. The practice must include PCPs enrolled in the ConnectCare Primary Care Case
Management (PCCM) Program.

C. The practice may not participate in the PCCM shared savings pilot established under Act
1453 of 2013.

D. The practice must have at least 300 attributed beneficiaries at the time of enroliment.

DMS may modify the number of attributed beneficiaries required for enroliment based on
provider experience and will publish at www.paymentinitiative.org any such modification.

212.000 Practice Enroliment 1-1-14

Enroliment in the PCMH program is voluntary and practices must re-enroll annually. To enroll,
practices must access the provider portal and submit a complete and accurate Arkansas
Medicaid Patient-Centered Medical Home Practice Participation Agreement (DMS-844) available

at www.paymentinitiative.org. Once enrolled, a participating practice remains in the PCMH
program untif:

A. The practice withdraws:

B. The practice or provider becomes ineligible, is suspended or terminated from the Medicaid
program or the PCMH program: or

C. DMS terminates the PCMH program.

A physician may be affiliated with only one participating practice. A participating practice must
update the Department of Human Services (DHS) on changes to the list of physicians who are
part of the practice. This update must be submitted in writing within 30 days.

To withdraw from the PCMH program, the participating practice must deliver to DMS a signed
and accurate Arkansas Patient-Centered Medical Home Withdrawal Form (DMS-846), available

at www.paymentinitiative.org.
213.000 Enroliment Schedule 1114

Initial enroliment periods are October 1, 2013 through December 15, 2013 and January 1, 2014
through May 15, 2014.

Beginning with the 2015 calendar year, enroliment is open for approximately 3 months in Q3 and
Q4 of the preceding year.

DMS will return any enroliment documents received other than during an enroliment period.

214.000 Caseload Management 1-1-14

A participating practice must manage its caseload of attributed beneficiaries, including removal
of a beneficiary from its panel, according to the rules described in Section 171.200 of this
manual. Additionally, a participating practice must submit, in writing at the end of every calendar
quarter, an explanation of each beneficiary removal during such quarter. DMS retains the right



to disallow these beneficiary removals. If a participating practice removes a beneficiary from its
PCMH panel, then that beneficiary is also removed from its ConnectCare panel.

221.000 Practice Support Scope 1-1-14

Practice support includes both care coordination payments made to a participating practice and
practice transformation support provided by a DMS contracted vendor.

Receipt and use of the care coordination payments is not conditioned on the practice engaging a
care coordination vendor, as payment can be used to support participating practices’
investments (e.g., time and energy) in enacting changes to achieve PCMH goals. Care
coordination payments are risk-adjusted to account for the varying levels of care coordination
services needed for beneficiaries with different risk profiles.

DMS will contract with a practice transformation vendor on behalf of participating practices that
require additional support to catalyze practice transformation and retain and use such vendor.
Practices must maintain documentation of the months they have contracted with a practice
transformation vendor. Practice transformation vendors must report to DMS the level and type of
service delivered to each practice. Payments to a practice transformation vendor on behalf of a
participating practice may continue for up to 24 months.

DMS may pay, recover or offset overpayment or underpayment of care coordination payments.

DMS will also support practices through improved access to information through the reports
described in Section 245.000.

222.000 Practice Support Eligibility 1-1-14

In addition to the enroliment eligibility requirements listed in Section 211 .000, in order for
practices to receive practice support, DMS measures participating practice performance against
activities tracked for practice support identified in Section 241.000 and the metrics tracked for
practice support identified in 242.000. Participating practices must meet the requirements of
these sections to receive practice support.

Each participating practice that has pooled its attributed beneficiaries with other participating
practices in a shared savings entity:

A. Has its performance individually compared to activities tracked for practice support and
metrics tracked for practice support.

B. WIill, if qualified, receive practice support even if other practices in a shared savings entity do
not qualify for practice support.

223.000 Care Coordination Payment Amount 1-1-14

The care coordination payment is risk adjusted (e.g., ranging from $1 to $30 per attributed
beneficiary per month) based on factors including demographics (age, sex), diagnoses and
utilization.

After each quarter, DMS may pay, recover, or offset the care coordination payments to ensure
that a practice did not receive a care coordination payment for any beneficiary who died or lost
eligibility if the practice lost eligibility during the quarter.

If a practice withdraws from the PCMH program, then the practice is only eligible for care
coordination payments based on a complete quarter's participation in the PCMH program.



P In order to begin receiving care coordination payments for the quarter starting January 1, 2014, a
practice must submit a complete PCMH Practice Participation Agreement on or before
December 15, 2013. In order to begin receiving care coordination payments for the quarter
starting July 1, 2014, a practice must submit the PCMH Practice Participation Agreement on or
before May 15, 2014. For all subsequent years, in order to participate in the PCMH program, a
practice must submit the PCMH Practice Participation Agreement before the end of the
enroliment period of the preceding year.

231.000 Shared Savings Incentive Payments Scope 1-1-14

Shared savings incentive payments are payments made to a shared savings entity for delivery of
economic, efficient and quality care that meets the requirements in Section 232.000.

232.000 Shared Savings Incentive Payments Eligibility 1-1-14

To receive shared savings incentive payments, a shared savings entity must have a minimum of
5,000 attributed beneficiaries once the below exclusions have been applied. A shared savings
entity may meet this requirement as a single practice or by pooling attributed beneficiaries
across more than one practice as described in Section 233.000.

A. For purposes of calculating shared savings incentive payments only, the following
beneficiaries shall not be counted toward the 5,000 attributed beneficiary requirement.

1. Beneficiaries that have been attributed to that entity’'s practice(s) for less than half of
the performance period.

2. Beneficiaries that a practice prospectively designates for exclusion from per beneficiary
cost of care (also known as physician-selected exclusions) on or before the 90" day of
the performance period. Once a beneficiary is designated for exclusion, a practice
may not update selection for the duration of the performance period. The total number
of physician-selected exclusions will be directly proportional to the practice's total
number of attributed beneficiaries (e.g., up to one exclusion for every 1,000 attributed
beneficiaries).

3. Beneficiaries for whom DMS has identified another payer that is legally fiable for all or
part of the cost of Medicaid care and services provided to the beneficiary.

DMS may add, remove, or adjust these exclusions based on new research, empirical evidence
or provider experience with select beneficiary populations. DMS will publish such addition,
removal or modification on www.paymentinitiative.org.

B. Shared savings incentive payments are conditioned upon a shared savings entity:

1. Enrolling during the enroliment period prior to the beginning of the performance period;

2. Meeting requirements for metrics tracked for shared savings incentive payments in
section 244.000 based on the aggregate performance for beneficiaries attributed to the
shared savings entity for the majority of the performance period; and

3. Maintaining eligibility for practice support as described in Section 251.000.

Eligibility requirements for shared savings for Comprehensive Primary Care (CPC) practices are
described in Section 251.000.

233.000 Pools of Attributed Beneficiaries 1-1-14




Participating practices will meet the minimum pool size of 5,000 attributed beneficiaries as
described in 232.000 by forming a shared savings entity in one of three ways:

A. Meet minimum pool size independently;

B. Pool attributed beneficiaries with other participating practices as described in 234.000. In
this method, practices voluntarily agree to have their performance measured together by
aggregating performance (both per beneficiary cost of care and quality metrics tracked for
shared savings incentive payments) across the practices; or

C. Participate in a default pool if the practice does not meet the requirements for A or B of this
section. Practices with beneficiaries in a default pool will have per beneficiary cost of care
performance measured across the combined pool of all attributed beneficiaries in the default
pool. There is no default pool in the first performance period beginning January 1, 2014.

234.000 Requirements for Joining and Leaving Pools 1-1-14

Practices may pool for purposes described in 233.000, part B, before the end of the enroliment
period that precedes the start of the performance period. To pool, practices must submit to DMS
a signed Arkansas Medicaid Patient-Centered Medical Home Practice Participation Agreement
with a completed and accurate Arkansas Medicaid Patient-Centered Medical Home Pooling
Request Form, available at www.paymentinitiative.org, executed by all practices participating
in the pool.

In the first performance period beginning January 1, 2014, a maximum of two practices may
agree to voluntarily pool their attributed beneficiaries.

Pooling is effective for a single performance period and must be renewed for each subsequent
year.

When a practice has pooled, its performance is measured in the associated shared savings
entity throughout the duration of the performance period uniess it withdraws from the PCMH
program during the performance period. When a practice that has pooled withdraws from the
PCMH program, the other practice or practices in the shared savings entity will have
performance measured as if the withdrawn practice had never participated in the pool.

235.000 Per Beneficiary Cost of Care Galculation 1-1-14

Each year the per beneficiary cost of care performance is aggregated and assessed across a
shared savings entity. Per beneficiary cost of care is calculated as the risk- and time-adjusted
average of such entity’s attributed beneficiaries’ total fee-for-service claims (based on the
published reimbursement methodology) during the annual performance period, with adjustments
and exclusions as defined below.

One hundred percent of the dollar value of care coordination payments is included in the per
beneficiary cost of care calculation, except for the performance period which begins January 1,
2014, for which fifty percent of the dollar value of care coordination payments is included.

As described in Section 232.000, beneficiaries not counted toward the minimum number of
attributed beneficiaries for shared savings incentive payments will be excluded from the
calculation of per beneficiary cost of care.

A. The following costs are excluded from the calculation of per beneficiary cost of care:

1. All costs in excess of $100,000 for any individual beneficiary.

2. Behavioral health costs for beneficiaries with the most complex behavioral health
needs.

3. Select costs associated with developmental disabilities (DD) services, identified on the
basis of DD provider types.



Select direct costs associated with Long-Term Support and Services (LTSS).

Select costs associated with nursing home fees, transportation fees, dental and vision.

o o &

Select neonatal costs.
7. Other costs as determined by DMS.

Detailed information on specific exclusions are at www.paymentinitiative.org.

A. The following adjustments are made to costs for calculation of per beneficiary cost of care:

Inpatient hospital claims will be adjusted to reflect a standard per diem.
Pharmacy costs will be adjusted to reflect rebates.

The per beneficiary cost of care for a shared savings entity is adjusted by the amount
of supplemental payment incentives, both positive and negative, made under Episodes
of Care for the beneficiaries attributed to practice(s) as described in Section 232.000.

4. Technical adjustments may be made by DHS and will be posted at

www.paymentinitiative.org

If the shared savings entity’s per beneficiary cost of care falls below the current performance
period total cost of care floor, then the shared savings entity’s per beneficiary cost of care will be
set at the total cost of care floor, for purposes of calculating shared savings incentive payments.
The 2014 cost of care floor is set at $1,400 and will increase by 1.5% each subsequent year.

236.000 Baseline and Benchmark Cost Calculations 1-1-14

For the performance period that begins in January 2014, DMS will calculate a historical baseline
per beneficiary cost of care for each shared savings entity. This shared savings entity-specific
historical baseline will be calculated as a multi-year blended average of each shared savings
entity’s per beneficiary cost of care.

DMS will calculate benchmark costs for each shared savings entity by applying a 2.6%
benchmark trend to the entity’s historical baseline per beneficiary cost of care. DMS may
reevaluate the value of this benchmark trend if the annual, system-average per beneficiary cost
of care growth rate differs significantly from a benchmark, to be specified by DMS. DMS will
publish any modification to the benchmark trend at www.paymentinitiative.org.

237.000 Shared Savings Incentive Payments Amounts 1-1-14

A shared savings entity is eligible to receive a shared savings incentive payment that is the
greater of: (A) a shared savings incentive payment for performance improvement; or (B) a
shared savings incentive payment for absolute performance.

A. Shared savings incentive payments for performance improvement are calculated as follows:

1. During each performance period, each shared savings entity’s per beneficiary savings
is calculated as: [benchmark cost for that performance period] — [per beneficiary cost
of care for that performance period).

2. Ifthe shared savings entity's per beneficiary cost of care falls below that entity’'s
benchmark cost for that performance period by at least the minimum savings rate, only
then may the shared savings entity be eligible for a shared savings incentive payment
for performance improvement.

3. The per beneficiary shared savings incentive payment for performance improvement
for which the shared savings entity may be eligible is calculated as follows: [per
beneficiary savings for that performance period] * [shared savings entity’s shared
savings percentage for that performance period).



o

4. To establish shared savings percentages for a given performance period, DMS will
compare the entity’s previous year per beneficiary cost of care to the previous year's
medium and high cost thresholds. For the performance period beginning January
2014, DMS will compare the entity’s historical baseline cost to the base year
thresholds to establish such entity’s shared savings percentage.

5. If, in the previous performance period, a shared savings entity's per beneficiary cost of
care was:

a. Below the medium cost threshold, then the shared savings entity may receive
50% of per beneficiary savings created in the current performance period (i.e.,
the entity’s shared savings percentage will be 50%);

b. Between the medium and high cost thresholds, then the shared savings entity
may receive 30% of per beneficiary savings created in the current performance
period (i.e., the entity’s shared savings percentage will be 30%);

c. Above the high cost threshold, then the shared savings entity will not share in
risk. Instead, the shared savings entity may receive 10% of per beneficiary
savings created in the current performance period (i.e., the entity’s shared
savings percentage will be 10%).

B. Shared savings incentive payments for absolute performance are calculated as follows:

If the shared savings entity’s per beneficiary cost of care falls below the current performance
period medium cost threshold, then the shared savings entity may be eligible for a shared
savings incentive payment for absolute performance. The per beneficiary shared savings
incentive payment for absolute performance for which the entity may be eligible is calculated
as follows: ([medium cost threshold for that performance period] - [per beneficiary cost of
care for that performance period]) * [50%].

The medium and high cost thresholds for 2014 are:
A. Medium cost threshold: $2,032

B. High cost threshold: $2,718

These thresholds reflect an annual increase of 1.5% from the base year thresholds (base year
medium cost threshold: $1,972; base year high cost threshold: $2,638) and will increase by
1.5% each subsequent year.

The minimum savings rate is 2%. DMS may adjust this rate based on new research, empirical
evidence or experience from initial provider experience with shared savings incentive payments.
DMS will publish any such modification of the minimum savings rate at

www.paymentinitiative.org.

If the per beneficiary shared savings incentive payment for which the shared savings entity is
eligible exceeds the shared savings incentive payment cap, expressed as 10% of the shared
savings entity’s benchmark cost for that performance period, the shared savings entity will be
eligible for a per beneficiary shared savings incentive payment equal to 10% of its benchmark
cost for that performance period.

If the shared savings entity’s per beneficiary cost of care falls above the current performance
period high cost threshold, then the shared savings entity is not eligible for a shared savings
incentive payment for that performance period.

A shared savings entity’s total shared savings incentive payment will be calculated as the per
beneficiary shared savings incentive payment for which it is eligible multiplied by the number of
attributed beneficiaries as described in Section 232.000, adjusted based on the amount of time
beneficiaries were attributed to such entity’s practice(s) and the risk profile of the attributed
beneficiaries.



If participating practices have pooled their attributed beneficiaries together, then shared savings
incentive payments will be allocated to those practices in proportion to the number of attributed
beneficiaries that each practice contributed to such pool.

A shared savings entity will not receive shared savings incentive payments uniess it meets all
the conditions described in Section 232.000.

DMS pays shared savings incentive payments on an annual basis for the most recently
completed performance period and may withhold a portion of shared savings incentive payments
to allow for final payment adjustment after a year of claims data is available.

Final payment will include any adjustments required in order to account for all claims for dates of
service within the performance period. If the final payment adjustment is negative, then DMS
may recover the payment adjustment from the participating practice.

241.000 Activities Tracked for Practice Support 1-1-14

Using the provider portal, participating practices must complete and document the activities as
described in the table below by the deadline indicated in the table. The reference point for the
deadlines is the first day of the first calendar year in which the participating practice is enrolled in
the PCMH program.

Activity Deadline

3 months and again 3 months

after the start of each
1. DMS patient panel data that ranks beneficiaries by subsequent performance

risk at beginning of performance period and/or period (If such list is not

2. The practice’s patient-centered assessment to submitted by this deadline,
determine which beneficiaries on this list are high- DMS will identify a default list
priority. of high-priority beneficiaries for

the practice, based on risk

A. Identify top 10% of high-priority beneficiaries using:

Submit this list to DMS via the provider portal.

scores).

- Assess operations of practice and opportunities to improve

and submit the assessment to DMS via the provider portal.

6 months and again at 24
months

. Develop and record strategies to implement care

coordination and practice transformation. Submit the
strategies to DMS via the provider portal.

6 months

. ldentify and reduce medical neighborhood barriers to

coordinated care at the practice level. Describe barriers and
approaches to overcome local challenges for coordinated
care. Submit these descriptions of barriers and approaches
to DMS via the provider portal.

6 months

Make available 24/7 access to care. Provide telephone
access to a live voice (e.g., an employee of the primary care
physician or an answering service) or to an answering
machine that immediately pages an on-call medical
professional 24 hours per day, 7 days per week. The on-call
professional must:

1. _Provide information and instructions for treating

6 months




Activity Deadline

emergency and non-emergency conditions,

2. Make appropriate referrals for non-emergency
services and

3. Provide information regarding accessing other
services and handling medical problems during
hours the PCP’s office is closed.

Response to non-emergency after-hours calls must occur
within 30 minutes. A call must be treated as an emergency
if made under circumstances where a prudent layperson
with an average knowledge of health care would reasonably
believe that treatment is immediately necessary to prevent
death or serious health impairment.

1. PCPs must make the after-hours telephone
number known by, at a minimum, providing the 24-
hour emergency number to all beneficiaries;
posting the 24-hour emergency number on all
public entries to each site; and including the 24-
hour emergency phone number on answering
machine greetings.

2. When employing an answering machine with
recorded instructions for after-hours callers, PCPs
shouid regularly check to ensure that the machine
functions correctly and that the instructions are up
to date.

Practices must document completion of this activity by
written report to DMS via the provider portal.

F. Track same-day appointment requests by: 6 months

1. Using a tool to measure and monitor same-day
appointment requests on a daily basis and

2. Recording fulfillment of same-day appointment
requests.

Practices must document compliance by written report to
DMS via the provider portal.

G. Establish processes that result in contact with beneficiaries
who have not received preventive care. Practices must
document compliance by written report to DMS via the
provider portal.

H. Complete a short survey related to beneficiaries’ ability to 12 months
receive timely care, appointments and information from
specialists, including Behavioral Health (BH) specialists.

. Invest in health care technology or tools that support 12 months
practice transformation. Practices must document health
care technology investments by written report to DMS via
the provider portal.

J. Join SHARE and be able to access inpatient discharge and 12 months
transfer information. Practices must document compliance




Activity Deadline
/ by written report to DMS via the provider portal.

K. Incorporate e-prescribing into practice workflows. Practices 18 months
must document compliance by written report to DMS via the
provider portal.

L. Use Electronic Health Record (EHR) for care coordination. 24 months
The EHR adopted must be one that is certified by Office of
the National Coordinator for Health Information Technology
and is used to store care plans. Practices are to document
completion of this activity via the provider portal.

DMS may add, remove, or adjust these metrics or deadlines, including additions beyond 24
months, based on new research, empirical evidence or experience from initial metrics. DMS will
publish such extension, addition, removal or adjustment at www.paymentinitiative.org.

242.000 Metrics Tracked for Practice Support 1114

DMS assesses practices on the following metrics tracked for practice support starting on the first
day of the first calendar year in which the participating practice is enrolled in the PCMH program
and continuing through the full calendar year. To receive practice support, participating
practices must meet a majority of targets listed below.

Metric Target for Calendar Year
Beginning January 1, 2014
A. Percentage of high-priority beneficiaries (identified in At least 70%

Section 241.000) whose care plan as contained in the
medical record includes:

1. Documentation of a beneficiary’s chief complaint
and problems;

2. Plan of care integrating contributions from health
care team (including behavioral health
professionals) and from the beneficiary;

3. Instructions for follow-up and

4. Assessment of progress to date.

The care plan must be updated at least twice a year.

B. Percentage of a practice’s high priority beneficiaries Atleast 67%
seen by their attributed PCP at least twice in the past 12
months

C. Percentage of beneficiaries who had an acute inpatient At least 33%
hospital stay and were seen by health care provider
within 10 days of discharge

D. Percentage of emergency visits categorized as non- Less than or equal to 50%
emergent by the NYU ED algorithm

DMS will publish targets for subsequent years, calibrated based on experience from targets
initially set, at www.paymentinitiative.org. Such targets will escalate over time.



DMS may add, remove, or adjust these metrics based on new research, empirical evidence or
experience from initial metrics.

243.000 Accountability for Practice Support 1-1-14

If a practice does not meet deadlines and targets for A) activities tracked for practice support and
B) metrics tracked for practice support as described in Sections 241.000 and 242.000, then the
practice must remediate its performance to avoid suspension or termination of practice support.
Practices must submit an improvement plan within 1 month of the date that a report provides
notice that the practice failed to perform on the activities or metrics indicated above.

A. With respect to activities tracked for practice support, practices must remediate performance
before the end of the first full calendar quarter after the date the practice receives notice via
the provider report that target(s) have not been met, except for activity A in Section 241.000
where no such remediation time will be provided.

B. With respect to metrics tracked for practice support, practices must remediate performance
before the end of the second full calendar quarter after the date the practice receives notice
via the provider report that target(s) have not been met. For purposes of remediation,
performance is measured on the most recent four calendar quarters.

If a practice fails to meet the deadlines or targets for activities and metrics tracked for practice
support within this remediation time, then DMS will terminate practice support. DMS may
resume practice support when the practice meets the deadlines or targets for activities and
metrics tracked for practice support in effect for that quarter.

DMS retains the right to confirm practices’ performance against deadlines and targets for
activities and metrics tracked for practice support.

244.000 - Quality Metrics Tracked for Shared Savings Incentive Payments 1-1-14

DMS assesses the following quality metrics tracked for shared savings incentive payments
according to the targets below. The quality metrics are assessed at the level of shared savings
entity, except for the default pool. The quality metrics are assessed only if the entity or practice
has at least 25 attributed beneficiaries in the category described for the majority of the
performance period. To receive a shared savings incentive payment, the shared savings entity
or practice must meet at least two-thirds of the quality metrics on which the entity or practice is
assessed.

Quality Metric Target for Calendar year
Beginning January 1, 2014

A. Percentage of beneficiaries 31 days to15 months of age At least 67%
who complete at least four weliness visits

B. Percentage of beneficiaries 3-6 years of age who At least 67%
complete at least one weliness visit

C. Percentage of beneficiaries 12-21 years of age who At least 40%
complete at least one wellness visit

D. Percentage of diabetes beneficiaries who complete At least 75%
annual HbA1C testing

E. Percentage of beneficiaries prescribed appropriate At least 70%
asthma medications

F. Percentage of CHF beneficiaries on beta blockers At least 40%




Quality Metric Target for Calendar year
£ Beginning January 1, 2014

G. Percentage of women > 50 years who have had breast A least 50%
cancer screening in past 24 months

H. Percentage of beneficiaries on thyroid drugs who had a At least 80%
TSH test in past 24 months

I Percentage of beneficiaries 6-12 years of age with an At least 25%
ambulatory prescription dispensed for ADHD medication
that was prescribed by their attributed PCP, and who
had one follow-up visit with that PCP during the 30-day
Initiation Phase.

DMS will publish targets for subsequent performance periods, calibrated based on experience
from targets initially set, at www.paymentinitiative.org.

DMS may add, remove or adjust these quality metrics based on new research, empirical
evidence or experience from initial quality metrics.

245.000 Provider Reports 1-1-14

DMS provides participating practices provider reports containing information about their practice
performance on activities tracked for practice support, metrics tracked for practice support,
quality metrics tracked for shared saving incentive payments and their per beneficiary cost of
care via the provider portal.

251.000 CPC Initiative Practice Participation 1-1-14

Practices and physicians participating in the CPC initiative are not eligible to receive PCMH
program practice support.

Practices participating in the CPC initiative may receive PCMH program shared savings
incentive payments if they:

A. Enroll in the PCMH program;

B. Meet the requirements for shared savings incentive payments, except that a practice
participating in CPC need not maintain eligibility for practice support described in Section
222.000; and

C. Achieve all CPC milestones and measures on time.



Chance Armour

M T N R
From: LoRraine Rowland
e Sent: Thursday, July 31, 2014 11:37 AM

To: Booth Rand

Cc: LoRraine Rowland

Subject: FW: PDF Document 140731095453_0001.pdf Proposed Rule 108

Attachments: 140731095453_0001.pdf

FYl:

LoRraine Rowland

Administrative Analyst/Legal Division
Arkansas Insurance Department

1200 West 374 Street

Little Rock, AR 72201

501-371-2831 (office)

501-371-2639 (fax)
lbrruine.row[izm[@uréunsas.gov

"I have seeds in the ground and I am in a great place”

From: arafp [mailto:arafp@sbcglobal.net]

-~ Sent: Thursday, July 31, 2014 10:34 AM

To: LoRraine Rowland
Subject: PDF Document 140731095453_0001.pdf Proposed Rule 108

Please find attached the Arkansas Academy of Family Physicians comments on Proposed Rule 108 which will also be
mailed today. Thank you. Carla Coleman, Executive Vice President



Chance Armour
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/" From: Coin, Savannah Lee <scoin@uthsc.edu>

. Sent: Friday, September 05, 2014 2:26 PM
To: Booth Rand
Subject: Insurance Commission Letter for PCMH
Attachments: insurance commission letter for PCMH 2014.doc

Savannah Cain, BSN UTHSC Student DNP/ACFNP
Paragouid, AR
Graduation Date: May 2015



Date: 9/5/14

Jay Bradford, Insurance Commissioner
Arkansas Insurance Department

1220 West Third Street

Little Rock, AR 72201-1904

RE: Proposed rule 108: “Patient Centered Medical Home (PCMH) Standards.”
I am pleased to see the continuation of provider neutral language (i.e. primary care provider) in the PCMH proposed
Rule 108. This language is consistent with the provider neutral language in the Arkansas Health Care Independence
Act (ACA 20-17-2106 (d) (1)) and the Department of Health and Human Services Section 1115 Demonstration
Waiver. In Arkansas, having the opportunity for APRNS to be recognized as a primary care provider and team
leader in patient centered medical homes would create the potential for new access points for primary care across the
state. According to the Healthy Workforce in Arkansas Study (2013), the state is facing a shortage of 1,000 primary
care physicians within the next five years which will seriously jeopardize access to care in all communities. The
growing insured population in Arkansas as a result of the Healthcare Independence Act provides another important
reason to have provider neutral language in this rule. It is also important to note:
° Most NPs (89%) are prepared in a primary care focus; e.g. adult, family, older
adults, pediatric, or women’s health (AANP, 2013). Regardless of population focus, primary care NPs are
educationally prepared, nationally certified and licensed to provide primary care across many settings including
but not limited to:

o Care at first contact
o Ongoing management of acute and chronic conditions
o Health promotion

o Care coordination

° Four decades of research on NP practice consistently support the high quality and
cost-effectiveness of APN care. There is extensive and consistent evidence that NPs provide care of equal or
better quality at a lower cost than comparable services provided by others.

Thank you for the opportunity to comment on proposed rule 108.
Sincerely,

Savannah Coin

Cc: Booth Rand Booth.rand@arkansas.gov



Chance Armour

" “From: Amanda L. Henard <alhenard@wcmc.org>
Sent: Monday, August 04, 2014 10:23 AM
To: Booth Rand
Subject: Letter from Dr. Clark Fincher
Attachments: image2014-08-04-093444.pdf

Please see the attached letter from Dr. Fincher.
Thanks,

Amanda

Amanda Henard, MBA

Searcy Medical Center

An Outpatient Department of WCMC
2500 Hawkins Drive

Searcy, AR 72143

Ph: (501) 278-8363 Fax: (501) 278-2883
alhenard@wcmc.org

IMPORTANT NOTICE - The information (both of the message and any attachments) contained in this message
is intended only for the use of the individual or entity to which it is addressed and may contain information that
is privileged, confidential and exempt from disclosure under applicable law. If the reader of this message is not
the intended recipient or an agent responsible for delivering it to an intended recipient, or has received this
message in error, you are hereby notified that White County Medical Center does not consent to any reading,
dissemination, distribution or copying of this message and any such actions are strictly prohibited. If you have

received this electronic communication in error, please notify the sender immediately and destroy the
transmitted information.



Chance Armour

" From: drs250r@cox.net
Sent: Monday, August 25, 2014 8:07 PM
To: Booth Rand
Subject: PCMH AID
Attachments: PCMH AID comment letter individualAug2014.docx

Attached is my letter regarding PCMH AID.
Thanks for your time.



8/25/14

Jay Bradford, insurance Commissioner
Arkansas Insurance Department

1220 West Third Street

Little Rock, AR 72201-1904

RE: Proposed rule 108: “Patient Centered Medical Home (PCMH) Standards.”

I'am pleased to see the continuation of provider neutral language (i.e. primary care provider) in the PCMH
proposed Rule 108. This language is consistent with the provider neutral language in the Arkansas Health Care
Independence Act (ACA 20-17-2106 (d) (1)) and the Department of Health and Human Services Section 1115
Demonstration Waiver. In Arkansas, having the opportunity for APRNs to be recognized as a primary care
provider and team leader in patient centered medical homes would create the potential for new access points for
primary care across the state. According to the Healthy Workforce in Arkansas Study (2013), the state is facing a
shortage of 1,000 primary care physicians within the next five years which will seriously jeopardize access to care
in all communities. The growing insured population in Arkansas as a result of the Healthcare Independence Act
provides another important reason to have provider neutral language in this rule. It is also important to note:

©  Most NPs (89%) are prepared in a primary care focus; e.g. adult, family, older adults, pediatric, or women's
health (AANP, 2013). Regardless of population focus, primary care NPs are educationally prepared, nationally
certified and licensed to provide primary care across many settings including but not limited to:
o Care at first contact
o Ongoing management of acute and chronic conditions
o Health promotion
o Care coordination

©  Four decades of research on NP practice consistently support the high quality and cost-effectiveness of APN
care. There is extensive and consistent evidence that NPs provide care of equal or better quality at a lower
cost than comparable services provided by others.

Thank you for the opportunity to comment on proposed rule 108.

Sincerely,

Kathleen Smith APRN, Cardiovascular Surgical Clinical Clinic Fayetteville Arkansas

Cc: Booth Rand Booth.rend@arkansas.gov






Chance Armour
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From: Linda or Steve McIntosh <mcintoshsl@centurylink.net>
Sent: Saturday, August 23, 2014 8:52 AM

To: Booth Rand

Subject: PCMH Comment Letter

Attachments: PCMH AID comment letter individualAug2014.docx
Mr Rand:

I have mailed a signed copy of this letter to Jay Bradford State Insurance Commissioner.
Thank You for your consideration.

Sincerely,

Linda Mcintosh, APRN, FNP
ARcare

406 Rodgers Dr.

Searcy, AR 72143
870-256-5265

~- mcintoshsl@centurylink.net




August 23, 2014

lay Bradford, Insurance Commissioner
Arkansas Insurance Department

1220 West Third Street

Little Rock, AR 72201-1904

" RE: Proposed rule 108: “Patient Centered Medical Home (PCMH) Standards.”

1am a APRN, Family Nurse Practitioner in rural Arkansas. | am pleased to see the continuation of provider neutral
language (i.e. primary care provider) in the PCMH proposed Rule 108. This language is consistent with the
provider neutral language in the Arkansas Health Care Independence Act (ACA 20-17-2106 (d) (1)) and the
Department of Health and Human Services Section 1115 Demonstration Waiver. In Arkansas, having the
opportunity for APRNs to be recognized as a primary care provider and team leader in patient centered medical
homes would create the potential for new access points for primary care across the state. According to the
Healthy Workforce in Arkansas Study (2013), the state is facing a shortage of 1,000 primary care physicians within
the next five years which will seriously jeopardize access to care in all communities. The growing insured
population in Arkansas as a result of the Healthcare Independence Act provides another important reason to have
provider neutral language in this rule. It is also important to note:

®  Most NPs (89%) are prepared in a primary care focus; e.g. adult, family, older aduits, pediatric, or women'’s
health (AANP, 2013). Regardless of population focus, primary care NPs are educationally prepared, nationally
certified and licensed to provide primary care across many settings including but not limited to:
o Care at first contact

o Ongoing management of acute and chronic conditions
o Health promotion
o Care coordination

e Four decades of research on NP practice consistently support the high quality and cost-effectiveness of APN
care. There is extensive and consistent evidence that NPs provide care of equal or better quality at a lower
cost than comparable services provided by others.

Thank you for the opportunity to comment on proposed rule 108.

Sincerely,

Linda Mcintosh, APRN, FNP

Cc: Booth Rand Booth.rand@arkansas.gov







Chance Armour

‘From: Patsy Cornelius <Patsy.Cornelius@uafs.edu>

Sent: Monday, August 25, 2014 10:57 AM

To: Booth Rand

Subject: PCMH proposed rule 108

Attachments: PBC_PCMH AID comment letter individualAug2014.docx

Thank you for continuing to include provider neutral language in the Patient Centered Medical Home proposed rule 108.

I have attached a letter, which more fully delineates reasons for keeping provider neutral language in the propaosed rule
108 for PCMH.

Patsy B. Connelius, PhD, RN
Faculty Senate Chair

Assistant Professor, BSN Program
UAFS, College of Health Sciences
479-788-7831 — work
479-424-6831 - fax



August 25, 2014

Jay Bradford, Insurance Commissioner
Arkansas Insurance Department

1220 West Third Street

Little Rock, AR 72201-1904

RE: Proposed rule 108: “Patient Centered Medical Home {PCMH) Standards.”

I am pleased to see the continuation of provider neutral language (i.e. primary care provider) in the PCMH
proposed Rule 108. This language is consistent with the provider neutral language in the Arkansas Health Care
Independence Act (ACA 20-17-2106 (d) (1)) and the Department of Health and Human Services Section 1115
Demonstration Waiver. In Arkansas, having the opportunity for APRNs to be recognized as a primary care
provider and team leader in patient centered medical homes would create the potential for new access points for
primary care across the state. According to the Healthy Workforce in Arkansas Study (2013), the state is facing a
shortage of 1,000 primary care physicians within the next five years, which will seriously jeopardize accessto care
in all communities. The growing insured population in Arkansas, as a result of the Healthcare Independence Act,
provides another important reason to have provider neutral language in this rule. It is also important to note:

® Most NPs (89%) are prepared in a primary care focus; e.g. adult, family, older adults, pediatric, or women’s
health (AANP, 2013). Regardless of population focus, primary care NPs are educationally prepared, nationally
certified and licensed to provide primary care across many settings including but not limited to:
o Care at first contact
o Ongoing management of acute and chronic conditions
o Heaith promotion
o Care coordination

e  Four decades of research on NP practice consistently supports the high quality and cost-effectiveness of APN
care. There is extensive and consistent evidence that NPs provide care of equal or better quality at a lower
cost than comparable services provided by others.

Thank you for the opportunity to comment on proposed rule 108.

Sincerely,

Patsy B. Cornelius

Cc: Booth Rand Booth.rand@arkansas.gov







ace Armour

‘lFrom: Janis Bartlett

Sent: Friday, August 01, 2014 10:49 AM
To: ) Booth Rand

Cc: Wilson, Craig (JCWilson@uams.edu)
Subject: PCMH Requirements from Medicaid
Attachments: PCMH Manual 2014.pdf

You probably have this — but in case you don’t, attached are the Medicaid requirements.

Jan Bartlett, J.D.
Policy Director

SHARE @OHIT
Atatz Health Altance 2 Becands Bizhanegs : . O l

Office: 501.410.1990 Fax: 501.978.3940

Web: SHAREarkansas.com / OHIT.arkansas.gov  Twitter: @SHAREarkansas / @AR _QHIT

- Arkansas Office of Health Information Technology, 1501 North University Avenue, Suite 420, Little Rock, AR 72207

" SHARE is Arkansas’ statewide Health information Exchange (HIE), which is operated by the Arkansas Office of Heaith information Technology (OHIT). The information
transmitted in this emall is for the sole use of the intended recipient(s) and may contain confidential material. Any unauthorized review, use, disclosure, or distribution of the

transmitted information is prohibited. if you are not the intended recipient, please contact the sender by reply emait and delete the message and any attachments from your
computer and network. Thank you.




Chance Armour

From: Elliott, Jeanne <JNElliott@stvincenthealth.com>
Sent: Tuesday, August 26, 2014 11:37 AM

To: Booth Rand

Subject: Primary care provider under proposed Rule 108
Attachments: August 26.doc

Please see attached document. Thanks, Jeanne Elliott APRN

This electronic mail and any attached documents are intended solely for the named addressee(s) and contain
confidential information. If you are not an addressee, or responsible for delivering this email to an addressee, you have
received this email in error and are notified that reading, copying, or disclosing this email is prohibited. If you received
this email in error, immediately reply to the sender and delete the message completely from your computer system.




August 26, 2014

Jay Bradford, Insurance Commissioner
Arkansas insurance Department

1220 West Third Street

Littie Rock, AR 72201-1904

RE: Proposed rule 108: “Patient Centered Medical Home (PCMHY) Standards.”

I am pleased to see the continuation of provider neutral language (i.e. primary care provider) in the PCMH
proposed Rule 108. This language is consistent with the provider neutral language in the Arkansas Health
Care Independence Act (ACA 20-17-2106 (d) (1)) and the Department of Health and Human Services
Section 1115 Demonstration Waiver. In Arkansas, having the opportunity for APRNs to be recognized as
a primary care provider and team leader in patient centered medical homes would create the potential
for new access points for primary care across the state. According to the Healthy Workforce in Arkansas
Study (2013), the state is facing a shortage of 1,000 primary care physicians within the next five years
which will seriously jeopardize access to care in all communities. The growing insured population in
Arkansas as a result of the Healthcare Independence Act provides another important reason to have
provider neutral language in this rule. It is also important to note;

® Most NPs (89%) are prepared in a primary care focus; e.g. adult, family, older adults, pediatric,
psychiatric and/or women’s health (AANP, 2013). Regardless of population focus, primary care
NPs are educationaily prepared, nationally certified and licensed to provide primary care across
many settings including but not limited to:
o Care at first contact

o Ongoing management of acute and chronic conditions
o Health promotion
o)

Care coordination

®  Four decades of research on NP practice consistently support the high quality and cost-
effectiveness of APN care. There is extensive and consistent evidence that NPs provide care of
equal or better quality at a lower cost than comparable services provided by others.

Thank you for the opportunity to comment on proposed rule 108.
Sincerely,
Jeanne N Elliott APRN, FNP-C, ACNP-C

Phone : 510 ~ 241 - 0558




L

Chance Armour

m i O S S S
From: Alisa Ruffner <alisa_danielle@att.net>

Sent: Friday, September 05, 2014 2:27 PM

To: Booth Rand

Subject: Proposed rule 108: “Patient Centered Medical Home (PCMH) Standards.”

September 5, 2014

Jay Bradford, Insurance Commissioner
Arkansas Insurance Department

1220 West Third Street

Little Rock, AR 72201-1904

RE: Proposed rule 108: “Patient Centered Medical Home (PCMH) Standards.”

Dear Mr Bradford,

I'am pleased to see the continuation of provider neutral language (i.e. primary care provider) in the PCMH proposed
Rule 108. This language is consistent with the provider neutral language in the Arkansas Health Care Independence Act
(ACA 20-17-2106 (d) (1)) and the Department of Health and Human Services Section 1115 Demonstration Waiver. In
Arkansas, having the opportunity for APRNs to be recognized as a primary care provider and team leader in patient
centered medical homes would create the potential for new access points for primary care across the state. According

. to the Healthy Workforce in Arkansas Study (2013), the state is facing a shortage of 1,000 primary care physicians within
the next five years which will seriously jeopardize access to care in all communities. The growing insured population in

Arkansas as a result of the Healthcare Independence Act provides another important reason to have provider neutral
language in this rule.

It is also important to note:

Most NPs (89%) are prepared in a primary care focus; e.g. aduit, family, older aduits, pediatric, or women’s health
(AANP, 2013). Regardless of population focus, primary care NPs are educationally prepared, nationally certified and
licensed to provide primary care across many settings including but not limited to:

Care at first contact .

Ongoing management of acute and chronic conditions Health promotion Care coordination

Four decades of research on NP practice consistently support the high quality and cost-effectiveness of APN care. There
is extensive and consistent evidence that NPs provide care of equal or better quality at a lower cost than comparable
services provided by others.

Thank you for the opportunity to comment on proposed rule 108.

Sincerely,

Alisa Ruffner, RN, BSN

Cc: Booth Rand Booth.rand@arkansas.gov



Chance Armour

o M

From: STRICKLER, AMBER <ASTRICKLER@uams.edu>

Sent: Sunday, August 24, 2014 2:11 PM

To: Booth Rand

Subject: Proposed rule 108: “Patient Centered Medical Home (PCMH) Standards”
Attachments: Proposed Rule 108.docx

Please see attached letter.

Thank you in advance for your attention to this matter,
Sincerely,

Amber Strickler, RN, MNSc-FNP Student

Confidentiality Notice: This e-mail message, including any attachments, is for the sole use of the intended
recipient(s) and may contain confidential and privileged information. Any unauthorized review, use, disclosure
or distribution is prohibited. If you are not the intended recipient, please contact the sender by reply e-mail and
destroy all copies of the original message.



Date 8/24/2013

Jay Bradford, Insurance Commissioner
Arkansas Insurance Department

1220 West Third Street

Little Rock, AR 72201-1904

RE: Proposed rule 108: “Patient Centered Medical Home (PCMH) Standards.”

I am pleased to see the continuation of provider neutral language (i.e. primary care provider) in the PCMH
proposed Rule 108. This language is consistent with the provider neutral language in the Arkansas Health Care
Independence Act {ACA 20-17-2106 (d) (1)} and the Department of Health and Human Services Section 1115
Demonstration Waiver. In Arkansas, having the opportunity for APRNs to be recognized as a primary care
provider and team leader in patient centered medical homes would create the potential for new access points for
primary care across the state. According to the Healthy Workforce in Arkansas Study {2013), the state is facing a
shortage of 1,000 primary care physicians within the next five years which will seriously jeopardize access to care
in all communities. The growing insured population in Arkansas as a resuit of the Healthcare Independence Act
provides another important reason to have provider neutral language in this rule. it is also important to note:

e  Most NPs (89%) are prepared in a primary care focus; e.g. adult, family, older adults, pediatric, or women’s
health (AANP, 2013). Regardless of population focus, primary care NPs are educationally prepared, nationally
certified and licensed to provide primary care across many settings including but not limited to:

(o]

o]
o]
o]

Care at first contact

Ongoing management of acute and chronic conditions
Heaith promotion

Care coordination

e  Four decades of research on NP practice consistently support the high quality and cost-effectiveness of APN
care. There is extensive and consistent evidence that NPs provide care of equal or better quality at a lower
cost than comparable services provided by others.

Thank you for the opportunity to comment on proposed rule 108,

Sincerely,

Amber Strickler, RN, MNSc-FNP Student

Cc: Booth Rand Booth.rand@arkansas.gov




Chance Armour_

“From: Omar Atiq <otatig@gmail.com>
Sent: Wednesday, August 27, 2014 3:26 PM
To: Booth Rand
Subject: Proposed Rule 108
Dear Sir,

Team based care is the basis of PCMH. It is imperative that we have a physician, the most educated and the

most extensively trained team member, lead the team to obtain best outcomes for our patients. I would never be
a patient in a PCMH led by anyone else.

Thank you.
Omar Atiq, MD
Pine Bluff



Chance Armour

M

~“From: Lusk, Wanda <WLLusk@stvincenthealth.com>
Sent: Tuesday, August 26, 2014 12:21 PM
To: Booth Rand
Subject: Proposed Rule 108

August 26, 2014

Jay Bradford, Insurance Commissioner
Arkansas Insurance Department

1220 West Third Street

Little Rock, AR 72201-1904

RE: Proposed rule 108: “Patient Centered Medical Home (PCMH) Standards.”

I am pleased to see the continuation of provider neutral language (i.e. primary care provider) in the PCMH proposed Rule 108. This
language is consistent with the provider neutral language in the Arkansas Health Care independence Act (ACA 20-17-2106 (d) (1))
and the Department of Health and Human Services Section 1115 Demonstration Waiver. In Arkansas, having the opportunity for
APRNSs to be recognized as a primary care provider and team leader in patient centered medical homes would create the potential
for new access points for primary care across the state. According to the Healthy Workforce in Arkansas Study (2013), the state is
facing a shortage of 1,000 primary care physicians within the next five years which will seriously jeopardize access to care in all
communities. The growing insured population in Arkansas as a result of the Healthcare Independence Act provides anather
important reason to have provider neutral language in this rule. 1t is also important to note;

®  Most NPs (89%) are prepared in a primary care focus; e.g. adult, family, older adults, pediatric, or women’s health (AANP,
2013). Regardless of population focus, primary care NPs are educationally prepared, nationally certified and licensed to provide
primary care across many settings including but not limited to:
o Care at first contact
o Ongoing management of acute and chronic conditions
o Health promotion
o Care coordination

) Four decades of research on NP practice consistently support the high quality and cost-effectiveness of APN care. There is
extensive and consistent evidence that NPs provide care of equal or better quality at a lower cost than comparable services
provided by others.

Thank you for the opportunity to comment on proposed rule 108.

Sincerely,

Wanda Lusk MNSc ACNP-BC

4 East Neurospine Unit

CHI St. Vincent Infirmary

P: 501-552-2469 C: 501-680-4759
WLCrumpton@stvincenthealth.com

- This electronic mail and any attached documents are intended solely for the named addressee(s) and contain
. confidential information. If you are not an addressee, or responsible for delivering this email to an addressee
you have received this email in error and are notified that reading, copying, or disclosing this email is

3



prohibited. If you received this email in error, immediately reply to the sender and delete the message
completely from your computer system.



Chance Arour -

From: Angela Foster <afoster@conwayregional.org>
Sent: : Tuesday, August 26, 2014 10:54 AM

To: Booth Rand

Subject: proposed rule 108

Attachments: PCMH letter.docx

Pease see the attached letter




26 August 2014

Jay Bradford, Insurance Commissioner
Arkansas Insurance Department

1220 West Third Street

Little Rock, AR 72201-1804

RE: Proposed rule 108: “Patient Centered Medical Home (PCMH) Standards.”

I'am pleased to see the continuation of provider neutral language (i.e. primary care provider) in the PCMH
proposed Rule 108. This language is consistent with the provider neutral language in the Arkansas Health Care
Independence Act (ACA 20-17-2106 (d) (1)) and the Department of Health and Human Services Section 1115
Demonstration Waiver. In Arkansas, having the opportunity for APRNs to be recognized as a primary care
provider and team leader in patient centered medical homes would create the potential for new access points for
primary care across the state. According to the Healthy Workforce in Arkansas Study (2013), the state is facing a
shortage of 1,000 primary care physicians within the next five years which will seriously jeopardize accessto care
in all communities. The growing insured population in Arkansas as a result of the Healthcare Independence Act
provides another important reason to have provider neutral language in this rule. It is also important to note:

Most NPs (83%) are prepared in a primary care focus; e.g. adult, family, older

adults, pediatric, or women’s health (AANP, 2013). Regardless of population focus, primary care NPs are

educationally prepared, nationally certified and licensed to provide primary care across many settings
including but not limited to:

o]

Q
Q
Q

Care at first contact

Ongoing management of acute and chronic conditions
Health promotion

Care coordination

Four decades of research on NP practice consistently support the high quality and

cost-effectiveness of APN care. There is extensive and consistent evidence that NPs provide care of equal or
better quality at a lower cost than comparable services provided by others.

Thank you for the opportunity to comment on proposed rule 108.

Sincerely,

Angela Foster, APRN

Cc: Booth Rand Booth.rand@arkansas.zov







Chance Armour_

/7 From: Ramonda Housh <ramonda.housh@blackrivertech.edu>
. Sent: Monday, August 25, 2014 10:26 AM

To: Booth Rand

Subject: Proposed Rule 108

Attachments: PCMH AID comment letter individualAug2014.docx

Thank you for your time and attention to this letter.

Sincerely,

Ramonda Housh, MNSc, APRN



August 25, 2014

Jay Bradford, Insurance Commissioner
Arkansas Insurance Department

1220 West Third Street

Little Rock, AR 72201-1904

RE: Proposed rule 108: “Patient Centered Medical Home {PCMH) Standards.”

I am pleased to see the continuation of provider neutral language (i.e. primary care provider) in the PCMH
proposed Rule 108. This language is consistent with the provider neutral language in the Arkansas Health Care
Independence Act (ACA 20-17-2106 (d) (1)) and the Department of Health and Human Services Section 1115
Demonstration Waiver. In Arkansas, having the opportunity for APRNs to be recognized as a primary care
provider and team leader in patient centered medical homes would create the potential for new access points for
primary care across the state. According to the Healthy Workforce in Arkansas Study (2013), the state is facing a
shortage of 1,000 primary care physicians within the next five years which will seriously jeopardize accessto care
in all communities. The growing insured population in Arkansas as a result of the Healthcare Independence Act
provides another important reason to have provider neutral language in this rule. it is also important to note:

® Most NPs (89%) are prepared in a primary care focus; e.g. adult, family, older aduits, pediatric, or women’s
health (AANP, 2013). Regardless of population focus, primary care NPs are educationally prepared, nationally
certified and licensed to provide primary care across many settings including but not limited to:
o Care at first contact

o Ongoing management of acute and chronic conditions
o Health promotion
o Care coordination

©  Four decades of research on NP practice consistently support the high quality and cost-effectiveness of APN
care. There is extensive and consistent evidence that NPs provide care of equal or better quality at a lower
cost than comparable services provided by others.

As a Pediatric Nurse Practitioner who provides care to children in northeast Arkansas, | am gratefuf that parents
would have the option of choosing me as their child’s Primary Care Provider.

Thank you for the opportunity to comment on proposed rule 108.
Sincerely,
Ramonda Housh

Ramonda Housh, MNSc, APRN, C-PNP

Cc: Booth Rand Booth.rand@arkansas.gov



Chance Armour

From: Colleen Atchley <Colleen.Atchley@wacgc.org>
Sent: Saturday, August 16, 2014 7:52 PM

To: Booth Rand

Subject: Proposed rule 108

8/16/2014

Dear Commissioner Bradford:

My name is Colleen Atchley. | am an advanced practice registered nurse currently working at a community
mental health center in Fort Smith, Arkansas. | would like to personally thank you for using provider neutral
language in PCMH proposed rule 108. Our agency’s only full time medical staff consists of nurse practitioners
who work alongside a competent team of licensed social workers, licensed practical nurses, licensed
profession counselors, licensed psychological examiners, psychologists, physicians, a speech therapist and
countless other non-licensed professionals. | greatly appreciate the use of provider neutral language as
restrictive language negatively impacts our patients in so many ways. In Arkansas, having the opportunity for
APRNs to be recognized as a primary care leader and team leader in patient centered homes would create the
_ potential for new access points for primary care across the state. | would be happy to share personal
-experiences from my practice about how I believe restrictive language and other barriers to care increase

- costs and lead to patient frustration, confusion and, at times, unbearable waits. | welcome you to contact me
or visit our clinic anytime.

In our agency the medical staff supervisor is an advanced practice nurse with many years in community
mental health service. | have friends and colleagues that own and operate their own businesses as nurse
practitioners in Arkansas. The use of appropriate provider neutral language allows these clinicians to better
serve the residents of their communities in capacities they are well qualified to serve in. | get frustrated when
scope of practice, education, qualifications and training come into question in politically charged debates
because this rarely happens at the community level where we rely on each other for support while acting
independently as licensed clinicians.

As a member and leader of a community-based interdisciplinary team, { am well-versed in providing much-
needed service to patients unlikely to be served in other settings. We have long stood with our patients while
they faced complex medical and psychosocial circumstances and worked tirelessly to ensure care was being
managed appropriately. | have to admit despite the flood of new patients it has been a little easier to do with
the enactment of the Affordable Care Act. | guess what | am saying is a lot of what is asked only now of
“leaders of medical homes” we have strived for as long as | have been a nurse. | feel confident nurse

practitioners will continue doing this day after day even if we don’t have a particular title or recognition but |
would gladly embrace the change.

_ Respectfully,



Colleen Atchley, DNP, APRN

Visit Us!

H—

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE:

The information contained in this transmission may be privileged, confidential and protected from
disclosure under Federal Confidentiality Laws (42 CFR Part 2 and 45 CFR Parts 160-164). Any
dissemination, distribution, or duplication of this communication is strictly prohibited without the consent
of the writer. If you are not the intended recipient, or you have received this communication in error,
please notify the sender immediately at the email address above or delete this email,



Chance Armour

From: tracy baltz <tracybaltz@mac.com>
Sent: Wednesday, August 13, 2014 4:27 PM
To: Booth Rand

Subject: Proposed rule 108

Dear Mr Rand/ Commissioner Bradford;

Concerning the PCMH, it is my understanding that the leader is not defined as a physician (MD or DO). While advanced

practice nurses are needed to expand access to medical care, they do not have the breadth of knowledge to lead a
PCMH.

I personally have experienced APN's over testing/over treating - increasing costs.

I encourage the Arkansas Insurance Department to define the leader of a PCMH as a physician (MD or DO).

Tracy Baltz MD

Sent from my iPhone



Cace Armour

‘rom: Sanderson, Herb <HSanderson@aarp.org>
Sent: Monday, August 04, 2014 4:4S PM

To: LoRraine Rowland; Booth Rand

Subject: Proposed Rule 108

Attachments: Letter AR Proposed Rule 108 Comments PDF.pdf

Please find attached AARP Arkansas’ comments on Proposed Rule 108.

Herb Sanderson

AARP Arkansas

Associate State Director for Advocacy
1701 Centerview Drive, Suite 205
Little Rock, AR 72211

E-mail: Hsanderson@aarp.org
Phone: 501-217-1639

www.aarp.org/ar

AARP Arkansas is on Facebook! Become a FAN!
AARP Arkansas is on twitter! FOLLOW us!




Chance Armour
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rom: Janis Bartlett

Sent: Friday, August 01, 2014 10:06 AM

To: Booth Rand

Cc: Wilson, Craig (JCWilson@uams.edu); Ray Scott
Subject: Proposed Rule 108

Importance: High

Thank you for the response. | appreciate your concerns. The NCQA materials | have define a practice “as a
clinician or clinicians practicing together at a single geographic location, includes nurse-led practices in states
where state licensing designates NPs as independent practitioners.”

My understanding of the proposed rule language in Section 5(d) which states, “In order to minimize provider
administrative burden and encourage meaningful data reporting, quality metrics collected and reported by
Health Carriers must incorporate Arkansas PCMH model requirements” is that regardless of the model
selected, the baseline is the Arkansas PCMH model which would require a connection to SHARE. Is that your
understanding as well?

Jan Bartlett, J.D.
Policy Director

SHARE

Stzze Hoslth Allamez % Recods Bahange

Office: 501.410.1990 Fax: 501.978.3940

Web: SHAREarkansas.com / OHIT.arkansas.gov  Twitter: @SHAREarkansas / @AR _OHIT

Arkansas Office of Health Information Technology, 1501 North University Avenue, Suite 420, Little Rock, AR 72207

SHARE is Arkansas’ statewide Health Information Exchange (HIE}, which is operated by the Arkansas Office of Health Information Technology (OHIT). The information
transmitted in this email is for the sole use of the intended recipient{s) and may contain confidential material. Any unauthorized review, use, disclosure, or distribution of the
transmitted information is prohibited. If you are not the intended recipient, please contact the sender by reply emai! and delete the message and any attachments from your
computer and network. Thank you.

From: Booth Rand

Sent: Thursday, July 31, 2014 2:23 PM

To: Janis Bartlett

Cc: Wilson, Craig (JCWilson@uams.edu); Ray Scott
Subject: RE: Proposed Rule 108

I did not write this exact language | believe but | think everyone agrees or should agree It needs to be clarified or
language restricted to refer to an actual model or some official published requirements. This is exactly what Blue Cross
called to make note of.

~ | agree with these points, and | think this is written so open-ended for a reason which is, | think, we are trying to stay out
of what appears to be a dispute between the APNs and the Family physicians as to who or what type of provider can be

1



the point for medical home management. Given the written submissions, apparently the APNs like this open definition,
the family doctors do not, including AMS.

“‘"‘,My guess is if you correct that to say a specific state PCMH model and let’s say it's the ADHS model, its my
understanding only physicians can be the PCP or primary care provider in Medicaid medical home, according to what

others have told me, but | have not looked through the Medicaid medical home requirements. If we say a national
PCMH model, it may be pretty modern and prospective looking and not require a licensed physician requirement at the

gatekeeper point. | have not looked at any national PCMH criteria, either from NCQA or CMS or whoever is promulgating
those standards.

So, the problem here is we do need to clarify this, but how do we do this without saying something in here which might
act to operate to restrict a type, and OUR definitions, the way [ read them is for the insurer to designate this.

I'm going to try to come up with a solution to this, if possible, but this is up to the Commissioner and Cindy and | do what
they want.

From: Janis Bartlett
Sent: Thursday, July 31, 2014 1:30 PM
To: Booth Rand

Cc: Wilson, Craig (JCWilson@uams.edu); Ray Scott
Subject: Proposed Rule 108

Importance: High

I have reviewed the AID Proposed Rule 108 and visited with Craig Wilson from ACHI about the PCMH
requirements. Because the Arkansas PCMH Model is not defined, do you think there could be any confusion
around what that model is or what those requirements are? Do you think the model needs to be defined? If you

“have an opportunity to discuss this by phone in the next day or so, I would appreciate having the opportunity to
- do so. Thank you.

Jan Bartlett, J.D.
Policy Director

SHARE

Stz Hezith Altanes =~ Regouds Bzhanae

Office: 501.410.1990 Fax: 501.978.3940

Web: SHAREarkansas.com / OHIT.arkansas.gov  Twitter: @SHAREarkansas / @AR_OHIT

Arkansas Office of Health Information Technology, 1501 North University Avenue, Suite 420, Little Rock, AR 72207

SHARE is Arkansas’ statewide Health Information Exchange {HIE), which is operated by the Arkansas Office of Health information Technology {ORHIT). The information
transmitted in this email is for the sole use of the intended recipient(s) and may contain confidential material. Any unauthorized review, use, disclosure, or distribution of the

transmitted information is prohibited. If you are not the intended recipient, please contact the sender by reply email and delete the message and any attachments from your
computer and network. Thank you.



Chance Armour

""‘From: Bishop, Janis <Janis.Bishop@Mercy.Net>
Sent: Tuesday, August 26, 2014 2:12 PM

To: Booth Rand

Subject: Provider neutral language

Date August 26, 2014

Jay Bradfard, Insurance Commissioner
Arkansas Insurance Department
1220 West Third Street

Little Rock, AR 72201-1904

RE: Proposed rule 108: “Patient Centered Medical Home (PCMH) Standards.”

- lam pleased to see the continuation of provider neutral language (i.e. primary care provider) in the PCMH proposed Rule 108. This
language is consistent with the provider neutral language in the Arkansas Health Care Independence Act {ACA 20-17-2106 (d) (1))

“ and the Department of Health and Human Services Section 1115 Demonstration Waiver. In Arkansas, having the opportunity for
APRNs to be recognized as a primary care provider and team leader in patient centered medical homes would create the potential
for new access points for primary care across the state. According to the Healthy Workforce in Arkansas Study (2013), the state is
facing a shortage of 1,000 primary care physicians within the next five years which will seriously jeopardize access to care in all
communities. The growing insured population in Arkansas as a result of the Healthcare Independence Act provides anather
important reason to have provider neutral language in this rule. It is also important to note:

e  Most NPs (89%) are prepared in a primary care focus; e.g. adult, family, older adults, pediatric, or women'’s health (AANP,
2013). Regardless of population focus, primary care NPs are educationally prepared, nationally certified and licensed to provide
primary care across many settings including but not fimited to:

o Care at first contact
o Ongoing management of acute and chronic conditions
o Health promotion

o Care coordination

e  Four decades of research on NP practice consistently support the high quality and cost-effectiveness of APN care. There is
extensive and consistent evidence that NPs provide care of equal or better quality at a lower cost than comparable services
provided by others.

Thank you for the opportunity to comment on proposed rule 108.



1701 Centerview Drive, #205 | Little Rock, AR 72211
1-866-554-5379 | Fax: 501-227-7710 | TTY: 1-877-434-7598
aarp.org/ar | araarp@aarp.org | twitter: @ARAARP

A r ka n S a S facebook.com/AARPArkansas

Real Possibilities in

August 4, 2014

Jay Bradford

Commissioner

Arkansas Insurance Department
1200 West Third Street

Little Rock, AR 72201-1904

RE: Proposed Rule 108 regarding Patient-Centered Medical Home Standards

Dear Commissioner Bradford:

AARP is a membership organization of people 50 and older with 325,000+ members in Arkansas
and is pleased to have the opportunity to provide our comments on Proposed Rule 108 regarding
Patient-Centered Medical Home Standards. We are committed to championing access to
affordable, high quality health care for all generations, providing the tools needed to save for
retirement, and serving as a reliable information source on issues critical to Americans age 50+.

AARP believes that the proposed rule’s inclusive definition of primary care provider is necessary
to help assure consumer access to and choice of high quality health care professionals within this
model of care. The proposal provides the following definition:

“Primary care provider” means a participating health care provider practicing within their
licensed scope of practice and designated by the Health Carrier to supervise, coordinate
or provide initial care or continuing care to a covered person, and who may be required
by the Health Carrier to initiate a referral for specialty care and maintain supervision of
health care services rendered to the covered person.

Such an inclusive definition is vital given the shortage of primary care professionals in our state.
AARP supports the Institute of Medicine's definition of primary care — “the provision of
integrated, accessible health care services by clinicians who are accountable for addressing a
large majority of personal health care needs, developing a sustained partnership with patients,
and practicing in the context of family and community.”




AARP believes that all health professionals who are licensed to provide primary care services,
including physicians, advance practice registered nurses, physician assistants and others, should
be available to consumers participating in patient centered medical homes and should be allowed
to lead such practices. Patient-Centered Medical Homes should be designed to give consumers
greater access to care and should assure that consumers are at the center of decision-making,
including in their choice of health professionals.

We are pleased with the proposed rule’s emphasis on improved care coordination, the “complete
health needs” of the patient population, and care that is “customized for their patients’ care needs
with a focus on prevention and management of chronic disease through monitoring patient
progress and coordination of care.”

AARP Arkansas is deeply appreciative of the primary care and chronic care management
provided by all clinicians. We need to be certain, however, that our members and all health care
consumers can access a primary care provider when and where they need one. This rule would
help ensure such access to care.

Sincerely,

Y
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Maria Reynolds-Diaz
State Director
AARP Arkansas

cc: Booth Rand



Chance Armour

“‘rom: Terry Scott

Sent: Wednesday, August 27, 2014 8:41 AM
To: Zane Chrisman; Cynthia Crone

Cc: Booth Rand

Subject: RE: Fax from NEABC Fax Server
Thank you.

% (Heots

Corporate Affairs, Legal Division
ARKANSAS INSURANCE DEPARTMENT
1200 West Third Street

Little Rock, AR 72201-1904

(501) 371-2820

From: Zane Chrisman
Sent: Wednesday, August 27, 2014 7:59 AM
To: Terry Scott; Cynthia Crone

Subject: RE: Fax from NEABC Fax Server

Should be Booth’s. They are providing a comment for the PCMH Rule.

From: Terry Scott

Sent: Tuesday, August 26, 2014 4:03 PM
To: Cynthia Crone; Zane Chrisman
Subject: FW: Fax from NEABC Fax Server

Does this belong to your division? (at first, | sent it to Booth)

Electronically Received

August 26 2014

Legal Division

Arkansas Insurance Department

% (Heots

Corporate Affairs, Legal Division
ARKANSAS INSURANCE DEPARTMENT
1200 West Third Street

‘Little Rock, AR 72201-1904

o (501) 371-2820




From: Terry Scott

Sent: Tuesday, August 26, 2014 3:57 PM
/""To: Booth Rand

' Subject: FW: Fax from NEABC Fax Server

Booth: is this yours?

Electronically Received

August 26 2014

Legal Division

Arkansas Insurance Department

%@ém

Corporate Affairs, Legal Division
ARKANSAS INSURANCE DEPARTMENT
1200 West Third Street

Little Rock, AR 72201-1904

(501) 371-2820

From:
. Sent: Tuesday, August 26, 2014 4:41 PM
{  To: LoRraine Rowland; Terry Scott
- Subject: Fax from NEABC Fax Server

<< File: document2014-08-26-154045.pdf >>



Cnce rour

“From: LoRraine Rowland

Sent: Friday, August 01, 2014 2:51 PM
To: Booth Rand

Subject: RE: PCMH Rule Exhibits
Attachments: Exhibit List.doc

What about this one?

LoRraine Rowland

Administrative Analyst/Legal Division
Arkansas Insurance Department

1200 West 37 Street

Little Rock, AR 72201

501-371-2831 (office)

501-371-2639 (fax)
lorraine.rowland@arkansas.gov

T have seeds in the ground and I am in a great place”

/" From: Booth Rand

_Sent: Friday, August 01, 2014 1:12 PM
To: LoRraine Rowland
Subject: PCMH Rule Exhibits

I want it kind of like this,

Designation of Hearing Officer

NOPH

Copy of Filed Rule or the Rule itself.

All the Newspaper transmittals and newspaper running information.
Legislative Council Filing cover letter/

Qustionarire

Financial Impact Statement/and all other ALC materials (if any)
Gov's office letter

AG office letter

Sec State

State Library

AEDC (Economic Development)

Summary of Rule

Stop there,

. And for the last exhibit, | just call it one number: “Exhibit # [what ever next number is] Public Comments

And | just tuck and add all of those into that one exhibit,and I'll have those all on Monday.






EXHIBIT LIST

DATE: August 5, 2014
SUBJECT: Proposed Rule 108
“Patient-Centered Medical Home Standards”
HEARING OFFICER: William R. Lacy,
Deputy Commissioner

Exhibit No. Description

1. Designation of Hearing Officer

2. Arkansas Insurance Department’s June 26, 2014 NOTICE OF PUBLIC
HEARING concerning Proposed Rule 108 “Patient-Centered Medical Home
Standards”

3. Proposed Rule 108“Patient-Centered Medical Home Standards”

4. Proof of Publication of Hearing on Proposed Amended Rule 108 in the Arkansas
Democrat-Gazette as required by the Arkansas Administrative Procedures Act,
Ark. Code Ann. §§ 25-15-201, et seq.

S. Copy of June 26, 2014 correspondence regarding submission of Proposed Rule
108 to the Arkansas Bureau of Legislative Research

6. Questionnaire and Financial Impact Statement for Proposed Rule 108

7. Copy of June 26, 2014 correspondence to James Miller, Regulatory Liaison,
Office of the Governor, providing Notice of Public Hearing and Proposed Rule
108

8. Copy of June 26, 2014 correspondence to Brandon Robinson, Assistant Attorney
General, Office of the Attorney General, providing Notice of Public Hearing and
Proposed Rule 108

9. Copy of June 26, 2014 correspondence to the Arkansas Secretary of State,
providing copies of the Notice of Public Hearing and Proposed Rule 108,
including June 27, 2014 email to Secretary of State

10.

Copy of June 26, 2014 correspondence to Mary Brewer, Arkansas State Library,
providing Notice of Hearing, Proposed Rule 108 and Financial Impact Statement



11.

12.

13.

14.

Copy of June 26, 2014 correspondence to Pat Brown, Arkansas Economic Development
Commission, providing Notice of Hearing and a copy of Proposed Rule 108

Summary of Proposed Rule 108

Arkansas Insurance Department’s May 13, 2014 correspondence regarding presentment
of Proposed Rule 108 to the Arkansas Bureau of Legislative Council

Comments Regarding Proposed Rule 108



Chance Armour

‘rom: Cynthia Crone

Sent: Friday, August 01, 2014 6:48 AM

To: Booth Rand; Jay Bradford; Zane Chrisman; Dan Honey

Cc: Tangelia Marshall

Subject: RE: PDF Document 140731095453_0001.pdf Proposed Rule 108

Agree. Will be tough to schedule. Tangelia can help. Remember | will be in Chicago at time of hearing.
Thanks, Cindy

Cynthia C. Crone, APRN

Deputy Commissioner

Arkansas Insurance Department
Arkansas Health Connector Division
1200 West Third Street

Little Rock, AR 72201

Phone: 501-683-3634
Fax: 501-371-2629

Email: Cynthia.Crone@Arkansas.Gov

From: Booth Rand

Sent: Thursday, July 31, 2014 12:04 PM

To: Cynthia Crone; Jay Bradford; Zane Chrisman; Dan Honey
~-Subject: FW: PDF Document 140731095453_0001.pdf Proposed Rule 108

~ We need to meet about this issue before the hearing.

It appears the docs are going to attack this rule now.

From: LoRraine Rowland

Sent: Thursday, July 31, 2014 11:37 AM

To: Booth Rand

Cc: LoRraine Rowland

Subject: FW: PDF Document 140731095453_0001.pdf Proposed Rule 108

FYI:

LoRraine Rowland

Administrative Analyst/Legal Division
Arkansas Insurance Department

1200 West 3% Street

Little Rock, AR 72201

501-371-2831 (office)

501-371-2639 (fax)
lorraine.rowland@arkansas.gov

‘T have seeds in the ground and I am in a great place”

1



From: arafp [mailto:arafp@sbcglobal.net]
.. Sent: Thursday, July 31, 2014 10:34 AM

“To: LoRraine Rowland
Subject: PDF Document 140731095453_0001.pdf Proposed Rule 108

Please find attached the Arkansas Academy of Family Physicians comments on Proposed Rule 108 which will also be
mailed today. Thank you. Carla Coleman, Executive Vice President



Chance Armour

‘rom: Cynthia Crone

Sent: Friday, August 01, 2014 9:40 AM

To: Booth Rand

Cc: Bill Lacy

Subject: RE: PDF Document 140731095453_0001.pdf Proposed Rule 108

Thanks. That would help, I think.
Cindy

Cynthia C. Crone, APRN

Deputy Commissioner

Arkansas Insurance Department
Arkansas Health Connector Division
1200 West Third Street

Little Rock, AR 72201

Phone: 501-683-3634
Fax: 501-371-2629

Emall: Cynthia.Crone@Arkansas.Gov

From: Booth Rand
Sent: Friday, August 01, 2014 8:51 AM
To: Cynthia Crone

-, CCt Bill Lacy

,‘Subject: RE: PDF Document 140731095453_0001.pdf Proposed Rule 108

Bill is the Hearing Officer. We can keep the record open beyond the hearing date to receive additional comments and
suggested language.

Its up to him and Jay, but given that the effective date of the rule is 1-1-2015, we have plenty of time, asfar as | know,
and | would think we can leave it open to continue to work out this issue beyond Tuesday.

From: Cynthia Crone

Sent: Friday, August 01, 2014 6:50 AM

To: Booth Rand

Subject: RE: PDF Document 140731095453_0001.pdf Proposed Rule 108

You know Commissioner is now gone and | won’t be here Tuesday either. Shall we wait for all comments at
Hearing? How does this work—timing wise?
Cindy.

Cynthia C. Crone, APRN
Deputy Commissioner
Arkansas Insurance Department
Arkansas Health Connector Division
. 1200 West Third Street

‘Little Rock, AR 72201

Phone: 501-683-3634
Fax: 501-371-2625



Email: Cynthia.Crone@Arkansas.Gov

,,,,,,, From: Booth Rand
‘Sent: Thursday, July 31, 2014 11:40 AM
To: Cynthia Crone; Zane Chrisman; Jay Bradford

Subject: FW: PDF Document 140731095453_0001.pdf Proposed Rule 108

We need to meet about this.

From: LoRraine Rowland

Sent: Thursday, July 31, 2014 11:37 AM

To: Booth Rand

Cc: LoRraine Rowland

Subject: FW: PDF Document 140731095453_0001.pdf Proposed Rule 108

FYl:

LoRraine Rowland

Administrative Analyst/Legal Division
Arkansas Insurance Department

1200 West 3 Street

Little Rock, AR 72201

501-371-2831 (office)

501-371-2639 (fax)
lorraine.rowland@arkansas.gov

_ “T have seeds in the ground and I am in a great place”

From: arafp [mailto:arafp@sbcglobal.net]
Sent: Thursday, July 31, 2014 10:34 AM

To: LoRraine Rowland
Subject: PDF Document 140731095453_0001.pdf Proposed Rule 108

Please find attached the Arkansas Academy of Family Physicians comments on Proposed Rule 108 which wiil also be
mailed today. Thank you. Carla Coleman, Executive Vice President



Chance Armour

From: , Total Access Solutions <piccsolutions@gmail.com>

Sent: Sunday, August 24, 2014 10:00 AM

To: Booth Rand )

Subject: RE: Proposed rule 108: "Patient Centered Medical Home (PCMH) Standards."
August 24,2014

Jay Bradford, Insurance Commissioner
Arkansas Insurance Department
1220 West Third Street

Little Rock, AR 72201-1904

RE: Proposed rule 108: “Patient Centered Medical Home (PCMH) Standards.”

I'am pleased to see the continuation of provider neutral language (i.e. primary care provider) in the PCMH proposed Rule
. 108. This language is consistent with the provider neutral language in the Arkansas Health Care Independence Act (ACA 20-17-2106
. (d) (1)) and the Department of Health and Human Services Section 1115 Demonstration Waiver. In Arkansas, having the opportunity
“ for APRNs to be recognized as a primary care provider and team leader in patient centered medical homes would create the potential
for new access points for primary care across the state. According to the Healthy Workforce in Arkansas Study (2013), the state is
facing a shortage of 1,000 primary care physicians within the next five years which will seriously jeopardize access to care in all
communities. The growing insured population in Arkansas as a result of the Healthcare Independence Act provides another
important reason to have provider neutral language in this rule. It is also important to note:

e  Most NPs (89%) are prepared in a primary care focus; e.g. adult, family, older adults, pediatric, or women’s health (AANP,
2013). Regardless of population focus, primary care NPs are educationally prepared, nationally certified and licensed to provide
primary care across many settings including but not limited to:

o Care at first contact
o Ongoing management of acute and chronic conditions
o Health promotion

o Care coordination

e  Four decades of research on NP practice consistently support the high quality and cost-effectiveness of APN care. There is
extensive and consistent evidence that NPs provide care of equal or better quality at a lower cost than comparable services
provided by others.

o 1 practice in Southwest Arkansas in the primary care setting. Removing provider neutral language will leave a large section of the
population in Arkansas without a provider. There is already a shortage of primary care providers in Arkansas and the removal of




provider neutral language would increase this shortage thus decreasing access to care. This is not a professional battle, but a battle for
access to care for a large portion of Arkansans,

“Thank you for the opportunity to comment on proposed rule 108.

Sincerely,

Sam Nix rn, BSN, CFRN

Total Access Solutions riLc
1 Jan Place

Texarkana, Arkansas

71854

903-276-7635

piccsolutions@gmail.com




Chance Armour

rom: Cheryl Perry <cxp027@email.uark.edu>

Sent: Friday, July 11, 2014 2:01 PM

To: Booth Rand

Subject: RE: Proposed Rule 108: "Patient Centered Medical Home Standards”
Dear Mr. Rand,

I am pleased to see the continuation of provider neutral language (i.e. primary care provider) in the PCMH
Proposed Rule 108. This language is consistent with the provider neutral language in the Arkansas Health Care
Independence Act (ACA 20-17-2106 (d) (1)) and the Department of Health and Human Services Section 1115
Demonstration Waiver. In Arkansas, having the opportunity for APRNS to be reco gnized as a primary care
provider and team leader in patient centered medical homes would create the potential for new access points for
primary care across the state. According to the Healthy Workforce in Arkansas Study (2013), the state is facing

a shortage of 1,000 primary care physicians within the next five years which will seriously jeopardize access to

- care in all communities. This is another important reason to have provider neutral language in this rule.

5 4
g

Thank you so much for the opportunity to comment on Proposed Rule 108.

Sincerely,

Cheryl Perry, BSN, RN

Doctor of Nursing Practice Graduate Student
University of Arkansas - Fayetteville

Home Address: 1327 Kelly Road, Alma, AR 72921

Cell: 479-651-6187

email: cxp027@email.uark.edu




" Thank you for the opportunity to comment on proposed rule 108.

Sincerely,



Chance Armour

From:

johnson9299@aol.com
Sent: Wednesday, September 03, 2014 10:13 AM
To: Booth Rand
Subject: Rule 108
Attachments:

letter to commissioner.docx



Date: 9-2-2014

Jay Bradford, insurance Commissicner
Arkansas Insurance Department

1220 West Third Street

Little Rock, AR 72201-1904

RE: Proposed rule 108: “Patient Centered Medical Home (PCMH) Standards.”

I'am pleased to see the continuation of provider neutral language (i.e. primary care provider) in the PCMH
proposed Rule 108. This language is consistent with the provider neutral language in the Arkansas Health Care
Independence Act (ACA 20-17-2106 (d) (1)) and the Department of Health and Human Services Section 1115
Demonstration Waiver. In Arkansas, having the opportunity for APRNs to be recognized as a primary care
provider and team leader in patient centered medical homes would create the potential for new access points for
primary care across the state. According to the Healthy Workforce in Arkansas Study (2013), the state is facing a
shortage of 1,000 primary care physicians within the next five years which will seriously jeopardize access to care
in all communities. The growing insured population in Arkansas as a result of the Healthcare Independence Act
provides another important reason to have provider neutral language in this rule. It is my belief that the
recognition of APRNSs as primary care providers in patient centered medical homes would help to alleviate the gaps

in healthcare and thus provide healthcare services to those that otherwise may not receive it. It is also important
to note:

®  Most NPs (89%) are prepared in a primary care focus; e.g. adult, family, older adults, pediatric, or women’s
heaith (AANP, 2013). Regardless of population focus, primary care NPs are educationally prepared, nationally
certified and licensed to provide primary care across many settings including but not {imited to:
o Care at first contact
o Ongoing management of acute and chronic conditions
o Health promotion
o Care coordination

e Four decades of research on NP practice consistently support the high quality and cost-effectiveness of APN
care. There is extensive and consistent evidence that NPs provide care of equal or better quality at a lower
cost than comparable services provided by others.

Thank you for the opportunity to comment on proposed rule 108.
Sincerely,

Gayla Johnson



Chanc Armour

From: Tammy McCoy <Tammy.McCoy@uafs.edu>
Sent: Tuesday, September 02, 2014 9:22 AM

To: Booth Rand

Subject: Proposed Rule 108: PCMH Standards

2 September 2014

Jay Bradford, Insurance Commissioner
Arkansas Insurance Department

1220 West Third Street

Little Rock, AR 72201-1904

RE: Proposed rule 108: “Patient Centered Medical Home (PCMH) Standards.”

I'am pleased to see the continuation of provider neutral language {i.e. primary care provider) in the PCMH proposed Rule 108. This
language is consistent with the provider neutral language in the Arkansas Health Care Independence Act (ACA 20-17-2106 (d) (1))
and the Department of Health and Human Services Section 1115 Demonstration Waiver. In Arkansas, having the opportunity for
APRNSs to be recognized as a primary care provider and team leader in patient centered medical homes would create the potential
for new access points for primary care across the state. According to the Healthy Workforce in Arkansas Study (2013), the state is
facing a shortage of 1,000 primary care physicians within the next five years which will seriously jeopardize access to care in all
“.communities. The growing insured population in Arkansas as a result of the Healthcare Independence Act provides another

: "important reason to have provider neutral language in this rule. Itis also important to note:

®  Most NPs (89%) are prepared in a primary care focus; e.g. adult, family, older adults, pediatric, or women’s health (AANP,
2013). Regardless of population focus, primary care NPs are educationally prepared, nationally certified and licensed to provide

primary care across many settings including but not fimited to:
o Care at first contact
o Ongoing management of acute and chronic conditions
o Health promotion
o Care coordination

®  Four decades of research on NP practice consistently support the high quality and cost-effectiveness of APN care. There is
extensive and consistent evidence that NPs provide care of equal or better quality at a lower cost than comparable services

provided by others.
Thank you for the opportunity to comment on proposed rule 108.

Sincerely,

Tammg MGCDg, MSN, RN

nstructor, School of Nursing
College of Health Sciences, Office 251




University of Arkansas - Fort Smith

5210 grand Avenue

- Forth swith, Arkansas, 72913

ﬁ*ammg.McCo@@ua{s.eolu

4F9-FLR-FR4R

479-788-684 8 (fax)

“I've learned that people will forget what you said, people will forget what you did, but people will never forget how you
made them feel.”

— Maya Angelou




Chance Armour

‘rom: bridgett reid <reidbridgett@yahoo.com>
Sent: Wednesday, September 03, 2014 1:58 PM
To: Booth Rand

Subject: Proposed rule 108

September 3, 2014

Jay Bradford, Insurance Commissioner
Arkansas Insurance Department

1220 West Third Street

Little Rock, AR 72201-1904

RE: Proposed rule 108: “Patient Centered Medical Home (PCMH) Standards.”

I am pleased to see the continuation of provider neutral language (i.e. primary care provider) in the PCMH proposed Rule 108. This
language is consistent with the provider neutral language in the Arkansas Health Care independence Act (ACA 20-17-2106 (d) (1))
and the Department of Health and Human Services Section 1115 Demonstration Waiver. In Arkansas, having the opportunity for
APRNs to be recognized as a primary care provider and team leader in patient centered medical homes would create the potential
for new access points for primary care across the state. According to the Healthy Workforce in Arkansas Study (2013), the state is
facing a shortage of 1,000 primary care physicians within the next five years which will seriously jeopardize access to care in all
communities. The growing insured population in Arkansas as a result of the Healthcare Independence Act provides another
important reason to have provider neutral language in this rule. It is also important to note:

° Most NPs (89%) are prepared in a primary care focus; e.g. adult, family, older adulits, pediatric, or women's health
(AANP, 2013). Regardless of population focus, primary care NPs are educationally prepared, nationally certified
and licensed to provide primary care across many settings including but not limited to:

o Care at first contact

o Ongoing management of acute and chronic conditions
o Health promotion

o Care coordination

e Four decades of research on NP practice consistently support the high quality and cost-effectiveness of APN
care. There is extensive and consistent evidence that NPs provide care of equal or better quality at a lower cost
than comparable services provided by others.

Thank you for the opportunity to comment on proposed rule 108.

Sincerely,

Bridgett Brantiey, RN, BSN, APRN Student

Cc: Booth Rand Booth.rand@arkansas.gov




September 2, 2014

Jay Bradford, Insurance Commissioner
Arkansas Insurance Department

1220 West Third Street

Little Rock, AR 72201-1904

RE: Proposed rule 108: “Patient Centered Medical Home (PCMH) Standards.”

I am pleased to see the continuation of provider neutral language (i.e. primary care provider) in the PCMH
proposed Rule 108. This language is consistent with the provider neutral language in the Arkansas Health Care
Independence Act (ACA 20-17-2106 (d) {1)) and the Department of Health and Human Services Section 1115
Demonstration Waiver. In Arkansas, having the opportunity for APRNs to be recognized as a primary care
provider and team leader in patient centered medical homes would create the potential for new access points for
primary care across the state. According to the Healthy Workforce in Arkansas Study {2013), the state is facing a
shortage of 1,000 primary care physicians within the next five years which will seriously jeopardize access to care
in all communities. The growing insured population in Arkansas as a result of the Healthcare Independence Act
provides another important reason to have provider neutral language in this rule. It is also important to note:

e  Most NPs (89%) are prepared in a primary care focus; e.g. adult, family, older adults, pediatric, or women’s
health (AANP, 2013). Regardless of population focus, primary care NPs are educationally prepared, nationally
certified and licensed to provide primary care across many settings including but not limited to:

o Care at first contact

o Ongoing management of acute and chronic conditions
o Health promotion

o Care coordination

e Four decades of research on NP practice consistently support the high quality and cost-effectiveness of APN
care. There is extensive and consistent evidence that NPs provide care of equal or better quality at a lower
cost than comparable services provided by others.

Thank you for the opportunity to comment on proposed rule 108.

Sincerely,
Rebecea Cowie, MSN, APRN, RN, ACNS-BC, CCRN

Cc: Booth Rand Booth.rand@arkansas.gov




September 2, 2014

Jay Bradford, Insurance Commissioner
Arkansas Insurance Department

1220 West Third Street

Little Rock, AR 72201-1904

RE: Proposed rule 108: “Patient Centered Medical Home {PCMH) Standards.”

I am pleased to see the continuation of provider neutral language {i.e. primary care provider) in the PCMH
proposed Rule 108. This language is consistent with the provider neutral language in the Arkansas Health Care
Independence Act (ACA 20-17-2106 (d) (1)) and the Department of Health and Human Services Section 1115
Demonstration Waiver. In Arkansas, having the opportunity for APRNs to be recognized as a primary care
provider and team leader in patient centered medical homes would create the potential for new access points for
primary care across the state. According to the Healthy Workforce in Arkansas Study (2013), the state is facing a
shortage of 1,000 primary care physicians within the next five years which will seriously jeopardize access to care
in all communities. The growing insured population in Arkansas as a result of the Healthcare Independence Act
provides another important reason to have provider neutral language in this rule. It is also important to note:

e  Most NPs (89%) are prepared in a primary care focus; e.g. adult, family, older adults, pediatric, or women'’s
health (AANP, 2013). Regardless of population focus, primary care NPs are educationally prepared, nationally
certified and licensed to provide primary care across many settings including but not limited to:

o Care at first contact

o Ongoing management of acute and chronic conditions
o Health promotion

o Care coordination

e Four decades of research on NP practice consistently support the high quality and cost-effectiveness of APN
care. There is extensive and consistent evidence that NPs provide care of equal or better quality at a lower
cost than comparable services provided by others.

Thank you for the opportunity to comment on proposed rule 108.
Sincerely,

Rebecca Cowle, MSN, APRN, RN, ACNS-BC, CCRN

Cc: Booth Rand Booth.rand@arkansas.gov




Chance Armour
”NW

. from: Elizabeth Jarvis <mimijarvis@yahoo.com>
Sent: Tuesday, September 02, 2014 4:35 AM
To: Booth Rand
Subject: Proposed Rule 108

Date September 2", 2014

Jay Bradford, Insurance Commissioner
Arkansas Insurance Department

1220 West Third Street

Little Rock, AR 72201-1904

RE: Proposed rule 108: “Patient Centered Medical Home (PCMH) Standards.”

I am pleased to see the continuation of provider neutral language (i.e. primary care provider) in the PCMH proposed Rule 108. This
language is consistent with the provider neutral language in the Arkansas Health Care Independence Act (ACA 20-17-2106 (d) (1))
and the Department of Health and Human Services Section 1115 Demonstration Waiver. In Arkansas, having the opportunity for
APRNSs to be recognized as a primary care provider and team leader in patient centered medical homes would create the potential
for new access points for primary care across the state. According to the Healthy Workforce in Arkansas Study (2013), the state is
facing a shortage of 1,000 primary care physicians within the next five years which will seriously jeopardize access to care in all
communities. The growing insured population in Arkansas as a result of the Healthcare Independence Act provides another
important reason to have provider neutral language in this rule. It is also important to note:

¢ Most NPs (89%) are prepared in a primary care focus; e.g. adult, family, older adults, pediatric, or women's health
(AANP, 2013). Regardless of population focus, primary care NPs are educationally prepared, nationally certified
and licensed to provide primary care across many settings including but not limited to:
o Care at first contact
o Ongoing management of acute and chronic conditions
o Health promotion
o Care coordination

e Four decades of research on NP practice consistently support the high quality and cost-effectiveness of APN
care. There is extensive and consistent evidence that NPs provide care of equal or better quality at a lower cost
than comparable services provided by others.

Thank you for the opportunity to comment on proposed rule 108.

Sincerely,

Elizabeth Jarvis

Cc: Booth Rand Booth.rand@arkansas.gov




Chance Armour
WM

‘rom: Rhonda K. Finnie <rkfinnie@practice-plus.com>
Sent: Friday, September 05, 2014 2:29 PM

To: Booth Rand

Subject: Proposed Rule 108

September 5, 2014

Jay Bradford, Insurance Commissioner

Rand Booth, Associate Counsel, Arkansas Insurance Department
Arkansas Insurance Department

1220 West Third Street

Little Rock, AR 72201-1904

RE: Proposed rule 108: “Patient Centered Medical Home (PCMH) Standards.”

Dear Mr. Bradford

I am pleased to see the continuation of provider neutral language (i.e. primary care provider) in the PCMH
proposed Rule 108. This language is consistent with the provider neutral language in the Arkansas Health Care

Independence Act (ACA 20-17-2106 (d) (1)) and the Department of Health and Human Services Section 1115
Demonstration Waiver.

T'am an acute care nurse practitioner and receive referrals from Advanced Practice Registered Nurses,

- ~ Physicians and Physician Assistants. When I confirm their primary care provider, several of my patients are

cared for routinely by an APRN who may or may not be in the same location as the collaborative physician. The
historic lack of recognition for the APRN as a primary care provider and leader of that patient's medical home
has led to disruption in the continuity of care for the patient. I have had complex patients whose records were
sent to another location and when I have seen them in follow up from the hospital, I found that the APRN who
was their provider in the community had received no information regarding the hospitalization or injury.
Provider neutral language would allow the practitioner who does the work to be recognized for that work. It is
critical, particularly in transitional care.

Again, | am very pleased that the wording in the proposed rule recognizes the contribution of practitioners
who are educated, licensed and boarded to provide primary care services in our state. | believe that this is a

critical step in removing barriers to practice for non-physician providers and improving access to quality health
care for patients and families.

Sincerely,

Rhonda Finnie, DNP, APRN, AGACNP-BC, RNFA
Neurosurgery Arkansas

9601 Baptist Health Drive Suite 310

’ Little Rock, AR 72205

e Cc: Booth Rand Booth.rand@arkansas.gov




IMPORTANT DISCLAIMER NOTICE

The information, both of the message and any attachments, contained in this message is intended only for the
-use of the individual or entity to which it is addressed. This message may contain information that is privileged,
confidential and exempt from disclosure under applicable law.

If the reader of this message is not the intended recipient or an agent responsible for delivering it to an intended
recipient, or has received this message in error, you are hereby notified that we do not consent to any reading,
dissemination, distribution or copying of this message and any such actions are strictly prohibited. If you have
received this message in error, please notify the sender immediately and destroy the transmitted information.



Chance Armour

" “&W

from: S. Graham Catlett <gcatlett@catlaw.com>
Sent: Monday, September 08, 2014 2:46 PM
To: Booth Rand

Subject: RE: Proposed Rule 108

Follow Up Flag: Follow up

Flag Status: Flagged

Booth

We are convinced that it is simply an attempt to protect some people's income even if it adversely affects access to healthcare.

The Ark model for PCMH initially allowed both physicians and APRNS to be the lead provider as is the national model;
but someone was persuaded to change it.

I suspect that the State Medicaid rule you cite is violative of the federal law as well as recent FTC Rulings on anti-competitive
behavor regarding similar issues in other States.

I'understand it is controversial with the physicians. But we believe it is legal and certainly in the best interests of access to healthcare
in Arkansas.

We will be glad to meet at your convenience whenever you think best. But we do not believe any change in your Proposed Rule is
necessary.

’k";Best,
e Graham

S. Graham Catlett B!
Attorney at Law

+1.501.801.8088 ext 319 (direct) 323 Center St., Suite 1800
+1.501.421.0045 (fax) The Tower Building
geatlett@catlaw.com Little Rock, AR 72201

www.catlaw.com

----- Original Message -----

From: Booth Rand <boaoth.rand@arkansas.qov>

To: "S. Graham Catlett™ <gcatlett@catlaw.com>
Sent: 9/08/2014 2:10PM

Subject: RE: Proposed Rule 108

Be glad to visit with you but would prefer to do so after we notice these changes back out.

We?ve spent tons and tons of time deeply studying this issue and conflicts and the laws, manual and rule you cite down
there.

The specific problem is with the PCMH section (Section 171 and Section 200) in the State Medicaid PCMH manual which
clearly restricts the ?lead provider? in PCMH to ?primary care PHYSICIAN,? and not with HCIP or with Federal Medicaid

1



Rules or to the modern trend nationally by accrediting organizations to have a neutral provider-led definition. We are
talking about who can be the LEAD provider in a PCMH model, and not whether nurses can be involved in the primary
-..care team.

From: S. Graham Catlett [mailto:gcatlett@catlaw.com]
Sent: Monday, September 08, 2014 1:38 PM

To: Booth Rand
Subject: Proposed Rule 108

Booth
Our Firm represents the Arkansas Nurses Association and fully supported Rule 108 as proposed.

I understand that you may think it violates some rule of Medicaid; we do not. In fact the Arkansas statute is
~ provider neutral and the federal medicaid rules are also provider neutral.

If we can visit with you before the Rule is rewritten, we would be glad to show you why we do not believe there
is any legal issue with it.

Best,

Graham

S. Graham Catlett =]
Attorney at Law
+1.501.801.8088 ext 319 (direct) 323 Center St., Suite 1800
+1.501.421.0045 (fax) The Tower Building

geatlett@catlaw.com Little Rock, AR 72201
www.catlaw.com




Chance Armour

‘rom: Brigance, Peggy <PBrigance@uams.edu>
Sent: Tuesday, September 02, 2014 10:27 AM
To: Booth Rand

Subject: Re Proposed rule 108 and APRNs

September 2, 2014

Jay Bradford, Insurance Commissioner
Arkansas insurance Department

1220 West Third Street

Little Rock, AR 72201-1904

RE: Proposed rule 108: “Patient Centered Medical Home (PCMH) Standards.”

I am pleased to see the continuation of provider neutral language (i.e. primary care provider) in the PCMH proposed Rule 108. This
language is consistent with the provider neutral language in the Arkansas Health Care independence Act {ACA 20-17-2106 (d) (1))
and the Department of Health and Human Services Section 1115 Demonstration Waiver. In Arkansas, having the opportunity for
APRNs to be recognized as a primary care provider and team leader in patient centered medical homes would create the potential
for new access points for primary care across the state. According to the Healthy Workforce in Arkansas Study (2013), the state is
facing a shortage of 1,000 primary care physicians within the next five years which will seriously jeopardize access to care in all
communities. The growing insured population in Arkansas as a result of the Healthcare independence Act provides another
important reason to have provider neutral language in this rule. It is also important to note:

_-®  Most NPs (89%) are prepared in a primary care focus; e.g. adult, family, older adults, pediatric, or women'’s health (AANP,
2013). Regardless of population focus, primary care NPs are educationally prepared, nationally certified and licensed to provide
primary care across many settings including but not limited to:

o Care at first contact

o Ongoing management of acute and chronic conditions

o Health promotion

o Care coordination

© Four decades of research on NP practice consistently support the high quality and cost-effectiveness of APN care. There is
extensive and consistent evidence that NPs provide care of equal or better quality at a lower cost than comparable services
provided by others.

As a Family Practice NP at UAMS-West in Fort Smith, | provide primary care to many patients in our patient centered medical home. |

encourage you to support the provider neutral language in the Proposed rule 108, so that myself and other NPs can continue to be
leaders and primary care providers.

Thank you for the opportunity to comment on proposed rule 108.

Sincerely,

Peggy Brigance, APN, FNP-C
. Director of Nursing Education
~UAMS AHEC West
"~ UAMS Family Medical Center Fort Smith
UAMS CON Faculty
479-424-3163



Pbrigance@uams.edu

201

Cc: Booth Rand Booth.rand@arkansas.gov

Confidentiality Notice: This e-mail message, including any attachments, is for the sole use of the intended
recipient(s) and may contain confidential and privileged information. Any unauthorized review, use, disclosure
or distribution is prohibited. If you are not the intended recipient, please contact the sender by reply e-mail and
destroy all copies of the original message.



October 25, 2014

RECEIVE

Arkansas Insurance Department

Attention: Booth Rand | 0cT @ g 2014
1200 W. Third Street
Little Rock, AR 72201-2618 LEGAY  \CE DEPT

ARKANSAS INSURA

Dear Mr. Rand:

I'am Registered Nurse licensed to practice in Arkansas and | am writing to oppose the current Insurance
Department proposed Rule 108: “Patient Centered Medical Home (“PCMH”") Standards.”

As a healthcare provider, my foremost concern is for the wellbeing of patients. It is in everyone’s best

interests to allow for an APRN to have continued access to the largest possible pool of patients. | know
our legislators agree that we should strive to maximize the available healthcare service options and to
promote healthcare efficiencies that will deliver value to the tax payers. The only way to achieve those
goals is to allow advance practice nurses full access to patients so they can care for them to the extent
of the nurses’ scope of practice.

The changes made to the proposed rule issued on September 15, 2014 eliminates the ability of APRNs to
lead PCMHs and deliver much needed healthcare in an efficient and cost sensitive manner. The original
proposed rule, issued May 13, 2014, more closely follows the General Assembly’s intent to maximize the
available healthcare service options and to promote healthcare efficiencies that will deliver value to the
tax payers. The Insurance Department should produce a rule that is consistent with the legisiator'’s
declared intent and allow APRNSs to lead PCMHs.

Sincerely,

%@v& @QMQ/‘M’ K.

Sharon Parrett R.N.

Hot Springs, AR

Cc: Representative John Vines
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I'am an advanced practice registered nurse (“APRNs") licensed to practice in Arkansas and I am
Writing to oppose the current Insurance Department proposed Rule 108: “Patient Centered
Medical Home (“PCMH") Standards.”

As a healthcare provider, my foremost concerm is for the wellbeing of my patients. My.
continued access to the largest possible pool of patients is in everyone’s best jnterests. I know
our legislators agree that we should strive to maximize the available healthcare service options
and to promote healthcare efficiencics that will deliver value to the tax payers. The only way to
achieve those goals is to allow advance practice nurses [ull access to patients so they can care for
them to the extent of the nurses’ scope of practice.

The changes made to the proposed rule issued on September 15, 2014 eliminates the ahility of
APRNS to lead PCMHs and deliver much needed healthcare in an efficient and cost sensitive
manner. The original proposed rule, issued May 13, 2014, more closely follows the General
Assembly’s intent to maximize the avajlable Dealthcare service options and to promote
healthcare efficiencies that will deliver value to the tax payers. The Insurance Department
should produce a rule that is consistent with the legislator’s declared intent and allow APRNS to
lead PCMHs. ‘

TrL 470

Jacquolyn Eatly ARRN

Lee County Cooperative Clinic

pl/81
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Afin: Booth Rand
1200 West Third Street
Little Rock, AR 72201-1904

To Whom It May Concern;

I'am an advanced practice registered nurse {APRN) licensed to practice in Arkansas and | am wiiting to oppose the current
Insurance Department proposed Rule 108 “Patient Centered Medical Home (“PCMH" Standards.”

As a healthcare provider, my foremast concern is for the wellbeing of my patients. Their continued access to the fargest possible
pool of healthcare providers is in everyone’s best interests. | know our legislators agree that we should strive to maximize the
available healthcare service options and to promote healtheare efficiencies that will deliver value to the tax payers. The only way
to achieve those goals is to allow patients full access to all heaithcare providers who can care for them to the full extent of their
scopes of practice.

The changes made ta the proposed rule issued on September 15, 2014 eliminates the ability of APRNs to lead PCMHs and
deliver much needed healthcare in an efficient and cost sensitive manner. The ariginal proposed rule, issued May 13, 2014,
more closely follows the General Assembly’s intent to maximize the available healthcare service aptions and to promote
healthcare efficiencies that will deliver value to the tax payers, The Insurance Department should produce a nule that is
consistent with the legislator's declared intent and allow APRNS fo lead PGMHs.

Sincerely,

Leanie DeClerk, DNP, APRN, FNP-BC

U, oo 31F, APUO 7S

GC: Jane English, Senator District 34
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October 25, 2014
Axkansas Insurance Department

Attention: Booth Rand

I am an advanced practice registered nurse (“APRNs™) licensed to practice in Arkansas and ] am
writing to oppose the current Insurance Department proposed Rule 108: “Patient Centered
Medical Home (“PCMH”) Standards,”

As a healthcare provider, my foremost concern is for the wellbeing of my patients. My
continued access to the largest possible pool of patients is in everyone’s best interests. Iknow
our legislators agree that we should strive to maximize the available healthcare service options
and to promote healthcare efficiencies that will deliver value to the tax payers. The only way to
achieve those goals is (o allow advance practice nurses full access to patients so they can care for
them to the extent of the nurses’ scope of practice,

The changes made to the proposed rule issued on September 15, 2014 eliminates the ability of
APRNS to lead PCMHs and deliver much needed healthcare in an efficient and cost sensitive
manner, The original proposed rule, issued May 13, 2014, more closely follows the General
Assembly’s intent to maximize the available healthcare service options and to promote
healthcare efficiencies that will deliver value to the tax payers. The Insurance Department
should produce a rule that is consistent with the legislator’s declared intent and allow APRNSs to
lead PCMHs, Thank you for your attention to this matter.

Respectfully,

Christine Bryant, MSN, CNP, FNP-C
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Arkansas Insurance Department B

Attention: Booth Rand 0cT 28 2014
1200 W. Third Street L

i LEGA
Little Rock, AR 72201-2618 ARIANSAS INSURANCE DEPT

Dear Mr. Rand:

I am Registered Nurse licensed to practice in Arkansas and | am writing to oppose the current insurance
Department proposed Rule 108: “Patient Centered Medical Home (“PCMH”} Standards.”

As a healthcare provider, my foremost concern is for the wellbeing of patients. It is in everyone’s best

interests to allow for an APRN to have continued access to the largest possible pool of patients. | know
our legislators agree that we should strive to maximize the available healthcare service options and to
promote healthcare efficiencies that will deliver value to the tax payers. The only way to achieve those
goals is to allow advance practice nurses full access to patients so they can care for them to the extent
of the nurses’ scope of practice.

The changes made to the proposed rule issued on September 15, 2014 eliminates the ability of APRNs to
lead PCMHs and deliver much needed healthcare in an efficient and cost sensitive manner. The original
proposed rule, issued May 13, 2014, more closely follows the General Assembly’s intent to maximize the
available healthcare service options and to promote healthcare efficiencies that will deliver value to the
tax payers. The Insurance Department should produce a rule that is consistent with the legislator’s
declared intent and allow APRNs to lead PCMHs.

Sincerely,

oo Gt R0,

Sharon Parrett R.N.

Hot Springs, AR

Cc: Representative John Vines
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Attn: Booth Rand iR o e
1200 West Third Street _ 0CT 2 8 2014

Little Rock, AR 72201-1904
LEGAL
>01-371-2820 ARKANSAS iHSURANCE DEPT

FAX: 501-371-2618

I am an advanced practice registered nurse (“APRNs") licensed to practice in Arkansas and I am
writing to oppose the curtent Insurance Department proposed Rule 108: “Patient Centered
Medical Home (“PCMH”) Standards.”

As a healtheare provider, my foremost concern is for the wellbeing of my patients. My.
continued access to the largest possible poul of patients is in everyone’s best interests. I know
our legistators agree that we should strive to maximize the available healthcare service options
and to promote healtheare efficiencics that will deliver value to the tax payers. The only way 10
achieve those goals is to allow advance practice nurses [ull access to patients so they can care for
them to the extent of the nurses’ scope of practice.

The changes made to the proposed rule issued on September 15, 2014 eliminates the ability of
APRNS to lead PCMHs and deliver much needed healthcare in an efficient and cost sensitive
manner. The original proposed rule, issued May 13, 2014, more closely follows the General
Assembly’s intent to maxiraize the available healthoare service options and to promote
healthcare efficiencies that will deliver value to the tax payers. The Insurance Department
should produce a rule that is consistent with the legislator’s declared intent and allow APRNs to
lead PCMHs. ’

sn@w% ﬁ//%ﬂ/

Jacquolyn Early ARRN

Lee County Cooperative Clinic
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Qclober 25, 2014

Arkansas Insurance Department
Atin: Booth Rand

1200 West Third Street

Litlle Rock, AR 72201-1904

To Whom [t May Concern;

I'am an advanced practice registered nurse {APRN) licensed to practice in Arkansas and | am writing to oppose the current
Insurance Department proposed Rule 108: “Patient Centered Medical Home ("*PCMH") Standards.”

As a healthcare provider, my foremost cancem is for the wellbeing of my patients. Their continued access to the largest possible
pool of healthcare providers is in everyone’s best interests. | know our legisiators agree that we should strive to maximize the
available healthcare service options and to promote healthcare efficiencies that will deliver value to the tax payers. Theonly way
to achieve those goals is to allow patients full accass to all healtheare providers who can care for ther to the full extent of their
scopes of practice,

The changes made to the proposed rule issued on September 15, 2014 eliminates lhe ability of APRNs to lead PCMHs and
deliver much needed healthcare in an efficient and cost sensitive manner. The original proposed rule, issued May 13, 2014,
more clasely follows the General Assembly’s intent to maximize the available healthcare service options and to promote
healthcare efficiencies that will deliver value to the tax payers. The Insurance Department should produce a rule that s
consistent with the legislator's declared intent and allow APRNSs to lead PCMHs,

Sincerely,

Leanie DeClerk, DNP, APRN, FNP-BC

PO e 2r5F, A0 175

CC: Jane English, Senator District 34
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October 25, 2014
Arkansas Insurance Department

Attention: Booth Rand

I am an advanced practice registered nurse (“APRNs™) licensed to practice in Arkansas and I am
writing to oppose the current Insurance Department proposed Rule 108: “Patient Centered
Medical Home (“PCMH”) Standards,”

As a healtheare provider, my foremost concern is for the wellbeing of my patients. My
continued access to the largest possible pool of patients is in everyone’s best interests. Iknow
our legislators agree that we should strive to maximize the available healthcare service options
and to promote healthcare efficiencies that will deliver value to the tax payers. The only way to
achieve those goals is to allow advance practice nurses full access to patients so they can care for
them to the extent of the nurses’ scope of practice.

The changes made to the proposed rule issued on September 15, 2014 eliminates the ability of
APRNSs to lead PCMHs and deliver much needed healthcare in an efficient and cost sensitive
manner, The original proposed rule, issued May 13, 2014, more closely follows the General
Assembly’s intent to maximize the available healthcare service options and to promote
healthcare efficiencies that will deliver value to the tax payers. The Insurance Department
should produce a rule that is consistent with the legislator’s declared intent and allow APRNs to
lead PCMHs, Thark you for your attention to this matter.

Respectfully,

Christine Bryant, MSN, CNP, FNP-C
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PROCEEDINGS in the above-~styled and numbered cause on
the 5th day of August, 2014, béfore Tiffanie N.
Harrison, Arkansas Supreme Court Certified‘Court.
Reporter #757, at 10:00 a.m., in the Hearing Room of the
Arkansas Insurance Department, 1200 West Third Street,
Little Rock, Arkansas, pursuant to the agreement

hereinafter set forth.
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PROCEEDINGS
August 5, 2014

HEARING OFFICER: My name is William R. Lacy, I have
been appointed by the commissioner to reside over
proposed Rule 108 hearing. I will be receiving comments,
both written and oral. Mr. Rand is here on behalf of
the Department. Would you like begin?

MR. RAND: I will, Mr. Officer; if that’s ok.

HEARING OFFICER: Sure.

MR. RAND: We're here today to consider the
promulgation of proposed Rule 108, which deals with
patient-centered medical home standards. By way of
background, Mr.VHearing Officer) the department has
already presented under the Healthcare Independence
Program Act, Act 1438 of 2013 -- 1498. The department
is required to provided notice to the Legislative
Council 30 days prior to rule-making. And to explain
the proposed rules before we actually initiate
rule-making. We did this about two months ago at the
legislature and so, they had no objection to the
beginning of rule-making. So, we started rule-making on
PCMH on the rule. And I will just go fhrough the -- if
it’s ok with the hearing officer, just go through the
requirements they filed and rule notices; if that’s ok.

HEARING OFFICER: That will be fine.

Tiffanie N. Harrison, CCR
(501) 960-2219
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MR. RAND: Mr. Hearing Officer, you have already
been presented or handed you a copy of the notebook.
Exhibit number 1 is the Designation of Hearing Officer.
Commissioner has designated you as the hearing officer
for purposes of this rule today. That is Exhibit number
1, signed by Jay Bradford, August 1, 2014.

Exhibit 2, Mr. Hearing Officer, is a June 26, 2014,
Notice of Public Hearing. As you know, that is our
written notice that has to be distributed to the public
and it is providing notice to the public as to when the
hearing date is for consideration of the rule, to
receive comments, written comments and oral comments.
It establishes the date, time and place of the héaring.
That is exhibit number two. We do blast out or email
these notices of public hearings to interested parties
who have signed up to be informed of our public
hearings. They are also uploaded and provided notice
from our website for pending hearings.

Exhibit 2A, Mr. Hearing Officer, is a copy of the
AID mail out of the NOPH of proposed rule 108 that was
emailed to persons who had agreed to or wanted to
receive notices of our public hearings.

Exhibit 3 is a copy of the proposed rule that we
filed with the Legislative Research on June 26, 2014.

Exhibit four is a copy, as you know, under the APA

Tiffanie N. Harrison, CCR
(501) 9602219
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we are required to run an advertisement, advertising the
date of the hearing, 30 days in advance of the hearing
for three days in the Arkansas APA. Exhibit 4 is a copy
of the billing statement and reflection from the.
Arkansas Democrat Gazette that we ran an ad for three
days on June 30%", July 1°° and July 2" providing notice
of today’s hearing in consideration of the -- providing
time, date, place of the hearing for today’s discussion
of the proposed rule. The ad copy that ran is on the
corner or side of Exhibit number four.

Exhibit 5 1s the cover letter that we submitted to
the Legislative Research —-- Arkansas Legislative
Couhcil, Ms. Donna Davis. With that cover letter and
Exhibit 5 are several exhibits that we intend to provide
Legislative Council. One of which is Exhibit 6, which
is a copy of our questionnaire. Legislative Council and
I believe, statutorily, were regquired to fill out these
questionnaires. Basically -- not reading all the
questions and answers -- basically asked the purposes of
the rule. Whether -- what’s the financial impact,
Whether it’s emergency rule, whether its controversial.
I'm not going to go through all the answers, but the --
we did file one of those with our cover letter that'’s
Exhibit 6.

Exhibit 6 alsc includes an economic statement, that

Tiffanie N. Harrison, CCR
(501) 960-2219 "
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discusses the econoﬁic impact from the purposed rule and
discusses the benefits of the proposed rule and costs;
if we know them.

Exhibit 7 is -- Mr. Hearing Officer, as you know,
we have to provide notice to other governmental bodies,
one of which is thé Governor'’s office. Mr. James Miller
was given a copy of the rule, proposed rule. On June
26" we mailed that to him of 2014, discussing or
providing a copy of the rule.

Exhibit 8, we are also required to notify Attorney
General’s office, when we begin rule-making. We gave
Mr. Brandon Robinson, who 1s our liaison at the AG’'s

office for the Insurance Department) he was given a copy

of our rule June 30th.

Exhibit 9 is -- we are required to provide the copy
of the rule to the Arkansas Secretary of State, which we
did on June 26*. Exhibit 9, I think, the back part of
Exhibit 9, Lorraine -- Ms. Rowland, who is our legal
administrative assistant, provided electronic notices to
the Secretary of State.

Exhibit 10, we are also required to provide and
file copies of the proposed rule with the Arkansas State’
Library. Exhibit 10 is a copy of the cover letter that
was sent to the library.

Finally, Exhibit 11, we are also required, I

Tiffanie N. Harrison, CCR
(501) 960-2219
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believe by statute, to provide the Economic Development
Commission with notice and a copy of our proposed rule
so that they can provide comments if they want to.
Exhibit 11 is a June 26, 2014 letter to Ms. Pat Brown at
AEDC.

Exhibit 12, the Legislative Council likes me to
provide a summary of the proposed rule and try to make
it as brief as I can. And in it, I am explaining what
the rule does and what the purpose of the rule is and
how it is to function. Part of the summary, Mr. Hearing
Officer, that we gave to the Legislative Council
included a power point presentation or model that the
Surgebh General and ACHI, Arkansas Center of Health
Improvement, is provided with ADHS and developed -- it’s
provides a basic understanding of how the Arkansas
Provider Medicaid Manual and ACHI and others envision
and want PCMH, or Patient-centered Medical Home,
requirements to be applied to work and in tandem with
the Arkansas Payment Improvement Initiatives and shared
savings. And so, I wanted to give Legislative Council,
in addition to my summary, a copy of the power point,
which I think is a pretty good description of the goals
of PCMH. Dr. Joe Thompson is here to discuss those, if
you have some guestions.

Exhibit 13 is a copy of the earlier reguirement

Tiffanie N. Harrison, CCR
(501) 960-2219
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10
that we had presented the rule to the Legislative.
Council 30 days before the department began its
rule-making, which I talked about initiaily in my
remarks. And that is all. 2And so, at this time we move
to admit those items into administrative record, before
I discuss the comments and have those entered into
evidence.

HEARING OFFICER: Okay. So, the fist 13 exhibits
without objection will be admitted and made part of the
record of this hearing?

MR. RAND: Yes. Okay. Mr. Hearing Officer, we have
got many exhibits where there are public comments that I
have attached to the notebook and want to make part of
the record. I am not going to read everybody’s letter.
I will just identify the letter and understand that I
might make a general remark and it may not be entirely
thorough for your comments, but I just want to identify
those. And we have those in the record for the hearing
officer to review, as well as the Commissioner. The
Commissioner will review these. I’11l just go through
these, Mr. Hearing Officer, at this time.

HEARING OFFICER: Okay.

MR. RAND: Exhibit number one, which I will call PC
Exhibit number one for public comment is an August 4,

2014 letter from Mr. Frank Sewell, who is Regulatory

Tiffanie N. Harrison, CCR
(501) 960~-2218%
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Counsel for Arkansas Blue Cross and Blue Shield. Mr.
Sewell has got several concerns and issues with respect
to some of the wording with the rule. All of which the
department is aware of and we can discuss these issues.
But, that‘is PC, public comment number 1. And Nr.
Sewell, or someone from Blue Cross and Blue Shield, may
be here to provide oral comments about these concerns.

Public Comment number two is a letter from Dr.
Clark Fincher with the Arkansas Chapter of the ARmerican
College of Physicians, who has an objection to the broad
definition of primary care professional in the proposed
rule. Many of the physician providers, who are
providing‘comments today; in writing or -- are concerned
about the broad definition not beiné restricted to
physician~led PCMH. That is public comment number two.

Public comment number three is a comment coming
from the American Academy of Pediatrics, singed by Aimee
Ollinghouse, Executive Director of Arkansas Chapter of
American Academy of Pediatrics. I’'m not going to read
all the rule, but again, the point from this
organization is that the PCMH, the PCP, primary care
provider, primary care professional -- the definition in
the proposed rule should be restricted to physician-led-
practices and should not be broad and opened ended to

permit anyone to be a primary care professional. It

Tiffanie N. Harrison, CCR
(501) 960-2219
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12
shouid be physician restricted. She sets out the
reasons why that is necessary.

Public comment number four is a comment from Dr.
Kimberly Carney, who is supportive of the neutral
language of the primary care professional definition in
the proposed rule, where it is not restricted to
physicians.

Public comment number five, is a comment from the
Arkansas Medical Society by Scott Smith, who again --
this is a comment or concern about the broad scope of
the definition of primary care professional. I believe
Scott and David Wroten and the Arkansas Medial Society
are concerned that, although they appreciéte the role of
nurses and advanced nurse practitioners in the role of
managementvof patient care, providing care, they are
concerned that an open ended definition of primary care
professionals not desired by the legislature and it’s

not consistent with the Arkansas Provider Medicaid

‘Manual, which is restricting PCMH and it’s Medicaid

Manual to physician-led PCMH. And so, they have
objections to the definition of primary care proposed
and provided alternative language restricting, and
specific to, the physicians that_are licensed by the
board, the Arkansas Medical Board.

Public comment number 6 is a letter from the

Tiffanie N. Harrison, CCR
(501) 960-2219
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Arkansas Academy of Family Physicians. Again, this is
another criticism or objection to the rule not being
restricted to physician-led PCMH. If is a letter from
Dr. Lonnie Robinson, M.D.

Public comment number 7 is a comment, written
comment from Ms. Cheryl Perry, a nurse from
Fayetteville. She is providing -- written to the
department, pleased with the neutral definition of
primary care professional and believes it’s progressive
and modern forward thinking and it needs to be preserved
in the proposed rule.

Public comment number 8 is another -- it’s an email
or letter from a nurse from‘Mountain Home, WhO»is in
support of the provider neutral language in the primary
care professional -- in the professional primary care
provider definition that we have in the proposed rule.

I'm going to add, this is public comment number 9,
which came in late yesterday afternoon, Mr. Hearing
Officer. It is a written comment from the Arkansas
AARP. AARP is in support of the proposed rule’s neutral
primary care provider definition. It is signed by Maria
Reynolds Diaz and she advocates keeping a more neutral
definition due to the need for having nurses and others
off-set the low volume of primary ~- family physicians

that we have in Arkansas. So, those are the public
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comments that I received today, Mr. Hearing Officer. I
will move at this time to admit those into evidence.

HEARING OFFICER: Okay. The written public comments
are going to be received and made part of the record,
including that last one. That would be -- when will
these be made available to the public?

MR. RAND: I can get them out, I guess, a couple
days. Two days. Two or three days.

HEARING OFFICER: You can?

MR. RAND: Yes, sir.

HEARING OFFICER: Put on the website?

MR. RAND: Yes. I want to also add into the
administrative record, Mr. Héaring Officer, a copy of
the Arkansas Provider of Medicaid Manual on PCMH, which
I would like to make as Exhibit 14 - no 15, Exhibit 15.
So, if the Commissioner can see the PCMH Medicaid
Provider Manual. Then I want to also make a copy and
add to the administrative record the Arkansas Act 1498,
which is the HCIP, Health Care Independence Program Act.
I would like to make that Exhibit 16.

HEARING OFFICER: That’s 20-77-2101 et seqg?

MR. RAND: Correct.

HEARING OFFICER: Okay.

MR. RAND: And for everyone’s identification, it’s

my understanding that the Act, although is referencing

Tiffanie N. Harrison, CCR
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20-77-2101 et seq. It is now being recodified, so if
you are looking in your Arkansas Code Annotated for this
law, it’s going to be in the 2400 sub chapters. But,
the act itself, refers to the 2100. So, we will edit
the rule accordingly to change the cites to the more
recently codified statutory sections that we refer to in
the rule to the 2400's.

HEARING OFFICER: Exhibits 15 and 16 will be
admitted.

MR. RAND: Yes, Mr. Hearing Officer, at this time.

HEARING OFFICER: Do you have anything else?

MR. RAND: I do. Before we go into public comments,

Ajust a sort of, brief description of some of the issues

in the rule, which you may have -- sort of gleaned from
the comments that I made. Mr. Hearing Officer, the
proposed rule, as it is written, has several issues and
concerns that have been raised. One of the most primary
concerns is, as it’s written currently, the definition
that is proposed, if the Hearing Officer will look at a
copy of the proposed rule, under section 412, the
primary disputes or dispute in this rule, other than
possible concerns over the fees, and need for the fees
and those things, is that under the -- the only known
state standardsAthat had been published for patient

medical - patient-centered medical home, Mr. Hearing
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Officer, have been published by the Arkansas ADHS, under
the Medicaid Provider Manual.

If we look at the PCMH provisions in the Arkansas
Provider Medicaid Manual, there is a clear restriction
that the PCMﬁ teams have to be led by physicians. It is
spread throughout the whole Medicaid manual. There is
no discretion or permission for a nurse-led or physician

assistant-led PCMH team. Ms. Crone, I believe wants to

—-— is desired to have a more progressive and modern

definition of who can lead PCMH programs. There is
another national model by NCQA, National Committee of
Quality Assurance, who recently, I believe in their
mbdel, permit nurse or physicianvassistant led PCMH,
assuming certain conditions are complied with. Ms.
Crone desires a modern, progressive, open, definition
that’s not restricted to physicians. It conflicts with
the Arkansas Medicaid frovider Manual, which does
restrict the PCMH program to physicians.

Currently, Arkansas Medicaid is employing PCMH in
Medicaid, for traditional Medicaid beneficiaries in
pilot programs that are being participated in by
Arkansas Blue and Cross Blue Shield, QCA, Delta Dental,
I believe EVD, and in those programs, the —-- these
carriers are following the Arkansas Medicaid Provider

Manual, which is a physician restricted led PCME model.

Tiffanie N. Harrison, CCR
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I believe our position, or the department’s position, is
to encourage the open definition of a primary care
provider’s to report more with modern, progressive,
developments in permitted nurse-led or physician
assistant-led or nurse-led PCMH téams. And we would
like to emphasize the department doesﬁ’t want to get
involved in the dispute between the two groups. The
providers, the physician providers and nurses, over who
gets to lead the actual PCMH team or not.

We do recognize the Medicaid Model does not allow
for nurses. We, however, in our definition would like
to emphasize that we wanted to allow the carrier to make
this decision of désignation. It is not -- we are not
mandating that nurses be a PCMH-led entity. We are
allowing the carrier to make the decision to let a nurse
or someone else do that, or not. It is strictly up to
the carrier the way we have written the definition of
primary care provider.

The other issues are about the inexactitude or lack
of clarity in the proposed rule as to what model we’re
talking about. The Arkansas provided Medicaid
requirements are actually a rule. They are not really
called a model. So, we will propose to edit the
proposed rule as it is, to defineithe Arkansas model to

be the Provider Medicaid Manual model in PCMH. And when
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we do an edit of the rule. And we also are proposed to
define primary care provider to make it clear that the
designation of provider type, although the definition is
open, would be a designation determination by the health
carrier.

So, we’re going to make some changes to this to
reflect and provide more exactitude as to what we’re
talking about when we refer to the state model or
national model. ©National model, as I understand it, is
the NCQA, PCMH model, which I believe they most recently
developed or sent out in March of 2014. So, we’re going
to clarify these models. Some of the objections to the
rule have been that the rules languége, which permits
compared to follow a state or national model as approved
by the commissioner, is not clear enough for the
carriers to decide what particularly we’re talking
about. So, we are going to go back into this rule and
edit the rule to make it clear what models we’re talking
about. So, that’s some suggestions that we’re going to
do.

The other part of this rule relates to the practice
support fee. Carriers will have to pay for providers
who want to participate in a PCMH program. Again, this
is a voluntary program. The carriers will have to pay

five dollars per enrollment, per month. There is a fee
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amount. Dr. Joe Thompson and Craig from ACHI is here to
explain how that fee was arrived at, and why it’s
needed. And it is my understanding to help off-set
costs the providers are having to incur to try to
develop these programs, which has an overall goal of
reducing costs and improving patient care. So, Joe is
here to talk about that if you have any questions. So,
Mr. Hearing Officer, that’s all I had to say.

We do intend to make edits to these, to clarify and
fix some of the lack of exactitude as to the models.
And to make it more clear, at least in the definition of
primary care provider, that it is the designation and
determination of the‘provider type that’s going to be
done by the carrier, not by the department.

HEARING OFFICER: Okay. Thank you Mr. Rand.

MR. THOMPSON: Mr. Hearing Officer, if I can just
add one thing.

HEARING OFFICER: One second. So, are we now ready
for public comments? A

MR. RAND: Yes.

HEARING OFFICER: And I guess, Joe Thompson, is
first.

MR. RAND: Yes.

HEARING OFFICER: Go ahead. Please identify

yourself.
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MR. THOMPSON: Sure. Joe Thompson, Director of the
Center for Health Improvement and Surgeon General for

the State. I just want to clarify on the Medicaid

‘Patient-centered Medical Home Model, advanced practice

nurses can fully participate, but not autonomously
participate. They can have a panel of patients. They
can serve as the primary care clinician, but the team
itself has to have a physician lead to be able to
qualify as a participating entity.

I think the issue in the comment letters are

specifically about the autonomy of the leader of that

20

team. Whether it requires a physician leader or whether

it does not require a physician leader. I think the
other thing that is important is, for now four years in

a multi payer efforts, we have had the Arkansas Payment

Improvement Initiative moving forward. It has had

participation of QualChbice, Blue Cross, Public and --
the public school employees, the state employees. We
also have private self insurers, Walmart and others,
participating with the legislative passage of the
Healthcare Independence Act. Because of concerns about
cost containment, legislature did write in to the Act
the reguirement of carriers participating in the market

place through the private option to participate in the

payment improvement effort that effectively transitioned
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it from a carrier voluntary participation to a condition
of market place participation. And moving forward we
have, with the carriers, a méjor federal 'grant or state
innovation grant that is supporting the continued
transformation.

The rule is intended to set a floor of what the
carriers are obligated to support. The voluntarily
participating primary care providers carries can

obviously exceed that floor, should they want to. The

final comment is the per member, per month, payments are

to the providers so that they are reaching out and
assisting individuals that may or may not frequent their
clinic. >So, it is not tied to a utilization based
visit. It is actually tied to a population based
responsibility that those providers are newly taking on
and, therefore, the per member, per month, payments are
the support for that.

I mentioned the variation per member, per month, in

our model. Medicare is paying on average twenty dollars
per member, per month. That varies from eight to forty
based upon risk of the individual. Medicaid, combining

it’s pre-existing per member, per month, is paying seven
dollars and the commercial target at five dollars, was
based upon the participating level of our progress, to

date, in the patient-centered medical home development.
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HEARING OFFICER: Thank you. Are there any other
interested parties seeking to comment?

MR. SEWELL: Yes.

'HEARING OFFIER: Okay. Mr. Sewell. And I assume,
Mr. Sewell, this will supplement your written response,
and not replace it in full?

MR. SEWELL: I will be brief, Mr. Hearing Officer.

HEARING OFFICER: Okay.

MR. SEWELL: My name is Frank Sewell. I am Senior
Counsel for Regulatory Affairs at Arkansas Blue Cross
and Blue Shield. Today, I have with me to answer your
gquestions, if you have any, Alicia Berkemeyer is our
Vice President for Primary Care Physiciaﬁ or Provider
Initiatives.

I want to emphasize, first of all, and I think the
comments of Dr. Thompson and Mr. Rand, both mentioned
this, that Arkansas Blue Cross and Blue Shield is an
enthusiastic supporter of patient-centered medical home.
We have been -- we started piloting this program with
our various practices that serve our members in 2010.

We have participated in the program that Dr. Thompson
mentioned and we have developed patient-centered medical
home practices throughout the state.

Having said that, I have some concerns about the

rule, the way it is written and I appreciate Mr. Rand’s
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comments about clarifying some of the provisions in the
rulé. I think that may resolve, at least in part, some
of the comments that we gave to you. We’re concerned
about being able to maintain flexibility as a carrier in
continuing to develop patient-centered medical home.

We have some concerns about the rule, because,
first of all, we believe it’s over-broad. I think Dr.
Thompson correctly stated what the Arkansas Healthcare
Independence Act provides. It provides that carriers
who participate in the market place to provide coverage
through the private option are required to provide
patient-centered medical home. That means the rule, the
way I read it, is that any carriers who paﬁticipate in
the market place are required to provide patient-
centered medical home as part of their certification. I
don’t think, and I point these facts out in detail in my
letter -- I don’t think that -- certainly the Arkansas
Independence Act doesn’t say that, and I don’t think
that the federal law, the Affordable Care Act of 2010 or
any regulations issued thus far say that. They do
encourage carriers to participate in various quality
initiatives; patient-centered medical home being one of
them. But;it doesn’t anywhere specify that in order to
get certification through the exchange, the carrier must

participate in patient-centered medical home.
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Secondly, and I mentioned specifically our concerns
and Mr. Rand has already stated one of them. I don’t
think that the standards for compliance with this rule,
as far as what carriers have to do, are clear. There
are a lot of genefal statements about the operation of
patient-centered medical homes, the affiliation of
members to patient-centered medical home, but I think
there should be more flexibility there. For example,
part of the rule says that he used the previous year’s
claims experience to assign individuals to a PCP if
those individuals do not choose a PCP. Why limit it to
one year? I mean, are there any other methods of making
that affiliation that have not been thought'of yet?

Finally, I think since it’s our view that the
patient-centered medical home requirement, that’s
imposed by the Arkansas Independence Act, relates
directly to the Arkansas Independence -- Healthcare
Independence Program, commonly known as the private
option, which is sponsored by DHS and the Medicaid
program; that the patient-centered mediéél home model
that should be used is the Arkansas Medicaid developed
patient—centered medical home model. And that model has
a lot of the specifics in it already that this rule sort
of alludes to, but doesn’t make any specific standard.

And I think that the Insurance Department should

Tiffanie N. Harrison, CCR
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regulate insurance companies and the financial and
marketing of insurance, and we should leave the
operation of patient-centered medical home, especially
with respect to the private option, to the Department of
Human Services.

And finally, I have to plead that this regulation,
in some areas, may be premature. Patient-centered
medical home is a relatively new concept here in
Arkansas. We’ve been wanting to do —-- you know, as a
state citizen and as a former regulator, I do not think
that the Commissioner or anyone else wants to scratch
patient-centered medical home by over regulating the
concept, now. ‘And, you know, we provided a cépy of a
draft rule to the department to consider in whatever
edits it makes. And I am sure Mr. Rand will look at
that and if he has any questions he’ll call me and he’ll
adopt those provisions and recommend them to the Hearing
Officer, that he thinks are appropriate and the
Commissioner thinks appropriate. But, we’re offering
this as a enthusiastic supporter of patient-centered
medical home.

HEARING OFFICER: Thank you Mr. Sewell. 1Is there
anyone else that would like to make any oral statement
or comment? Mr. Rand, would you like to respond?

MR. RAND: I would -- if Dr. Thompson would like to
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respond to Frank’s comments about that. I’11 let Joe --
let me say, initially, the iésue about whether PCMH is
restricted in its application only to program eligible
individuals, which are your below 138, but not eligible
for Medicare, private option people, derives from some
language in one of the sub sections that says that the
programs are for program eligible individuals.

We respectfully také the interpretation that if you
are participating in health insurance market place and
you are participating in providing plans to these
program eligible individuals, you are required to
support PCMH, even if you’ve got others in the exchange
who are not HCIP) or not privaté option. So, also --
and Joe can talk about this, the program works much
better by including everybody in the health insurance
market place and the PCMH support model. He can address
that. So, we will try to clarify and make suggestion
edits so that people will understand what models we’re
referring to and so on. But, in terms of some of his
comments, I better let Dr. Thompson respond to them.

HEARING OFFICER: Dr. Thompson, you can respond if
you wish. \

MR. THOMPSON: So, I’d like to pick up the issue of
separation of insurance rules from Medicaid rules and

the integration of those efforts in the Arkansas Health
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Insurance market place. We had received a waiver and
from the Center for Medicaid and Children Services and
support from the Federal CCIIO Agency to actually do the
new and innovative privaté option strategy. This is a
new Medicaid strategy that previcusly has not been
implemented anywhere in the United States. It
effectively authorizes the Division of Human Services to
pay premium support to insurance carriers on the market
place and buy private health insurance.

That insurance offering is governed by and overseen
by the Department of Insurance, not the Department of
Human Services. It is a separation of Medicaid
authority to buy private health insurance coverage. It
still has to abide through the Department of Human
Services by Medicaid law, but it is, in its application,
locally governed by the Department of Insurance and the
Commissioner. Thus the requirement for this rule to be
applied to the carriers operating on the market place,
the Division of Medical Services, the Division of Human
Services, does not have any authority to apply a rule to
carriers on the health insurance marketplace. It has
seeded that authority to the Insurance Department.

In doing so, there are two important agreements
that are in place. One is a memorandum of agreement

between the Department of Human Services and the
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Department of Insurance. A second set of agreements are
in place between ‘each of the participating carriers and
both the Department of Insurance and the Department of
Human Services, that outline this transfer of
responsibility from human services ﬁo the Insurance
Department.

So, I think, again, just adding, hopefully, some
clarification. This is not Medicaid managing a Medicaid
managed-care contract on the carriers. This is Medicaid
using premium assistant to buy private health insurance
on a private marketplace, overseen by the Department of
Insurance. And that’s the reason that you have this
rule coming through the Department‘of Insurance
regulatory process and referring to a rule that Medicaid
has established in a simplimentation of the mulit-payer
efforts and the payment improvement effort. So, I think
that’s the clarifying piece on that construct and it may
be that those documents would be of value. I don’t
know.

HEARING OFFICER: Okay. Are there any more oral
statements? And those that have been made are received
and are to bé made part of the record. Do we need to
hold the record open for any reason?

MR. RAND: Let me make a suggestion, giving the

number of concerns or objections that we keep the record
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open for 30 days. If the department may require edits
to —-- changes to the rule to make it more ciéar as to
definition of the model to be used and to more better
clarify some of the concerns of the Arkansas Blue Cross
is making and others. And then I would think if there
is enough edits, this is sort of a judgment call, we
would re-notice the rule next month and have everybody
come back after looking at an amended rule and have
these discussions or objections again.

I think that if I make all the changes or edits
that are going to be made, that we change the nature of
the rule significantly enough that I could not leave
thisvhearing room, gb to Legislativé Council, without
someone possibly raising the fact that we significantly
changed the rule without notice. So, we’ve got some
time here, the rules effective is January 1, 2015. I
would propose to keep the record open for 30 days for
edits. And if the department wbuld republish a new
amended rule and then set it‘for another hearing and
have people come back and make comments.

HEARING OFFICER: Okay. The record will remain open
for 30 days. Let’s see today is the fifth, so that
would be August the 4™? No, it’s September 4%, we’re
in August.

MR. RAND: And with a goal there of a hearing in

Tiffanie N. Harrison, CCR
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30
late or mid to late October.

HEARING OFFICER: We’ll see what dates September the
4*" is on. That’s a Thursday, sd why don’t we hold open
until Friday, September the 5%. Okay. In the meantime,
Mr. Rand will take the comments under advisement, will
discuss with the commissioner and you will do the edits
we know that need to be made. We’ll discuss the
additional concerns and make what we can make there.

And then it is likely that we’ll need to notice it back
cut.

MR. RAND: It is, but it’s not guaranteed, so. The
Commissioner may like the way it’s worded.

HEARING OFFICER: So, if everybody likes the way
it’s worded by the 5%, then that will be it. Otherwise,
you will be getting a notice on probably the 8% or the
9t".  Okay, if there is nothing else, then this hearing
is complete.

(WHEREUPON, the proceedings were concluded in this

matter at 10:42 a.m.)

Tiffanie N. Harrison, CCR
(501) 960-2219







EXHIBIT LIST

DATE: August 5,2014
SUBJECT: Proposed Rule 108 .
“Patient-Centered Medical Home Standgljd,s” e
HEARING OFFICER: William R, Laggs """
Depiity Commissioner

Exhibit No. Description

1. Designation of Hearing Officer

2. Arkansas Insurance Department’s June 26, 2014 NOTICE OF PUBLIC
HEARING concerning Proposed Rule 108 “Patient-Centered Medical Home
Standards”

3. Proposed Rule 108“Patient-Centered Medical Home Standards”

4. Proof of Publication of Hearing on Proposed Amended Rule 108 in the Arkansas
Democrat-Gazette as required by the Arkansas Administrative Procedures Act,
Ark. Code Ann. §§ 25-15-201, et seq.

5. Copy of June 26, 2014 correspondence regarding submission of Proposed Rule
108 to the Arkansas Bureau of Legislative Research

6. Questionnaire and Financial Impact Statement for Proposed Rule 108

7. Copy of June 26, 2014 correspondence to James Miller, Regulatory Liaison,
Office of the Governor, providing Notice of Public Hearing and Proposed Rule
108

8. Copy of June 26, 2014 correspondence to Brandon Robinson, Assistant Attorney
General, Office of the Attorney General, providing Notice of Public Hearing and
Proposed Rule 108

9. Copy of June 26, 2014 correspondence to the Arkansas Secretary of State,
providing copies of the Notice of Public Hearing and Proposed Rule 108,
including June 27, 2014 email to Secretary of State

10.

Copy of June 26, 2014 correspondence to Mary Brewer, Arkansas State Library,
providing Notice of Hearing, Proposed Rule 108 and Financial Impact Statement



11.

12.

13.

14.

Copy of June 26, 2014 correspondence to Pat Brown, Arkansas Economic Development
Commission, providing Notice of Hearing and a copy of Proposed Rule 108

Summary of Proposed Rule 108

Arkansas Insurance Department’s May 13, 2014 correspondence regarding presentment
of Proposed Rule 108 to the Arkansas Bureau of Legislative Council

Comments Regarding Proposed Rule 108






!/_N\.

data for providers. The HCIP requires Health Carriers to participate in the APl as multi-payer
participants and to attribute QHP beneficiaries to primary care providers, provide practice
support for PCMH implementation, and enable provider access to clinical performance data.
APII participation required by this Rule does not preclude Health Carriers from developing
separate and distinct care delivery models and offering to providers financial or other support to
promote practice transformation and care coordination and incentives on quality and cost of care
through shared savings, so long as the standards for such delivery models and support reasonably
follow the standards outlined in the APIL This Rule requires Health Carriers to participate in
PCMH standards as one active or available option for primary care providers in Qualified Health
Plan networks on or after January 1, 2015. Additionally, these standards set a floor for
participation and do not preclude Health Carriers from developing and implementing standards
that exceed the requirements set forth in this Rule.

Section 4. Definitions

The following definitions shall apply in this Rule, unless otherwise defined by HCIP:

(1) “ADHS” means the Arkansas Department of Human Services;

(2) “AID” means the Arkansas Insurance Department;

(3) “APII” means the Arkansas Payment Improvement Initiatives, as referenced in Ark.
Code Ann. § 20-77-2106(d), which is a multi-payer program that connects medical payment to
medical providers to achieve high quality care at an appropriate cost for QHP Enrollees;

(4) “DMS” means the Arkansas Department of Medicaid Services under ADHS;

(5) "HCIP" means the Program established under Act 1498 of 2013 by the Arkansas State
Legislature known as the “Health Care Independence Act of 2013”;

(6) "Health Carrier" means a private entity certified by AID and offering plans through
the Health Insurance Marketplace;

(7) “Healthcare coverage" shall mean healthcare benefits as defined under Ark. Code
Ann. § 20-77-2104(4);

(8) “Health Insurance Marketplace" means the marketplace as defined by Ark. Code Ann.
§ 20-77-2104(5);

(9 "Qualified Health Plan" means an AID certified individual health insurance plan
offered by a Health Carrier through the Health Insurance Marketplace;

(10) “QHP Enrollee” means a person insured under a Qualified Health Plan;

(11) “Patient Centered Medical Home” (“PCMH™) means a local point of access to care
that proactively looks after patients’ health on a “24-7” basis. A PCMH bears responsibility for
coordinating care to address the complete health needs of a patient population and supports
patients to connect with other providers to form a health services team, customized for their
patients’ care needs with a focus on prevention and management of chronic disease through
monitoring patient progress and coordination of care;
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Section 6.

" should include total cost of patient care and care categories (not shown in

referenced report);

Health Carriers shall share statistics with AID or its designee(s) (output of
analyzed claims data used to create above reports) for streamlined provider use at
an aggregate multi-payer level;

On or after January 1, 2016, Health Carriers should expect to participate in
development of mechanisms to share savings with PCMH practices for achieving
a per issuer enrollee cost of care that is below its benchmark cost.

Health Carriers shall educate QHP enrollees about the Health Carrier’s PCMH
program and indicate which practices are participating in the program.

Enforcement

AID shall review a Health Carrier’s compliance with the provisions of this Rule

in its role of recommending approval or non-approval for certification of qualified health plans
sold in the Health Insurance Marketplace.

Section 7.

Effective Date

The effective date of this Rule shall be January 1, 2015.

JAY BRADFORD
INSURANCE COMMISSIONER

DATE
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PCMH standards as one active or available option for primary care providers in Qualified Health
Plan networks on or after January 1, 2015. Additionally, these standards set a floor for
participation and do not preclude Health Carriers from developing and implementing standards
that exceed the requirements set forth in this Rule.

Section 4. Definitions

The following definitions shall apply in this Rule, unless otherwise defined by HCIP:

(1) “ADHS” means the Arkansas Department of Human Services;

(2) “AID” means the Arkansas Insurance Department;

(3) “APII” means the Arkansas Payment Improvement Initiatives, as referenced in Ark.
Code Ann. § 20-77-2106(d), which is a multi-payer program that connects medical payment to
medical providers to achieve high quality care at an appropriate cost for QHP Enrollees;

(4) “DMS” means the Arkansas Department of Medicaid Services under ADHS;

(5) "HCIP" means the Program established under Act 1498 of 2013 by the Arkansas State
Legislature known as the “Health Care Independence Act of 2013,

(6) "Health Carrier" means a private entity certified by AID and offering plans through
the Health Insurance Marketplace;

(7) “Healthcare coverage" shall mean healthcare benefits as defined under Ark. Code
Ann. § 20-77-2104(4);

(8) “Health Insurance Marketplace" means the marketplace as defined by Ark. Code Ann.
§ 20-77-2104(5);

(%) "Qualified Health Plan" means an AID certified individual health insurance plan
offered by a Health Carrier through the Health Insurance Marketplace;

(10) “QHP Enrollee” means a person insured under a Qualified Health Plan;

(11) “Patient Centered Medical Home” (“PCMH”) means a local point of access to care
that proactively looks after patients’ health on a “24-7” basis. A PCMH bears responsibility for
coordinating care to address the complete health needs of a patient population and supports
patients to connect with other providers to form a health services team, customized for their
patients’ care needs with a focus on prevention and management of chronic disease through
monitoring patient progress and coordination of care;
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Section 6.

should include total cost of patient care and care categories (not shown in
referenced report);

Health Carriers shall share statistics with AID or its designee(s) (output of
analyzed claims data used to create above reports) for streamlined provider use at
an aggregate multi-payer level;

On or after January 1, 2016, Health Carriers should expect to participate in
development of mechanisms to share savings with PCMH practices for achieving
a per issuer enrollee cost of care that is below its benchmark cost.

Health Carriers shall educate QHP enrollees about the Health Carrier’s PCMH
program and indicate which practices are participating in the program.

Enforcement

AID shall review a Health Carrier’s compliance with the provisions of this Rule

in its role of recommending approval or non-approval for certification of qualified health plans
sold in the Health Insurance Marketplace.

Section 7.

Effective Date

The effective date of this Rule shall be January 1, 2015.

JAY BRADFORD
INSURANCE COMMISSIONER

DATE
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Arkansas Insurance Department

Mike Beebe

Jay Bradford

Governor Commissioner
June 26, 2014
HAND DELIVE o s
HAND DELIVERY & E @ E g‘%jm
Ms. Donna Davis JUN 26 2014
Arkansas Legislative Council
Arkansas Bureau of Legislative Research BUREAU GF
State Capitol, Suite 315 LEGISLATIVE RESEARCH

Little Rock, Arkansas 72201

RE: Proposed Rule 108: “Patient-Centered Medical Home Standards”

Dear Ms. Davis:

Enclosed for your review and for filing with the Subcommittee of the Arkansas Legislative
Council, is proposed Rule 108, “Patient-Centered Medical Home Standards.”

Donna, Just for your records, this is the proposed Rule the Department had to previously
“present” to Legislative Council on the June 11, 2014 agenda before we could begin actual rule-
making due a requirement in Act 1498 of 2013. Act 1498 of 2013, a/k/a, the Health Care
Independence Act of 2013 (“HCIP”) requires AID to present proposed rules to Legislative

Council which implement provisions in that Act thirty (30) days before we begin normal rule-
making.

During the June 11, 2014 meeting of the Administrative Rules Subcommittee, the Subcommittee
took the position, pursuant to a policy adopted by the Subcommittee that day, that this proposed
Rule was “presented” when first filed by AID with Legislative Council. Our records indicate this
date to be May 13, 2014 when we filed our initial letter and proposed Rule with you. Given that
under Act 1498 of 2013 thirty (30) days has now passed from the date the proposed Rule was
deemed “presented” to Legislative Council on May 13, 2014, we are now permitted to begin the
formal or standard APA rule-making process with this proposed Rule.

The Arkansas Insurance Department (“Department”) is proposing a Rule to estabhsh
requirements related to patient-centered medical home programs for health care ins
policies in the health insurance marketplace under HCIP.

1200 West Third Street, Little Rock, AR 72201-1904 - (501) 371-2600 - (501) 371-2618 fax - www.insurance. ark 3s.gov
Information (800) 282-9134 - Consumer Services (800) 852-5494 - Seniors (800) 224-6330 - Criminal Inv. (866) 660-0888




The Department has scheduled a public hearing for August 5, 2014, at 10:00 A.M, at the
Arkansas Insurance Department, to consider adopting this proposed Rule,

I have enclosed a triplicate set of the proposed Rule, our Notice of Public Hearing, the standard
Questionnaire, Financial Impact Statement as well as a summary of the proposed Rule.

Sincerely,

Boo d
Managing Attorney/Legal Division

booth.rand@arkansas.gov
501-371-2820

cc: LoRraine Rowland, Administrative Analyst
Jessica Sutton at Bureau of Legislative Services















ECONOMIC IMPACT STATEMENT

OF PROPOSED RULES OR REGULATIONS
EO 05-04: Regulatory Flexibility

Department: Amkansas Insurance Department Division: Legal

Contact Person:Booth Rand Date: oe252014

Contact Phone: 501-371-2820 Contact Email:  booth.rand@arkansas.gov
Title or Subject:

Proposed Rule 108 “Patient-Centered Medical Home Standards®

Benefits of the Proposed Rule or Regulation

1. Explain the need for the proposed change(s). Did any complaints motivate you to
pursue regulatory action? If so, please explain the nature of such complaints.

The proposed rule is not derived from complaints but needed to provide standards
to health care insurers issuing policies in the “health insurance marketplace” which
are participating in patient-centered medical home programs under Act 1498 of
2013 known as the Health Care independence Program.”

2.  What are the top three benefits of the proposed rule or regulation?

A patient-centered medical home program (*PCMH") is essentially a team-based
approach to coordination of a patient’s care, formed, established and accountable at

the primary care practice level of the patient. The three best benefits of this program
are:

1. The program is designed to lower medical costs, improve heaith outcomes and track
medical costs and utilization to lower overall insurance costs.

2. The program is designed to also improve the patient's overall experience of medical care
and improve his or her overall health due to the team-based focus for the patient. The
program is designed to chart and track metrics to achieve a cost effective, qualitative
positive health outcome.

3. As part of the payment care improvement initiative, PCMH is designed to provide primary
care practices with enhanced payments and to thereby reinvigorate PCP’s revenue and
take-home pay, and improve practice processes and workflows.

3. What, in your estimation, would be the consequence of taking no action, thereby

maintaining the status quo?

Possible uncertainty as to the official regulatory standards heaith care issuers in the
marketplace have to abide by for its providers to participate in PCMH.

4. Describe market-based alternatives or voluntary standards that were considered in

place of the proposed regulation and state the reason(s) for not selecting those
alternatives.



10.

11.

12.

Although we are aware that health care insurers may have already interrially developed or
implemented similar medical home or medical team coordination concepts to improve
patient care and lower costs in the market, the proposed regulation is needed to set out our
state-specific requirements if issuers and their providers want the State's payment
improvement initiatives and shared savings. The Department believes the proposed Rule
provides flexibility to issuers to use or develop their own PCHM or medical home standards,
assuming the standards follow an approved model as described in this proposed Rule.

Impact of Proposed Rule or Regulation

Estimate the cost to state government of collecting information, completing
paperwork, filing, recordkeeping, auditing and inspecting associated with this new
rule or regulation.

None.

What types of small businesses will be required to comply with the proposed rule or
regulation? Please estimate the number of small businesses affected.

None. The proposed Rule is applied to health care insurers in the health insurance
marketplace and not applied to “small business owners.”

Does the proposed regulation create barriers to entry? If so, please describe those
barriers and why those barriers are necessary.
None.

Explain the additional requirements with which small business owners will have to

comply and estimate the costs associated with compliance.
None.

State whether the proposed regulation contains different requirements for different

sized entities, and explain why this is, or is not, necessary.
None.

Describe your understanding of the ability of small business owners to implement
changes required by the proposed regulation.

The propose Rule does not require “small business owners” to implement provisions in the
proposed Rule.

How does this rule or regulation compare to similar rules and regulations in other
states or the federal government?

The proposed Rule is not derived from any organization mode! rtle or law or other state
law, however, we are aware that other States have implemented or are currently in the
process of implementing similar PCMH or "medical home” programs.

Provide a summary of the input your agency has received from small business or
small business advocates about the proposed rule or regulation.

None so far as of the date of filing. We will be glad to submit this summary and
comments as soon as, or if we receive them.
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Mike Beebe

Jay Bradford
Governor

Commissioner

June 26,2014
VIA STATE MESSENGER
Mr. James Miller
Regulatory Liaison
Office of the Governor

State Capitol Building
Little Rock, AR 72201

RE:  Arkansas Insurance Department Rule 108: “Patient-Centered Medical Home Standards”

Dear Mr. Miller:

Enclosed for your review is the Arkansas Insurance Department’s proposed Rule 108, “Patient-Centered
Medical Home Standards.”

The Arkansas Insurance Department (“Department”) is proposing a Rule to establish requirements related to
patient-centered medical home programs for health care insurers issuing policies in the health insurance

marketplace under Act 1498 of 2013 of the Arkansas Eighty-Ninth General Assembly, known as the “Health
Care Independence Act 0of 2013.”

The Department has scheduled a public hearing for August 5, 2014, at 10:00 A.M., at the Arkansas Insurance
Department, to consider adopting this proposed Rule.

Please do not hesitate to contact me at 371-2820 if you have any questions.

Sincerely,

th Ran
Managing Attorney/Legal Division
booth.rand(@arkansas.gov

cc: LoRraine Rowland, Administrative Analyst

1200 West Third Street, Little Rock, AR 72201-1904 - (501) 371-2600 - {501) 371-2618 fax - www.insurance.arkansas.gov
Information (800) 282-9134 - Consumer Services (800) 852-5494 - Senijors (800) 224-6330 - Criminal Inv. {866) 660-0888
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Arkansas Insurance Department

Mike Beebe Jay Bradford
Governor Commissioner
June 26, 2014 JUN 30 2014
VIA STATE MESSENGERORNEY GENERAL
SAS

Mr. Brandon Robinson, ESQ.
Office of the Attorney General
323 Center Street, Suite 200
Little Rock, AR 72201

RE:  Arkansas Insurance Department Rule 108: “Patient-Centered Medical Home Standards”

Dear Mr. Robinson:

Enclosed for your review is the Arkansas Insurance Department’s proposed Rule 108, “Patient-Centered
Medical Home Standards.”

The Arkansas Insurance Department (“Department™) is proposing a Rule to establish requirements related to
patient-centered medical home programs for health care insurers issuing policies in the health insurance

marketplace under Act 1498-of 2013 of the Arkansas Eighty-Ninth General Assembly, known as the “Health
Care Independence Act of 2013.”

The Department has scheduled a public hearing for August 5, 2014, at 10:00 A.M., at the Arkansas Insurance
Department, to consider adopting this proposed Rule.

Please do not hesitate to contact me at 371-2820 if you have any questions.

Sincersgly,

Booth
Managing Attorney/Legal Division
booth.rand@arkansas.gov

cc: LoRraine Rowland, Administrative Analyst

1200 West Third Street, Littie Rock, AR 72201-1804 - (501) 371-2600 - (501) 371-2618 fax - www.insurance.arkansas.gov
Information (800} 282.8134 - Consumer Services (800) 852-5494 - Seniors (800) 224-6330 - Criminal Inv. (866) 660-0888





















SMOPI0M pue
sosso00.d oo110e1d panoidul]

Aed swoy-aye} pue
anuaAal S,dDd Ul asealouj

:aieo Alewiad aieioBiauley

..............................................................................................

aled
10 }S02 8y} |0JJU0D 10 9oNpPaYy

aleo Jo aousladxa
Juaijed ay) aocueyus

uolejndod
3y} jo yjesy ayj anoiduw

‘wy ojdiag

e Fi
T {

i
5
it

sjualjed
sly Jnoge s, 43 pue sjeydsoy
Wwiolj uoljeuriojul sjlf s199

Ajualino )t Buisn
10U Ing ‘YT Buisn Buuepisuon

aonoeld ul yiom o} ueidisAyd
1abunoA e Buipuy Aynoiyip seH

sJoad jsieloads
UBy) SWooU| JoMO| SOAIS09Y

(dod)
ypws Qg

.............................................................................................

waysAs xajdwoo
e Bunebineu Ajnoiyip seH

aied S|y Joj a|qejunoosoe a(q
0} paubisse sey wajsAs ay} oym
Japinoud sjbuls e aney jou sa0(

up

wie ajdii mﬁ 9ABIYOL puk aied
Arewrid ajesoBiAulal 0} wile SSWOH [e2IP3AN paisjudd) Jusned ‘AjjeuoijenN

)

' #
i



abusjjeyo siyj} }Jesw
‘ — obie| pue ‘jlews ‘ueqin
spoddns pue |einl — sadijoead
Alunwwon djay 03 uoddns Joaijap
0} Sulie [SpOj sesue)ly
ay} ‘buibusjjeys sI suised
aopoe.d Buibueyo

1eyl Buiziuboosoy o

sd4d
‘s|eydsoH

H\x soljiuey 49d wa)sAs yjjesy oy} ssosoe
1’8 sjudijed a1e9 Jo 1509 pue Ajenb

S Buibeuew u| 8jos je3ud2
e Aejd 0} way} Buiemodwa

(sqe ‘Buibew Aq JuswiuoNAUS SIY} Ul

Em:wﬂ.ﬂw sislle1oadS  paasons 03 siepinoad a4ed
salie|jlouy 4 HEUHE SSIRIS Hlad =

(uonepijosuod

‘uoljisinboe ‘enjea

Joj Aed B'3) sjqeliaaul

pue Buiobuo ale waysAs
aleoyyjeay ayj ui sebueyn =

[l

JALLYHLSAT |

CHIND o Pue aies Arewnd Aym

o

e,
A
v



9ABM JO
v1.0z Aenuep ZL0Z 19qo3op  uels

0N

(seonoead gg) 1040

soonoeid
aleos Arewnd
sesue}Jy ||y

SaABM ¢ Ul s8youne| HNIDd sesueyy

F © i W i A

{ ; £ i

N S ./za\L
-



U XapUl/SATenIu-aIe -ATeWliJ-onSUB(alauio ) SaANEIHUAOD SUIS SUOHeAOUL]. oy

y—2 S4A jopouw w,..m:_>mw paleys -
uonjewudojsuel) ‘souewsopad ‘Ayenp -
sjobie] Joowi }SNN| -
9|qeleA ¢ 8leAlld -
synpe /$+ :spiy €§+ PIedIpSy —
pajsnlpe-ysil '04—8$ S4e0IpaN —
Zl, 19qo3o0 uebaq NdINd -

pajenjeAs aq ||Im sSou0}sajiwl
uoljeullojsuel) pue 1s090 ‘Ajljenp -

sjuaiied 77y 40) 8|qisuodsal seoioeld  —

uoijediunuwwo? ‘ssadde ‘uoljeulploo?
aled :aoualiadxs Juaned Buinosdwl| -~

sjuowAed peoueyus + S44 Buineosy -

saoijoeud aies Alewnd g9 - SATIEIITUT 9I87)
: AyewunaJ 2AIsUd21duion) :ouWIOE] [e91Pa]




HINDd Ul ajedioijied o3 Aljua wm:?mm
paJieys e jo ued aqg 1snw sadiioead ‘GLoz ul Buiuels
(G10zZ ul payoune|) apimale)s "B s ‘jood jnejaq
(gL0z ul buiuels Ayjus Jad z uey) Jojeasb
‘7102 Ul Ayius Jad saojoeld z 0} dn) jood Alejun|op «
Apuspuadapul wnwiuiw sy} sljoswl adi3oeid suojepuels «

'sAem oaly)

4O 8uo ul pawloy aq Aepy pouad souewlopad ay) jo syjuow
9 }seg| Je 1oj pejnquiyie selielolduaq pledipsiy §00‘s 4o
winwiujw e yum saiijus o} spew sjuswAied sbuiaes paieys

salLieldijsusq pajnquile ggg¢ 1ses| e Ulejulei «
welbolid Juswalbeuey
asen alen Aleulidg aie))osuuo) ay) ul sedidiued =

1snw sonoeld e ‘Ajjeiiul HNDG Ul [jodus of

=

HINDd UI SUI[[OIuD
AQ WIIOJSUBI] 0] JUSIIIUITIOD [eUSIS SIOPIAOIL]

H ) L J
N . S’



smoysJom aopoeld ojul YHI sjelbauy)

sjejdsoy ‘
wouj uonieultojul abieyosip jusyedu; 186 0} IYYHS uior

@ | | a1eo sAlusnald vu&maﬂ
Jou aney oym sjuaped Bunoejuod o} yoeosdde Jusuwinoo(]

| mEuEE_oaam
Aep-awes o} ssaooe Buipuedxa o} yoeoidde Juawinoog

(senjioey
pue sjeuo|sssjold Hg Buipnjou;) sled pajeuipiood
0} siajlleq pooyloqybisu [edipsw ssaippe pue Ajuspi

wEmEm>8aE_ uopjewlojsuel) mozoﬂa
pue uogeuiplood aled Jusws|dwi o} ABsjelis dojanag

uoiewlojsuel} aonoeld
pue uoijeuplood a1ed Yjoq 1o} (s)pesj 90140 Auapj

JOMIWRL]

5 i
p—y




8

Buisealda

Buisesalos(]

(wyyobie
%0G> NAN) susiA Aouabiswe
JusBlawa-uou abejusalad

....................................................................................................................................................................................................

....................................................................................................................................................................................................

Buisealou]

...................................................................................................................................................................................................

Buisealou|

%06

abieyosip Jo sAep
0] uyum ueioisAyd Agq usss
Aejs jeydsoy jusiedul ajnoe
Uum sjusijed jo abejusolod

syjuowl

Z1 1sed ay} ul 82I1m] }se9|

%L9 18 d0d Aq uess sjusijed
Aold ybiy jo ebejusolad

(Uyyeay |esoineysq

Buipnjoui ‘s)sijeroads wouj

%40/ uoljeuwliolul Bunelodiooun)
p102al [edlpawl

ul uejd aled yym sjuaied
Aoud-ybiy ebejusaiad

B

puoAaq pue
syjuouwi g¢

syjuow yz syjuow zi

r
// 2

jobie]

k3 /
).Pf%.\

B INE

sjuowded 130ddns sonoeid 10y pasjoery somsy

k

Mo



a Si

%08 syjuow g}, Jsed ul }s9} HS |
ypm sbnip piosAy} uo syuaied

~..n ‘,.. m %
1A o)

g Nemind



ot

(saiy|ioel

pue sisijeloads Agqieau Jo Aousiolys 0 w0 e
‘6'9) pooytoqybiau [eolpawl 8y} ul S}s0D — I Tt I R TR

Parrm ajirva
pEs i — NI TS AP i > — NS HTRAT R
mﬂmu— WSRO T O 5 TRIBE G B

1“3..._.234 mEnuw§J~u
RC I | — VIR GLT RN VIR e b PR - RN CergEa vkl
T LT R Ay ~HEE NGRS IR G
AR B e ¥

uoissiwpeal "6°8) slojedipul uoieziyn —

W emmo] MUZGUSD e EEE onmer
YIORE QTS MM FT % .«_.‘rct "
(yiesy o o B | o S| bbb
¢ 1 N m. > Q MTp ML NIT HE MO ; . HIW MIL REMI WD
IR . %d,
|ejusw ‘4HO ‘AdOD "bs) seseasip Aol R

WANAULE [ REANRGSEL B BATNRaS) FEAIALEDE B R

PRI ity R

b4 ke 2 M A &M N URIeR ..~

Aq pue (6nip ‘qusiedul ‘Buibew H:9)

puads jo A10Bajed Aq }s02 Jo umopyealg — e e
aled Jo }s0o Aleloyauaq |ejo] — —
6o ‘ejep uonezijn /30 = MR L ke 5 o

WRLE D

TR SRR

sjuswAed saAiuaoUl e |
sBuines paleys 0} pai} souaw Ajjeny — AR e T

sjuswAed poddns
aoljoeld 0] pal} solUeW pue SallIAY —

“Bo ‘aoueuriopad weibold =«

Aewiuns esueuniopad

‘apnjoul Aewl uoljeuwliojul dwul
JOA0 SAJOASD [JIM JRLLIO) pUR JUSIU0D Moday

plise=1s E0L9EHETL feilite i <o S ] RETDEN

souewrrojrad ojur Aouoredsuer]

AN e .//s.\i\u

nan

£ ;
S



Aepoy} op Asy}

Aepoy op Aau} Aepo} op Ay} se sJapinosd
Se S82IAISS ||e 10} se swiejo Jwgns 109|8S pue aied
asinquiial siaked SIBPIAOIJ 3OS sjualled

e ”.A..,.\ﬁ\.

***QUUES 9} SUTEWIT JUIUIISINUIISI
9DTATIS-J0J-99] SUNSIXD ‘LIINDJ UITA

S

W) "

§ ,
i i’



‘Juswasinquiial
ul sbueyo ou sass
Japinoid ay} uay) uswAied soylie

loj a|qibife Jou s HINDC 8yl i

ploysaly} 102 winipaw
apIMm-walshs e Bupeag =

1809
ylewysuag umo sy bunesqg =
:(om} 8y} Jo Ja1ealb anleoal)
sAem om] Jo suo ui JuswAied
sBuiAes pateys usea ued HINOd

s)|nsay

pJeMIO)

pajoslfold s1s00 aonoeld J1oj Buipuels

|eoLlo}sIy Uo paseq

‘S1S02 Ylewyousqg =
s[oA9] 3s02 by,

pue wnipaw, }8s-ald =

0} pasedwod
ale s)}s09 abelaay

Aue sbuines paleys
yoes lJo} Jequawi 13d
3509 Ajieah abesone

a]e|nojes siahed

sjuswiAed poddns

poob u| uleway =
Isnw slapinold puy
soujow
Aurenb oy syebie}
JO ¥4 198W ISNIA| =
soloW
Ayjenb uo wiiopad
Ishwl siaplnosd

(SHINOJ pajeljiyie Ajejunjoa jo dnolb 10 HiNod) Ajua sbuiaes paleys e 104

SGUIAES POJBYS 9AID3J OS[e ued sqHd g °*°

e

sjuowiAed

)
../t.rs.; 4



EHIAYY ew
9691-22€-998-| ‘RUSYY
UONBLLIOJ DBIUDY

wusdy
L1E8-L0E-LDS-). JO

JRURIEAA ABINIA0 HID

‘oapia %2Inh sjyl yalem aseald “uoHEWIoNY 20U 104

‘Ajeay £eis 0} paau Aay uoneanpe ay yiva sjuaned jemodwus
"S3ULDIEA £€ LINS ‘sadimes uopuaraid ajowoid Ajeaiog fjim HINDd 1Byl eBuByd UED HD "SUOHIPUOD

auoy2 BuiBeuew o} UspuanE SSB] YINLU YL SBSSBUYY EINJE U SNJ0J UaYO sJojrop ased Aewyd o} sysi ‘Aepo)

9180 401509 913 |04UAD 10 BINPIY

 aue jo souaysedxa juayed ayy soueyug

coam_:noa_ ,2: *o,;,::mu;_m‘ﬁ a>ni§

wiy ajdui L 8yl aaaiyoe 0 st HINOd jo jeob ayy

SAWIOH [BOIPa

X RUSH

ST Injesn
SIBURR LY
SOvd
wetujos
1043

sEUES paInys

SUETRENHDES RS

poddng aoypeld

SHUNH [BMDY

BUBSURNIY [[® L0f aanjn[ Jotyjjual] 8 Surppmgy

A juautadoidur] Juaing a4n) Yooy |




sJapinoid
10} Blep aosuewlouad [eolulo JO SS9y -

HINDd 40l 1oddng .
ueloiulo aied Adewld Jo JuswiubIsSsy

aAllellu| JuswaAoidw|
JuswAed YV ayj ul uonedionied
saulino (P)9012-L.-0Z VOV -

[EQTPITA] P3I31U3H)~-1U3Ne,
pue 10y @ua@ﬁammuﬁﬁ 31e7) YI[Ed]

R
¥
e

i H % 7
§ ¢ Nl S




asn Jahed-pjnw jenusiod 1oy (spodal
aA0QE 9)eal0 0} pash elep suwiie|o pazAjeue jo ndino) soljsiels buleys —
Jewilo} paziplepuels payinads-ald ui podal souewlopad I8pinold  —
Buipirold JO SISISUOD Jeak JS1lf SU) Ul YOIUM
_mmmooa mm_\sd&w e Fwommzw am cmE:p mcham: n_IO _omﬁomo_xm u_o Em__ c_ 5

bien

co;mtamo wmcSmw _om_mcw m ] wEmE\AmQ paseq anjea ay} jo mom_n_

Ul @AIUSDUI JusjeAinba Ajjelienioe ue 1ayo Aew sdHO ‘uonjedioied Jo Jesh
1S4l 8} Ul 8AluaoUl JuswAed paseq a1ed JO }S0D [elo] B 109|8 Jey) siopinoid 104

aouewlopad aAljoaya o) sjuswAed snuog -

S8I}IAl}OE UOIJBUIpI00D 8Bl 10} SjuswAed/sepod 44 MaN —

saueioysusq panqulje, 10l SNdiNd  —

B2 'souBW /salliAloe oddns aojjoeld s piedipal\ uo souewlopad

0] pal} ale jey) uonewlojsuel} ad1j0eld pue uofjeuiplood a1ed 10} NdinNd
mmm_m>m winwiuiw e o} Jusjeainba sjuswAied peseq m:_m> SHINDJ mvSo_n_ =

KR E R AU AR LR R AN KA B R T T L N T I T T T L T O R R P P TR BX s aNANE

(00g'6°9) w_mQEmE n_IO _omSQ_Em
X JO wnwiuiw aaey jey} Ing HINDd PIESIPSIA Ui pajjoius Jou saojoeld —
pue HINDJ S.piedipsiy ul Buijedioied ssopoeld ||y~
0} 9|qejieAe Buuayo HINDCD e =
Uo1J08J8s 4O d dlelljioe) pue HINDJ 9l slequiaw |je a1eonpy =
JUDLWIBAJOAUI S,dHD e Jo JedA 1sii) 1o} sjuswaldinbal uewimeln}g

[INDd Ut

o
/
i
<
)r i i
i\'\. '



Juiod

buipels poob e si ajni HINDC PIedipay
Jaylaym Uo sjuswiiod apiaold 0] sianss] «

102 ‘0€ |Wdy—G10Z Jo} suljpesp
uoljepuswiwiodal Uoijeodi}iluad ueld e

10z ‘1€ Aenuep—cg |0z Jo) eouepinb
ue|d anssi 0] |V Jo} 81ep pajoadxy .

sda1g 1xaN] pue sare(q 1uerroduuy

‘ E / L w
: Y ; “
; %, } y

«/f S gt p—d



e

. Pdtient-Centered Medical Home Section il

200.000

210.000
211.000
212.000
213.000
214.000

220.000
221.000
222.000
223.000

230.000
231.000
232.000
234.000
235.000
236.000
237.000

240.600
241.000
242.000
243.000
244.000
245.000

250.000

251.000

DEFINITIONS

EMROLLMENT AND CASELOAD MANAGEMENT
Enrollment Eligibility

Practice Enroliment

Enrollment Schedule

Caseload Management

PRACTICE SUPPORTY

Practice Support Scope

Practice Support Eligibility

Care Coordination Payment Amount

SHARED SAVINGS INCENTIVE PAYMENTS
Shared Savings Incentive Payments Scope
Shared Savings Incentive Payments Eligibility
Requirements for Joining and Leaving Pools
Per Beneficiary Cost of Care Calculation
Baseline and Benchmark Cost Calcuiations
Shared Savings incentive Payments Amounts

WIETRICS AND ACCOU?\T&BELR FDR Pf"*”? ME%\E; ifaACENT%VES
Activities Tracked for Practice Support

Metrics Tracked for Practice Support

Accountability for Practice Support

Quality Metrics Tracked for Shared Savings Incentive Payments
Provider Reporis

COMPREHENSIVE | PR ¥
IN THE PCMH PR%CRAV

CPC Initiative Practice Particspation

¥ CARE (CPC) INITIATIVE PRACTICE PARTICIPATION

Attributed beneficiarie:

The Medicaid beneficiaries for whom primary care physicians and
participating practices have accountability under the PCMH program. A
primary care physician’s attributed beneficiaries are determined by the

| ConnectCare primary care case management program (PCCM).

Attributed beneficiaries do not include dual eligible beneficiaries.

Attributio

The methodology by which Medicaid determines beneficiaries for whom
a participating practice may receive practice support and shared savings
incentive payments.

Benchmark cost The projected cost of care for a specific shared savings entity against

which savings are measured. Benchmark costs are expressed as an
average amount per beneficiary.

Benchmark trend The fixed percentage growth applied to PCMH practices’ historical

baseline costs of care to project benchmark cost.

Care coordination The ongoing work of engaging beneficiaries and organizing their care

needs across providers and care settings.

Care coordination Quarterly payments made to participating practices to support care

coordination services. Payment amount is calculated per attributed
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payment beneficiary, per month.

Cost thresholds Cost thresholds are the per beneficiary cost of care values (high and
medium) against which a shared savings entity’s per beneficiary cost is
measured

Default pool A pool of beneficiaries who are attributed to participating practices that

do not meet the requirements of 233.000 A or B.

Historical baseline cost
of care

A multi-year weighted average of a shared savings entity's per
beneficiary cost of care.

Medical neighborhood
barriers

Obstacles to the delivery of coordinated care that exist in areas of the
health system external to PCMH.

Minimum savings rate

A fi xed percentage set by DMS. In order to recei

a shared savings entity must achieve a per benefi era cost of car" that is
below its benchmark cost by at least the_mﬁ" mum savmg ra

Participating practice

A physician practice, which may inciude:

A. An individual primary care physrcran (Pro Jer Type;f or 03)

B. A physician group of prrmary care pmwders ';hf:vare affiliated, with a
common group identifi canon number (Provxder Type 02 or 04);

C. A Rural Health Clrn“'i-'(Prowder Type 29 as defined by the Rural
Health Clinic P’gv”vrder Manual Section 201.000; or

D. An Area Health Educatton Center (Provider Type 69), that is enrolled
in th 'PCMH progr

Patient centered medical
home (PCMH)

A team-based care dehvery model led by PCPs who comprehensively
manage patsent health needs with an emphasis on health care value.

Per beneficiary cost of
care

,;The sk=x
| Medicaid fee-for-service claims (based on the published reimbursement
:;fmethodolog“)’:dunng the performance period, net of exclusions.

and trme—adjusted average of attributed beneficiaries’ total

Per beneficiary cost ef
care floor '

f‘»‘.'af,h_e lowest per beneficiary cost of care for which practices within a
sh’a’red}s_ayihgs entity can receive shared savings incentive payments.

Per beneficiary savin

The difference between a shared savings entity’s benchmark cost and its
| per'beneficiary cost of care in a given performance period.

The period of time over which performance is aggregated and assessed

A The beneficiaries who are attributed to one or more participating

practice(s) for the purpose of forming a shared savings entity: or

B. The action of aggregating beneficiaries for the purposes of shared
savings calculations (i.e., the action of forming a shared savings

entity).

Practice support

Support provided by Medicaid in the form of care coordination payments
to a participating practice and practice transformation support provided
by a DMS contracted vendor.

Practice transformation

The adoption, implementation and maintenance of approaches, activities,
capabilities and tools that enable a participating practice to serve as a
PCMH.

Primary Care Physician
(PCP)

See Section 171.100 of this manual.
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Provider portal

The website that participating practices use for purposes of enroliment,
reporting to DMS and receiving information from DMS.

Recover

To deduct an amount from a participating practice’s future Medicaid
receivables, including without limitation, PCMH payments, or fee-for-
service reimbursements, to recoup such amount through legal process,
or both.

Remediation time

The period during which participating practices that fail to meet
deadlines, targets, or both on relevant activities and metrics tracked for
practice support may continue to receive care coordination payments
while improving performance.

Risk adjustment

An adjustment to the cost of beneficiary care to account for patlent risk.

Same-day appointment
reguest

A patient request to be seen by a clinician WIthm ,

SHARE

SHARE is the State Health Alliance for Records Exchange the’Arkansas
Health Information Exchange. For more: mformatxon goto o
hitp:/lohit.arkansas.gov. '

Shared savings
incentive payment cap

The maximum shared savings in entive payt ent that: DMS will pay to
practices in a shared savings ¢ as.a percentage of that
entity's benchmark cost for the: performance eriod.

Shared savings entity

A participating practice ‘jnipammpatmg pract es that, contingent on
performance, may rec’e ve shared : savings.

Shared savings
incentive payments

Annual payments made to rewar :

Shared savings
percentage

211.000

453 of 2013.

1-1-2014

le practice may not participate in the PCCM shared savings pilot established under Act

D. The fii’acﬁce must have at least 300 attributed beneficiaries at the time of enroliment.

DMS may modify the number of attributed beneficiaries required for enroliment based on
provider experience and will publish on www.paymentinitiative.org any such modification.

212.000

Practice Enrollment

1-1-2014

Enroliment in the PCMH program is voluntary and practices must re-enroll annually. To enroll
practices must access the provider portal and submit a complete and accurate Practice
Participation Agreement available at (www.paymentinitiative.org). Once enrolled, a participating
practice remains in the PCMH program until:




o,
-
¢

t

P
b

Pa}tient-Centered Medical Home Section il
i

A.  The practice withdraws;

B.  The practice or provider becomes ineligible, is suspended or terminated from the Medicaid
program or the PCMH program; or

C. DMS terminates the PCMH program.

A physician may be affiliated with only one participating practice. A participating practice must
update DHS of changes to the list of physicians who are part of your practice in writing within 30
days.

To withdraw from the PCMH program the participating practice must deliver a signed and
accurate PCMH withdrawal form, available at (www.paymentinitiative.org), to DMS:

213.006 Enrollment Schedule

A.  Initial enrollment periods are October 1, 2013 through December 15, 2 113 and J
2014 through May 15, 2014. .

B.  Beginning with the 2015 calendar year, enroliment i is open

appfbkimately 3 'months in
Q3 and Q4 of the preceding year. i

C. DMS will return any enroliment documents recexved other than du g an enroliment
period. : f

214.000 Caseload Management 1-1-2614

ed beneficiaries, including removal

A partlcxpatmg practtce must manage ltS caseload of attrib
ribed in Section 171.200 of this

1-1-2014

on payments are risk adjusted to account for the varying leveis of care coordmation
:needed for patients with different risk profiles.

DMS will contract with a practice transformation vendor on behalf of participating practices that
require additional support to catalyze practice transformation and retain and use such vendor.
Practices must maintain documentation of the months they have contracted with a practice
transformation vendor. Practice transformation vendors must report to DMS the level and type of
service delivered to each practice. Payments to a practice transformation vendor on behalf of a
participating practice may continue for up to 24 months.

DMS may pay, recover or offset overpayment or underpayment of care coordination payments.

DMS will also support practices through improved access to information through the reports
described in Section 245.000.
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‘s 222.000 Practice Suppori Eligibility 112014

In addition to the enroliment eligibility requirements listed in Section 211.000, in order for
practices to receive practice support, DMS measures participating practice performance against
activities tracked for practice support identified in Section 241.000 and the metrics tracked for
practice support identified in 242.000. Participating practices must meet the requirements of
these sections to receive practice support.

Each participating practice that has pooled its attributed beneficiaries with other participating
practices in a shared savings entity:

A.  Has its performance individually compared to activities tracked for practlce
metrics tracked for practice support. .

ort and

B.  Will, if qualified, receive practice support even if other practices in
do not qualify for practice support.

223.060 Care Coordination Payment Amount

S

practice must submit a complete MH enroliment application on or before December 15 2013
In order to begin receiving care coordination payments for the quarter starting July 1, 2014, a
practice must submit the PCMH hroﬂment application aon or before May 15, 2014. For all
subsequent years, in order to participate in the PCMH program, a practice must submit the
PCMH enroiiment app"Catlon before‘ithe end of the enroliment period of the preceding year.

d Savmg ‘Incentive Payments Scope 1-1-2014

.;«Shared savmgs in ,n’nve payments are payments made to a shared savings entity for delivery of
Leconom efficient and quality care that meets the requirements of Section 232.000.

232.006 ~ Shared Savings Incentive Payments Eligibility {-1-2014

To receive shared savings incentive payments, a shared savings entity must have a minimum of
5,000 attributed beneficiaries once the below exclusions have been applied. A shared savings
entity may meet this requirement as a single practice or by pooling attributed beneficiaries
across more than one practice as described in Section 233.000.

For purposes of calculating shared savings incentive payments only, the following beneficiaries
shall not be counted toward the 5,000 attributed beneficiary requirement:

N

A.  Beneficiaries that have been attributed to that entity’s practice(s) for less than the majority
of the performance period.
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B.  Beneficiaries that a practice prospectively designates for exclusion from per beneficiary
cost of care (also known as physician-selected exclusions) on or before the 90™ day of the
performance period. Once a beneficiary is designated for exclusion, a practice may not
update selection for the duration of the performance period. The total number of
physician-selected exclusions will be directly proportional to the practice’s total number of
attributed beneficiaries (e.g., up to 1 exclusion for every 1,000 attributed beneficiaries).

C.  Beneficiaries for whom DMS has identified another payer that is legally fiable for all or part
of the cost of Medicaid care and services provided to the beneficiary.

DMS may add, remove, or adjust these exclusions based on new research, empmcal evidence

or provider experience with select patient populations. DMS will publish such a n, removal
or modification on www.paymentinitiative.org.

Shared savings incentive payments are conditioned upon a shared savmg'ﬂ _ entxty -
A.  Enrolling during the enroliment period prior to the begmnmg ofkthe performance penod

B.

the aggregate performance for beneficiaries atiributed to the
majority of the performance period; and :

her participating practices as described in 234.000. In
gree to have their performance measured together by

aggregatmg pen‘ormance (both per beneficiary cost of care and quality metrics tracked for
shared savmgs mcenttve payments) across the practices; or

section. Practlces thh benef ciaries in a default pootl will have per beneficiary cost of care
perfamnance measured across the combmed poot of all attnbuted beneﬁc;anes in the

;"Requireﬁi‘enfs for Joining and Leaving Pools 1-1-2014
may pool for purposes of 233.000B before the end of the enroliment period that
precedes‘,‘he start of the performance period. To pool, practices must submit to DMS a signed
practice participation agreement with a completed and accurate pooling request form, available
at www.paymentinitiative.org, executed by all practices participating in the pool.

In the first performance period beginning January 1, 2014, a maximum of two practices may
agree to voluntarily poot their attributed beneficiaries.

Pooling is effective for a single performance period and must be renewed for each subsequent
year.

When a practice has pooled, its performance is measured in the associated shared savings
entity throughout the duration of the performance period, unless it withdraws from the PCMH
program during the performance period. When a practice that has pooled withdraws from the

Section i
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PCMH program, the other practice or practices in the shared savings entity will have
performance measured as if the withdrawn practice had never participated in the pool.

235.000 Per Beneficiary Cost of Care Calculation 1-1-2014

Each year, the per beneficiary cost of care performance is aggregated and assessed across a
shared savings entity. Per beneficiary cost of care is calculated as the risk- and time-adjusted
average of the such entity’s attributed beneficiaries’ total fee-for-service claims (based on the
published reimbursement methodology) during the annual performance period, with adjustments
and exclusions as defined below.

Cne hundred percent of the dollar value of care coordination payments is mcluded in the per

As described in Section 232.000, beneficiaries not counted toward the minimum numb fof
attrlbuted beneficiaries for shared savings incentive payments will.be’ excludedfrom the -

All costs in excess of $100,000 for any mdw;dualab ne‘f‘cxary

B.  Behavioral health costs for patients with the most comptex behavxora! health needs.

C. Select costs associated with developmental disabmtles (DD) serv:ces identified on the
basis of DD provider types. i

Select direct costs associated with Ld y-Term Sup;jffafrt and Services (LTSS).

4 Th per benegficiary cost of care for a shared savings entity is adjusted by the amount of
supplemental ‘payment incentives, both positive and negative, made under Episodes of
re for the beneficiaries attributed to practice(s) as described in Section 232.000.

chnical adjustments may be made by DHS and will be posted on
www.paymentinitiative.org.

If the shared savings entity’s per beneficiary cost of care falls below the current performance
period total cost of care floor, the shared savings entity’s per beneficiary cost of care will be set
at the total cost of care floor, for purposes of calculating shared savings incentive payments. The
2014 cost of care floor is set at $1410, and will increase by 1.5% each subsequent year.

236.000 Baseline and Benchmark Cost Calculations 1-1.2014

For the performance period that begins in January 2014, DMS will calculate a historical baseline
per beneficiary cost of care for each shared saving entity. This shared savings entity-specific
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historical baseline will be calculated as a multi-year blended average of each shared savings
entity’s per beneficiary cost of care.

DMS will calculate benchmark costs for each shared savings entity by applying a 2.6%
benchmark trend to the entity’s historical baseline per beneficiary cost of care. DMS may
reevaluate the value of this benchmark trend if the annual, system-average per beneficiary cost
of care growth rate differs significantly from a benchmark, to be specified by DMS. DMS will
publish on www.paymentinitiative.org any modification to the benchmark trend.

237.000 Shared Savings Incentive Payments Amounis 4 1-1-2014

A shared savings entity is ehglble to receive a shared savings incentive payment that is the
greater of: (A) a shared savings incentive payment for performance improvenien and (B)
shared savings incentive payment for absolute performance. )

A.  Shared savings incentive payments for performance improvement are calculated s
follows:

During each performance period, each shared savings erﬁ : S per: benef iciary savings is
calculated as: [benchmark cost for that performance period] = [per benefi crary cost of care
for that performance period]. -

If the shared savings entity’s per beneficiary cost_of carefall; “below;that entrty s
benchmark cost for that performance period by at ieast the minimum savings rate, only
then may the shared savings entity be ehglble for a shared savmgs incentive payment for
performance improvement. » ~ :

. The per beneficiary shared savings mcenttve payment for performance improvement for

which the shared savings entity:may be eligible is calculated as follows: [per beneficiary
savings for that performance ¢ rtod} [shared savmg entity’s shared savings percentage
for that performance period i i

//"M\
/

n‘iages for a given performance period, DMS will
‘rper beneficiary cost of care to the prevrous year's

e medium cost threshold, the shared savings entity may receive 50% of per
ficiary savings created in the current performance penod (i.e., the entity’s
_‘ hared: %avmgs percentage will be 50%).

Between the medium and high cost thresholds, the shared savings entity may
receive 30% of per beneficiary savings created in the current performance period
(i.e., the entity’s shared savings percentage will be 30%);

“Above the high cost threshold, the shared savings entity will not share in risk.
Instead, the shared savings entity may receive 10% of per beneficiary savings
created in the current performance period (i.e., the entity's shared savings
percentage will be 10%);

B.  Shared savings incentive payments for absolute performance are calculated as follows:

<~w If the shared savings entity's per beneficiary cost of care falls below the current
performance period medium cost threshold, the shared savings entity may be eligible for a
shared savings incentive payment for absolute performance. The per beneficiary shared
savings incentive payment for absolute performance for which the entity may be eligible is
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calculated as follows: ([medium cost threshold for that performance period] — [per
beneficiary cost of care for that performance period]) * [50%]

C.  The High and Medium Cost thresholds for 2014 are:
Medium cost threshold: $2032
High cost threshold: $2718

These thresholds reflect an annual increase of 1.5% from the base year thresholds (base year
medium cost threshold: $1972; base year high cost threshold: $2638) and will increase by 1.5%
each subsequent year.

The minimum savings rate is 2%. DMS may adjust this rate based on new esearch
evidence or experience from initial provider experience with shared savings. DMS will p
any such modification of the minimum savings rate at www.paymentinitiative.org.

If the per beneficiary shared savings incentive payment for which the shared savings ent
eligible exceeds the shared savings incentive payment cap, expressed as 10% of t  shared
savings entity's benchmark cost for that performance period, the shared savings entity will be
eligible for a per beneficiary shared savings incentive payment eq 10% of its benchmark
cost for that performance period. F

If the shared savings entity’s per beneficiary cost of céfﬁe‘-fal{#éb ve the current performance
period high cost threshold, the shared savings entity is not eligible for a shared savings incentive
payment for that performance period. E .

A shared savings entity’s total shared savings incentive payment will be calculated as the per
beneficiary shared savings incentive payment for which it is eligible multiplied by the number of
attributed beneficiaries as described in Section 232.000, adjusted based on the amount of time
beneficiaries were attributed to stich entity’s practice(s) and the risk profile of the attributed
beneficiaries. -

If participating practices have pooled i éir attributed beneficiaries together, shared savings
incentive payments will be allocated to hose practices in proportion to the number of attributed
beneficiaries that each practice contributed:to such pool.

s ihéentl\)é payments on an annual basis for the most recent completed
and:may.withhold a portion of shared savings incentive payments to allow
adjustment after a year of claims data is available.

1 ﬁa! pa rﬁent will irjglude any adjustments required in order to account for all claims for dates of
servi thin the performance period. If the final payment adjustment is negative, DMS may
the payment adjustment from the participating practice.

241.000 Activities Tracked for Practice Support 1-1-2014

Using the provider portal, participating practices must complete and document the activities as
described in the table below by the deadline indicated in the table. The reference point for the
deadlines is the first day of the first calendar year in which the participating practice is enrolied in
the PCMH program.
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Activity Deadline
A. Identify top 10% of high-priority beneficiaries using: 1) DMS 3 months and agairi 3

patient panel data that ranks beneficiaries by risk at
beginning of performance period and/or 2) the practice’s
patient-centered assessment to determine which patients on
this list are high priority. Submit this list to DMS via the
provider portal.

months after the start of
each subsequent
performance period (If
such list is not submitted
by this deadiine DMS will
identify a default list of
high-priority beneficiaries
for the practice, based on
risk scores.)

B. Assess operations of practice and opportunities to improve

6months an again at 24

and submit the assessment to DMS via the provider portal.

C. Develop and record strategies to implement care
coordination and practice transformation. Submit the r
strategies to DMS via the provider portal. ‘

D. Identify and reduce medical neighborhood barriersto.
coordinated care at the practice-level. Describe arriers an
approaches to overcome local challenges for coordmated

care. Submit these descriptions of barriers and- approache

to DMS via the provider portal.

E. Make available 24/7 access to care "Prowde telephone
access to a live voice (for example, an employee of the
pnmary care phys;c:an or an answi ing service) or to an
imme: ges an on -call

on-call professional mus
Provide informatio L.arn

16:non-emergency after-hours calls must occur

minutes. A call must be treated as an emergency
under circumstances where a prudent layperson
erage knowledge of health care would reasonably
I eheve that treatment is immediately necessary tc prevent
death or serious health impairment.

1. PCPs must make the after-hours telephone number
known by, at a minimum, providing the 24-hour emergency
telephone number to all patients; posting the 24-hour
emergency number on all public entries to each site; and
including the 24-hour emergency phone number on
answering machine greetings;

2. When employing an answering machine with recorded
instructions for after-hours callers, PCPs should regularly
check to ensure that the machine functions correctly and
that the instructions are up to date.

Practices must document completion of this activity by

6 months




.

»

*  Pdtiént-Centered Medical Home Section li
{

Activity Deadline
written report to DMS via the provider portal.

F. Track same-day appointment requests by: 6 months

Using a tool to measure and monitor same-day appointment
requests on a daily basis and

Recording fulfillment of same-day appointment requests.

Practices must document compliance by written report to
DMS via the provider portal.

G. Establish processes that result in contact with beneficiaries
who have not received preventive care. Practices must
document compliance by written report to DMS via the
provider portal.

H. Complete a short survey related to patients’ ability to recelve
timely care, appointments, and information from specia!ists
(including BH specialists)

12 months

L Invest in healthcare technology or tools that support practic
transformation. Practices must document healthcare ..
technology investments by written report to DMS viathe
provider portai.

J. Join SHARE and be able to access%,inpétiéﬁfﬁi?sc,hatgg nd
transfer information. Practices mu$t;document ‘Qompli‘a“ri”ce
by written report to DMS via the provi |

12 months

K. Incorporate e«prescribinggirﬁld'ﬁ'bi? tice workflows. Practices 18 months
must document compliance by written report to DMS via the
provider portal.

L. Use Electronic Health-Record (EHR) for care coordination. 24 months
The EHR adopted must be one that is certified by Office of
the National Coordinator for.Health Information Technology
and is used to store care plans. Practices are to document
completion of this activity via the provider portal.

add,
months, based.
publish such e

remove;.or adjust these metrics or deadlines, inciuding additions beyond 24
onnew research, empirical evidence or experience from initial metrics. DMS will
sion, addition, removal or adjustment on www.paymentinitiative.org.

etrics Tracked for Practice Support 1-1-2014

DMS assesses practices on the following metrics tracked for practice support starting on the first
day of the first calendar year in which the participating practice is enrolled in the PCMH program

and continuing through the full calendar year. To receive practice support, participating practices
must meet a majority of targets listed below.

Target for calendar year
Metric beginning Jan. 1, 2014

A. Percentage of high-priority beneficiaries (identified in At least 70%
Section 241.000) whose care plan as contained in the
medical record includes: documentation of a patient’s chief
complaint and problems, plan of care integrating
contributions from healthcare team (including behavioral




Pdtiént-Centered Medical Home Section Il
i

Target for calendar year
{ Metric beginning Jan. 1, 2014
e health professionals) and from the patient; instructions for

follow-up; assessment of progress to date. The care plan

must be updated at least twice a year.

B. Percentage of a practice’s high priority beneficiaries who At least 67%
have been seen by their attributed PCP at least twice in the
past 12 months

C. Percentage of beneficiaries who had an acute inpatient At least 33%
hospital stay who were seen by health care provider within
10 days of discharge

D. Percentage of emergency visits categorized as non-
emergent by the NYU ED algorithm

Less than 50%

DMS will publish on www.paymentinitiative.org targets for subsééjzﬁ‘ent y@éirfs cali ;"'based on

experience from targets initially set. Such targets will escalate over.ti

DMS may add, remove, or adjust these metrics based
experience from initial metrics.

.on new research, empirical evidence or

1-1-2014

243.000 Accountability for Practice Support

If a practice does not meet deadlines and targets for a)’ tivities tracked for practice support and

b) metrics tracked for practice support as described in 241.000 and 242.000, the practice must

( remediate its performance to avoid gens’ib‘ or terminati,on of practice support. Practices must

S submit an improvement pian within{ month o the date that a report provides notice that the
practice failed to perform on the:activities or ics indi

A.  With respect to activities tracked : ractice support, practices must remediate
performance, before the end first full calendar quarter after the date the practice
receives notice via the provider report that target(s) have not been met, except for activity
A in Section 241.000 where no'such remediation time will be provided.

B.  With respect to metrics tracked for practice support, practices must remediate

perfor efore the end of the second full calendar quarter after the date the practice
ives notice via the provider report that target(s) have riot been met. For purposes of
remediation; performance is measured on the most recent four calendar quarters.

_practice fails to meet the deadlines or targets for activities and metrics tracked for practice
.’support within this remediation time, DMS will terminate practice support. DMS may resume
practice support when the practice meets the deadlines or targets for activities and metrics
tracked for practice support in effect for that quarter.

DMS re f.gij;js the right to confirm practices’ performance against deadlines and targets for
activities and metrics tracked for practices support.

244.000 Quality Metrics Tracked for Shared Savings Incentive Pavments 1-1-2014

DMS assesses the following quality metrics tracked for shared savings incentive payments
according to the targets below. The quality metrics are assessed at the level of shared savings
s entity, except for the default pool. The quality metrics are assessed only if the entity or practice
i has at least 25 attributed patients in the category described for the majority of the performance
period. To receive a shared savings incentive payment, the shared savings entity or practice
must meet at least two-thirds of the quality metrics on which the entity or practice is assessed,
and also be eligible for practice support.

i
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251.000

Target for calendar year

Quality Metric beginning Jan. 1, 2014

A. Percentage of patients 0-15 months of age who receive at At least 67%
least four wellness visits

B. Percentage of patients 3 to 6 years of age who receive at Atleast 67%
least one weliness visit

C. Percentage of patients 12-20 years of age who receive at At least 40%
least one wellness visit

D. Percentage of diabetes patients who receive annual HbA1C At least 75%
testing

E. Percentage of patients prescribed appropriate asthma
medications

Percentage of CHF patients on beta blockers

G. Percentage of women > 50 years who have had breas
cancer screening in past 24 months

H. Percentage of patients on thyroid drugs with
past 24 months

1. Percentage of beneficiaries 6—12 years of age with-an . Atleast 25%
ambulatory prescription dispensed for ADHD medication ..
that was prescribed by their attributed PCP, who had orie
follow-up visit with that PCP during the 30-day Initiation
Phase. E

térgets for subsequent performance periods

DMS will publish on www.paymer nitiative.org
ta,;fgéts initially set.

calibrated based on experience fr

st these quality metrics based on new research, empirical

evidence or experience from initial'g ality*metrics.

245.000 Provider Reports 112014

ating practices provider reports containing information about their practice
ties tracked for practice support, metrics tracked for practice support,
shared savings incentive payments, and their per beneficiary cost of

CPC initiative Practice Participation 1-1-2014

Practices and physicians participating in the Comprehensive Primary Care Initiative (CPC) are
not eligible to receive PCMH program practice support.

Practices participating in the CPC initiative may receive PCMH program shared savings
incentive payments if they:

A.  Enrollin the PCMH program;

B.  Meet the requirements for shared savings incentive payments, except that a practice

participating in CPC need not maintain eligibility for practice support described in Section
222.000; and
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C.  Achieve all CPC milestones and measures on time.
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PROPOSED RULE 108
PATIENT-CENTERED MEDICAL HOME STANDARDS
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Section 1. Authority

This Rule is issued pursuant to Section One of Act 1498 of 2013 of the Arkansas Eighty-
Ninth General Assembly, also known as the “Health Care Independence Act of 2013” (hereafter,
the “Health Care Independence Program,” or “HCIP”), now codified in Ark. Code Ann. §§ 20-
77-2101 et seq. Pursuant to Ark. Code Ann. § 20-77-2105(g)(1) and Ark. Code Ann. § 20-77-
2106(¢), the Arkansas Insurance Department (“AID”) and Arkansas Department of Human
Services (“ADHS”) are authorized to issue Rules to implement provisions under HCIP. In
addition, this Rule is issued pursuant to Ark. Code Ann. § 23-61-108(b)(1) which states that the
Arkansas Insurance Commissioner (“Commissioner”) has authority to promulgate rules and
regulations necessary for the effective regulation of the business of insurance.

Section 2. Purpose

The purpose of this Rule is to provide standards for patient-centered medical home
(“PCMH”) programs for Health Carriers in the Health Insurance Marketplace which issue
Qualified Health Plans (“QHPs™) on or after January 1, 2015.

Section 3. Applicability & Scope

This Rule applies to all Health Carriers issuing QHPs in the Health Insurance
Marketplace on or after January 1, 2015. Under Ark. Code Ann. § 20-77-2106(d), Health
Carriers participating in the Health Insurance Marketplace are required to participate in in
Arkansas Payment Improvement Initiatives (“APII”) including: (1) Assignment of primary care
clinician; (2) Support for patient-centered medical home; and (3) Access of clinical performance

ECEIVED



data for providers. The HCIP requires Health Carriers to participate in the APII as multi-payer
participants and to attribute QHP beneficiaries to primary care providers, provide practice
support for PCMH implementation, and enable provider access to clinical performance data.
APII participation required by this Rule does not preclude Health Carriers from developing
separate and distinct care delivery models and offering to providers financial or other support to
promote practice transformation and care coordination and incentives on quality and cost of care
through shared savings, so long as the standards for such delivery models and support reasonably
follow the standards outlined in the APII. This Rule requires Health Carriers to participate in
PCMH standards as one active or available option for primary care providers in Qualified Health
Plan networks on or after January 1, 2015. Additionally, these standards set a floor for
participation and do not preclude Health Carriers from developing and 1mp1ement1ng standards
that exceed the requirements set forth in this Rule.

Section 4. Definitions
The following definitions shall apply in this Rule, unless otherwise defined by HCIP:

(1) “ADHS” means the Arkansas Department of Human Services;

(2) “AID” means the Arkansas Insurance Department;

(3) “APII” means the Arkansas Payment Improvement Initiatives, as referenced in Ark.
Code Ann. § 20-77-2106(d), which is a multi-payer program that connects medical payment to
medical providers to achieve high quality care at an appropriate cost for QHP Enrollees;

(4) “DMS” means the Arkansas Department of Medicaid Services under ADHS;

(5) "HCIP" means the Program established under Act 1498 of 2013 by the Arkansas State
Legislature known as the “Health Care Independence Act of 2013”;

(6) "Health Carrier" means a private entity certified by AID and offering plans through
the Health Insurance Marketplace;

(7) “Healthcare coverage" shall mean healthcare benefits as defined under Ark. Code
Ann. § 20-77-2104(4);

(8) “Health Insurance Marketplace” means the marketplace as defined by Ark. Code Ann.
§ 20-77-2104(5);

(9) "Qualified Health Plan" means an AID certified individual health insurance plan
offered by a Health Carrier through the Health Insurance Marketplace;

(10) “QHP Enrollee” means a person insured under a Qualified Health Plan;

(11) “Patient Centered Medical Home” (“PCMH”) means a local point of access to care
that proactively looks after patients’ health on a “24-7” basis. A PCMH bears responsibility for
coordinating care to address the complete health needs of a patient population and supports
patients to connect with other providers to form a health services team, customized for their
patients’ care needs with a focus on prevention and management of chronic disease through
monitoring patient progress and coordination of care;
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Section 6.

should include total cost of patient care and care categories (not shown in
referenced report);

Health Carriers shall share statistics with AID or its designee(s) (output of
analyzed claims data used to create above reports) for streamlined provider use at
an aggregate multi-payer level;

On or after January 1, 2016, Health Carriers should expect to participate in
development of mechanisms to share savings with PCMH practices for achieving
a per issuer enrollee cost of care that is below its benchmark cost.

Health Carriers shall educate QHP enrollees about the Health Carrier’s PCMH
program and indicate which practices are participating in the program.

Enforcement

AID shall review a Health Carrier’s compliance with the provisions of this Rule

in its role of recommending approval or non-approval for certification of qualified health plans
sold in the Health Insurance Marketplace.

Section 7.

s
A \’\
; ;

Effective Date

The effective date of this Rule shall be January 1, 2015.

JAY BRADFORD
INSURANCE COMMISSIONER

DATE
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¥/ ARKANSAS ACADEMY OF
FAMILY PHYSICIANS

500 Pleasant Valley Drive
Building D, Suite 102
Little Rock, Arkansas 72227

July 31, 2014

Jay Bradford, Commissioner
Arkansas Insurance Department
1200 West Third Street

Little Rock, Arkansas 72201

RE: Proposed Rule 108
Dear Commissioner Bradford,

Representing over 1100 Family Practice Physicians in the State of Arkansas, the Arkansas
Chapter, American Academy of Family Physicians offers the following commentary:

Regarding Section 3, tem (1) Assignment of Primary Care Clinician
Regarding Section 4, ltem (12) Primary Care “Provider”

The Patient Centered Medical Home (PCMH) concept was created by our colleagues in Pediatrics

for application to complex, chronically-ill patients. The AAFP has a long,proud history of developing
amore comprehensive model of the PCMH concept , appropriate for broader application in primary

care. ltis the policy of our nationat organization, the American Academy of Family Physicians, one

which we wholly endorse as a sfate chapter, that the Patient Centered Medical Home (PCMH) shouid

be a team consisting of many different and valued members of the healthcare sytem, but that it should
remain Physician Led. Please see the AAFP position paper on use of generic term, “provider” or “clinician”.

http://www.aafp.org/about/policies/all/ Provider-term-position.htmi.

We believe that the use of the generic terms “clinician” and *Provider” will open the door for non-physician
led PCMH, and in our opinion, such entities would create an environment that is sub-optimal for patient
care. Each member of the PCMH team brings their own value to the team based approach, but

the intensity and breadth of training for physicians uniquely qualifies them to lead the effort to provide
high quality, low cost, pafient centered care. Itis our opinion that patients deserve the competency and
comprehensive care that is provided by a physician-led team operating within the context of a PCMH.
More detailed information about the AAFP's palicy on physician leadership of the PCMH can be found

at the following links

{http://www.aafp.org/dam/AAFP/documents/about us/initiatives/AAFP-PCMHWhitePaper.ndf

And http://blogs.aafp.org/cfr/ieadervaices/entry/nps no_ substitute for physician).

Thank yeu for your consideration of our concems.

Sincerely,

Lonnie Robinson, M.D.
Delegate to the AAFP Congress
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Provider” and leader of the comprehensive care team. This mirrors the PCMH
standards
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August 4, 2014

The Honorable Booth Rand
Managing Attorney

Arkansas Insurance Department
1200 West Third Street

Little Rock, Arkansas 72201-1904

Re:  Proposed Rule 108 Patient-Centered Medical Home Standards

Dear Mr. Rand:

In response to the notice of public hearing issued by the Arkansas Insurance
Department on June 26, 2014 in connection with the proposed Rule 108, “Patient-
Centered Medical Home Standards,” I am writing to provide comments on behalf of
o Arkansas Blue Cross and Blue Shield.

Arkansas Blue Cross is an enthusiastic supporter of patient-centered medical
homes as a way to effectively provide comprehensive medical care. We began piloting
PCMH programs at ten locations in Arkansas in 2010. Since then we have expanded this
team approach to medical care throughout the state. We appreciate the opportunity to
comment on the proposed rule. I hope that you take our comments in the context of our
wanting to assure that patient-centered medical homes will continue and improve in our
state in the coming years.

As you know, the patient-centered medical home concept is mentioned in the
federal Affordable Care Act of 2010 as one of the quality through marketplace incentives,
along with quality reporting, effective case management, care coordination, chronic
disease management, and medication and care compliance initiatives.' Although the rule
issued by the federal agencies requires that an insurance issuer must implement and
report a quality improvement strategy or strategies consistent with the standards of
section 1311(g) of the Affordable Care Act,’ neither the Act nor the rules issued by the
federal agencies specifically require that an insurance issuer implement patient-centered
medical home,

However, the Arkansas Health Care Independence Act, which established the
Health Care Independence Program, commonly called “the Private Option,” for persons

o "Pub.L. 111-148, Title  §131 1(g)(1)(A); 42 U.S.C. §18031(g)(1)(A).
f\d ? 45 C.F.R. §156.200(b)(5).
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who qualify for Medicaid, does require carriers that sell insurance coverage througl the
Private Option to support patient-centered medical home.?

PROPOSED RULE 108 1S OVERBROAD IN ITS APPLICATION AND SCOPE.

Section 2 of the proposed rule provides that the purpose of the rule is to provide
standards for patient-centered medical home programs for Health Carriers in the Health
Insurance Marketplace which issue Quality Health Plans.

Section 3 of the proposed rule applies the rule to all Health Carriers issuing
Quality Health Plans in the Health Insurance Marketplace. This section, citing Ark. Code
Ann. §20-77-2106(d) [sic.] erroneously states that Health Carriers participating in the
Health Insurance Marketplace are required to participate in the Arkansas Payment
Improvement Initiatives including. . . support for patient-centered medical home. The
statute provision, properly cited as Ark. Code Ann. §20-77-2406(d), requires that health
insurance carriers offering health coverage for Health Care Independence Program
eligible individuals must support patient-centered medical home.

Section 6 of the proposed rule specifies that the Insurance Department will review
a Health Carrier’s compliance with the proposed rule in its role of recommending

approval or non-approval for certification of qualified health plans sold in the Health
Insurance Marketplace.

Each of these provisions goes beyond the statutory authority granted to the
Insurance Department to implement the rule. The Health Care Independence Act deals
only with health plans sold to individuals participating in the Private Option. Although
the Affordable Care Act authorizes Exchanges or Marketplaces to evaluate quality
improvement strategies, neither the Act nor the federal rules require that a carrier
implement patient-centered medical home to obtain certification by the exchange.’

PROPOSED RULE 108 DOES NOT CLEARLY SPECIFY EITHER THE ACTIONS OR THE
STANDARDS A CARRIER MUST MEET IN ORDER TO BE IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE RULE.

Section 5 of the proposed rule, “Requirements™ sets forth requirements in “an
approved patient-centered medical home model.”

Subsection 5(a) is extremely vague. What “national or State standardized patient-
centered medical home models™ will the Commissioner approve? If the Department has
determined the models, those models should be listed in the rule. If the Commissioner

* Ark. Code Ann. §20-77-2406(d)(2).
? See 45 CFR §155.200(d).
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anticipates approving any model, this requirement is irrelevant and possibly
unconstitutional.

Subsection 5(b) appears to be over restrictive in that it limits a carrier’s ability to
attribute primary care provider selection for individuals who do not make a PCP
selection, according to the plurality of professional visits for primary care evaluation and
management over the prior year. This attribution standard on its surface does not appear
unreasonable; however, other attribution methods may be just as reasonable.

Because the proposed rule is written to cover patient-centered medical home
models in connection with all health plans issued in the Health Insurance Marketplace,
the requirement in Subsection 5(d) that carriers incorporate quality metrics collected and
reported in the Arkansas patient-centered medical home model does not make sense. At

the very least, it appears to contradict Subsection 5(a), which allows carrier to follow the
standards of national models.

Subsection 5(e) requires carriers to provide performance reports and references
standardized reports available from the Arkansas Health Care Payment Improvement
Initiative. The Arkansas Health Care Payment Improvement Initiative is a collaboration
among the Department of Human Services, Arkansas Blue Cross and QualChoice. We
wonder why this organization is referenced in this Insurance Department rule. It appears

that if there is a need for state regulation, it should be carried out by the Department of
Human Services.

Subsection 5(f) requires carriers to share statistics with the Insurance Department.
What statistics? Here again, we think this requirement is too vague.

Subsection 5(g) provides that on or after January 1, 2016 carriers should expect to
participate in development of mechanisms to share savings with patient-centered medical
home practices for achieving a per enrollee cost of care that is below its benchmark.

What is meant by this provision? What benchmark cost? Is a carrier limited to one
shared saving method?

Subsection 5(h) requires carriers to educate their QHP enrollees about the
carrier’s patient-centered medical home program and indicate which practices are
participating in the program. Although Arkansas Blue Cross appreciates the need for
education about patient-centered medical home, this subsection of the rule provides no
standards. We do not believe that it is necessary to require such education through an
Insurance Department rule, unless the Department has developed specific standards.
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PROPOSED RULE 108 SETS OUT STANDARDS FOR PATIENT-CENTERED MEDICAL
HOME MODEL OPERATION. SUCH STANDARDS SHOULD FALL WITHIN THE PURVIEW OF THE
DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN SERVICES.

Proposed Rule 108 contains numerous general statements concerning the
operating standards for a Patient-Center Medical Home model. We believe that standards
connected with the operation of the Arkansas Patient-Centered Medical Home miodel,
which is required for health plans providing coverage through the Private Option, would
best be handled by the Department of Human Services. The Health Care Independence
Act provides co-regulatory responsibility to the Department of Human Services and the
Insurance Department. The Department of Human Services has already developed
standards for the Arkansas Patient-Centered Medical Home model as it applies to the
standard Medicaid program. The Department of Human Services is currently
collaborating with Arkansas Blue Cross and QualChoice in the Arkansas Health Care
Payment Improvement Initiative. The Department of Human Services has medical

personnel on staff who are familiar with the issues involved in patient-centered medical
home operation.

PROPOSED RULE 108 SETS OUT STANDARDS FOR PATIENT-CENTERED MEDICAL
HOME WHEN CURRENTLY THERE APPEARS NO NEED FOR SUCH STANDARDS.

Earlier in this letter [ mentioned that legally the proposed rule is overbroad in as
much as it would apply a requirement for patient-centered medical home on all health

plans sold in the marketplace, rather than those products sold to individuals through the
Private Option.

We at Arkansas Blue Cross are also concerned because the proposed rule imposes
standards of patient-centered operation on health plans when to date there is no indication
that health plans, in assisting primary care providers to develop patient-centered medical
home practices, are not going to develop standards that are just as good or better than

those imposed by the proposed rule, e.g. enrollee attribution, performance reports, and
shared savings methodologies.

The concept of patient-centered medical home is relatively new to Arkansas. We

are concerned that the proposed rule will hinder the development of patient-centered
medical home.

ALTERNATIVE DRAFT TO PROPOSED RULE 108
This draft differs from Proposed Rule 108 in the following ways:

I. The purpose and scope of this draft are limited to health plans sold
through the Health Care Independence Program.
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This draft sets out a clear, specific standard, certification by a carrier to the
Commissioner that the carrier is promoting and participating in the
Arkansas Patient-Centered Medical Home model in connection with its
health plans through the Health Care-Independence Program, in order to
comply with the rule.

This draft provides that the Department of Human Services will set forth
standards for the Arkansas mode| Patient-Centered Medical Home.

This draft provides that the Department of Human Services will provide
the Commissioner documentation to support a carrier’s certification of
participation in the Arkansas Patient-Centered Medical Home.

This draft provides that a carrier is not required to certify a patient-
centered medical home model for health plans not issued to individuals
receiving coverage through the Health Care Independence Program.

This draft provides for an effective date prior to January 1, 2015 in as

much as the proposed rule envisions carriers being in compliance on or
after January 1, 2015.

This draft provides the correct citation of the codification of the Arkansas

Health Care Independence Act of 2013, i.e. Ark. Code Ann. §20-77-2401
et seq.

Mr. Rand, I plan to be present at the hearing on August 5, 2014. Accompanying
me will be Alicia Berkemeyer, Arkansas Blue Cross and Blue Shield Vice President for
Primary Care Initiatives.
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cc: Alicia Berkemeyer

enclosure
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FOR FURTHER STUDY AND CONSIDERATION

PROPOSED RULE 108
ARKANSAS PATIENT-CENTERED MEDICAL HOME MODEL
FOR QUALIFIED HEALTH PLANS ISSUED THROUGH
HEALTH CARE INDEPENDENCE PROGRAM
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Section 1. Authority

This Rule is issued pursuant to Section One of Act 1498 of 2013 of the Arkansas Eighty-
Ninth General Assembly, also known as the “Health Care Independence Act of 2013,” which is
codified in Ark. Code Ann. §§ 20-77-2401 et seq., and which established the Health Care
Independence Program (“HCIP™). Pursuant to Ark. Code Ann. § 20-77-2405(g)(1) and Ark.
Code Ann. § 20-77-2406(d), the Arkansas Insurance Department (“AID™) and Arkansas
Department of Human Services (“ADHS™) are authorized to issue Rules to implement the HCIP.
In addition, this Rule is issued pursuant to Ark. Code Ann. § 23-61-108(b)(1) which states that
the Arkansas Insurance Commissioner (“Commissioner™) has authority to promulgate rules and
regulations necessary for the effective regulation of the business of insurance.

Section 2. Purpose

The purpose of this Rule is to require Carriers to participate in and promote the Arkansas
Patient-Centered Medical Home Model in order to have their health plans certified as Qualified
Health Plans sold through the Health Care Independence Program on or after January 1, 2015.

Section 3. Applicability & Scope

Under Ark. Code Ann. § 20-77-2406(d), Carriers offering coverage to individuals
through the HCIP are required to participate in Arkansas Payment Improvement Initiatives
("APII”) including: (1) Assignment of primary care clinician; (2) Support for patient-centered
medical home; and (3) Access of clinical performance data for providers.

This Rule sets forth the Commissioner’s role in assuring Carriers that issue QHPs to
individuals through the HCIP support the Arkansas Patient-Centered Medical Home model, the
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standards for which have been developed by the Department of Human Services and [are] {will
be] described in a separate rule promulgated by the Department of Human Services.

This Rule does not and is not intended to hinder Carriers in developing Patient-Centered
Medical Home models to be used in cornection with health plans, including QHPs, which are
not issued to individuals receiving coverage through the Health Care Independence Program.

Section 4. Definitions

As used in this rule:

(D) “Arkansas Patient-Centered Medical Home model” means the Patient-Centered Medical
Home model developed by the Department of Human Services in connection with
delivering health care services to Medicaid beneficiaries.

@) Arkansas Payment Improvement Initiatives, referenced in Ark. Code Ann. § 20-77-
2406(d), is a multi-payer program that connects medical payment to medical providers to
achieve high quality care at an appropriate cost for individuals receiving coverage
through the Health Care Independence Program.

) "Carrier" means a private entity certified by Arkansas Insurance Department and offering
plans through the Health Insurance Marketplace.

4 “Health Care Independence Program™ means the program established by Act 1498 of
2013 whereby individuals who are qualified for the Arkansas State Medicaid Program
may receive coverage through the Arkansas Health Insurance Marketplace.

(5 “Health Insurance Marketplace" means the agency or entity established in accordance
with the Affordable Care Act' that makes QHPs available to qualified individuals and
qualified employers domiciled in Arkansas.

6) “Patient-Centered Medical Home” means a team based health care delivery model led by
a primary care provider that provides comprehensive and continuous medical care to
patients with the goal of obtaining maximized health outcomes. The key attributes to
Patient-Centered Medical Home are 24/7 access for all individuals, evidence-informed
care, providers with responsibility for the practice’s entire population, coordinated and
integrated care across multidisciplinary provider teams, focus on prevention and
management of chronic disease, referrals to specialists, improved wellness and preventive
care.

(7N "Qualified Health Plan" means a health insurance plan offered by a Carrier which has
received Commissioner’s certification to be offered on the Health Insurance Marketplace.

Section 5. Requirements

(a) In order to have its health plans certified as Qualified Health Plans and to sell
such health plans to individuals receiving coverage through the Health Care Independence
Program, a Carrier must certify to the Commissioner that the Carrier is promoting and

! Patient Protwction and Affordable Care Act of 2010, Pub. L. No. 111-148 as amended by Health Care and Education
Reconciliation Act of 2010, Pub. L. No. 111-152; 42 USC §18001 er seq.



participating in the Arkansas Patient-Centered Medical Home model. Such certification must be
submitted annually. For QHPs to be issued on or after January 1, 2015. the certification must be
submitted no later than ,» 2014. For QHPs issued in calendar years 2016 and
beyond, the Carrier must include its certification of support for the Arkansas Patient-Centered
Medical Home in its annual QHP certification application.

®) As part of its Certification, a Carrier shall certify that it will provide care
coordination payments medical practices participating in the Arkansas Patient-Centered Medical
Home model equivalent to or greater than an average of five dollars (35.00) per individual
receiving the Carrier’s coverage through the Health Care Independence Program per month.
Carriers may use a risk adjustment method of their own choosing for determining the actual
payment, so long as the average payment per insured individual is no less than five dollars
(35.00) per month.

(c) The Department of Human Services, by separate rule, will set forth the standards
for the Arkansas model Patient-Centered Medical Home.

(d) The Department of Human Services shall provide the Commissioner
documentation to support a Carrier’s certification of participation in the Arkansas Patient-
Centered Medical Home model.

(e) The Commissioner shall not require Carrier certification of a Patient-Centered
Medical Home model to certify QHPs that are not issued to individuals receiving coverage
through the Health Care Independence Program.

Section 6. Enforcement

Commissioner shall review a Carrier's compliance with the provisions of this

Rule in his role as one of the agencies tasked with enforcement of the Health Care Independence
Act.

Section 7. Effective Date
The effective date of this Rule shall be ,2014.

JAY BRADFORD
INSURANCE COMMISSIONER

DATE
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August 2, 2014

The Honorable jay Bradford, Commissioner
Arkansas Insurance Department

1200 West Third Street

Little Rock, AR 72201

Re: Proposed Rule 108

Commissioner Bradford:

On behalf of the over 500 physician members of the Arkansas Chapter of the American College of

Physicians (the nation's largest specialty physician organization) | wish to comment on proposed Rule
108. '

The American College of Physicians is a strong proponent of PCMH's and of team-based care and has
done much to promote their use. The proposed Rule is; however, open to interpretation such thata
non-physician could be classified as a PCP.

We have great respect for limited scope practitioners, including APN's, NP's and PA's. But it is our feeling
that the best person to lead the teams is a physician PCP. The physician has the best training to function
in this role and, we believe, is the most qualified to do so. Every team needs a captain and that person
needs to be the one with the most training and experience so that patients uitimately receive the most
benefit from these new avenues with which to deliver quality care.

| have read the letter from Scott Smith at the Arkansas Medical Society and agree with it in every
particular. | have also consulted my governing council and have received strong support from them to
express this opinion regarding physician leadership in the PCMH.

We sgree with the Medical Society that PCP's should be physicians who are licensed in the specialties of
family practice, general practice, internal medicine, pediatrics and adolescent medicine or obstetrics and
gynecology.

We look forward to working with all team members to develap a better system for delivery of care and
appreciate your consideration of these comments.

Sincerely,

Clark Fincher, WD, FACP

Governor, Arkansas Chapter, American College of Physicians
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#1 Children’s Way, Slot 800
Little Rock, AR 72202-3510
Phone: 501/364-4410

Fax: 501/364-1561
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Arkansas Chapter
Executive Committee

President

Orrin Davis, MD, FAAP
3380 N. Futrall

Fayetteville, Arkansas 72703
Phone: 479-443-3471

E-maii: prrin.davis@mana.md

Vice President

Dennis Kuo, MD, FAAP

#1 Children's Way, Siot 900
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Secretary

Chad Rodgers MD, FAAP

500 South University, Ste. Ste 302
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Treasurer

Chris Schiuterman, MD, FAAP
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American Academy of Pediatrics
DEDICATED TO THE HEALTH OF ALL CHILDREN™

August 1, 2014

The Honorable jay Bradford
Insurance Commissioner
Arkansas Insurance Department
1200 West Third Street

Little Rock, AR 72201

Dear Commissioner Bradford:

The Arkansas Chapter, American Academy of Pediatrics is asking you to amend the pro-
posed Rule 108 which provides standards for Patient-Centered Medical Homes (PCMH)
because of vague language in regard to whether non-physician clinicians would be eligi-
ble to lead comprehensive healthcare teams providing care under the PCMH model. We
strongly agree with the “Joint Principles of the Patient-Centered Medical Home" (Joint
Principles) published by the Patient Centered Primary Care Collaborative and developed
by the several national medical organizations with a focus on providing primary care,
including the AAP. While the Joint Principles recognize the value of interprofessional
healthcare teams, it is clear states that the physician should be the leader of that team.
Allowing non-physicians to lead teams of healthcare providers providing comprehen-
sive care through the PCMH model has significant risks that could negatively impact the
quality of care provided to patients. The physician-led medical model ensures that pro-

fessionals with complete medical education and training are adequately involved in pa-
tient care.

While we support the intent of this proposal to establish rules for the operation of PCMH
in the state, and appropriate payment for care provided under this model, the current
definition of “Primary Care Provider” in Proposed Rule 108 section {4)(12) needs to be
clear. This ambiguity leaves it up to the carrier to decide the definition of primary care
provider for the purposes of the PCMH which could lead to non-physician clinicians in-
appropriately leading comprehensive patient care, which is beyond their education and
training. This could also create incongruity in state regulation of medical practice
whereby the scope of practice for nurse practitioners and other healthcare professionals
may greatly expand without appropriate oversight and supervision. The definition of
“Primary care provider” under the proposed rule should instead be amended to specifi-
cally define this healthcare professional as a physician.

Making this change would be inline with The joint Principles which clearly state that the
physician should lead the care provided under the PCMH model. In fact, the first two
principles are: “Personal Physician,” recognizing the need for each patientto have an
ongoing relationship with a personal physician trained to provide first contact, continu-
ous and comprehensive care, and “Physician Directed Medical Practice,” supporting the
concept of a physician led team of healthcare professionals at the practice level who col-
lectively take responsibility for the ongoing care of patients.

Additionally, section {5)(a) of Proposed Rule 108 specifies that the Health Carrier must
reasonably follow the standards or guidelines for a national or state standardized PCMH
model as approved by the Commissioner. The national standard, as established by the
Joint Principles, clearly maintains that physicians must be in the role of “Primary Care
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Provider” and leader of the comprehensive care team. This mirrors the PCMH
standards
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in Arkansas as defined in the Arkansas Medicaid Provider Manual which states that PCMHis: “A team-
based care delivery model led by Primary Care Physicians (PCPs) who comprehensively manage benefi-
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ciaries’ health needs with an emphasis on health care value.” In fact, in section 171.630
of the manual it states that “Licensed nurse practitioners or licensed physician assis-

tants employed by a Medicaid-enrolled RHC provider may not function as PCP substi-
tutes.”

We are specifically requesting that Section 4, Paragraph 12 be amended (in approximate
wording] to the following:8“Primary Care Provider” means a participating health care
provider practicing within their licensed scope of practice physician licensed by the Ar-
kansas State Medical Board and designated by the Health Carrier to supervise, coordi-
nate or provide initial care or continuing care to a covered person, who may be required
by the Health Carrier to initiate a referral for a specialty care and maintain supervision
of health care services rendered to the covered person.

Potentially allowing non-physician clinicians to serve as a “Primary Care Provider” with-
in the PCMH model would run counter to existing state policy and national PCMH prin-
ciples, and may deteriorate the quality of care provided to Arkansas patients through
this model. We urge you to protect the safety of Arkansas’ patients and the integrity of
the PCMH model by defining “Primary Care Provider” as a physician. Should you need
any additional information, please feel free to contact me at your convenience. Thank
you in advance for your attention to this matter.

Sincerely,

G L WU«{/C LWJ;_’J«L- Wy,

v

Aimee Olinghouse

Executive Director

Arkansas Chapter, American Academy of Pediatrics
1 Children’s Way, Slot 900

Little Rock, Arkansas 72202

501.831.3057

berrvaimee@shcglobal.net
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{  From: Booth Rand

" Sent: Friday, August 01, 2014 2:27 PM
To: Seth Blomeley
Subject: FW: Proposed rule 108

-----0riginal Message-----

From: Kimberly Joy L. Carney [mailto:kibcnp@yahoo.com)

Sent: Thursday, July 10, 2014 9:11 PM
To: Booth Rand

Subject: Proposed rule 108

July 10, 2014

Mr. Booth Rand

Arkansas Insurance Department

1220 West Third Street

T,

(_ittle Rock, AR 72201-1904

Booth.rand@arkansas.gov

RE: Proposed rule 108: “Patient Centered Medical Home (PCMH) Standards.”

I am pleased to see the continuation of provider neutral language (i.e. primary care provider) in the PCMH proposed
Rule 108. This language is consistent with the provider neutral language in the Arkansas Health Care Independence Act
(ACA 20-17-2106 (d) (1)) and the Department of Health and Human Services Section 1115 Demonstration Waiver. In
Arkansas, having the opportunity for APRNs to be recognized as a primary care provider and team leaderin patient
centered medical homes would create the potential for new access points for primary care across the state. According
to the Healthy Workforce in Arkansas Study (2013), the state is facing a shortage of 1,000 primary care physicians within

the next five years which will seriously jeopardize access to care in all communities. This is another important reason to
have provider neutral language in this rule.

Thank you for the opportunity to comment on proposed rule 108.

Sincerely,

Lo
S
Dr. Kimberly Carney

DNP, APRN, FNP-BC, CDE
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email: cxp027 @email.uark.edu

Thank you for the opportunity to comment on proposed rule 108.

Sincerely,
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July 30, 2014

Jay Bradford, Commissioner
Arkansas Insurance Departinent
1200 West Third Street

Little Rock, AR 72201

Re: Proposed Rule 108

Commissioner Bradford:

On behalf of the 4,500 physician-members of the Arkansas Medical Society, we would like to
comment regarding proposed Rule 108.

We are opposed to the rule’s lack of specificity regarding who can lead a Patient Centered
Medical Home (PCMH). The proposed rule’s definition of primary care provider (PCP) does not
specifically refer to physicians or primary care specialties. All other provider types, while
excellent at what they do, have limited scopes of practice. Our strong belief is that only

physicians are qualified to manage the full range of requirements and challenges posed by a
PCMH.

A “team-based” care construct is at the very cornerstone of a PCMH, and the team should be led

by a designated physician PCP because physicians have the most extensive, broadest education
with the highest level of training. The rule’s vagueness, in possibly allowing one with 2 limited

scope of practice to attain PCP designation, is not in the best interest of either the patients or the
health care team providing care to those patients,.

Limited scope practitioners, although vitally important to each of these teams, are not fully
equipped to clearly and successfully lead such a team in providing care in the broadest range of
circumstances. One significant limitation is the ability to admit and discharge patients from a
hospital. Currently, Arkansas rules allow only physicians to handle this important responsibility.

Physician-designated PCPs leading the PCMH is already a successful model and provides the
highest quality of care possible. Medicaid standards for PCMHs recognize that physicians should
be leading the team as PCP (see Medicaid Manual 171.100). Rule 108, although not changing
Medicaid’s approach, as proposed would conflict with those Medicaid standards. Carriers are
required by rule to support Medicaid PCMHs, which are led by physician PCPs.

Section 5 (a) of this proposed rule states that, “[t]he Health Carrier must reasonably follow the

standards or guidelines of a national or State standardized PCMH model as approved by the
Commissioner...”
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Standards for PCMHs on both the national level and in Arkansas have physicians as the PCP.
We believe the previously mentioned standards were carefully adopted with the needs of
Arkansas specifically in mind. These standards provide the clearest, and most appropriate
guidance for Rule 108. The Arkansas Health Care Payment Improvement Initiative has set a
clear statewide standard with physicians as PCPs. This statewide standard is already working

well and should be followed to provide consistency, which in turn will improve coordinationand
efficiency.

“Practice Support” link: httD://www.Davrnentinitiative.org/medicalHomes/Pages/Practice—
Support.aspx
“Eligibility Requirements” link:
http://Ww.pavmentinitiative.or,q/medicalHomes/Pages/Requirements-of—B ecoming-
PCMH.aspx. ’

Finally, it should be noted that the Arkansas legislature, on numerous occasions now has had the
opportunity to pass filed legislation designating non-physicians as Medicaid PCPs. Not once has
such legislation come close to passage. It appears to us that the will of the legislature has been to
NOT grant PCP designation to non-physician providers through such legislation, and we believe
this rule specifically goes against that general legislative sentiment expressed in recent sessions.

Our proposed language would change the paragraph (12) definition of “Primary Care Provider”
in Section 4.

“Primary Care Provider” means a participating

i iee physician licensed by the Arkansas State Medical Board whose sole or
specialty is family practice. general practice. internal medicine. pediatrics and
adolescent medicine or obstetrics and gynecology. and designated by the Health Carrier to
supervise, coordinate or provide initial care or continuing care to a covered person, and who may

be required by the Health Carrier to initiate a referral for specialty care and maintain supervision
of health care services rendered to the covered person.

Thank you for your consideration.

Sincerely,

& cA et

H. Scott Smith, JD
Director of Governmental Affairs
Arkansas Medical Society
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¥ ARKANSAS ACADEMY OF

FAMILY PHYSICIANS

500 Pleasant Valley Drive
Building D, Suite 102
Litde Rock, Arkansas 72227

July 31, 2014

Jay Bradford, Commissioner
Arkansas Insurance Department
1200 West Third Street

Litile Rock, Arkansas 72201

RE: Proposed Rule 108

Dear Commissioner Bradford,

Representing over 1100 Family Practice Physicians in the State of Arkansas, the Arkansas
Chapter, American Academy of Family Physicians offers the following commentary:

Regarding Section 3, ltem (1) Assignment of Primary Care Clinician
Regarding Section 4, item (12) Primary Care “Provider”

The Patient Centered Medical Home (PCMH) concept was created by our colfleagues in Pediatrics

for application to complex, chronically-il patients. The AAFP has a long,proud history of developing

a more comprehensive model of the PCMH concept , appropriate for broader application in primary

care. Itis the policy of our national organization, the American Academy of Family Physicians, one

which we wholly endorse as a state chapter, that the Patient Centered Medical Home {PCMH) should

be a team consisting of many different and valued members of the healthcare sytem, but that it should
remain Physician Led. Please see the AAFP position paper on use of generic term, “provider” or “clirician’.

httg:[[www.aafg.org(about(golicies/all/?rovider~term~nosition.html.

We believe that the use of the generic terms “clinician® and *Provider” will open the door for non-physician
led PCMH, and in our opinion, such enfities would create an environment that is sub-optima! for patient
care. Each member of the PCMH team brings their own value to the team based approach, but

the intensity and breadth of training for physicians uniquely qualifies them to lead the effort to provide

high qualily, low cost, patient centered care. itis our opinion that patients deserve the competency and
comprehensive care that is provided by a physician-led team operafing within the context of a PCMH,
More detailed information about the AAFP's policy on physician leadership of the PCMH can be found

at the following links

hitp://www.aafp.org/dam/AAFP/documents/about us initiatives/AAFP-PCMHWhitePaper.ndf
http://blogs.aafp.org/cfr/leadervoices/entry/nps no substitute for_physician).

tt
And

Thank you for your consideration of our concems.

Sincerely,

Lonnie Robinson, M.D.
Delegate to the AAFP Congress
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(7 From: Booth Rand
b Sent: Friday, August 01, 2014 2:27 PM
To: Seth Blomeley
Subject: FW: Proposed Rule 108: "Patient Centered Medical Home Standards”

-----Qriginal Message----- :
From: Cheryl Perry [mailto:cxp027 @email.uark.edu]
Sent: Friday, July 11, 2014 2:01 PM

To: Booth Rand

Subject: RE: Proposed Rule 108: "Patient Centered Medical Home Standards®

Dear Mr. Rand,

I am pleased to see the continuation of provider neutral language (i.e. primary care provider) in the PCMH Proposed
Rule 108. This language is consistent with the provider neutral fanguage in the Arkansas Health Care Independence Act
-{ACA 20-17-2106 {d) (1)) and the Department of Health and Human Services Section 1115 Demonstration Waiver. In
Arkansas, having the opportunity for APRNs to be recognized as a primary care provider and team leader in patient
"centered medical homes would create the potential for new access points for primary care across the state. According
to the Healthy Workforce in Arkansas Study (2013), the state is facing a shortage of 1,000 primary care physicians within

the next five years which will seriously jeopardize access to care in all communities. This is another important reason to
have provider neutral language in this rule.

Thank you so much for the opportunity to comment on Proposed Rule 108.

Sincerely,

Chery! Perry, BSN, RN

Doctor of Nursing Practice Graduate Student
University of Arkansas - Fayetteville

Home Address: 1327 Kelly Road, Alma, AR 72921

y

=
" Cell: 479-651-6187
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£
i From: Booth Rand
Sent: Friday, August 01, 2014 2:26 PM
To: Seth Blomeley
Subject: FW: Provider neutral language

----0riginal Message-----

From: Katherine Darling [mailto:katherinedarlinglic@gmail.com]
Sent; Friday, July 11, 2014 4:37 PM

To: Booth Rand
Subject: Provider neutral language

Dear Mr. Rand,

Please find my letter expressing my thoughts in favor of provider neutral language. | appreciate your support and
forward thinking. As we all work together to build a healthier Arkansas, we will accomplish great things!

Thank you for your support. iIf | can be of any assistance to you, please don't hesitate to contact me.

Kind Regards,

¢

. _‘atherine Darling

Dr. Katherine Darling, DNP, PMHNP/FNP-BC, APRN Katherine Darling, PLLC

637 Cougar Lane
Mountain Home, AR 72653
870 421-5875 (C)
870 425-4849 (H)

katherinedarlinglic@®gmail.com

Practice Kindness - You won't regret it!
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Stricken language would be deleted from and underlined language would be added to present law.
Act 1498 of the Regular Session

State of Arkansas As Engrossed: H4/3/13 H4/6/13 H4/10/13 S4/17/13
89th General Assembly A 1

Regular Session, 2013 HOUSE BILL 1143

By: Representatives J. Burris, Carter, Biviano

By: Senators J. Dismang, Bookout, D. Sanders, Irvin

For An Act To Be Entitled
AN ACT CONCERNING HEALTH INSURANCE FOR CITIZENS OF
THE STATE OF ARRANSAS; TO CREATE THE HEALTH CARE
INDEPENDENCE ACT OF 2013; TO DECLARE AN EMERGENCY;
AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES.

Subtitle
TO CREATE THE HEALTH CARE INDEPENDENCE
ACT OF 2013; AND TO DECLARE AN EMERGENCY.

WHEREAS, Arkansas has historically addressed state-specific needs to
achieve personal responsibility and affordable health care for its citizens
such as the ARHealthNetworks partnership between the state and small

businesses; and

WHEREAS, Arkansas has initiated nationally recognized and
transformative changes in the healthcare delivery system through aligmment of
payment incentives, health care delivery system improvements, enhanced rural
health care access, initiatives to reduce waste, fraud and abuse, policies
and plan structures to encourage the proper utilization of the healthcare

system, and policies to advance disease prevention and health promotion; and

WHEREAS, Arkansas is uniquely situated to serve as a laboratory of
comprehensive and innovative healthcare reform that can reduce the state and

federal obligations to entitlement spending; and

WHEREAS, faced with the disruptive challenges from federal legislation

R

01-24-2013 15:30:07 MGF113
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As Engrossed: H4/3/13 H4/6/13 H4/106/13 S4/17/13 HB1143

and regulations, the General Assembly asserts its responsibility for Ilocal
control and innovation to achieve health care access, improved health care
quality, reduce traditional Medicaid enrollment, remove disincentives for

work and social mobility, and required cost-containment; and

WHEREAS, the General Assembly hereby creates the Health Care
Independence Act of 2013;

NOW THEREFORE,
BE IT ENACTED BY THE GENERAL ASSEMBLY OF THE STATE OF ARKANSAS:

SECTION 1. Arkansas Code Title 20, Chapter 77, is amended to create a

new subchapter to read as follows:

Subchapter 21 — Health Care Independence Act of 2013

20-77-2101, Title.

This act shall be known and may be cited as the "Health Care
Independence Act of 2013",

20-77-2102. Legislative intent.

{a} Notwithstanding any general or specific laws to the contrary, the

Department of Human Services is to explore design options that reform the

Med:icaid Program utilizing the Health Care Independence Act of 2013 so that

it is a fiscally sustainable, cost-effective, personally responsible, and

opportunity~-driven program utilizing competitive and value-based purchasing
to:

(1) Maximize the available service options;

(2) Promote accountability, personal responsibility, and
transparencys;

(3) _Encourage and reward healthy outcomes and responsible

cholces; and

(4) Promote efficiencies that will deliver value to the

taxpayers.
(b)(l) It is the intent of the General Assembly that the State of

Arkansas through the Department of Human Services shall utilize a private

2 01-24-2013 15:30:07 MGF113
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As Engrossed: H4/3/13 B4/6/13 H4/10/13 S4/17/13 HB1143

Insurance option for “low-risk” adults.

(2) The Health Care Independence Act of 2013 shall ensure that:

(4) Private health care optioms increase and government-

operated programs such as Medicaid decrease; and

(B) Decisions about the design, operation and

implementation of this option, including cost, remain within the purview of

the State of Arkansas and not with Washington, D.C.

20-77-2103. Purpose.

a The purpose of this subchapter is to:

(1) Improve access to quality health care;

(2) Attract insursnce carriers and enhance competition in the

Arkansas insurance marketplace;
(3} Promote individually-owned health insurance;

(4) Strengrhen personal responsibility through cost-sharing;

(5) Improve continuity of coverage;

(6) Reduce the size of the state-administered Medicaid program;
7) _Encourage appropriate care, including early intervention

prevention, and wellness;

(8) Increase guality and delivery system efficiencies;

(9) Facilitate Arkansas’s continued payment innovation, delivery
system reform, and market-driven Iimprovements;

(10) Discourage over-utilizatrion; and

(11) Reduce waste, fraud, and abuse.

{b) The State of Arkansas shall take an Integrated and market-based

approach to covering low-income Arkansans through offering new coverage
opportunities, stimulating market competition, and offering alternatives ro
the existing Medicaid program.

20-77-2104. Definitions.

As used in this subchapter:

(1) "Carrier" means a private entity certified by the State

Insurance Department and offering plans through the Health Insurance
Marketplace;

(2) "Cost sharing" means the portion of the cost of a covered

medical service that must be paid by or on behalf of eligible individuals,

3 01-24-2013 15:30:07 MGF113
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As Engrossed: H4/3/13 H4/6/13 H4[/10/13 S4/17/13 HB1143

consisting of copayments or coinsurance but not deductibles;

(3) "Eligible individuals" means individuals who:

(A) Are adults between nineteen (l9) years of age and

sixty-five (65) vears of age with an income that is ecqual to or less than one

hundred thirty-eight percent (138Z%) of the federal poverty level, including

without Iimitation individuals who would not be eligible for Medicaid under

Jdaws and rules in effect on January 1, 2013;

(B) Have been authenticated to be a United States citizen

or documented qualified alien according to the federal Personal

Responsibility and Work Opportunity Reconciliation Act of 1996, Pub. L. No.
104-193, as existing on January 1, 2013; and

(C) Are not determined to be more effectively covered

through the standard Medicaid program, such as an individual who 1s

medically frail or other individuals with exceptional medical needs for whom

coverage through the Health Insurance Marketplace is determined to be

impractical, overly complex, or would undermipe continuity or effectiveness

of care;

(4) "Healthcare coverage" means healthcare benefits as defined

by certification or rules, or borh, promulgated by the State Insurance

Department for the Qualified Health Plans or available on the marketplace;

(5) "Health Insurance Marketplace" means the vehicle created to

help individuals, famililes, and small businesses in Arkansas shop for and

select health Insurance coverage in a way that permits comparison of

available Qualified Health Plan based upon price, benefits, services, and

quality, regardless of the governance structure of the marketplace;

(6) "Premium" means a charge that must be paid as a condition of

enrolling in health care coverage;

(7) "Program" means the Health Care Independence Program

established by this subchapter;

(8} "Qualified Health Plan" means a State Insurance Department-

certified individual health insurance plan offered by a carrier through the

Health Insurance Marketplace; and

(9) “Independence account” mean individual financing structures

that operate similar to a health savings account or a medical savings

account.

4 01-24-2013 15:30:07 MGF113
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As Engrossed: HA4/3/13 H4/6/13 H4/10/13 S4/17/13 HB1143

20-77-2105. Administration of the Health Care Independence Program.

(a} The Department of Human Services shall:

(1) Create and administer the Health Care Independence Program;

and
(2)(A) Submit and apply for any:

(1) Federal waivers necessary to implement the program in
a2 manner consistent with this subchapter, including without limitation
approval for a comprehensive waiver under Section 1115 of the Social Security
Act, 42 U.8.C. § 1315; and

(1i)(a) Medicaid State Plan Amendments pecessary to

Implement the program in a manner consistent with this subchapter.

(b) The Department of Human Services shall submit

only those Medicaid State Plan Amendments under subdivision (a)(2)(A)(ii)(a)

of this section that are optional and therefore may be revoked by the state

at its discretion.

(B) (1) As part of its actions under subdivision (a)(2)(A)

of this section, the Department of Human Services shall conffrm thar

employers shall not be subject to the penalties, including without limitation

an assessable payment, under Section 1513 of Pub. L. No. 111-148, as existing

on January 1, 2013, concerning shared responsibility, for emplovees who are
eligible individuals if the employees:
(a) Are enrolled in the program; and
(b) Enroll in a Qualified Health Plan through
the Health Insurance Marketplace.
(ii) If the Department of Human Services is unable

to confirm provisions under subdivision (a)(2)(B)(i) of this section, the

program shall not be implemented,

(b) (1) Implementation of the program is conditioned upon the receipt

of necessary federal approvals.

(2) If the Department of Human Services does not receive the

necessary federal approvals, the program shall not be Implemented.

(c) The program shall include premium assistance for eligible

individuals to enable their epnrollment in a Oualified Health Plan through the
Health Insurance Marketplace.
(d} (1) The Department of Human Services is specifically authorized to

pay premiums and supplemental cost-sharing subsidies directly to the

5 01-24-2013 15:30:07 MGF113
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As Engrossed: HA4/3/13 H4/6/13 H4/10/13 S4/17/13 HB1143

Qualified Health Plans for enrolled eligible individuals.

(Z2) The intent of the payments under subdivision (d){l) of this

section Is to increase participation and competition in the healtrh insuranmce

market, intensify price pressures, and reduce costs for both publicly and

privately funded health care.

(e) To the extent allowable by law:

(1) The Department of Human Services shall pursue Strategies

that promote insurance coverage of children in their parents’ or caregivers’

plan, including children eligible for the ARKRids First Program Act, § 20-77-

1101 et seqg., commonly known as the "ARRids E program"; and

(2) Upon the receipt of necessary federal approval, during

calendar year 2015 the Department of Human Services shall include and

transition to the Health Insurance Marketplace:

(4) Children eligible for the ARKids First Program Act, §
20-77-1101 et seg.; and

(B) Populations under Medicaid from zero percent (0%) of

the federal poverty level to seventeen percent (17Z%) of the federal poverty

level,

(3) The Department of Human Services shall develop and Implement

& strategy to inform Medicaid recipient populations whose needs would be

reduced or better served through participation in the Health Insurance
Marketplace.
(f) The program shall Include allowable cost sharing for eligible

Individuals that is compargble to that for individuals in the same income

range in the private insurance market and is structured to enhance eligible

individuals’ Zinvestment in their health care purchasing decisions.

(g)(l) The State Insurance Department and Department of Human Services

shall administer and promulgate rules to administer the program authorized

under this subchapter.

(2) No less than thirty (30) days before the State Insurance

Department and Department of Human Services begin promulgating a rule under

this subchapter, the proposed rule shall be presented to the Legislative

Council,

(h) The program authorized under this subchapter shall terminate

within one hundred twenty (120) days after a reduction in any of. the

following federal medical assistance percentages:

6 01-24-2013 15:30:07 MGF113
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As Engrossed: H4/3/13 H4/6/13 H4/10/13 S4/17/13 HB1143

(1) One hundred percent (l100%Z) in 2014, 2015,

or 2016;

(2) Ninety-five percent (95%}) in 2017;

(3) Ninety-four percent (94%) in 2018;

(4) Ninety-three percent (93%) in 2019; and

(5} Ninety percent (90%Z) in 2020 or any year after 2020.
(1) A4n eligible individual enrolled in the program shall affirmatively
acknowledge that:
(1) The program i1s not a perpetual federal or state right or a
guaranteed entitlement;

(2) The program is subject to cancellation upon appropriate

notice; and

(3) The program is not an entitlement program.

(i) (1) The Department of Human Services shall develop a model and seek

from the Center for Medicare and Medicaid Services all necessary waivers and

approvals to allow non-aged, non-disabled program-eligible participants to
enroll in a program that will create and utilize Independence Accounts that

operate similar to a Health Savings Account or Medical Savings Account during
the calendar yvear 2015.
{2) The Independence Accounts shall:

(4) Allow a participant to purchase cost-effective high-
deductible health insurance; and

(B) Promote Independence and self-sufficiency.
(3) The state shall implement cost sharing and co-pays and, as a

condition of participation, earnings shall exceed fifty percent (50Z) of the
federal poverty level.

(4) Participants may receive rewards based on healthy living and
self-sufficiency.

(5)(A) At the end of each fiscal year, if there are funds

remaining in the account, a majority of the state’s contribution will remain

in the participant’s control as a positive incentive for the responsible use

of the health care system and personal responsibility of health maintepance.

(B) Uses of the funds may include without limitation

rolling the funds into a private sector health savings account for the

participant according to rules promulgated by the Department of Human

Sexrvices.

7 01-24-2013 15:30:07 MGF113
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(6) _The Department of Human Services shall promulgate rules to

Implement this subsection (7).

(k)(1) Stare obligations for uncompensated care shall be projected,

tracked, and reported to identify potential incremental Ffuture decreases.

(2) _The Department of Human Services shall recommend appropriate

adjustments to the Geperal Assembly.
(3) Adjustments shall be made by the General Assembly as

appropriate.
(1) The Department of Human Services shall track the Hospital

Assessment Fee as defiped in § 20-77-1902 and report to the General Assembly

subsequent decreases based upon reduced uncompensated care.

(m) On a quarterly basis, the Department of Human Services and the

State Insurance Department shall report to the Legislative Council or to the

Joint Budget Committee if the General Assembly is in session, available
Iinformation regarding:

(1) Program enrollment;

(2) Patient experience;

(3) Economic impact including enrollment distribution;

(4) Carrier competition; and

(5) Avoided uncompensated care.

20-77-2106., Standards of healthcare coverage through the Health
Insurance Marketplace.
a Healthcare coverage shall be achieved through a qualified health

plan at the silver level as provided in 42 U.S5.C. §§ 18022 and 18071, as

existing on January 1, 2013, that restricts cost sharing to amounts that do

not exceed Medicaid cost-sharing limitations.

(b) (1) All participating carriers in the Health Insurance Marketplace

shall offer healthcare coverage conforming to the requirements of this
subchapter.

(2) A participating carrier in the Health Insurance Marketplace

shall maintain a medical loss ratio of at least eighty percent (80%Z) for an

individual and small -group market policy and at least eighty-five percent

(852) for a large group market policy as required under Pub. L. No. 111-148,
as existing on January 1, 2013,
(¢) To assure price competitive choice among healthcare coverage

8 01-24-2013. 15:30:07 MGF113
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options, the State Insurance Department shall assure that at least two (2)

qualified health plans are offered in each county In the state.

(d) Health insurance carriers offering health care coverage for

program eligible individuals shall participate in Arkansas Payment

Improvement Initiatives Including:

(1) Assignment of primary care cliniciang

(2) Support for patient-centered medical home; and

(3) Access of clinical performance data for providers.

{e) On or before July 1, 2013, the State Insurance Department shall

implement through certification requirements, rule, or both the applicable

provisions of this subchapter.

20-77-2107. FEnrollment.

(a) The General Assembly shall assure that a mechanism within the

Health Insurance Marketplace is established and operated to facilitate

enrollment of eligible individuals.

(b) The enrollment mechanism shall include an automaric verification

system to guard against waste, fraud, and abuse in the program.

20~-77-2108. Effective date.
This subchapter shall be in effect until June 30, 2017, unless amended
or extended by the General Assembly.

SECTION 2. Arkansas Code Tirle 19, Chapter 5, Subchapter 11, 1s
amended to add an additional section to read as follows:

19~-5-1140. Healrh Care Independence Program Trust Fund.

fa) There Is created on the books of the Treasurer of Stare, the
Auditor of State, and the Chief Fiscal QOfficer of the State a trust fund to

be kpnown as the “Health Care Independence Program Trust Fund”.

(b)(l) The Health Care Independence Program Trust Fund may consist of

moneys saved and accrued under the Health Care Independence Act of 2013, §

20-77-2101 et seq., including without limitation:

(4) Increases in premium tax collections;

B Reductions in uncompensated care; and

(C) _Other spending reductions resultine from the Health
Care Independence dct of 2013, 20-77-2101 et segq.

9 01-24-2013 15:30:07 MGF113



v
s

O 00 N YN W

W W W W W W NN NN DD DD DN DN NN P = e e e e
gUIJ-\LONi—'O\DOO\JO\U!-bLONr—-O\DOO\JO\UI.L\LONr—-O

As Engrossed: H4/3/13 H4/6/13 H4/10/13 S&4/17/13 HB1143

(2) The fund shall also consist of other revenues and funds
authorized by law.
{c) The fund may be used by the Department of Human Services to pay

for future obligations under the Health Care Independence Program created by

the Health Care Independence Act of 2013, § 20-77-2101 et seq.

SECTION 3. NOT TO BE CODIFIED. (a) The implementation of this act is

suspended until an appropriation for the implementation of this act is passed

by a three-fourths vote of both houses of the Eighty-Ninth General Assembly.

(b} If an appropriation for the implementation of this act is

not passed by the Eighty-Ninth General Assembly, this act is void.

SECTION 4. NOT TO BE CODIFIED. The enactment and adoption of this act

shall supersede Section 21 of HBI219 of the Eighty-Ninth General Assembly, if
Section 21 of HBIZ19 of the Eighty-Ninth General Assembly is enacted and
adopted.

SECTION 5. EMERGENCY CLAUSE. It is found and determined by the

General Assembly of the State of Arkansas that the Health Care Independence

Program requires private insurance companies to create, present to the
Department of Human Services for approval, implement, and market a new kind

of insurance policy; and that the private insurance companies peed certalnty

about the law creating the Health Care Independence Program before fully

investing time, funds, personmel, and other resources to the development of

the pew insurance policies. Therefore, an emergency 1s declared to exist,

and this act being immediately necessary for the preservation of the public

peace, health, and safety shall become effective on:

(1) The date of its approval by the Governor;

(2) If the bill 1s neither approved nor vetoed by the Governor,

the expiration of the period of time during which the Governmor may veto the

bill; or
(3) If the bill is vetoed by the Governor and the veto is

overridden, the date the last house overrides the verto.

/s/J. Burris
APPROVED: 04/23/2013

10 01-24-2013 15:30:07 MGF113



220.000

221.000
222.000
223.000

230.000

231.000
232.000
233.000
234.000
235.000
236.000
237.000

240.000

444444 ‘ 241.000
£ 242,000
o , 243.000
244,000

245,000

250.000

251.000

Attributeg beneficiaries

Attribution

pove,
Y

DEFINITIONS

ENROLLMENT AND CASELOAD MANAGEMENT
Enrollment Eligibility

Practice Enroliment

Enroliment Schedule

Caseload Management

PRACTICE SUPPORT

Practice Support Scope

Practice Support Eligibility

Care Coordination Payment Amount

SHARED SAVINGS INCENTIVE PAYMENTS

Shared Savings Incentive Payments Scope
Shared Savings Incentive Payments Eligibility
Pools of Attributed Beneficiaries
Requirements for Joining and Leaving Pools
Per Beneﬁciary Cost of Care Calculation
Baseline ang Benchmark Cost Calculations

Shared Savings Incentive Payments Amounts
METRICS AND ACCOUNTABILITY FOR PAYMENT INCENTIVES

COMPREHENSIVE PRIMARY CARE {CPC) INITIATIVE PRACTICE PARTICIPATION
IN THE pcmy PROGRAM

CPC Initiative Practice Participation

The Medicaid beneficiaries for whom primary care
Physicians ang Participating practices have accountability
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benchmark cost.

Care coordination

The ongoing work of engaging beneficiaries and
organizing their care needs across providers and care
settings.

Care coordination payment

Quarterly payments made to participating practices to
support care coordination services. Payment amountis
calculated per attributed bereficiary, per month.

Cost thresholds

Cost thresholds are the per berieficiary cost of care
values (high and medium) against which a shared
savings entity's per beneficiary cost is measured.

Default pool

A pool of beneficiaries who are attributed to participating
practices that do not meet the requirements in Section
233.000, part A or part B.

Historical baseline cost of care

A multi-year weighted average of a shared savings
entity’s per beneficiary cost of care.

Medical neighborhood barriers

Obstacles to the delivery of coordinated care that existin
areas of the health system external to PCMH.

Minimum savings rate

A fixed percentage set by DMS. In order to receive
shared savings incentive payments for performance
improvement described in Section 237.000, part A, a
shared savings entity must achieve a per beneficiary cost
of care that is below its benchmark cost by at least the
minimum savings rate.

Participating practice

A physician practice that is enrolled in the PCMH
program, which must be one of the following:

A. An individual primary care physician (Provider Type
01 or 03);

B. A physician group of primary care providers who are
affiliated, with a common group identification number
(Provider Type 02, 04, or 81);

C. ARural Health Clinic (Provider Type 29) as defined in
the Rural Health Clinic Provider Manual Section
201.000; or

D. An Area Health Education Center (Provider type 69).

Patient-Centered Medical Home
(PCMH)

A team-based care delivery model led by Primary Care
Physicians (PCPs) who comprehensively manage
beneficiaries’ health needs with an emphasis on health
care value.

Per beneficiary cost of care

The risk- and time-adjusted average of attributed
beneficiaries' total Medicaid fee-for-service claims (based
on the published reimbursement methodology) during the
performance period, net of exclusions.

Per beneficiary cost of care floor

The lowest per beneficiary cost of care for which
practices within a shared savings entity can receive
shared savings incentive payments.

Per beneficiary savings

The difference between a shared savings entity’s
benchmark cost and its per beneficiary cost of care ina
given performance period.
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Performance period

The period of time over which performance is aggregated
and assessed.

Pool

A. The beneficiaries who are attributed to one or more
participating practice(s) for the purpose of forming a
shared savings entity; or

B. The action of aggregating beneficiaries for the
purposes of shared savings incentive payment
calculations (i.e., the action of forming a shared
savings entity).

Practice support

Support provided by Medicaid in the form of care
coordination payments to a participating practice and
practice transformation support provided by a DMS
contracted vendor.,

Practice transformation

The adoption, implementation and maintenance of
approaches, activities, capabilities and tools that enable a
participating practice to serve as a PCMH.

Primary Care Physician (PCP)

See Section 171.000 of this manual.

Provider portal

The website that participating practices use for purposes
of enroliment, reporting to the Division of Medical
Services (DMS) and receiving information from DMS.

Recover

To deduct an amount from a participating practice’s
future Medicaid receivables, including without limitation,
PCMH payments, or fee-for-service reimbursements, to
recoup such amount through legal process, or both.

Remediation time

The period during which participating practices that fail to
meet deadlines, targets or both on relevant activities and
metrics tracked for practice support may continue to
receive care coordination payments while improving
performance.

Risk adjustment

An adjustment to the cost of beneficiary care to account
for patient risk.

Same-day appointment request

A beneficiary request to be seen by a clinician within 24
hours.

Shared savings entity

A participating practice or participating practices that,
contingent on performance, may receive shared savings
incentive payments.

Shared savings incentive payment
cap

The maximum shared savings incentive payment that
DMS will pay to practices in a shared savings entity,
expressed as a percentage of that entity's benchmark
cost for the performance period.

Shared savings incentive payments

Annual payments made to reward cost-efficient and
quality care.

Shared savings percentage

The percentage of a shared savings entity's total savings
that is paid to practice(s) in a shared savings entity as a
shared savings incentive payment for performance
improvement.

State Heaith Alliance for Records
Exchange (SHARE)

The Arkansas Health Information Exchange. For more

information, go to http://ohit.arkansas.gov.
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211.000 Enrollment Eligibility 1-1-14

To be eligible to enroll in the PCMH Program initially:
A. The entity must be a participating practice as defined in Section 200.000.

B. The practice must inciude PCPs enrolled in the ConnectCare Primary Care Case
Management (PCCM) Program.

C. The practice may not participate in the PCCM shared savings pilot established under Act
1453 of 2013.

D. The practice must have at least 300 aftributed beneficiaries at the time of enroliment.

DMS may modify the number of attributed beneficiaries required for enroliment based on
provider experience and will publish at www.paymentinitiative.org any such modification.

212.000 Practice Enroliment . 1414

Enroliment in the PCMH program is voluntary and practices must re-enroll annually. To enroli,
practices must access the provider portal and submit a complete and accurate Arkansas
Medicaid Patient-Centered Medical Home Practice Participation Agreement (DMS-844) available

at www.paymentinitiative.org. Once enrolled, a participating practice remains in the PCMH
program untii:

A. The practice withdraws:

B. The practice or provider becomes ineligible, is suspended or terminated from the Medicaid
program or the PCMH program; or

C. DMS terminates the PCMH program.

A physician may be affiliated with only one participating practice. A participating practice must
update the Department of Human Services (DHS) on changes to the list of physicians who are
part of the practice. This update must be submitted in writing within 30 days.

To withdraw from the PCMH program, the participating practice must deliver to DMS a signed
and accurate Arkansas Patient-Centered Medical Home Withdrawal Form (DMS-848), available

at www.pavmentinitiative.org.

213.000 Enroliment Schedule 1-1-14

Initial enrollment periods are October 1, 2013 through December 15, 2013 and January 1, 2014
through May 15, 2014,

Beginning with the 2015 calendar year, enroliment is open for approximately 3 months in Q3 and
Q4 of the preceding year.

DMS will return any enroliment documents received other than during an enroliment period.

214.000 Caseload Management 1-1-14

A participating practice must manage its caseload of attributed beneficiaries, including removal
of a beneficiary from its panel, according to the rules described in Section 171.200 of this
manual. Additionally, a participating practice must submit, in writing at the end of every calendar
quarter, an explanation of each beneficiary removal during such quarter. DMS retains the right
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to disallow these beneficiary removals. If a participating practice removes a beneficiary from its
PCMH panel, then that beneficiary is also removed from its ConnectCare panei.

221.000 Practice Support Scope 1-1-14

Practice support includes both care coordination payments made to a participating practice and
practice transformation support provided by a DMS contracted vendor.

Receipt and use of the care coordination payments is not conditioned on the practice engaging a
care coordination vendor, as payment can be used to support participating practices’
investments (e.g., time and energy) in enacting changes to achieve PCMH goals. Care
coordination payments are risk-adjusted to account for the varying levels of care coordination
services needed for beneficiaries with different risk profiles.

DMS will contract with a practice transformation vendor on behalf of participating practices that
require additional support to catalyze practice transformation and retain and use such vendor.
Practices must maintain documentation of the months they have contracted with a practice
transformation vendor. Practice transformation vendors must report to DMS the level and type of
service delivered to each practice. Payments to a practice transformation vendor on behalf of a
participating practice may continue for up to 24 months.

DMS may pay, recover or offset overpayment or underpayment of care coordination payments.

DMS will also support practices through improved access to information through the reports
described in Section 245.000.

222.000 Practice Support Eligibility 1-1-14

In addition to the enroliment eligibility requirements listed in Section 211.000, in order for
practices to receive practice support, DMS measures participating practice performance against
activities tracked for practice support identified in Section 241.000 and the metrics tracked for
practice support identified in 242.000. Participating practices must meet the requirements of
these sections to receive practice support.

Each participating practice that has pooled its attributed beneficiaries with other participating
practices in a shared savings entity:

A. Has its performance individually compared to activities tracked for practice support and
metrics tracked for practice support.

B. Will, if qualified, receive practice support even if other practices in a shared savings entity do
not qualify for practice support.

223,000 Care Coordination Payment Amount 1-1-14

The care coordination payment is risk adjusted (e.g., ranging from $1 to $30 per attributed
beneficiary per month) based on factors including demographics (age, sex), diagnoses and
utitization.

After each quarter, DMS may pay, recover, or offset the care coordination payments to ensure
that a practice did not receive a care coordination payment for any beneficiary who died or lost
eligibility if the practice lost eligibility during the quarter.

If a practice withdraws from the PCMH program, then the practice is only eligible for care
coordination payments based on a complete quarter's participation in the PCMH program.
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In order to begin receiving care coordination payments for the quarter starting January 1, 2014, a
practice must submit a complete PCMH Practice Participation Agreement on or before
December 15, 2013. In order to begin receiving care coordination payments for the quarter
starting July 1, 2014, a practice must submit the PCMH Practice Participation Agreement onor
before May 15, 2014. For all subsequent years, in order to participate in the PCMH program, a
practice must submit the PCMH Practice Participation Agreement before the end of the
enroliment period of the preceding year.

231.000 Shared Savings Incentive Payments Scope 1-114

Shared savings incentive payments are payments made to a shared savings entity for delivery of
economic, efficient and quality care that meets the requirements in Section 232.000.

232.000 Shared Savings Incentive Payments Eligibility 14114

To receive shared savings incentive payments, a shared savings entity must have a minimum of
5,000 attributed beneficiaries once the below exclusions have been applied. A shared savings
entity may meet this requirement as a single practice or by pooling atiributed beneficiaries
across more than one practice as described in Section 233.000.

A. For purposes of calculating shared savings incentive payments only, the following
beneficiaries shall not be counted toward the 5,000 attributed beneficiary requirement.

. 1. Beneficiaries that have been attributed to that entity’s practice(s) for less than half of
e the performance period.

-
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2. Beneficiaries that a practice prospectively designates for exciusion from per beneficiary
cost of care {also known as physician-selected exclusions) on or before the 90" day of
the performance period. Once a beneficiary is designated for exclusion, a practice
may not update selection for the duration of the performance period. The total number
of physician-selected exclusions will be directly proportional to the practice’s total

number of attributed beneficiaries (e.g., up to one exclusion for every 1,000 attributed
beneficiaries).

3. Beneficiaries for whom DMS has identified another payer that is legally fiable for all or
part of the cost of Medicaid care and services provided to the beneficiary.

DMS may add, remove, or adjust these exclusions based on new research, empirical evidence
or provider experience with select beneficiary populations. DMS will publish such addition,

removal or modification on www.paymentinitiative.org.

B. Shared savings incentive payments are conditioned upon a shared savings entity:

1. Enrolling during the enroliment period prior to the beginning of the performance period;

2. Meeting requirements for metrics tracked for shared savings incentive payments in
section 244.000 based on the aggregate performance for beneficiaries attributed to the
shared savings entity for the majority of the performance period; and

3. Maintaining eligibility for practice support as described in Section 251.000.

Eligibility requirements for shared savings for Comprehensive Primary Care (CPC) practices are
described in Section 251.000.

e,
{

233.000 Pools of Attributed Beneficiaries 1-1-14
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Participating practices will meet the minimum poot size of 5,000 attributed beneficiaries as
described in 232.000 by forming a shared savings entity in one of three ways:

A. Meet minimum pool size independently;

B. Pool attributed beneficiaries with other participating practices as described in 234.000. In
this method, practices voluntarily agree to have their performance measured together by
aggregating performance (both per beneficiary cost of care and quality metrics tracked for
shared savings incentive payments) across the practices; or

C. Patticipate in a default poot if the practice does not meet the requirements for A or B of this
section. Practices with beneficiaries in a default pool will have per beneficiary cost of care
performance measured across the combined pool of all attributed beneficiaries in the default
pool. There is no default pool in the first performance period beginning January 1, 2014.

234.000 Requirements for Joining and Leaving Pools 1-1-14

Practices may pool for purposes described in 233.000, part B, before the end of the enrollment
period that precedes the start of the performance period. To pool, practices must submit to DMS
a signed Arkansas Medicaid Patient-Centered Medical Home Practice Participation Agreement
with a completed and accurate Arkansas Medicaid Patient-Centered Medical Home Pooling

Request Form, available at www.paymentinitiative.org, executed by all practices participating
in the pool.

In the first performance period beginning January 1, 2014, a maximum of two practices may
agree to voluntarily pool their attributed beneficiaries.

Pooling is effective for a single performance period and must be renewed for each subsequent
year. :

When a practice has pooled, its performance is measured in the associated shared savings
entity throughout the duration of the performance period unless it withdraws from the PCMH
program during the performance period. When a practice that has pooled withdraws from the
PCMH program, the other practice or practices in the shared savings entity will have
performance measured as if the withdrawn practice had never participated in the pool,

235.000 Per Beneficiary Cost of Care Calculation 1-114

Each year the per beneficiary cost of care performance is aggregated and assessed acrossa
shared savings entity. Per beneficiary cost of care is calculated as the risk- and time-adjusted
average of such entity’s attributed beneficiaries’ total fee-for-service claims (based on the

published reimbursement methodology) during the annual performance period, with adjustments
and exclusions as defined below.

One hundred percent of the dollar value of care coordination payments is included in the per
beneficiary cost of care calculation, except for the performance period which begins January 1,
2014, for which fifty percent of the dollar value of care coordination payments is included.

As described in Section 232.000, beneficiaries not counted toward the minimum number of
attributed beneficiaries for shared savings incentive payments will be excluded from the
calculation of per beneficiary cost of care.

A. The following costs are excluded from the calculation of per beneficiary cost of care:

1. All costs in excess of $100,000 for any individual beneficiary.

2. Behavioral health costs for beneficiaries with the most complex behavioral health
needs.

3. Select costs associated with developmental disabilities (DD) services, identified onthe
basis of DD provider types.
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Select direct costs associated with Long-Term Support and Services (LTSS).

Select costs associated with nursing home fees, transportation fees, dental and vision.

2

Select neonatal costs.
7. Other costs as determined by DMS.

Detailed information on specific exclusions are at www.paymentinitiative.org.
A. The following adjustments are made to costs for calculation of per beneficiary cost of care:

1. Inpatient hospital claims will be adjusted to reflect a standard per diem.
2. Pharmacy costs will be adjusted to reflect rebates.

3. The per beneficiary cost of care for a shared savings entity is adjusted by the amount
of supplemental payment incentives, both positive and negative, made under Episodes
of Care for the beneficiaries attributed to practice(s) as described in Section 232.000.

4. Technical adjustments may be made by DHS and will be posted at

www.paymentinitiative.org

If the shared savings entity’s per beneficiary cost of care falls below the current performance
period total cost of care floor, then the shared savings entity's per beneficiary cost of care will be
set at the total cost of care floor, for purposes of calculating shared savings incentive payments.
The 2014 cost of care floor is set at $1,400 and will increase by 1.5% each subsequent year.

236.000 Baseline and Benchmark Cost Calculations 1-1-14

For the performance period that begins in January 2014, DMS will calculate a historical baseline
per beneficiary cost of care for each shared savings entity. This shared savings entity-specific
historical baseline will be calculated as a multi-year blended average of each shared savings
entity's per beneficiary cost of care.

DMS will calculate benchmark costs for each shared savings entity by applying a 2.6%
benchmark trend to the entity’s historical baseline per beneficiary cost of care. DMS may
reevaluate the value of this benchmark trend if the annual, system-average per beneficiary cost
of care growth rate differs significantly from a benchmark, to be specified by DMS. DMS will
publish any modification to the benchmark trend at www.paymentinitiative.org.

237.000 Shared Savings Incentive Payments Amounts 1-4-14

A shared savings entity is eligible to receive a shared savings incentive payment that is the
greater of: (A) a shared savings incentive payment for performance improvement; or (B)a
shared savings incentive payment for absolute performance.

A. Shared savings incentive payments for performance improvement are calculated as follows:

1. During each performance period, each shared savings entity's per beneficiary savings
is calculated as: [benchmark cost for that performance period] — [per beneficiary cost
of care for that performance period].

2. If the shared savings entity's per beneficiary cost of care falls below that entity’s
benchmark cost for that performance period by at least the minimum savings rate, only
then may the shared savings entity be eligible for a shared savings incentive payment
for performance improvement.

3. The per beneficiary shared savings incentive payment for performance improvement
for which the shared savings entity may be eligible is calculated as follows: [per
beneficiary savings for that performance period] * [shared savings entity’s shared
savings percentage for that performance period],
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4. To establish shared savings percentages for a given performance period, DMS wil
compare the entity’s previous year per beneficiary cost of care to the previous years
medium and high cost thresholds. For the performance period beginning January
2014, DMS will compare the entity's historical baseline cost to the base year
thresholds to establish such entity's shared savings percentage.

5. If, in the previous performance period, a shared savings entity's per beneficiary cost of
care was:

a. Below the medium cost threshold, then the shared savings entity may receive
50% of per beneficiary savings created in the current performance period (je.,
the entity’s shared savings percentage will be 50%);

b. Between the medium.and high cost thresholds, then the shared savings entity
may receive 30% of per beneficiary savings created in the current performance
period (i.e., the entity's shared savings percentage will be 30%);

c. Above the high cost threshold, then the shared savings entity will not sharein
risk. Instead, the shared savings entity may receive 10% of per beneficiary
savings created in the current performance period (i.e., the entity’s shared
savings percentage will be 10%).

B. Shared savings incentive payments for absolute performance are calculated as follows:

If the shared savings entity’s per beneficiary cost of care falls below the current performance
period medium cost threshold, then the shared savings entity may be eligible for a shared
savings incentive payment for absolute performance. The per beneficiary shared savings
incentive payment for absolute performance for which the entity may be eligible is calculated
as follows: ([medium cost threshold for that performance period] — [per beneficiary cost of
care for that performance period]) * [50%].

The medium and high cost thresholds for 2014 are:
A. Medium cost threshold: $2,032

B. High cost threshold: $2,718

These thresholds reflect an annual increase of 1.5% from the base year thresholds (base year

medium cost threshold: $1,972; base year high cost threshold: $2,638) and will increase by
1.5% each subsequent year.

The minimum savings rate is 2%. DMS may adjust this rate based on new research, empirical
evidence or experience from initial provider experience with shared savings incentive payments.
DMS will publish any such modification of the minimum savings rate at

www.paymentinitiative.org.

If the per beneficiary shared savings incentive payment for which the shared savings entity is
eligible exceeds the shared savings incentive payment cap, expressed as 10% of the shared
savings entity’s benchmark cost for that performance period, the shared savings entity will be

eligible for a per beneficiary shared savings incentive payment equal to 10% of its benchmark
cost for that performance period.

If the shared savings entity's per beneficiary cost of care falls above the current performance
period high cost threshold, then the shared savings entity is not eligible for a shared savings
incentive payment for that performance period.

A shared savings entity’s total shared savings incentive payment will be calculated as the per
beneficiary shared savings incentive payment for which it is eligible multiplied by the number of
attributed beneficiaries as described in Section 232.000, adjusted based on the amount of time
beneficiaries were atiributed to such entity’s practice(s) and the risk profile of the attributed
beneficiaries.
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If participating practices have pooled their attributed beneficiaries together, then shared savings
incentive payments will be allocated to those practices in proportion to the number of attributed
beneficiaries that each practice contributed to such pool.

A shared savings entity will not receive shared savings incentive payments unless it meets all
the conditions described in Section 232.000.

DMS pays shared savings incentive payments on an annual basis for the most recently
completed performance period and may withhold a portion of shared savings incentive payments
to allow for final payment adjustment after a year of claims data is available.

Final payment will include any adjustments required in order to account for all claims for dates of
service within the performance period. If the final payment adjustment is negative, then DMS
may recover the payment adjustment from the participating practice.

241.000 Activities Tracked for Practice Support 1414

Using the provider portal, participating practices must complete and document the activities as
described in the table below by the deadline indicated in the table. The reference point for the
deadlines is the first day of the first calendar year in which the participating practice is enrolled in
the PCMH program.

Activity Deadline

A. ldentify top 10% of high-priority beneficiaries using: 3 months and again 3 months

after the start of each
1. DMS patient panel data that ranks beneficiaries by subsequent performance

risk at beginning of performance period and/or period (if such list is not
2. The practice’s patient-centered assessment to submitted by this deadline,
determine which beneficiaries on this list are high- ~DMS will identify a default list
priority. of high-priority beneficiaries for
the practice, based on risk
Submit this list to DMS via the provider portal. scores).
B. Assess operations of practice and opportunities to improve 6 months and again at 24
and submit the assessment to DMS via the provider portal. months
C. Develop and record strategies to implement care 6 months

coordination and practice transformation. Submit the
strategies to DMS via the provider portal.

D. lidentify and reduce medical neighborhood barriers to 6 months
coordinated care at the practice level. Describe barriers and
approaches to overcome local challenges for coordinated
care. Submit these descriptions of barriers and approaches
to DMS via the provider portal.

E. Make available 24/7 access to care. Provide telephone 6 months
access to a live voice (e.g., an employee of the primary care
physician or an answering service) or to an answering
machine that immediately pages an on-call medical
professional 24 hours per day, 7 days per week. The on-call
professional must:

1. _Provide information and instructions for treating




Activity

Deadline

}m\.

emergency and non-emergency conditions,

2. Make appropriate referrals for non-emergency
services and

3. Provide information regarding accessing other
services and handling medical problems during
hours the PCP’s office is closed.

Response to non-emergency after-hours calls must occur
within 30 minutes. A cail must be treated as an emergency
if made under circumstances where a prudent layperson
with an average knowledge of health care would reasonably
believe that treatment is immediately necessary to prevent
death or serious health impairment.

1. PCPs must make the after-hours telephone
number known by, at a minimum, providing the 24-
hour emergency number to all beneficiaries;
posting the 24-hour emergency number on all
public entries to each site; and including the 24-
hour emergency phone number on answering
machine greetings.

2. When employing an answering machine with
recorded instructions for after-hours cailers, PCPs
should regularly check to ensure that the machine
functions correctly and that the instructions are up
to date.

Practices must document completion of this activity by
written report to DMS via the provider portal.

. Track same-day appointment requests by:

1. Using a tool to measure and monitor same-day
appointment requests on a daily basis and

2. Recording fulfillment of same-day appointment
requests.

Practices must document compliance by written report to
DMS via the provider portat.

6 months

. Establish processes that result in contact with beneficiaries

who have not received preventive care. Practices must
document compliance by written report to DMS via the
provider portal.

. Complete a short survey related to beneficiaries’ ability to

receive timely care, appointments and information from
specialists, including Behavioral Health (BH) specialists.

12 months

,o"m“ .
& H

Invest in health care technology or tools that support
practice transformation. Practices must document health
care technology investments by written report to DMS via
the provider portal.

12 months

Join SHARE and be able to access inpatient discharge and
transfer information. Practices must Socument compliance

12 months




Activity Deadline
by written report to DMS via the provider portal.

K. Incorporate e-prescribing into practice workflows. Practices 18 months
must document compliance by written report to DMS via the
provider portal.

L. Use Electronic Health Record (EHR) for care coordination. 24 months
The EHR adopted must be one that is certified by Office of
the National Coordinator for Health Information Technology
and is used to store care plans. Practices are to document
completion of this activity via the provider portal.

DMS may add, remove, or adjust these metrics or deadlines, including additions beyond 24
months, based on new research, empirical evidence or experience from initial metrics. DMS will
publish such extension, addition, removal or adjustment at www.paymentinitiative.org.

242.000 Metrics Tracked for Practice Support 14-14

DMS assesses practices on the following metrics tracked for practice support starting on the first
day of the first calendar year in which the participating practice is enrolled in the PCMH program
and continuing through the full calendar year. To receive practice support, participating
practices must meet a majority of targets listed below.

£ Metric Target for Calendar Year
h Beginning January 1, 2014
A. Percentage of high-priority beneficiaries (identified in At least 70%

Section 241.000) whose care plan as contained in the
medical record includes:

1. Documentation of a beneficiary's chief complaint
and probiems;

2. Plan of care integrating contributions from health
care team (including behavioral health
professionals) and from the beneficiary;

3. Instructions for follow-up and

4. Assessment of progress to date.

The care plan must be updated at least twice a year.

B. Percentage of a practice’s high priority beneficiaries At least 67%

seen by their attributed PCP at least twice in the past 12
months

C. Percentage of beneficiaries who had an acute inpatient At least 33%
hospital stay and were seen by health care provider
within 10 days of discharge

D. Percentage of emergency visits categorized as non- Less than or equal to 50%
emergent by the NYU £D algorithm

A,

DMS will publish targets for subsequent years, calibrated based on experience from targets
initially set, at www.paymentinitiative.org. Such targets will escalate over time.
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DMS may add, remove, or adjust these metrics based on new research, empirical evidence or
experience from initial metrics. :

243.000 Accountability for Practice Support 1-1-14

If a practice does not meet deadlines and targets for A) activities tracked for practice support and
B) metrics tracked for practice support as described in Sections 241.000 and 242.000, thenthe
practice must remediate its performance to avoid suspension or termination of practice support.
Practices must submit an improvement plan within 1 month of the date that a report provides
notice that the practice failed to perform on the activities or metrics indicated above.

A. With respect to activities tracked for practice support, practices must remediate performance
before the end of the first full calendar quarter after the date the practice receives notice via

the provider report that target(s) have not been met, except for activity A in Section 241.000
where no such remediation time will be provided.

B. With respect to metrics tracked for practice support, practices must remediate performance
before the end of the second full calendar quarter after the date the practice receives notice
via the provider report that target(s) have not been met. For purposes of remediation,
performance is measured on the most recent four calendar quarters.

If a practice fails to meet the deadiines or targets for activities and metrics tracked for practice
support within this remediation time, then DMS will terminate practice support. DMS may
resume practice support when the practice meets the deadlines or targets for activities and
metrics tracked for practice support in effect for that quarter.

DMS retains the right to confirm practices’ performance against deadlines and targets for
activities and metrics tracked for practice support.

244,000 Quality Metrics Tracked for Shared Savings Incentive Payments 1114

DMS assesses the following quality metrics tracked for shared savings incentive payments
according to the targets below. The quality metrics are assessed at the level of shared savings
entity, except for the default pool. The quality metrics are assessed only if the entity or practice
has at least 25 attributed beneficiaries in the category described for the majority of the
performance period. To receive a shared savings incentive payment, the shared savings entity

or practice must meet at least two-thirds of the quality metrics on which the entity or practice is
assessed.

Quality Metric Target for Calendar year

Beginning January 1, 2014

A. Percentage of beneficiaries 31 days to15 months of age At least 67%
who complete at least four wellness visits

B. Percentage of beneficiaries 3-6 years of age who Atleast 67%
complete at least one weliness visit

C. Percentage of beneficiaries 12-21 years of age who At least 40%
complete at least one wellness visit

D. Percentage of diabetes beneficiaries who complete At least 75%
annual HbA1C testing

E. Percentage of beneficiaries prescribed appropriate Atleast 70%
asthma medications

F. Percentage of CHF beneficiaries on beta blockers At least 40%
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Quality Metric Target for Calendar year
Beginning January 1, 2014

G. Percentage of women > 50 years who have had breast - A least 50%
cancer screening in past 24 months

H. Percentage of beneficiaries on thyroid drugs who hada At least 80%
TSH test in past 24 months

I Percentage of beneficiaries 6-12 years of age with an At least 25%
ambulatory prescription dispensed for ADHD medication
that was prescribed by their attributed PCP, and who
had one follow-up visit with that PCP during the 30-day
Initiation Phase.

DMS will publish targets for subsequent performance periods, calibrated based on experience

from targets initially set, at www.paymentinitiative.org.

DMS may add, remove or adjust these quality metrics based on new research, empirical
evidence or experience from initial quality metrics.

245,000 Provider Reports 1114

DMS provides participating practices provider reports containing information about their practice
performance on activities tracked for practice support, metrics tracked for practice support,
quality metrics tracked for shared saving incentive payments and their per beneficiary cost of
care via the provider portal.

251.000 CPC Initiative Practice Participation 1114

Practices and physicians participating in the CPC initiative are not eligible to receive PCMH
program practice support.

Practices participating in the CPC initiative may receive PCMH program shared savings
incentive payments if they:

A. Enroll in the PCMH program;

B. Meet the requirements for shared savings incentive payments, except that a practice
participating in CPC need not maintain eligibility for practice support described in Section
222.000; and

C. Achieve all CPC milestones and measures on time.



